
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Wednesday, March 13, 2024 
6:30 p.m. 

Via Zoom Technology 

1



NLACRC Board of Trustees Calendar 

Fiscal Year 2023-24 

Please note that all meetings will be held via Zoom until further notice

ce.

*The Board of Trustees will have a quarterly hybrid meeting option this month. 

Revised 02/26/2024 

♦ March 2024 ♦

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
3:00pm 

Consumer 

Advisory 
Committee 
Meeting 

5:30 pm 

Nominating 

Committee 
Meeting 

9:30 am 
Vendor Advisory 
Committee 
Meeting 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
5:30 pm 

Board Packet 

Review 

(Zoom) 

6:30 pm 

Board Meeting 

(Zoom) 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
6:00 pm 

Government & 

Community 
Relations 
Committee 
Meeting 

10:00am-2:00 pm 

ARCA Executive 
Committee Mtg. 

9:00am-12:00 pm 

ARCA Board of 
Directors Mtg. 

Purim 

(no work) 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
Purim 

(no work) 
Holy Thursday Good Friday 

6:00 pm 
Executive 

Committee 
Meeting 

31 

Easter Sunday 

2



NLACRC Board of Trustees Calendar 

Fiscal Year 2023-24 

Please note that all meetings will be held via Zoom until further notice 

. 

Revised 02/26/2024 

♦ April 2024 ♦
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 3 4 5 6 
Cesar Chavez Day 

(NLACRC 
offices closed) 

3:00pm 

Consumer Advisory 
Committee Meeting 

5:30 pm 

Nominating 

Committee Meeting 

9:30 am 
Vendor Advisory 
Committee Meeting 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
4:30 pm-5:30 pm 

Board Packet 

Review 

(Antelope Valley 
NLACRC Office or 
option to attend via 
Zoom) 

6:30 pm 

Board Meeting 

(Antelope Valley 
NLACRC Office or 
option to attend via 
Zoom) 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
6:00 pm 

Consumer Services 
Committee Meeting 

10:00am-2:00 pm 

ARCA Executive 
Committee Mtg. 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
Passover 
(begins at 

sundown) 

Passover Passover Passover 

5:30 pm 

Post-Retirement 

Medical Trust Meeting 

6:15 pm 

Administrative 

Affairs Committee 

Meeting 

7:45 pm 

Executive 

Committee Meeting 

Passover Passover 

28 29 30 
Passover Passover Passover 

(ends at sundown) 

3



NLACRC Board of Trustees Calendar 

Fiscal Year 2023-24 

Revised 02/26/2024 

Please note that all meetings will be held via Zoom until further notice. 

♦ May 2024 ♦

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 3 4 
3:00pm 

Consumer 

Advisory 
Committee 
Meeting 

9:30 am 
Vendor Advisory 
Committee 
Meeting 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
6:00 pm 

Strategic Planning 
Committee 
Meeting 

5:30 pm 

Board Packet 

Review 

(Zoom) 

6:30 pm 

Board Meeting 

(Zoom) 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
6:00 pm 

Government & 

Community 
Relations 
Committee 
Meeting 

10:00am-2:00 pm 

ARCA Executive 
Committee Mtg. 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31 
Memorial Day 

(NLACRC 
offices closed) 

6:00 pm 

Executive 

Committee 

Meeting 

4



North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Board of Trustees Meeting -  
 Wednesday, March 13, 2024 

6:30 p.m. 
~AGENDA ~ 

1. Call to Order & Welcome – Ana Quiles, Board President

2. Board Member Attendance/Quorum – Kimberly Visokey, Executive Assistant

3. Closed Session
A. Personnel

4. Housekeeping

A. Spanish Interpretation Available

B. Public Attendance (please note name in Chat)

C. Reminder – Monthly Submission for Childcare/Attendant Care Billing/All
Meeting Invites to Include BoardSupport@NLACRC.org

D. *Update Zoom Screen Name to include full name, board position, and
geographic location (SFV, AV, or SCV)

5. Introductions – Ana Quiles, Board President
A. Parita Burmee-Chief Human Resources Officer

B. James Henry

6. Public Input & Comments (3 minutes)

7. Consent Items
A. Approval of Agenda (Page 5) 

B. Approval of February 14, 2024 Board Meeting Minutes (Page 10) 

8. Lindquist, Von Husen & Joyce Presentation of NLACRC’s FY 2022-23 Audited

Financial Statements (Page 21) 
A. Closed Session to follow, if needed

9. Action Item
A. To Approve the revisions to the CAC Chair, Attendance Policy, and Term of

Office sections in the Bylaws (Page 55) 
B. Board Support Standard Operating Procedures (Deferred) 

10. Committee Action Items
A. Administrative Affairs

1.Approval of Revised Meeting Schedule (Page 58) 

5

mailto:BoardSupport@NLACRC.org


 

2.Approval of Revised Critical Calendar (Page 60) 
3.Approval of Contracts 

A. Virtue Home Care HL1084-862 (Page 63)  
B. Rockin’ Oldies PL2181-062 (Page 67) 
C. DV Therapy PL2228-612 (Page 71) 
D. DV Therapy PL2229-615 (Page 75) 
E. DV Therapy PL2230-616 (Page 79) 
F. Sekibo, Tumini PL2262-785 (Page 84) 
G. Ride On LA PL2263-106 (Page 88) 
H. Phiba Home PL2254-109 (Page 92) 
I. Brilliant Corners PL2186-999, PL2187-999, PL2188-999 1st 

amendments (Page 96) 
J. Ultra Jiu Jitsu PL2144-008 1st amendment (Page 102) 
K. Zooz Fitness PL2143-008 1st amendment (Page 106) 

4. Approval of Salary Schedule (Page 110)  
 

B. Government & Community Relations Committee 
1. To Approve a Candidate Forum for Fall 2024  
2. To Approve Consumer Legislative Advocacy Training  
 

C. Executive Committee  
1. Approval of Board/Staff Interaction Policy Revision (Page 114)  
2. Approval of Board Member Responsibilities Policy - Proposed Legislative 

Visit Requirement (Page 115) 
 

D. Nominating Committee 
1. Approval of Chair Alternate Policy (Page 117) 

2. Board Source Self Evaluation Tool (Page 118) 

 

E. Consumer Services Committee 
1. Approval of the proposed Service Standards: Social Recreation submission 

to DDS. (Page 127) 

 

11. Executive Director’s Report – Cristina Preuss (Page 156)  

 

12. Self-Determination Program (SDP) Report – Gabriela Eshrati 

A. SDLVAC Liaison February Report (Page 165)  

B. Next Self Determination Local Advisory Committee Meeting scheduled for 
March 15, 2024, 6:30pm  

 

 

 

6



 

 

13. Association of Regional Center Agencies – Lety Garcia 

A. ARCA Liaison Report - No meeting in February 

B. Next meeting scheduled for March 22, 2024  

 

14. Administrative Affairs Committee – Brian Gatus 

A. Minutes of the January 23rd Meeting (Page 167) 

B. Minutes of the February 27th Meeting (Deferred) 

C. Review of Insurance (Page 172) 

D. Report on Lease Agreement (Page 179)  

E. 2nd Quarter PRMT and UAL Fees Reports (Page 189)  

F. FY2023-2024 Financial Reports (Attachment #1) 

G. FY2023-2024 Board Budget vs Expenditure Report (Page 195) 

H. Statewide Regional Center POS Expenditure Projection Report (Page 196) 

I. Social Recreation, Camp & Non-Medical Therapies Services Report (Page 198) 

J. Payments and Authorizations Timeline Summary (Page 204) 

K. 2nd Quarter HR Report (Page 206) 

L. Monthly Human Resources Report (Page 207) 

M. Temporary Staff Statistics Report (Page 210) 

N. Status of People Scout Recruitment (Page 211) 
O. Next Meeting: Tuesday, April 23, 2024 at 6:00 p.m.  

 

15. Consumer Advisory Committee – George Alvarado 
A. Minutes of the February 7th Meeting (Page 213)  

B. Minutes from the March 6, 2024 Meeting (Deferred)  

C. Next Meeting Scheduled on April 3, 2024, at 3:00pm 

 

16. Consumer Services Committee – Rosie Sigala 
A. Minutes of the November 15th Meeting (Page 219)  

B. Minutes of the February 21st Meeting (Deferred) 
C. Next Meeting Scheduled on April 17, 2024, at 6:00pm 

 

17. Executive Committee – Ana Quiles 
A. EVV- electronic visit verification information for SDP cases  
B. Bylaws Review Schedule - it was determined that the Committee will review 

the document at every other meeting as follows: 
1. Review pages 1-12, stopping at “Election and Term of Office.” 
2. Review pages 12-26, stopping at “Officers” 
3. Review pages 26-36, stopping at “Consumer Services Committee” 
4. Review pages 36 to end. 

7



 
 
 

C. Minutes of the January 25th Meeting (Page 226)  
D. Minutes of the February 29th Meeting (Deferred) 

E. Next Meeting Scheduled on March 28, 2024, at 6:00pm 

  

18. Recruitment Committee – Ana Quiles 
A. Executive Director Job Posting is Live on NLACRC Website  

B. Feedback from Input Sessions-Workforce Development Solutions 

C. Minutes of the January 29th Meeting (Page 235)  

D. Minutes of the February 12th Meeting (Page 238)  

E. Minutes of the February 20th Meeting (Page 241)  

F. Minutes of the February 26th Meeting (Page 245)  

G. Minutes of the March 4th Meeting (Deferred) 

H. Minutes of the March 11th Meeting (Deferred) 

I. Next Meeting Scheduled for March 18, 2024, at 5:00pm 

 

19. Government & Community Relations Committee – David Coe  

A. Minutes of the January 17th Meeting (Deferred) 

B. Review Board Recognition Policy (Page 248)  

C. Next Meeting Scheduled on March 20, 2024, at 6:00pm 

 

20. Nominating Committee – Lillian Martinez 

A. Chair To make an Announcement to call for Slate of Officers 

B. Minutes of the February 7th Meeting (Page 249)  

C. Minutes of the March 6th Meeting (Deferred) 

D. Next Meeting Scheduled on April 3, 2024, at 5:30pm 

 

21. Post-Retirement Medical Trust Committee – Ana Quiles 

A. Next Meeting Scheduled on April 25, 2024, at 5:30 pm 

 

22. Strategic Planning Committee – Lety Garcia 

A. Minutes of the February 5th Meeting (Deferred) 
B. Presentation of results of Individual and Family Service Survey (Page 252) 
C. Next Meeting Scheduled on May 6, 2024, at 6:00pm 

 

 

 

8



 

 

23. Vendor Advisory Committee - Suad Bisogno 

A. Minutes of the February 1st Meeting (Page 295)  

B. Minutes of the March 7th Meeting (Deferred) 

C. Identify Nominees to serve as chair for next fiscal year 

D. Next Meeting Scheduled on April 4, 2024, at 9:30am 

 

24. Old Business/New Business 

A. Board and Committee Meeting Attendance Sheets (Page 305)  

B. Board and Committee Meetings Time Report (Page 316)  

C. Updated Acronyms Listing (Page 317)  

D. Meeting Evaluation Form – Emailed separately 

 
25. Review of Committee Action Log Items (Item Owner and Due Date) 

A. Board Committee Action Log (Page 323) 
 

26. Announcements/Information/Public Input 

A. Next Meeting: Wed., April 10, 2024, at 6:00pm 

B. Committee Attendance 

 
Please refer to NLACRC’s website for the Calendar of Events, which includes a link for the Family Focus 

Resource Center, for information regarding more support groups, training opportunities, dates, times, and links 

– Calendar of Events | NLACRC 

 

27. Adjournment 
 

9

https://www.nlacrc.org/about-us/calendar-of-events


Minutes of Regular Meeting 
of 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Board of Trustees 

 
The Board of Trustees of North Los Angeles County Regional Center, Inc., a nonprofit corporation, held 
their regular board meeting via Zoom on February 14, 2024 
 
Trustees Present 
Suad Bisogno 
Rocio Sigala 
Leticia Garcia 
Curtis Wang 
Sharmila Brunjes 
Ana Quiles 
Andrew Ramirez 
Brian Gatus 
Vivian Seda 
George Alvarado 
Lillian Martinez 
Michael Costa 
Cathy Blin 
David Coe 
Jenifer Koster 
Nicholas Abrahms 
 
 
 
 
Trustees Absent  
Anna Hurst 
James Henry 
Kelsey Livingston 
Michael Costa 
 
 
 

Guests Present 
Richard Dier - SDLAC 
Lori Walker - SDLAC 
Sol Garza – Interpreter 
Gume Garza - Interpreter 
Lia Cervantes Lerma - State Council 
Andre’ca B. – Family Focus Resource 
Jasmine Barrios – Minutes Services 
Nicholas Mendoza- Coach for George A. 
Juan Hernadez 
Xochitl Gonzalez- DDS 
Marianita Mendez - DDS 
Patty Gutierrez 
Tsahi Banton 
Edith Alvarez 
Maria Cea 
 
 
 

Staff Present 
Vini Montague 
Arezo Abedi 
Evelyn McOmie 
Kimberly Visokey 
Parita Burmee 
Gabriela Eshrati 
Donna Rentsch 
Arshalous Garlanian 

 
1. Call to Order & Welcome – Ana Quiles, Board President  

Ana called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  
 

2. Board Member Attendance /Quorum– Kimberly Visokey, Executive Administrative Assistant 
Kimberly took attendance of Board Members; a quorum was present.  
 

3. Closed Session  
A. Personnel 

M/S/C (C. Wang/N. Abrahms) To enter the Closed Session at 6:04 pm.  
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/B. Gatus) To exit the Closed Session at 6:38 pm.   

10



NLACRC Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes                                                                                   Page 2 
February 14 2024 
 

 

 
4. Housekeeping   

A. Spanish Interpretation Available 
Ana informed attendees that instructions for Spanish Interpretation are located in the chat.    

B. Public Attendance 
Ana asked public attendants to notate their names and agency in the chat. 

C. Monthly Submission for Childcare/Attendant Care Billing 
It was noted that all meeting invites to include: boardsupport@nla.org 

D. Ana Quiles requested that the Board Members change their name as it appears on the Zoom 
call to reflect their first/last name, Board position and NLA location. She also asked that NLA 
staff do the same to help attendees identify the speakers.  

 
5. Introductions 

A. Lillian Martinez, Secretary 
Lillian has served on the NLA Board for the last 6 years and will complete her 7th year in 
June. She is very religious and feels that it is her purpose to help the disability community. 
Lillian has 5 family members that regional centers of varying ages serve. She also enjoys 
shopping, reading and enjoying great food.   

 
B. Cristina Preuss, NLA Interim Executive Director 

Cristina was recently appointed the Interim Executive Director for NLA. She has been in 
the Early Childhood education field for over 20 years. Her main goal has always been to 
advocate for and empower individuals with disabilities. Cristina expressed her passion 
for making individuals with disabilities and their families feel included. She enjoys 
spending time with her 3 adult children and 2 grandchildren and is also very spiritual.  
 

6. Public Input  
 

Lori Walker, Co-Chair for the Self-Determination Local Advisory Committee, shared that the 
next Committee meeting will take place on February 15th at 6:30 pm. There will be a 
presentation regarding the Coordinated Family Services Support Pilot Program from DDS 
and a discussion on the allocation of DDS implementation funds. The Committee has also 
completed the Independent Facilitator Handbook that guides IFs on how to work the NLA 
way. The Self-Determination Program Training Video list has also been completed as a 
resource for families.  
 
Lia Cervantes-Lerma with the State Council shared that any questions related to self-
determination, special education, or any subject to call the State Council for assistance. 
Anyone with questions or who needs resources for special education, Self-Determination, 
etc. A confidential survey from DDS will be sent to families regarding their service 
satisfaction, will be mailed out and participation is encouraged.  
 

11



NLACRC Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes                                                                                   Page 3 
February 14 2024 
 

 

Richar Dier, Co-Chair for the Self-Determination Local Advisory Committee, stated that the 
Committee is made up of family members, participants and providers that NLA or State 
Council appoints. The 2023 Committee-Centered Plan will be available on their website and 
will be presented at the upcoming Consumer Services Committee Meeting.  
 
Leticia Garcia announced that the Cal-TASH 2024 Conference would be held March 1st and 
2nd in Sacramento. The topic is “A Self-Determined Life,” and more information can be 
obtained at info@caltash.org. She encouraged those interested to contact their Service 
Coordinator to determine if funding is available to cover the registration cost to attend the 
Conference. Funding is not available to travel to the Conference.  
 

 
Andre’ca B, from the Family Focus Resource Center, shared that there will be Early Start 
Play Dates planned for February, March and April. The All-Abilities Resource Fair will be held 
in March at Sgt. Steve Owen Park in Lancaster. The following All-Abilities Resource Fair will 
be held on Saturday, October 19th, at CSUN.  
 
Lillian Martinez shared that she had a great experience as a team member in the IP. She 
shared that for her granddaughter’s initial IPP, she worked with Service Coordinator 
Stephanie Vargas. Stephanie provided wonderful service to Lillian and her family. Ana Quiles 
asked Evelyn McOmie to share the information with Stephanie.  

 
7. Consent Items 

   
A. Approval of Agenda 

 
Ana Quiles noted that the location of “Legislative Town Hall” from the Government and 
Community Relations Committee be moved to item A2, under Committee Action Items. 
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/A. Ramirez) To approve the meeting agenda as revised. 

 
B. Approval of January 10, 2024 Board Meeting Minutes  

 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/D. Coe) To approve the Minutes as presented. 

 
8. Committee Action Items  

 
A. Government & Community Relations Committee – David Coe 

The below events were shared with the Board for approval: 
1. Candidate Forum  

This event will be held in Fall 2024 and will provide a platform for candidates to 
speak to the Community. 

2. Legislative Town Hall  

12

mailto:info@caltash.org


NLACRC Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes                                                                                   Page 4 
February 14 2024 
 

 

This event will take place on February 22, 2024, moderated by Michelle Heid. 
Assembly Members Carillo and Lackey have confirmed their attendance. Staff 
Members from Assembly Member Schivo will also be in attendance. 
 

M/S/C (A. Ramirez/L. Martinez) To approve the events as presented. 
 

B. Executive Committee – Ana Quiles  
1. Bylaws- David Lester 

 
Ana shared that 2 sections of the Board Bylaws were previously requested to review 
regarding Board Member Meeting Attendance and the Consumer Advisory 
Committee’s ability to elect their own Chair and Board Liaison.  
 
Those sections of the Bylaws were reviewed and updated by NLA Counsel David Lester. 
In addition, David also reviewed the entire set of Bylaws to update verbiage and to 
ensure compliance with requirements. The Board is being tasked to review the 
revisions for the 2 requested sections for approval at the next Board meeting and then 
to determine the method for review of the remaining revisions to the Bylaws made by 
David Lester.  
 
David explained that the Bylaws were revised to allow the Consumer Advisory 
Committee to elect their Chair. In addition, a provision was added for an NLA staff 
member, Board Member or person-served to be eligible to serve as the Committee’s 
Liaison to the Board.  
 
In regard to Board Member Meeting attendance, revisions were made to clarify that 
attendance will be tracked on a fiscal year basis which is July 1st through June 30th. In 
addition, Chairs will work to determine the process for notifying Committee Members 
of absences and what timeframe constitutes attendance at a meeting.  
 
David shared that the remaining revisions he made were to clarify verbiage, create 
more detail and eliminate inconsistencies throughout the document. He recommends 
that the Board review the Bylaw Revisions in 10-page increments in order to work 
through the revisions without the need to create an additional Committee or to hold 
additional meetings. It was noted that only the Board can approve the revisions, any 
Committee who reviews the revisions will only be making recommendations to the 
Board for final approval.  
 
Leticia Garcia noted that in this instance, the Board should have voted for any 
additional revisions to the Bylaws made by Counsel beyond the 2 requests that were 
previously made to the Board. She also recommended that a neutral Ad-Hoc 
Committee be formed to review the remaining revisions.  
 

13



NLACRC Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes                                                                                   Page 5 
February 14 2024 
 

 

In regard to CAC attendance requirements, only the Chair is held to the same 
requirements as Board Members and would apply to the current Chair, George 
Alvarado, as he is also a Board Member.  
 

 M/S/C (L. Martinez/G. Alvarado) To approve the 2 requested revisions to CAC    
Committee and Board Member Meeting attendance to the bylaws and to create an Ad 
Hoc Committee of Board Members to review the remaining Bylaw revisions.  
 
The motion was amended to separate the 2 components: 
 
M/S/C (L. Martinez/B. Gatus) To approve the 2 requested revisions to the CAC 
Committee and Board Member Meeting attendance sections of the Bylaws.  

   
M/S/C (L. Martinez/G. Alvarado) To approve the creation of an Ad Hoc Committee of 
Board Members to review the remaining Bylaw revisions. The motion did not pass with 
opposition from L. Martinez, A. Ramirez, B. Gatus, J. Hernandez, C. Blin, N. Abrahms, G. 
Alvarado, A. Rodriguez, V. Seda, D. Coe, R. Sigala, A. Quiles and 2 abstentions from S. 
Bisogno and J. Koster. 
 
The Committee discussed issues surrounding the creation of an additional committee 
and the additional meeting dates that would be required. There were suggestions to 
review the revisions in the Executive Committee Meeting along with any other Board 
Members who would like to participate.  
 
Sharmila Brunjes suggested an ongoing email thread for the Board Members to discuss 
the revisions throughout the month and when reviewed at the determined forum, many 
of the Members will already have landed on a decision which would expedite the review 
process. Suad added to this suggestion to use SharePoint to collaborate on a document 
where comments and feedback can be included as a means of discussion.  
 
M/S/C (B. Gatus/G. Alvarado) To approve the delegation of the review of remaining 
Bylaw revisions to the Executive Committee and to add a standing agenda item to the 
Board Meeting agenda on updates to the Bylaw review. The motion passed with 2 
oppositions from S. Brunjes and L. Garcia.  
 
David Coe made the recommendation to review the Board Officer Term limits to the 
review of the Bylaws to remove the limits and to have both Board Member and Board 
Officer Terms to be made consistent at 7 years. This would not impact the scheduled 
election of officers, just the ability to run for an officer position. It was clarified that the 
2-year term limit only applies to the President Officer position and does not apply to the 
other officer positions. David Lester echoed this recommendation as being the most 
flexible option.  
 

14



NLACRC Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes                                                                                   Page 6 
February 14 2024 
 

 

Leticia referenced proposed law AB1147 as one reason for the Officer Term Limits. The 
law made Regional Centers accountable to the Community and at the time, the 
community felt that there was an elite group that was making all of the decisions for the 
Regional Center. Leticia also suggested an evaluation process for the Board President. 
 
M/S/C (D. Coe/G. Alvarado) To add the review of Board President Term Limits to the 
Bylaw Board review.  The motion passed with 1 opposition from L. Garcia.  
 
 

C. Recruitment Committee  
1. Executive Director Recruitment Expense Budget  

Ana reviewed the information as presented in the packet.  
The current budget is $120,300; contracts are in place, and the Budget will be 
submitted to DDS.  
 

D. Nominating Committee  
1. Certificate of Return or Destruction of Confidential Information Form  

Ana reviewed this information as presented in the packet. Since the Nominating 
Committee held virtual meetings, confidential information was reviewed by the 
Committee via email and regular mail. This form will confirm the destruction of the 
protected information by Committee Members.  
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/ C. Wang) To approve the Certificate of Return or Destruction 
of Confidential Information Form as presented.    
 

E. Strategic Planning Committee  
1. FY 2024-2023 Critical Calendar 

Ana reviewed the information as presented in the packet.  
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/ L. Martinez) To approve the Critical Calendar as presented.     

 
9.  Executive Director’s Report – Cristina Preuss  

Cristina reviewed the report as presented in the packet. Highlights include: 
 
Legislative 
Major Policy Issues in Governor’s January Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-25 
$1B savings by delaying implementation of the final step of the rate model phase-in to 
July 1, 2025 

 
DDS  
On February 6, 2024, Regional centers received an updated directive to clarify the 
requirements contained in Welfare and Institutions (W&I) Code section 4688.22 and 
guide facilitating access to providers and vendorization of social recreation services, 
camping services, and nonmedical therapies.  

15



NLACRC Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes                                                                                   Page 7 
February 14 2024 
 

 
 
Coordinated Family Supports 
On February 6, 2024, the Department of Developmental Services (DDS) conducted a 
presentation regarding CFS implementation. Discussion was about progress challenges 
and upcoming outreach efforts for 2024.  NLACRC Community Services Department is 
working on hosting virtual information sessions for Case Management staff starting the 
end of February and dissemination of a flyer to promote the use of this service. There 
are 7 vendors in our system.  
 
DDS Direct Service Professional Training Stipend Program 
As of 01/23/2024, DDS reports having 40,613 registrants statewide; 38,613 DSPs 
completed at least 1 course and of those, 32,591 have completed two courses.     
 
Association of Regional Center Agencies (ARCA) 
ARCA Co-Sponsorship of Blue Envelope Program Bill, legislation that will create a Blue 
Envelope Program, making available blue envelopes containing information regarding 
traffic stop safety tips, printed recommendations to the responding law enforcement 
officer with interaction techniques to help promote enhanced communication and 
accommodation between law enforcement and community members; also may include 
information regarding an individual’s needs, requested accommodations, and an 
emergency contact.  ARCA is also supporting the 41st Annual Cal-TASH conference, 
which will take place on March 12, 2024, in Sacramento. The theme this year is Self-
Determined Life: Recommended for Ages 2-102.  It will have an entire strand of 
conference breakout sessions presented in Spanish and interpretation for our large 
group sessions and keynote speakers. Vendored by Regional Center with vendor code 
PW2184. 
 
NLA Employee Satisfaction Survey – Request for Proposal   
NLA’s 2022-2026 Strategic Plan includes the development and growth of an engaged 
workforce, with strategies that include providing ongoing training to staff, developing 
consistency in onboarding procedures across departments, creating career 
advancement pathways, assessing workload issues by job classification, addressing 
workload imbalance, exploring team structure, utilizing Information Technology to 
build/support team structures, creating training tools database to support supervisors 
in training their teams, and more.  To assess the impact of efforts in this area thus far, 
NLA is seeking a qualified firm to conduct an employee satisfaction survey.   
 
Consumer Statistics  
As of January 2024, the Center served 35,622 consumers and applicants, including 4,879 
in Early Start and 27,991 (an increase of 32) in the Lanterman program. The Center’s San 
Fernando Valley Office serves 22,598 individuals, Antelope Valley serves 8,803, and the 
Santa Clarita Office serves 3,859 (these totals include applicants and individuals served 
under Lanterman and the Early Start programs).  

 
10. Self Determination Program (SDP) – Gabriela Eshrati  

Ana reviewed the information as presented in the packet. 

16



NLACRC Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes                                                                                   Page 8 
February 14 2024 
 

 

A. SDLVAC Liaison Report  
B. Next Self Determination Local Advisory Committee Meeting is scheduled for February 15, 

2024, at 6:30pm 
 
11. Association of Regional Center Agencies - Leticia Garcia 

Ana reviewed the information as presented in the packet. 
A. ARCA Liaison Report  
B. Next meeting is scheduled for March 22, 2024 
 

12. Administrative Affairs Committee -Brian Gatus 
Ana reviewed the information as presented in the packet. 
A. Minutes of the September 28, 2023 Meeting  
B. FY2023-2024 Meeting Schedule  
C. Change in Mileage Reimbursement Rate Effective Jan. 1, 2024  
D. FY2023-2024 Financial Reports  
E. Purchase of Services Outstanding Payments  
F. Monthly Human Resources Reports  
G. Next Meeting Scheduled on February 29, 2024, at 6:00pm  

 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/ A. Ramirez) To approve the new date for this meeting to be February 
27, 2024.  
 

H. Audited financial Statement - deferred 
 
13. Consumer Advisory Committee – George Alvarado  

Ana reviewed the information as presented in the packet. 
A. Minutes of the January 3rd Meeting  
B. Minutes of the February 7th Meeting - deferred 
C. Next Meeting Scheduled on March 6, 2024, at 3:00pm 
 

14. Consumer Services Committee – Rocio Sigala 
Ana reviewed the information as presented in the packet. 
A. Next Meeting Scheduled on February 21, 2024, at 6:00pm 
 

15. Executive Committee – Ana Quiles 
Ana reviewed the information as presented in the packet.  
A. Minutes of the November 30, 2023 Meeting  
B. Minutes of the December 14, 2023 Meeting  
C. Next Meeting Scheduled on February 29, 2024, at 7:30pm 

 
16. Recruitment Committee  

A. Minutes of the December 26th Meeting  
B. Minutes of the January 2nd Meeting 
C. Minutes of the January 9th Meeting  

17



NLACRC Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes                                                                                   Page 9 
February 14 2024 
 

 

D. Minutes of the January 22nd Meeting  
E. Minutes of the January 29th Meeting – deferred  
F. Minutes of the February 12th Meeting - deferred 
G. Next Meeting Scheduled for February 20, 2024, at 5:00pm 
 

17. Government & Community Relations – David Coe 
Ana reviewed the information as presented in the packet. 
David added that any Board Member interested in a Legislative Grassroots team should reach 
out to Board Support. 
 
A. NLACRC Legislative Town Hall – Feb. 22, 2024  
B. Minutes of the November 16th Meeting  
C. Minutes of the January 17th Meeting - deferred 
D. Next Meeting Scheduled on March 20, 2024, at 6:00pm 
 

18. Nominating Committee - Lillian Martinez 
Ana reviewed the information as presented in the packet. 
Lillian added that any Board Member interested in a Board Officer Position should reach out to 
Board Support. 
A. FY 2024-25 Slate of Officers  
B. Minutes of the November 14, 2023 Meeting  
C. Minutes of the January 30th Meeting  
D. Minutes of the February 7th Meeting - deferred 
E. Next Meeting Scheduled on March 6, 2024, at 5:30pm 
 

19. Post-Retirement Medical Trust Committee – Ana Quiles 
Ana reviewed the information as presented in the packet. 
A. Next Meeting Scheduled on April 25, 2024, at 5:30 pm 
 

20. Strategic Planning Committee- Leticia Garcia 
Ana reviewed the information as presented in the packet. 
A. PIP Employment Data  

Evelyn announced that NLA individuals receiving support through this paid internship 
program in 2023 reached a total reimbursement amount of $1,060,115.34. This is an 
amazing increase from $279,376.77 in program reimbursements in 2022. Nicholas Mendoza 
congratulated and thanked NLA for their support in the amazing growth of this program.  

B. Minutes of the November 6, 2023 Meeting  
C. Minutes of the January 8th Meeting  
D. Minutes of the February 5th Meeting - deferred 
E. Next Meeting Scheduled on May 6, 2024, at 6:00pm 
 

21. Vendor Advisory Committee – Suad Bisogno 
Ana reviewed the information as presented in the packet. 
A. Minutes of the January 4th Meeting  

18



NLACRC Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes                                                                                   Page 10 
February 14 2024 
 

 

B. Minutes of the February 1st Meeting - deferred 
C. Next Meeting Scheduled on March 7, 2024, at 9:30am 
 
 

22. Old Business/New Business  
Ana reviewed the information as presented in the packet.  
A. Board and Committee Meeting Attendance Sheets  
B. Board and Committee Meetings Time Report  
C. Updated Acronyms Listing  
D. Meeting Evaluation Form – Emailed separately 
 

23. Announcements/Information/Public Input 
A. Next Meeting: Wed., March 12, 2024, at 6:00pm  
B. Self Determination Local Advisory Committee Meeting: Thurs., February 15, 2024, 6:30pm  
C. Mon., February 19, 2024 - President’s Day - NLACRC Offices Closed/Oficinas de NLACRC 

cerradas  
D. Recruitment Committee Meeting. Tues., February 12, 2024, 5:00pm  
E. CalABLE Presentation - North Los Angeles County Regional Center, Wed., February 21, 2024, 

5:30pm  
F. Consumer Services Committee Meeting: Wed., February 21, 2024, 6:30pm  
G. Parent of Adult Consumers Support Group: Wed., February 21, 2024, 6:00pm  
H. NLACRC’s Legislative Town Hall: Thurs., February 22, 2024, 6:00pm  
I. Orientaciones de autodeterminación: Mon., February 26, 2024, 9:00am  
J. Recruitment Committee Meeting. Mon., February 26, 2024, 5:00pm  
K. Administrative Affairs Committee Meeting: Thurs., February 29, 2024, 6:00pm  
L. Executive Committee Meeting: Thurs., February 29, 2024, 7:30pm  
M. Recruitment Committee Meeting. Mon., March 4, 2024, 5:00pm  
N. Consumer Advisory Committee: Wed., March 6, 2024, 3:00pm  
O. Nominating Committee Meeting: Wed., March 6, 2024, 5:30pm  
P. Black & African American Support Group: Wed., March 6, 2024, 6:30pm  
Q. Vendor Advisory Committee: Thursday, March 7, 2024, 9:30am  
R. Recruitment Committee Meeting. Mon., March 11, 2024, 5:00pm 

 
 

Ana shared that the yearly Board Training regarding Resource Development and Vendorization 
Process is scheduled for February 28th.  
 
David requested that the Negotiating and Recruitment Committees be added to the time sheets 
and the attendance lists. Leticia mentioned that the Board Attendance sheet is not included in 
the packet. Kimberly Visokey will include them in the packet going forward.  
 

19



NLACRC Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes                                                                                   Page 11 
February 14 2024 
 

 

Ana announced that the Board Dinner theme will be: “50 Years of Making Dreams Come True”. 
NLA is hoping to invite the longest standing Consumer and the most recent Consumer to the 
Dinner in celebration of the 50-year milestone.  
 
Richard Dier noted that he was available to anyone who would like more information on 
parent/guardian as Service Coordinator.  
 

24. Adjournment 
Ana Quiles, Board President, adjourned the meeting at 8:34 p.m. 

 
 
Submitted by: 

Kimberly Visokey 
Executive Administrative Assistant 
 
 
(*) The majority of these minutes are taken from the Minutes Service submission and reviewed/edited as 
presented herein by NLACRC staff. 

 

20



������������	
�������
���������������	������������

��
����������������� ���
�������������
!"�#$%&'()*&$�+(*,)('&-�./0%&1�23*3'&-�#(),()$-&(*4���������������������������	�������� ����
5��
�	�
���
�������6 ���789�:8:7����:8::

21



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%&��	���	����	��'������	����(�(�)���*+��,+,*	�(�,+,,�	-����&��������� ./01�2314123125�	637589:;��14895������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������<�5/51=125;�8>�&72/2?7/@�.8;75782��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������A�5/51=125;�8>�	?57B7571;���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������C�5/51=125;�8>�&62?5782/@��D412;1;����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������E�5/51=125;�8>��/;F�&@8G;������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������H�851;�58�&72/2?7/@��5/51=125;������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������I�644@1=125/9J��2>89=/5782�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,A�?F136@1�8>��D412375691;�8>�&1319/@�	G/93;��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,C�851;�58�5F1��?F136@1�8>��D412375691;�8>�&1319/@�	G/93;������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,E�?F136@1�8>�&723720;�/23�K61;578213��8;5;����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,L�2314123125�	637589:;��14895�82��25192/@��82598@��B19�&72/2?7/@��14895720�/23�82��8=4@7/2?1�/23��5F19�'/5519;�-/;13�82�/2�	6375�8>�&72/2?7/@��5/51=125;�.19>89=13�72�	??893/2?1�G75FM�N$��O$��� P����QR���P��PS�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,H�2314123125�	637589:;��14895�82��8=4@7/2?1�>89�'/T89�&1319/@�.9809/=�/23�82��25192/@��82598@��B19��8=4@7/2?1��1U67913�VJ�5F1�27>89=�
673/2?1����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������*+W����W����W����W

22



�

���������	�
���������������������
�������������������������������������������� �� !"!� !�#$% �#&'()'!"&'#*+,-./�-0�/1+�2345/�-6�/1+�75080958:�;/8/+<+0/=>?@A@BAC���D��
������������EF���������������������E�������������������������
����������������������������������������F������F
G����G��������F�����������������EF�����������E����������������F�������������H
��IJ��KJKI����KJKK�������������������E����������D�������
���������LF������������������������������������������������������������������������������E��������
���F������������������������E����F��������������������E���������F������������������F�����������������������������
����������������������������H
��IJ��KJKI����KJKK��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������F�����F��������������F���������M�����N���������E�����OPQ@Q�RBS�>?@A@BAC�����
�����
���
�����������������������
����������������������������F���������M�����N���������E�����TU��NV�������������������FF����G����������������
�����������������WBXYSAZYA[�\]̂@[@A_�̀[PÂPŜQaWBXYSAZYA[�\]̂@[@A_�̀[PÂPŜQb�����
��G�������EF�������U�����������M�����N������c
����F����G�������
�����������������������
����������G���������
�����d����F����G���������������
����������e���������N���E���������������
���F�����C�����f
�������G����F��������������������������
�����������������������������E���
����������������F����G�������������������������������D������������f
��E����������������
���
������C�G��D����������
����D���������D��G����������
�������������FF��F��������F��D�����G����������
���
�����F������gZ?hPQ@Q�BR�iP[[YS�jkYl�\mmB]A[@A_�̀[PÂPŜ�������
�����������K���������������������E�����������������������
�������������������������F�������������
�������
�������f
����G������
������F�����F��������������F���������M�����N���������E��������������c
���F�������������E��������������F�����������E�����
23



�

��������	�
����������������������������������
������������������������� ��!"���#$��%" ��&��! �!� ���"����'�%�� �! ��������"��"%��&��%����(��$����������������((" '��(��)��&��(("*������! ��(�!$������� �$$+��((�!��'�����&��,����'�-������"%�.�� �(�/���'�%" ��&��'�����/���!$��������"�/���'����������(��"%����� ��$�("�� "$� �$�0�����"��&��! �!� ���"����'�%�� �! ��������"��"%�%����(��$�������������&���� ��% ���% "������ ��$�������������/�)&��&� �'*���"�% �*'�" ��  " 12��! �!� �����&��%����(��$�����������/��������������� �3*� �'��"��0�$*����)&��&� ��&� ��� ��("�'���"���" ��0����/�("���'� �'�����&����� �����/��&��� ������*#�������$�'"*#���#"*��4" �&�5"��.���$���6"*��+�7���"��$�6���� /�2�(18���#�$��+��"�("����*��������"����("�(� ��)��&���"���+�� ��%�� ��&��'�����&����&��%����(��$������������� ���0��$�#$���"�#�����*�'19:;����<����������	�
�������������9:;�����������������
�����������=* �"#>�(��0���� ���"�"#����� ���"��#$�����* ��(���#"*��)&��&� ��&��%����(��$�����������������)&"$��� ��% ���% "������ ��$�������������/�)&��&� �'*���"�% �*'�" ��  " /���'��"����*������*'��" 8�� �!" ���&�����($*'���"* �"!���"�1�7���"��#$�����* ��(�������&��&�$�0�$�"%����* ��(��#*������"���#�"$*������* ��(����'��&� �%" ������"�����*� �������&�������*'���("�'*(��'�����((" '��(��)��&�?..-���'�@�A��������9:;����������;��;�)�$$��$)�+��'���(�������� ��$��������������)&�������B����1�C&�� ��D�"%��"��'���(����������� ��$�������������� ��*$�����% "��% �*'����&��&� ��&���%" �"��� ��*$�����% "���  " /����% �*'���+���0"$0��("$$*��"�/�%" �� +/��������"��$�"�����"��/���� �! ��������"��/�" ��&��"0�  �'��"%����� ��$�("�� "$1��������������/���($*'����"�����"��/�� ��("���'� �'����� ��$��%��&� ��������*#�������$�$�D�$�&""'��&��/���'�0�'*�$$+�" �����&����� �����/��&�+�)"*$'���%$*��(���&��>*'��������'��#+��� ���"��#$��*�� �#���'�"���&��%����(��$�����������12��!� %" ���������*'�������((" '��(��)��&�?..-���'�@�A��������9:;����������;��;�/�)�EF GB� (����! "%����"��$�>*'��������'����������! "%����"��$��D�!��(�����& "*�&"*���&���*'��1F 2'����%+���'���������&�� ��D��"%����� ��$��������������"%��&��%����(��$�����������/�)&��&� �'*���"�% �*'�" ��  " /���'�'��������'�!� %" ���*'���! "(�'* ��� ��!"���0���"��&"��� ��D�1�-*(&�! "(�'* �����($*'���B�������/�"���������#����/��0�'��(�� ��� '�����&����"*������'�'��($"�* �������&��%����(��$�����������1F =#��������*�'� ����'����"%����� ��$�("�� "$� �$�0�����"��&���*'������" '� ��"�'�������*'���! "(�'* ����&���� ���!! "! ���������&��(� (*�����(��/�#*���"��%" ��&��!* !"���"%��B! ����������"!���"��"���&���%%�(��0������"%�4" �&�5"��.���$���6"*��+�7���"��$�6���� 8������ ��$�("�� "$1�.((" '���$+/��"��*(&�"!���"������B! ����'1F G0�$*�����&���!! "! ���������"%��(("*������!"$�(����*��'���'��&�� ���"��#$������"%������%�(�����(("*������������������'��#+�����������/����)�$$�����0�$*�����&��"0� �$$�! ��������"��"%��&��%����(��$�����������1F 6"�($*'��)&��&� /����"* �>*'�����/��&� ��� ��("�'���"���" ��0����/�("���'� �'�����&����� �����/��&��� ������*#�������$�'"*#���#"*��4" �&�5"��.���$���6"*��+�7���"��$�6���� 8���#�$��+��"�("����*��������"����("�(� ��%" ��� ���"��#$��!� �"'�"%�����1H��� �� �3*� �'��"�("��*��(����)��&��&"���(&� ��'�)��&��"0� ���(�� ��� '���/���"���"�&� ������ �/��&��!$����'��("!����'��������"%��&���*'��/������%�(�����*'���%��'����/���'�(� ��������� ��$�("�� "$� �$���'������ ���&���)���'����%��'�'* �����&���*'��1
24



�

���������	
��������
	����������������������������� �!��!��������"��#���!�������� ���������$�����"�������� �$�%& �����"!��'��#�� ���$����(!�����������������$��������!�#�)*+����,�����-'&��$�).%/%0�1���2�1��
�3�4��
	���56���)77+8������91����5	�
	�:�3�;�������	5<0�5	=���>����5<
�19�1�	3�;�������	5���2�1��
�9?
�15+��!�����������!��!���������������$���$'��������������,�����!������ ���������$�����"����%/�� �����"�������� ����!����-�$��'��"���#�"�������������@�����"�����$����������$'��� ������$'��#���������#����� ���������������!��!���� ���������$�����"����%& ������"����� ��-�����-A�������� ��������#!����������!!$������ ��������� ���������$�����"�����������������������$!���������+���$����#��"!����#����������$��#��� �����"�����������$'��� ������$'��#���������#����� ���������������!��!���� ���������$�����"��������� ���������$�����"����� �"��$@��+����� �����������$!������������������������ �������#���������#�����$$'����!������ �.�����/�������B"�����%C�����!�����+� ������"�����������$'������+���$$"������$���!����+����$�������� ���������$�����"�������� �$�%DEFGHIGJKHELMNIGOPLHGQRSTKUGHMVGMEWPQLELMNXEYMQYHQZC�������������� [�:������	9�1�	��4�	
�1
�15+�� �@��$�������������!��������\\\\\\\\\\\\+)7)]��������������������̂��� _��B�#�$��̀����'a�#����$̀�����b��������$������$�@����������$��!�����#��������������������"!$�������� �������!��@��������$���+��#�$������+���������+���#�����#���"��������� ��"������%& �!��!������ ����!�������$�$'��������-�� ����!������������#���������$������$�@����������$��!�����#�����"!$��������� �����$����� ��������#+��������!��@������!�������� ��������@�������̂��� _��B�#�$��̀����'a�#����$̀�����b��������$������$�@����������$��!�����#������"!$�����%& ����!�����������#��$!������������!�����"����������������� [�:������	9�1�	��4�	
�1
�15������������#̂��� _��B�#�$���̀���'a�#����$̀�����b��������$������$�@����������$��!�����#�����"!$�����%cdecfcghdijkdlgmgefknopqrstuvttspwjvqxptytzw{|\\\\\\\\\\\\+)7)]

25



����������	�
�������������
���	�������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%

&'$��""�(���)��*����$+���$�������$*�������������'$+$������"����+���$($��+,-

��	��.�����/�/��	���	��0�������1���23��4342	�5�4344 4342 4344�67789:�;<<8:<=�;<>�;9?�@;<>�8A6BC;D89:< EE�3FG�2H4I��� -4�4FE�GFGI����;<>�J�@DB89:�:76<:�K69?< F�22G�E-F������� L�-3L�MHH��������8@8BC;ND8<=�O9:7;@:�78@8BC;ND8�J��:;:8�OK��;DBKO79B;�P�O:8�2Q 23�M4G�HHM����� 44�42L�43F������8@8BC;ND8�K7OR��9:87R8?B;:8��;78�/;@BDB:B8< -�FMF�-EE������� -�MLE�F2F��������:>87�78@8BC;ND8<�;9?�S78S;B?�8TS89<8<� HF�3LG�HGM����� E2�MGL�42E�����568�K7OR��:;:8�J�?8K8778?�789:�P�O:8�HQ U���������������������� 4�-FF�L-E�������568�K7OR��:;:8�J�;@@768?�C;@;:BO9�;9?�O:>87�8RSDOV88�N898KB:<�P�O:8�2Q HM�242�F-F����� L2�2E2�4LM568�K7OR��:;:8�J�8A6BSR89:�KB9;9@8?�WB:>�?8N:�P�O:8�-Q G--�2ML���������� M�M-M�MLH��������O:;D�@67789:�;<<8:< 44F�L4-�FF4��� 43H�4FH�H4F����BX>:UOKU6<8�;<<8:<�J�OS87;:B9X�D8;<8<�P�O:8�EQ 2E�2F4�F44����� U�����������������������O:;D�;<<8:< 4H-�M3L�L3-I� 43H�4FH�H4FI��67789:�DB;NBDB:B8<=	@@O69:<�S;V;ND8� GM�FH-�2-HI��� HG�GFF�MGGI���	@@768?�8TS89<8< M�FH3�FMM������� M�H32�3LF�������	@@768?�C;@;:BO9�;9?�O:>87�D8;C8�N898KB:<�P�O:8�2Q 2�2H2�HE-������� 2�42G�42E��������O:8�S;V;ND8�P�O:8�-Q G--�2ML���������� M�M-M�MLH��������8:B78R89:�>8;D:>�@;78�SD;9�ONDBX;:BO9�P�O:8�GQ MF�GM-�EGG����� MG�G2E�GH2�����089<BO9�SD;9�ONDBX;:BO9�P�O:8�M3Q 2G�3-E�EGE����� E3�MLF�3L2�����58K8778?�789:�DB;NBDB:V�P�O:8�HQ U���������������������� 4�-FF�L-E�������98TS89?8?�@DB89:�<6SSO7: F�LL-�-M3������� L�LF2�LME��������S87;:B9X�D8;<8�DB;NBDB:B8<�J�@67789:�SO7:BO9�P�O:8�EQ E�2-4�M34������� U�����������������������O:;D�@67789:�DB;NBDB:B8< ML3�M3G�F2-��� MEH�2EF�MF-����S87;:B9X�D8;<8�DB;NBDB:B8<�J�98:�OK�@67789:�SO7:BO9�P�O:8�EQ 23�3-3�L43����� U�����������������������O:;D�DB;NBDB:B8< 433�ME3�EE-��� MEH�2EF�MF-����8:�;<<8:<=YB:>O6:�?O9O7�78<:7B@:BO9< H2�GEL�ME3����� -G�G4F�---������O:;D�98:�;<<8:< H2�GEL�ME3����� -G�G4F�---������O:;D�DB;NBDB:B8<�;9?�98:�;<<8:< 4H-�M3L�L3-I� 43H�4FH�H4FI�

	�����

��	Z��������	�5�����	�����

26



���������	�
��
�
����������
��
������	���������������
�
������������
����

�������������������� ��!����"�����������#�"��$%&�'������
���(�
	������)*+����,�
�����'��	������
-�����.�����/����"0"�"��!������1�1�2 ���34#�5453��1�5455�6789:�;8�8:<�7==:<=�>;<6?@<�A?8?B�B:=<B;C<;?8=�@DD?B<�78A�B:E:8@:F�B78<=�G��<7<:�11� HIJ#K�L#��JM� KIL#LJN#JJ5M�"8<:BO:A;7<:��7B:�/7C;P;<;:=�Q"�/R N5#H4H#JNH����� J#J53#335��������������C<�G�SB?E;A:B��:P;:T�/@8A U���������������������� NNK#ILH����������1?87<;?8= U���������������������� NL#LH3������������"8<:B:=< 5LH#3L5���������� I#5�L���������������<6:B�;8C?O: �#HNH�������������� H#L4K���������������?<7P�=@DD?B<�78A�B:E:8@: JNN#KN�#L3L��� H43#L�3#5IL����VD:8=:=FSB?9B7O�=:BE;C:=F1;B:C<�CP;:8<�=:BE;C:= HII#HJ4#LL3��� KIN#LK4#4L5����@DD?B<;89�=:BE;C:=F.7879:O:8<�78A�9:8:B7P N5#5NI#KIL����� NN#K44#5H4������?<7P�:VD:8=:= JN5#444#N3H��� H43#4K4#3N5����6789:�;8�8:<�A:T;C;<�W:T?B:�6:7P<6�C7B:�78A�D:8=;?8�DP78UB:P7<:A�C6789:=�?<6:B�<678�8:<�D:B;?A�D?=<UB:<;B:O:8<�W:8:T;<�;8C?O:�QC?=<R Q3JL#H43R��������� 3I5#IJ5�����������:7P<6�C7B:�78A�D:8=;?8�DP78UB:P7<:A�C6789:=�?<6:B�<678�8:<�D:B;?A;C�D?=<UB:<;B:O:8<�W:8:T;<�;8C?O: NL#LN3#L4I����� �5#J�L#JHN������6789:�;8�8:<�7==:<= NL#45J#H4K����� �3#5LH#J�3������:<�7==:<=�QA:T;C;<R#�W:9;88;89�?T�X:7B� LI#I5J#LLL����� Q3#3NI#L4IR�������:<�7==:<=#�:8A�?T�X:7B K3#I�H#N�4M��� LI#I5J#LLLM���

54555453

27



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%

&'$��""�(���)��*����$+���$�������$*�������������'$+$������"����+���$($��+,-

��	��.�����/�/������	���01�������	����2�2�3���45��6564	�2�6566 6564���*��( 7���*$($��8$�9�"$+ ��:�;$�$��� &�����<=<>?@A�<BC�>@=<D@C�@EF@BA@AG�<=<>?@A 4H�565�4HIJ���� -�65K�4L5J������ MM�66K�-KIJ�����NF=OP@@�Q@<=DQ�<BC�>@D?>@N@BD�R@B@S?DA LT�I54�HMH������ 6�I-K�KHL�������� 65�5T4�H6K������1<P>O==�D<E@A I4-�M45����������� H-�T64������������� -64�LI4������������OD<=�A<=<>?@A�<BC�>@=<D@C�@EF@BA@A I-�5-5�--4������ H�H--�5LM�������� -M�K6-�-TT������1U>VQ<A@�OS�A@>W?V@AG�DQ@>�FU>VQ<A@C�A@>W?V@A MKL�-5L�KMM���� X���������������������� MKL�-5L�KMM�����@A?C@BD?<=�A@>W?V@A LM4�45M�545���� X���������������������� LM4�45M�545����2<P�F>OY><N K-�6T4�TL5������ X���������������������� K-�6T4�TL5������/<V?=?DP�>@BD I�L6M�LIM�������� 455�I5I����������� I�M6M�-IK��������
@B@><=�@EF@BA@A 4�5KL�-4I�������� MTM�HT4����������� 4�I--�I5H���������ZU?FN@BD�FU>VQ<A@A HL4�HH5����������� IK�5M6������������� HT6�K66������������OBD><VD�<BC�VOBAU=D?BY�A@>W?V@A L�LH4�T46�������� K56�TTT����������� 6�5H-�I5K���������ONNUB?V<D?OB L�L45�M6I�������� K6�IL6������������� L�666�K4T���������@Y<=�S@@A 455�I5-����������� L5-�-TH����������� M5T�LHM������������BAU><BV@ 44I�M44����������� LI4�56T����������� MHH�M-5�����������2<D<�F>OV@AA?BY X���������������������� ILK�5I6����������� ILK�5I6�����������/<V?=?DP�N<?BD@B<BV@ X���������������������� M65�I4H����������� M65�I4H������������ZU?FN@BD�>@BD<= 6LM�T45����������� LK�ITK������������� 64M�45K������������SS?V@�@EF@BA@A L-L�-4K����������� [IK�T5M\����������� L5L�K4I�������������]�2XLK�@ZU?FN@BD X���������������������� X���������������������� X����������������������	��	�CU@A X���������������������� L5-�M5I����������� L5-�M5I������������D<SS�D><W@= LI4�5L-����������� 4-�44T������������� LHK�4I4�����������	VVOUBD?BY�S@@A X���������������������� KI�-I5������������� KI�-I5�������������Ô<>C�@EF@BA@A X���������������������� HM�KI4������������� HM�KI4�������������1>?BD?BY 45�KM-������������� 6�6HH��������������� 44�64M��������������ZU?FN@BD�N<?BD@B<BV@ X���������������������� 4K�L-H������������� 4K�L-H��������������@=F�SUBC�@EF@BA@A� X���������������������� X���������������������� X�����������������������OD<=�@EF@BA@A TKK�TH5�MM4J�� L6�6LK�-KMJ���� HL6�555�L4TJ��
28



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%

&'$��""�(���)��*����$+���$�������$*�������������'$+$������"����+���$($��+,-

��	��.�����/�/������	���01�������	����2�2�3���45��6564	�2�6566 6566���*��( 7���*$($��8$�9�"$+ ��:�;$�$��� &�����<=<>?@A�<BC�>@=<D@C�@EF@BA@AG�<=<>?@A 46�HIJ�IJKL��� I�H6K�IJHL����� 4-�M-5�H4-L����NF=OP@@�Q@<=DQ�<BC�>@D?>@N@BD�R@B@S?DA 6I�4-T�IM6����� 4�TKK�H6H������� 6-�K-T�6K5�����1<P>O==�D<E@A ITM�-MM���������� MK�I4I������������ T6M�655�����������OD<=�A<=<>?@A�<BC�>@=<D@C�@EF@BA@A T-�M-4�MI-����� H�IKH�MH5������� MM�J-6�46-�����1U>VQ<A@�OS�A@>W?V@AG�DQ@>�FU>VQ<A@C�A@>W?V@A I6T�6-M�HJ-��� X���������������������� I6T�6-M�HJ-����@A?C@BD?<=�A@>W?V@A JJT�MH4�5KI��� X���������������������� JJT�MH4�5KI���2<P�F>OY><N H6�6H4�JJ-����� X���������������������� H6�6H4�JJ-�����/<V?=?DP�>@BD I�T4H�III������� IJ6�KJ4���������� I�KTJ�4T-�������
@B@><=�@EF@BA@A KTJ�TK5���������� KTI�J46���������� J�K5T�-66��������ZU?FN@BD�FU>VQ<A@A J�T4I�5TI������� J66�I5I���������� J�MTM�ITH��������OBD><VD�<BC�VOBAU=D?BY�A@>W?V@A J�JKK�T4J������� J4M�JTJ���������� J�44T�MH6��������ONNUB?V<D?OB HTT�-JH���������� H-�IM6������������ KI4�JH5�����������@Y<=�S@@A I--�I44���������� -K�I4T������������ TTM�HMH�����������BAU><BV@ 4JI�5KM���������� J6-�KIH���������� II6�5II����������2<D<�F>OV@AA?BY X���������������������� I65�46M���������� I65�46M����������/<V?=?DP�N<?BD@B<BV@ X���������������������� 4K-�4IT���������� 4K-�4IT�����������ZU?FN@BD�>@BD<= 6JK�M-I���������� 65�J6-������������ 64K�H5J�����������SS?V@�@EF@BA@A JH-�JK4���������� JK�I-H������������ 65M�M-J������������[�2XJK�@ZU?FN@BD JJM�KI-���������� X���������������������� JJM�KI-����������	��	�CU@A X���������������������� J5M�I5M���������� J5M�I5M�����������D<SS�D><W@= -K�JJ6������������ JI�6-T������������ K4�4H-������������	VVOUBD?BY�S@@A X���������������������� H4�KT5������������ H4�KT5������������\O<>C�@EF@BA@A X���������������������� -K�I-I������������ -K�I-I������������1>?BD?BY M6�4KH������������ I�5T-�������������� MM�ITT�������������ZU?FN@BD�N<?BD@B<BV@ X���������������������� 4T�-5-������������ 4T�-5-�������������@=F�SUBC�@EF@BA@A� -�J--�������������� X���������������������� -�J--���������������OD<=�@EF@BA@A MKJ�IM5�5I6L� JJ�M55�6-5L��� -54�5M5�4J6L�
29



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%

&'$��""�(���)��*����$+���$�������$*�������������'$+$������"����+���$($��+,-

��	��.�����/��	���/��0���	����1�1�2���34��5453	�1�5455 5453 5455�678�9:;<7�9=;>�;?@=6ABCD�6EABFBAB@7G�86CD@�BC�C@A�677@A7 HI�45-�J4KL��� M3�5IJ�-M3L���	NOP7A>@CA7�A;�=@E;CEB:@�E86CD@�BC�C@A�677@A7A;�C@A�E678�?=;FBN@N�QR�;?@=6ABCD�6EABFBAB@7G	>;=ABS6AB;C�;9�=BD8AT;9TP7@�677@A7�U�;?@=6ABCD�:@67@ I�54I�3MI ������������������������T�V�CE=@67@W�N@E=@67@�BC�677@A7G�678�U�E:B@CA�A=P7A�9PCN7 ����������VX35�3-5W ����������VI5H�XJ3W�;CA=6EA�=@E@BF6Q:@�U��A6A@�;9��6:B9;=CB6 �������VJ�-X5�IM3W ���������I�I-5�4XH��@E@BF6Q:@�9=;>��CA@=>@NB6A@��6=@�/6EB:BAB@7 ����������VKI5�KHJW ����������VM5K�K4XW�A8@=�=@E@BF6Q:@7�6CN�?=@?6BN�@Y?@C7@7� �����VHI�--5�IMKW �����V3K�X44�M5-W1P@�9=;>��A6A@�U�N@9@==@N�=@CA ���������5�I--�JIM� ����������VHHK�4H5W1P@�9=;>��A6A@�U�6EE=P@N�F6E6AB;C�6CN�;A8@=�@>?:;R@@�Q@C@9BA7 �������H5�45X�I53� �������3K�4HK�KHM��CE=@67@�VN@E=@67@W�BC�:B6QB:BAB@7G	EE;PCA7�?6R6Q:@� �������5H�-JK�HIJ� ���������M�3K-�KMX�	EE=P@N�@Y?@C7@7 ������������5MJ�J33� ������������IIH�J3H�	EE=P@N�F6E6AB;C�6CN�;A8@=�:@6F@�Q@C@9BA7 ������������H5I�IHX� ������������H55�-43�1@9@==@N�=@F@CP@ ������������������������T� ����������VHHK�XHIW1P@�A;��A6A@ ������������������������T� ����������VI3X�-KKW�@AB=@>@CA�8@6:A8�E6=@�?:6C�;Q:BD6AB;C �������VH�45H�3KIW �������V5�-X-�M5MWZ@C7B;C�?:6C�;Q:BD6AB;C �����VHH�H35�IJ-W �����VM4�5JI�55MW1@9@==@N�=@CA�:B6QB:BAR �������V5�I--�JIMW ������������HHK�4H5�C@Y?@CN@N�E:B@CA�7P??;=A ������������XX4�KXM� ���������5�4HH�5-M��?@=6ABCD�:@67@�:B6QB:BAB@7 �������VI�54I�3MIW ������������������������T��@A�E678�?=;FBN@N�QR�;?@=6ABCD�6EABFBAB@7 �������H5�-43�3J3� �������H4�HH5�3XJ��678�9:;<7�9=;>�BCF@7ABCD�6EABFBAB@7G�@B>QP=7@>@CA�9=;>��A6A@�E;CA=6EA�9;=�@[PB?>@CA ������������HXK�-MX� ������������HK4�MH-�ZP=E867@�;9�@[PB?>@CA ����������VHXK�-MXW ����������VHK4�MH-W�@A�E678�?=;FBN@N�QR�VP7@N�BCW�BCF@7ABCD�6EABFBAB@7 ������������������������T� ������������������������T��CE=@67@�BC�E678 H5�-43�3J3����� H4�HH5�3XJ������678��Q@DBCCBCD�;9�R@6= I5�5-M�X-X����� 35�HJ3�MX5������678��@CN�;9�R@6= MM�4-X�3K5L��� I5�5-M�X-XL����P??:@>@CA6=R�BC9;=>6AB;CG�;CE678�BCF@7ABCD�6CN�9BC6CEBCD�6EABFBAB@7G�@67@�677@A7�;QA6BC@N�BC�@YE86CD@�9;=�:@67@�;Q:BD6AB;C7�U�;?@=6ABCD�:@67@ 3X�M-J�HJKL��� TL��������������������
30



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%

&

���������'��	���	����	��(������	����)�)�*���+,��-,-+	�)�-,--./01�2�3/456.78607/.�6.9�.60:41�/;�6<07=7071>�?@AB��?C�	DEFGFC��?HDAI��FEJ?DKG��FDAF@���DL�MABF��FDAF@N��OKC�JDL?@P?@KAFQ�?D�(K@LB�R+��R&STKC�K��KGJU?@DJK�D?DP@?UJA�PHVGJL�VFDFUJA�L?@P?@KAJ?DHDQF@�L?DA@KLA�OJAB�ABF��AKAF�?U��KGJU?@DJK�)FPK@AWFDA�?U�)FXFG?PWFDAKG��F@XJLFC�M))�N�U?@�ABF�PH@P?CF�?U�?PF@KAJDE�ABF��FDAF@�KDQ�@FGKAFQ�KLAJXJAJFC��BF��FDAF@�OKC�?@EKDJYFQ�JD�KLL?@QKDLF�OJABABF�P@?XJCJ?D�?U�ABF��KDAF@WKD�)FXFG?PWFDAKG�)JCKVJGJAJFC��F@XJLFC�	LA�MABF��KDAF@WKD�	LAN�?UABF�ZFGUK@F�KDQ��DCAJAHAJ?DC��?QF�?U�ABF��AKAF�?U��KGJU?@DJK���D�KLL?@QKDLF�OJAB�ABF�KDAF@WKD�	LA��ABF��FDAF@�L??@QJDKAFC�AB@?HEB�?HACJQF�P@?XJQF@C�QJKED?CAJL�KDQ�KCCFCCWFDA?U�FGJEJVGF�CF@XJLFC�A?�PF@C?DC�OJAB�QFXFG?PWFDAKG�QJCKVJGJAJFC�KDQ�PGKDC��KLLFCCFC�L??@QJDKAFC�KDQ�W?DJA?@C�CF@XJLFC�A?�CHLB�JDQJXJQHKGC�KDQ�ABFJ@�UKWJGJFC���BF��FDAF@�JC�?DF?U-R�@FEJ?DKG�LFDAF@C�OJABJD�ABF��AKAF�?U��KGJU?@DJK�CICAFW�KDQ�CF@XFC��KD�'F@DKDQ?��	DAFG?PF��KDQ��KDAK��GK@JAK�[KGGFIC��BF��KDAF@WKD�	LA�JDLGHQFC�E?XF@DKDLF�P@?XJCJ?DC�@FEK@QJDE�ABF�L?WP?CJAJ?D�?U�ABF��FDAF@\C�]?K@Q�?U��@HCAFFC���BF��KDAF@WKD�	LA�CAKAFC�ABKA�ABF�]?K@Q�CBKGG�VF�L?WP@JCFQ�?U�JDQJXJQHKGC�OJAB�QFW?DCA@KAFQ�JDAF@FCA�JD��?@�D̂?OGFQEF�?U��QFXFG?PWFDAKG�QJCKVJGJAJFC��KDQ�?ABF@�@FGFXKDA�LBK@KLAF@JCAJLC��KDQ�@F_HJ@FC�ABKA�K�WJDJWHW�?U�̀,a�?U�ABF�E?XF@DJDE�V?K@Q�VF�PF@C?DC�OJAB�QFXFG?PWFDAKG�QJCKVJGJAJFC�?@�ABFJ@�PK@FDAC�?@�GFEKG�EHK@QJKDCb�KDQ�ABKAD?�GFCC�ABKD�-̀a�?U�ABF�WFWVF@C�?U�ABF�E?XF@DJDE�V?K@Q�CBKGG�VF�PF@C?DC�OJABQFXFG?PWFDAKG�QJCKVJGJAJFC���D�KQQJAJ?D��K�WFWVF@�?U�K�@F_HJ@FQ�KQXJC?@I�L?WWJAAFFL?WP?CFQ�?U�PF@C?DC�@FP@FCFDAJDE�ABF�XK@J?HC�LKAFE?@JFC�?U�P@?XJQF@C�U@?W�OBJLB�ABF��FDAF@PH@LBKCFC�LGJFDA�CF@XJLFC��CBKGG�CF@XF�KC�K�WFWVF@�?U�ABF�V?K@Q���?�L?WPGI�OJAB�ABF�KDAF@WKD�	LA��ABF��FDAF@\C�V?K@Q�?U�A@HCAFFCJDLGHQFC�PF@C?DC�OJAB�QFXFG?PWFDAKG�QJCKVJGJAJFC��?@ABFJ@�PK@FDAC�?@�GFEKG�EHK@QJKDC��OB?�@FLFJXF�CF@XJLFC�U@?WABF��FDAF@�KDQ�K�LGJFDA�CF@XJLFP@?XJQF@�?U�ABF��FDAF@��BF��FDAF@\C�WJCCJ?D�JC�A?�P@?XJQF�GJUFG?DE�PK@ADF@CBJPC�KDQ�PGKDDJDE�A?�PF@C?DC�OJAB�QFXFG?PWFDAKG�QJCKVJGJAJFC�VI�P@?W?AJDE�ABFJ@�LJXJG�KDQ�PF@C?DKG�@JEBAC��P@?XJQJDE�L?WP@FBFDCJXF�JDU?@WKAJ?D��KQX?LKAJDE�JD�L??PF@KAJ?D�OJAB�L?DCHWF@C��P@?W?AJDE�KDQ�P@?XJQJDE�_HKGJAI�?U�CF@XJLFC��KDQ�CHPP?@AJDE�UHGG�PK@AJLJPKAJ?D�?U�L?DCHWF@C�KDQ�UKWJGJFC�JD�KGG�KCPFLAC�?U�L?WWHDJAI�GJUF�./01�c�3>:dd64e�/;�>75.7;7<6.0�6<</:.07.5�f/g7<71>h���$���������������������"��BF��FDAF@�?PF@KAFC�HDQF@�KD�KDDHKG�L?CAi@FJWVH@CFWFDA�L?DA@KLA�OJAB�))�HDQF@�ABF��KDAF@WKD�	LA���BF�WKjJWHW�FjPFDQJAH@FC�HDQF@�ABF�L?DA@KLA�K@F�GJWJAFQ�A?�ABF�L?DA@KLA�KW?HDA�PGHC�JDAF@FCA�FK@DFQ���BF��FDAF@�JC�@F_HJ@FQ�A?�WKJDAKJD�KLL?HDAJDE�@FL?@QC�JD�KLL?@QKDLF�OJAB�ABF��FEJ?DKG��FDAF@�'JCLKG�(KDHKG��JCCHFQ�VI�))���KDQ�JC�@F_HJ@FQ�A?�BKXF�))��KPP@?XKG�U?@�LF@AKJD�FjPFDCFC���D�ABF�FXFDA�?U�AF@WJDKAJ?D�?@�D?D@FDFOKG�?U�ABF�L?DA@KLA��ABF��AKAF�?U��KGJU?@DJK�WKJDAKJDC�ABF�@JEBA�A?�KCCHWF�L?DA@?G�?U�ABF��FDAF@\C�?PF@KAJ?D�KDQ�ABF�?VGJEKAJ?D�?U�JAC�GJKVJGJAJFC�DQF@�ABF�AF@WC�?U�ABFCF�L?DA@KLAC��UHDQFQ�FjPFDQJAH@FC�K@F�D?A�A?�FjLFFQ�k&+l�-Rl�--S�kS+T�-&S�+lT��KDQ�klTR�lS,�mlRU?@�ABF�'��-,--i-,-+��'��-,-Ri-,--��KDQ�'��-,-,i-,-RL?DA@KLA�IFK@C��@FCPFLAJXFGI��KDQ�K@FCHVnFLAA?VHQEFA�KWFDQWFDAC��	C�?U�*HDF�+,��-,-+��KLAHKG�DFA�FjPFDQJAH@FC�HDQF@�ABF�'��-,--i-,-+��'��-,-Ri-,--��KDQ�'��-,-,i-,-RL?DA@KLAC�OF@F�kl&l�RSR�̀T&��kl&,�T,S�R+-��KDQ�kl++�,ST�&lS�@FCPFLAJXFGI��BF�HDFjPFDQFQ�VKGKDLFHDQF@�ABFCF�L?DA@KLAC�KW?HDAJDE�A?�k-T,�TTT�lSm��kT+�m&,�-+-��KDQ�km�̀&̀�&&TU?@�ABF�'��-,--i-,-+��'��-,-Ri-,--��KDQ�'��-,-,i-,-RL?DA@KLA�IFK@C��@FP@FCFDAC�K�L?DQJAJ?DKG�L?DA@JVHAJ?D�ABKA�OJGG�VF�HCFQ�A?�UHDQ�FjPFDQJAH@FC�JD�ABF�DFjA�UJCLKG�IFK@C�HDAJG�ABF�L?DA@KLA�KW?HDACK@FUHGGI�FjPFDQFQ?@�FjPJ@F���BF��FDAF@�LKD�VJGG�))��JD�ABF�UHAH@F�U?@�FjPFDCFC�@FGKAJDE�A?�P@FXJ?HC�UJCLKG�IFK@C�JU�ABF�FjPFDCFC�VJGGFQ�@FGKAF�A?�ABF�P@FXJ?HC�UJCLKG�IFK@��	C�K�@FCHGA��ABF��FDAF@�JDAF@DKGGI�A@KL̂C�@FXFDHF�VI�LH@@FDA�IFK@��P@FXJ?HC�IFK@�KDQ�CFL?DQ�P@FXJ?HC�IFK@��""� ����o�p$�q�r�BF��FDAF@HCFC�ABF�KLL@HKG�WFAB?Q�?U�KLL?HDAJDE��OBJLB�@FL?EDJYFC�JDL?WF�JD�ABF�PF@J?Q�FK@DFQ�KDQ�FjPFDCFC�OBFD�JDLH@@FQ��@FEK@QGFCC�?U�ABF�AJWJDE�?U�PKIWFDAC�
31



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%���������&��	���	����	��'������	����(�(�)���*+��,+,*	�(�,+,,

-+

./��0��$/�12�34235456789�8:�:7959;75<�=6562>296=�79�;89:84>76?�@761�5;;8A9679B�3479;73<2=�B29245<<?�5;;2362C�79�612�9762C��6562=�8:�	>247;5�42DA742=�>595B2>296�68�>5E2�2=67>562=�59C�5==A>36789=�6156�5::2;6�612�4238462C�5>8A96=�8:�5==26=�59C�<75F7<7672=�59C�C7=;<8=A42�8:�;89679B296�5==26=�59C�<75F7<7672=�56�612�C562�8:�612�:7959;75<�=6562>296=�59C�612�4238462C�5>8A96=�8:�42G29A2�59C�2H329=2�CA479B�612�42384679B�32478C��	;6A5<�42=A<6=�;8A<C�C7::24�:48>�618=2�2=67>562=��#�/�/������$/$��������12��29624423846=�79:84>56789�42B54C79B�76=�:7959;75<�38=76789�59C�5;67G7672=�5;;84C79B�68�6@8�;<5==2=�8:�926�5==26=��5=�533<7;5F<2I�926�5==26=�@7618A6�C8984�42=647;6789=�59C�926�5==26=�@761�C8984�42=647;6789=��J �26�5==26=�@7618A6�C8984�42=647;6789=�79;<AC2�618=2�5==26=�8G24�@17;1�612�K854C�8:��4A=622=15=�C7=;42678954?�;89648<�79�;544?79B�8A6�612�832456789=�8:�612��29624�J �26�5==26=�@761�C8984�42=647;6789=�79;<AC2�618=2�5==26=�=AFL2;6�68�C8984�42=647;6789=�59C�:84�@17;1�612�533<7;5F<2�42=647;6789=�@242�986�>26�5=�8:�612�29C�8:�612�;A44296�42384679B�32478C���8>2�C8984M7>38=2C�42=647;6789=�542�62>38454?�79�956A42��=A;1�5=�618=2�6156�@7<<�F2�>26�F?�612�35==5B2�8:�67>2�84�86124�2G296=�=32;7:72C�F?�612�C8984��N129�5�C8984�42=647;6789�2H3742=�O6156�7=��@129�5�=673A<562C�67>2�42=647;6789�29C=�84�3A438=2�42=647;6789�7=�5;;8>3<7=12C�O926�5==26=�@761�C8984�42=647;6789=�542�42;<5==7:72C�68�926�5==26=�@7618A6�C8984�42=647;6789=�59C�4238462C�79�612�=6562>296=�8:�5;67G7672=�5=��$���//$�/��$�$�/$P����0��$/���"����/���6124�C8984M7>38=2C�42=647;6789=�542�324326A5<�79�956A42��@1242�612�C8984�=673A<562=�612�42=8A4;2=�F2�>57965792C�79�324326A76?���12��29624�15C�98�926�5==26=�@761�C8984�42=647;6789=�5=�8:�)A92�*+��,+,*59C�,+,,�Q$R$� $�Q$"�S������T������! ����/�89647FA6789=�542�42;8B97U2C�5=�42G29A2�@129�612?�542�A9;89C767895<<?�;8>>A97;562C��
4596=�42342=296�;89647FA6789=�7:�42=8A4;2�348G7C24=�42;27G2�98�G5<A2�79�2H;159B2�:84�612�5==26=�6459=:2442C���89647FA6789=�542�42;84C2C�56�61274�:574�G5<A2�5=�=A33846@7618A6�C8984�42=647;6789=�84�=A33846�@761�C8984�42=647;6789=��C2329C79B�89�612�5F=29;2�84�2H7=629;2�8:�C8984M7>38=2C�42=647;6789=�5=�533<7;5F<2��N129�5�42=647;6789�2H3742=�V6156�7=�@129�5�=673A<562C�67>2�42=647;6789�29C=�84�3A438=2�42=647;6789�7=�5;;8>3<7=12CW��926�5==26=�@761�C8984�42=647;6789=�542�42;<5==7:72C�68�926�5==26=�@7618A6�C8984�42=647;6789=�59C�4238462C�79�612�=6562>296=�8:�5;67G7672=�5=�926�5==26=�42<25=2C�:48>�42=647;6789=���:�C8984=X�42=647;6789=�542�=567=:72C�79�612�=5>2�32478C�6156�612�;89647FA6789�7=�42;27G2C��612�;89647FA6789�7=�4238462C�5=�=A33846@7618A6�C8984�42=647;6789=��
8G249>296�;89645;6=��@17;1�542�:A9C2C�89�5�427>FA4=2>296�F5=7=��542�=18@9�5=�42G29A2@7618A6�C8984�42=647;6789��	�3846789�8:�612��29624X=�42G29A2�7=�C247G2C�:48>�;8=6M427>FA4=5F<2�:2C245<�59C�=6562�;89645;6=�59C�B4596=��@17;1�542�;89C767892C�A389�;246579�324:84>59;2�42DA742>296=�59CY84�612�79;A4429;2�8:�5<<8@5F<2�DA5<7:?79B�2H329=2=��	>8A96=�42;27G2C�542�42;8B97U2C�5=�42G29A2�@129�612��29624�15=�79;A442C�2H329C76A42=�79�;8>3<759;2�@761�=32;7:7;�;89645;6�84�B4596�348G7=789=��Z$P$����[����/����(23546>296�8:��CA;56789�12��29624�7=�5�=AFM42;737296�68�((��@761�42B54C�68�612��32;75<��CA;56789�
4596=�:84��9:596=�59C�&5>7<72=��\546���@17;1�348G7C2=�:A9C79B�:84�254<?�79624G296789�=24G7;2=�:84�79:596=�59C�68CC<24=�6148AB1�5B2�*��5=�5A61847U2C�F?�\AF<7;��5@�-+,M--]�
32



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%���������&��	���	����	��'������	����(�(�)���*+��,+,*	�(�,+,,

--

�./0�12345�/0�6748/5/7439�:;74�6<253/4�;<2=72>346<�2<?:/2<><450�348@72�5.<�/46:22<46<�7=3997A3B9<�?:39/=C/41�<D;<40<0���.<��<45<2�2<6714/E<8123450�2<F<4:<�57539/41�GHIJ�KKL348�GHJ-�M*-=27>�5./0�3A3288:2/41�5.<�C<32�<48<8�):4<�*+��,+,*�348�,+,,��2<0;<65/F<9C��	>7:450�<324<8�348�2<9<30<8�A/5./4�5.<03><�C<32�:48<2�6748/5/7439�3A3280�32<�2<;725<8�30�/462<30<0�/4�4<5�300<50�A/5.7:5�874722<052/65/740�/4�5.<�3667>;34C/41�0535<><4507=�365/F/5/<0��$N��""� ����O�P���Q��Q����R$�S$S��.<�4<A�3667:45/41�05348328�74�9<30<0��2<?:/2<8�BC�3667:45/41�;2/46/;9<0�1<4<2399C�366<;5<8�/4�5.<�4/5<8��535<0�7=�	><2/63��3><480�B75.�9<0072�348�9<00<<�3667:45/41�A/5.�5.<�>705�0/14/=/6345�6.341<�B</41�5.<�2<?:/2<><45�=72�9<00<<0�57�3667:45�=72�9<30<0�30�</5.<2�=/4346<�9<30<0�72�7;<235/41�9<30<0�348�57�2<6714/E<�2/1.5T7=T:0<�U��V�300<50�348�6722<0;748/41�9<30<�9/3B/9/5/<0�74�5.<�0535<><45�7=�=/4346/39�;70/5/74�=72�399�9<30<0�75.<2�5.34�9<30<0�A/5.�5<2>0�7=�-,�>745.0�72�9<00��&72�=/4346<�9<30<0��9<00<<0�2<6714/E<�/45<2<05�<D;<40<�348�3>725/E35/74�7=�5.<����300<5��348�=72�7;<235/41�9<30<0��9<00<<0�2<6714/E<�0523/1.5T9/4<�57539�2<45�<D;<40<���.<��<45<2�87<0�475�2<6714/E<�2<45�<D;<40<�74�3�0523/1.5T9/4<�B30/0�348�5.<�/>;365�7=�5./0�/0�475�0/14/=/6345�0/46<�5.<2<�A7:98�B<�3�6722<0;748/41�38W:05><45�57�3662:<8�2<F<4:<�=27>�5.<��535<�((��6705T2</>B:20<><45�67452365���.<�3667:45/41�05348328�3907�2<?:/2<0�388/5/7439�8/06970:2<0�3B7:5�5.<�3>7:45��5/>/41��348�:46<253/45C�7=�630.�=97A0�32/0/41�=27>�9<30<0��.<��<45<2�387;5<8�5.<�9<30/41�05348328�<==<65/F<�):9C�-��,+,,��:0/41�5.<�>78/=/<8�2<5270;<65/F<�3;;2736.�A/5.�):9C�-��,+,,�30�5.<�/4/5/39�835<�7=�3;;9/635/74��5.<��2134/E35/74�<9<65<8�57�:0<�399�3F3/93B9<�;2365/639�<D;<8/<450�;27F/8<8�/4�5.<�52340/5/74�1:/8346<���.<0<�;2365/639�<D;<8/<450�3997A�<45/5/<0�57�475�2<300<00�5.<�/8<45/=/635/74��69300/=/635/74�348�/4/5/39�8/2<65�67050�7=�9<30<�312<<><450��57�475�0<;3235<�9<30<�348�474T9<30<�67>;74<450�=72�:48<29C/41�<?:/;><45�300<50��348�57�:0<�./480/1.5�/4�9<30<�312<<><450�=72�8<5<2>/4/41�9<30<�5<2>�348����300<5�/>;3/2><45��30�3;;9/63B9<���.<��<45<2�3667:450�=72�5.<�<D/05/41�7==/6<�0;36<�348�<?:/;><45�9<30<0�30�34�7;<235/41�9<30<��	0�7=):9C�-��,+,,��387;5/74�7=�5.<�4<A�9<30/41�05348328�2<0:95<8�/4�3�2<6714/5/74�7=����300<5�7=�G*J�KIH�-HL348�34�/462<30<�/4�7;<235/41�9<30<�9/3B/9/5C�7=�G*J�KIH�-HL���SX��Q�Y$S���"�$Q���SX�30.�/0�8<=/4<8�30�630.�/4�8<>348�8<;70/5�3667:450�30�A<99�30�630.�74�.348���<052/65<8�630.�32<�=:480�2<052/65<8�30�57�5.</2�:0<��2<13289<00�7=�9/?:/8/5C��30.�.<98�/4�52:05�=72�69/<450�/0�475�/469:8<8�/4�57539�630.�0.7A4�74�5.<�0535<><45�7=�630.�=97A0���.<��<45<276630/74399C�>3/453/40�630.�74�8<;70/5�35�3�B34Z�/4�<D6<00�7=�5.<�&<8<239�(<;70/5��40:2346<��72;7235/74�9/>/5��.<�:4/40:2<8�630.�B39346<��/469:8/41�2<052/65<8�630.��A30�3;;27D/>35<9C�GLL�HHH�+++307=�):4<�*+��,+,*���.<��<45<2.30�475�<D;<2/<46<8�34C�9700<0�/4�0:6.�3667:450�������"����Q�[�X$��Y$"$�\�!�$S�.<�>3W72/5C�7=�5.<��<45<2]0�2<6</F3B9<0�2<;2<0<450�72�2<935<0�57�5.<�6705T2</>B:20<><45�67452365�A/5.�((����<6</F3B9<0�32<�2<6728<8�35�5.</2�4<5�2<39/E3B9<�F39:<���.<��<45<2�:0<0�5.<�3997A346<�><5.78�57�3667:45�=72�:46799<65/B9<�2<6</F3B9<0��'3431<><45�B<9/<F<0�5.35�5.<�2<6</F3B9<0�32<�=:99C�6799<65/B9<�348��5.<2<=72<��.30�475�;27F/8<8�34�3997A346<�=72�87:B5=:9�3667:45030�7=�):4<�*+��,+,*348�,+,,�P���$̂ _ ��̀$���535<��?:/;><45�/0�0535<8�35�6705�7=�36?:/0/5/74��a:20:345�57�5.<�5<2>0�7=�5.<�((��67452365��<?:/;><45�;:26.30<0�B<67><�5.<�;27;<25C�7=�5.<��535<�7=��39/=724/3�348��366728/419C��32<�6.321<8�30�<D;<40<0�A.<4�/46:22<8���.<��<45<2�<D;<40<0�5.<�6705�7=�<?:/;><45�:;74�36?:/0/5/74�/=�;:26.30<8�A/5.�=:480�=27>�5.<�((��67452365�/4�366728346<�A/5.�5.<��<1/7439��<45<2�&/0639�'34:39���535<��?:/;><45�;:26.30<0�=72�5.<�C<32�<48<8�):4<�*+��,+,*348�,+,,�57539<8�G-+J�MHK348�GKMH�JM*��2<0;<65/F<9C���535<��?:/;><45�8/0;70390�=72�5.<�C<32�<48<8�):4<�*+��,+,*348�,+,,57539<8�GKLM�L+-348�GI�*I+��2<0;<65/F<9C���.<�63;/539/E<8�<?:/;><45�348�2<6/;27635/41�7==0<5�3667:45�35�):4<�*+��,+,*348�,+,,57539<8�GM�*K-�+*-348�GM�I+L�-KH��2<0;<65/F<9C�
33



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%���������&��	���	����	��'������	����(�(�)���*+��,+,*	�(�,+,,

-,

�""� $.�/�"�����0�1�"2���.�3�4$��5$�6$�#$�$���7�89��9:;9<�8=>�=??<@9A�=�BC=DCBC;E�FG<�H=?=;CG:�=:A�>C?I�B9=H9�D9:9FC;>�9=<:9A�DE�9JKBGE99>�L8C?8�C>�<9CJD@<>=DB9�@:A9<�;89�((��?G:;<=?;M�8GL9H9<��>@?8�D9:9FC;>�=<9�<9CJD@<>9A�@:A9<�;89�((��?G:;<=?;�G:BE�L89:�=?;@=BBE�K=CA���89�=JG@:;�GF�=??<@9A�H=?=;CG:�=:A�G;89<�B9=H9�D9:9FC;>�C>�C:?B@A9A�C:�;89�=JG@:;�A@9�F<GJ�;89��;=;9�GF��=BCFG<:C=N�99��G;9�*O���7�PQ$���$R$���S$���4����$��������.��$�7���������89��9:;9<�C>�<9T@C<9A�;G�<9?GU:CV9�;89�F@:A9A�>;=;@>�GF�=�D9:9FC;�KB=:��J9=>@<9A�=>�;89�ACFF9<9:?9�D9;L99:�KB=:�=>>9;>�=;�F=C<�H=B@9�=:A�;89�D9:9FC;�GDBCU=;CG:��C:�;89�>;=;9J9:;�GF�FC:=:?C=B�KG>C;CG:��LC;8�=:�GFF>9;;C:U�?8=<U9�G<�?<9AC;�;G�:9;�=>>9;>��
=C:>�G<�BG>>9>��K<CG<�>9<HC?9�?G>;>�G<�?<9AC;>�;8=;�=<C>9�A@<C:U�;89�K9<CGA�D@;�=<9�:G;�<9?GU:CV9A�=>�?GJKG:9:;>�GF�:9;�K9<CGA�D9:9FC;�?G>;��LCBB�D9�<9?GU:CV9A�9=?8�E9=<�=>�=�>9K=<=;9�?8=<U9�G<�?<9AC;�;G�:9;�=>>9;>�W�"�R$�X�Y$7�89��9:;9<C>�9Z9JK;�F<GJ�F9A9<=B�C:?GJ9�;=Z9>�@:A9<�>9?;CG:�[+-N?ON*OGF�;89��:;9<:=B��9H9:@9��GA9�=:A�;89�<9B=;9A��=BCFG<:C=�?GA9�>9?;CG:>��G:;<CD@;CG:>�;G�;89��9:;9<�T@=BCFE�FG<�;89�?8=<C;=DB9�?G:;<CD@;CG:�A9A@?;CG:��89��9:;9<D9BC9H9>�;8=;�C;�8=>�=KK<GK<C=;9�>@KKG<;�FG<�=:E�;=Z�KG>C;CG:>�;=I9:��=:A�=>�>@?8��AG9>�:G;�8=H9�=:E�@:?9<;=C:�;=Z�KG>C;CG:>�;8=;�=<9�J=;9<C=B�;G�;89�FC:=:?C=B�>;=;9J9:;>���89��9:;9<\>�F9A9<=B�=:A�>;=;9�C:FG<J=;CG:�<9;@<:>�FG<�;89�E9=<>�,+-];8<G@U8�,+,,=<9�>@D̂9?;�;G�9Z=JC:=;CG:�DE�<9U@B=;G<E�=U9:?C9>��U9:9<=BBE�FG<�;8<99�E9=<>�=:A�FG@<�E9=<>�=F;9<�;89E�L9<9�FCB9A�FG<�F9A9<=B�=:A�>;=;9��<9>K9?;CH9BE�_ �"�������̀Y�$�7$7�����"������89�?G>;>GF�K<GHCAC:UK<GU<=J�=:A�>@KKG<;C:U�>9<HC?9>=<9>@JJ=<CV9A�G:�=�F@:?;CG:=B�D=>C>�C:�;89>;=;9J9:;�GF�=?;CHC;C9>��89�>;=;9J9:;�GF�F@:?;CG:=B�9ZK9:>9>�K<9>9:;�;89�:=;@<=B�?B=>>CFC?=;CG:�A9;=CB�GF�9ZK9:>9>�DE�F@:?;CG:���ZK9:>9>�AC<9?;BE=;;<CD@;9A�;G�=�>K9?CFC?�F@:?;CG:=B�=<9=�GF�;89��9:;9<�=<9�<9KG<;9A�=>�9ZK9:>9>�GF�;8G>9F@:?;CG:=B�=<9=>��L8CB9�>8=<9A�?G>;>�;8=;�D9:9FC;�J@B;CKB9�F@:?;CG:=B�=<9=>�8=H9�D99:�=BBG?=;9A=JG:U�;89�H=<CG@>�F@:?;CG:=B�=<9=>�D=>9A�G:�9>;CJ=;9>�A9;9<JC:9A�DE�J=:=U9J9:;�;G�D99T@C;=DB9���8=<9A�?G>;>�=<9�U9:9<=BBE�=BBG?=;9A�=JG:U�;89�K<GU<=J�=:A�>@KKG<;C:U�>9<HC?9D9:9FC;9A�D=>9A�G:�=:�=:=BE>C>�GF�K9<>G::9B�;CJ9�=:A�>T@=<9�FGG;=U9�G??@KC9A�DE�;89�K<GU<=J=:A�>@KKG<;C:U�>9<HC?9>�1 !7$a $���̀6$��7'=:=U9J9:;�8=>�9H=B@=;9A�>@D>9T@9:;�9H9:;>�;8<G@U8�bbbbbbbbbbbb��,+,c��;89�A=;9�G:�L8C?8�;89�FC:=:?C=B�>;=;9J9:;>�L9<9�=H=CB=DB9�;G�D9�C>>@9A�defg�h�ijedfkljf�kgmnopkqgngdf�kgjgmrlosg�89��9:;9<\>�K<CJ=<E�>G@<?9�GF�<9H9:@9�C>�F<GJ�;89��;=;9�GF��=BCFG<:C=���@D̂9?;�;G�<9:9L=B��;89��9:;9<�9:;9<>�C:;G�=�FCH9tE9=<�?G:;<=?;�LC;8�;89��;=;9�GF��=BCFG<:C=\>�(9K=<;J9:;�GF�(9H9BGKJ9:;=B��9<HC?9>�;8=;�C>�>@D̂9?;�;G�=::@=B�=KK<GK<C=;CG:>�DE�;89��;=;9���89��9:;9<�?GJKB9;9A�C;>�FG@<;8E9=<�GF�=[tE9=<�?G:;<=?;�LC;8�((��;8=;�>;=<;9A�FC>?=B�E9=<�9:A9A�)@:9�*+��,+,+���9H9:@9F<GJ�;89��;=;9�C>�<9?GU:CV9A�JG:;8BE�L89:�=�?B=CJ�NC:HGC?9O�FG<�<9CJD@<>9J9:;�GF�=?;@=B�9ZK9:>9>�C>�>@DJC;;9A�;G�((��FG<�K=EJ9:;���89>9�?B=CJ>�=<9�K=CA�=;�;89��;=;9\>�AC>?<9;CG:�9C;89<�;8<G@U8�=�AC<9?;�K=EJ9:;�;G�;89��9:;9<�G<�DE�GFF>9;;C:U�;89�?B=CJ�=U=C:>;�;89�?=>8�=AH=:?9>�<9?9CH9A�DE�;89��9:;9<�F<GJ�;89��;=;9�
34



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%���������&��	���	����	��'������	����(�(�)���*+��,+,*	�(�,+,,

-*

�./01230�14567819464/0�14345:27;4920�)8/4�*+��,+,*2/<�,+,,2149866215=4<��29�>.;;.?9@,+,* ,+,,�;2569�98765004<@�8114/0�A421 B,*C�DED�++* B-EF�GCH�FCEI15.1�A421 -+�-+,�-ED H�C-G�EG+�43./<�J15.1�A421 KEE�F,CL G+D�GD*�M51<�J15.1�A421�2/<�.0M41�14345:27;4 KGH�-GEL KE*-�,G,L�.02; B,FC�D,-�DE- B,+-�*GC�EF+((��2<:2/34<�0M4��4/041�8/<41�0M4�14N5./2;�34/041�3./012309�&.1�>5/2/352;�9020464/0�J1494/0205./��0.�0M4�4O04/0�0M414�214�3;2569�14345:27;4��0M494�2<:2/349�M2:4�744/�.>>940�2N25/90�0M4�3;2569�14345:27;4�>1.6�((��29�>.;;.?9@,+,* ,+,,�./012309�14345:27;4 B,FC�D,-�DE- B,+-�*GC�EF+�./01230�2<:2/349 K,-C�*E-�E*+L K-GE�-F-�G*,L�40�3./012309�14345:27;4P3./01230�2<:2/349 B*+�-,E�HH- B,,�,*G�,+C�/�2<<505./��0M4��4/041�M29�233184<�14345:27;49�>1.6�0M4��0204�>.1�4OJ4/949�0M20�?5;;�74�9400;4<5/�329M�5/�>80814�A4219���M494�4OJ4/949�214�14Q8514<�0.�74�143.N/5=4<�29�;5275;50549�8/<41N4/412;;A�2334J04<�233.8/05/N�J15/35J;49R�M.?4:41��983M�74/4>509�214�145678194<�7A�0M4�902043./01230�./;A�?M4/�23082;;A�J25<���M494�4OJ4/949�14;204�0.�233184<�:23205./�2/<�.0M4146J;.A44�74/4>509�2/<�0M4�.7;5N205./9�>.1�0M4�J.90S14051464/0�M42;0M�3214�74/4>509�2/<�J4/95./J;2/��M4��4/041T9�3./01230�?50M�((��5/3;8<49�:215.89�>5932;�J1.:595./9��?M53M�J1.:5<4�0M20�0M4��0204.>��2;5>.1/52�14025/9�2;;�15NM09��050;4��2/<�5/041490�0.�0M4�>8/<9�J1.:5<4<�7A�((��2/<�0M20�>8/<914345:4<�>1.6�((��62A�./;A�74�894<�>.1�0M4�J81J.94�.>�92059>A5/N�3;2569�2N25/90�.1�4OJ4/949.>�0M4��4/041�5/38114<�J81982/0�0.�2/<�5/�0M4�J41>.162/34�.>�509�3./01230�?50M�((��(84�>1.6��0204�U233184<�:23205./�2/<�.0M41�46J;.A44�74/4>509�3./95904<�.>�0M4�>.;;.?5/N29�.>�)8/4�*+@,+,* ,+,,V23205./�2/<�.0M41�46J;.A44�74/4>509 B *�*H*�HDF B *�,*E�,*D�4051464/0�M42;0M�3214�2/<�J4/95./�J;2/�.7;5N205./��/40�.>�8/143.N/5=4<�;.99�./�J4/95./ DG�EH+�-EF G+�--F�+*HBH-�*,*�CFC BG*�*D*�,G-
35



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%���������&��	���	����	��'������	����(�(�)���*+��,+,*	�(�,+,,

-.

/012�3�456/2�07�892:61;/:�/012�<;=;>52�?'@A�,+,-��BCD��D?BDE�FGB@H?DI@�EDJFKJH?L�KH?D�FM�NEDIHBO���P@LEDDQD?B�RHBC�@�G@?S�RCDEDGA�HB�Q@A�GFEEFR�TU�BFVWW�+++�+++�T?BHK�BCD�DXUHE@BHF?�FM�BCD�@LEDDQD?B�F?�)T?D�*+��,+,,���?�'@A�,+,,��BCD��D?BDE�@QD?IDI�BCD�����@LEDDQD?B�GA�H?NED@YH?LBCD�Q@XHQTQ�KH?D@QFT?B�TU�BF�VZ+�+++�+++�@?I�DXBD?IH?LBCD�Q@BTEHBA�I@BD�BCEFTLC)T?D�*+��,+,*���?�)T?D�,+,*��BCD��D?BDE�@QD?IDI�BCD�����@LEDDQD?B�GA�H?NED@YH?L�BCD�Q@XHQTQ�KH?D�@QFT?B�TU�BF�V[+�+++�+++�@?I�DXBD?IH?L�BCD�Q@BTEHBA�I@BD�BCEFTLC�)T?D�*+��,+,.�\FEEFRH?LY�@ED�T?YDNTEDIRHBC�H?BDEDYB�U@A@GKD�QF?BCKA�@B�BCD�LED@BDE�FM�,�-+] FE�-]�GDKFR�BCD�G@?ŜY�UEHQD�E@BD��CDED�R@Y�?F�G@K@?ND�FTBYB@?IH?L�@Y�FM)T?D�*+��,+,*���CD�@LEDDQD?B�NF?B@H?Y@MMHEQ@BHJD�NFJD?@?BY���CD��D?BDE�R@Y�H?�NFQUKH@?ND�RHBC�@KK�NFJD?@?BY�@Y�FM�)T?D�*+��,+,*�(TEH?L�'@ENC�,+,-��BCD��D?BDE�D?BDEDI�H?BF�@?�D_THUQD?B�MH?@?NH?L�@LEDDQD?B�RHBC�@�G@?S�BFMH?@?ND�@�Q@XHQTQ�KF@?�@QFT?B�FM�V*�+++�+++�MFE�NFYBY�@YYFNH@BDI�RHBC�EDKFN@BHF?�BF�@?DR�M@NHKHBA���CD��D?BDE�IEDR�V-�*Ẁ�[,̀T?IDE�BCHY�@LEDDQD?B�FM�RCHNC�Va..�*-[HYFTBYB@?IH?L�@Y�FM�)T?D�*+��,+,*@?I�V-�-.-�-[ZR@Y�FTBYB@?IH?L�@Y�FM)T?D�*+��,+,,���CD�?FBD�GD@EY�H?BDEDYB�@B�@�MHXDI�E@BD�FM�*�[-]�RHBC�QF?BCKAU@AQD?BY�FM�UEH?NHU@K�@?I�H?BDEDYB�FM�V-̀�*̀a��RHBCBCDMH?@K�U@AQD?B�ITD'@ENC�*-��,+,̀���CD�@LEDDQD?B�NF?B@H?Y�@MMHEQ@BHJD�NFJD?@?BY���CD��D?BDE�R@Y�H?NFQUKH@?ND�RHBC�@KK�NFJD?@?BY�@Y�FM�)T?D�*+��,+,*��CD�EDKFN@BHF?�NFYBY�RHKK�GD�EDHQGTEYDI�H?�MTKK�GA�BCD��B@BD�@?I�@?A�D_THUQD?B�UTENC@YDY�RHKKGD�FR?DI�GA�BCD��B@BD��	Y�@�EDYTKB��BCDED�HY�@�NFEEDYUF?IH?L�EDNDHJ@GKD�G@K@?ND�H?�@?D_T@K@QFT?B�H?NKTIDI�H?�ITD�MEFQ�YB@BDbD_THUQD?B�MH?@?NDI�RHBC�IDGB�F?�BCD�YB@BDQD?BFM�MH?@?NH@K�UFYHBHF?��CD�MFKKFRH?L�MTBTED�UEH?NHU@K�U@AQD?BY@EDBF�GD�Q@ID�T?IDE�BCHY�@LEDDQD?Bcd�e"���f$���$�g$g�h �$�ijk,+,. V -̀ �̀,[W,+,W -aW�*[*,+,Z ,+,�[*̀,+,[ ,-+�*̀-,+,̀ -.[�WW+V a..�*-[�?��FJDQGDE�,+,-��BCD��D?BDE�D?BDEDI�H?BF�@�YDNF?I�KF@?�@LEDDQD?B�MFE�TU�BF�V*�+++�+++��YTGlDNB�BFBCD��D?BDÊY�?DDI�MFE�D_THUQD?B�@?I�M@NHKHBHDY�EDQFIDKH?L�RHBC�@�BDEQ�FM�MHJD�AD@EY�@B@�MHXDI�H?BDEDYB�E@BD�FM�*�̀+]��CD�KF@?�@LEDDQD?B�@KYF�C@I@?H?BDEDYB�E@BD�YR@U�@LEDDQD?B�MFE�BCD�BDEQ�FM�BCD�KF@?�@B�@?�H?IDX�E@BD�FM�-�,Z]���CD�NF?YBETNBHF?�UEFlDNBY�RDED�IDK@ADI��@?I�BCD�D?BDE�IHI�?FBIE@R�IFR?�@?A�MT?IY�MEFQ�BCD�YDNF?I�KF@?��(TEH?L�,+,,��BCD�KF@?�@LEDDQD?B�DXUHEDI�/012�m�40<29;16/n�52;o2o�CD��D?BDE�KD@YDY�FMMHND�YU@NDY�@?I�D_THUQD?B�T?IDE�FUDE@BH?L�KD@YDY���CD�KD@YDY�C@JD�EDQ@H?H?L�KD@YD�BDEQY�FM�-�BF�-*AD@EY���D?B@K�DXUD?YD�H?NKTIDI�H?�FUDE@BH?L�DXUD?YDY�H?�,+,*@?I�,+,,�R@YVW�.,.�ZWa�@?I�V.�aW-�*W[��EDYUDNBHJDKA��	Y�FM�)T?D�*+��,+,*��BCD�RDHLCBDI�@JDE@LD�EDQ@H?H?L�KD@YD�BDEQ�@?I�IHYNFT?B�E@BD�MFE�BCD�FUDE@BH?L�KD@YDY�R@Y�ZAD@EY�@?I�*]��EDYUDNBHJDKA���CD�KD@YD�@YYDB�@?I�KH@GHKHBA�RDED�N@KNTK@BDI�TBHKHpH?L�BCD�EHYSbMEDD�IHYNFT?B�E@BD�@NNFEIH?L�BF�BCD��D?BDÊY�DKDNBDI�UFKHNA���CD�FUBHF?Y�BF�ED?DR�BCD�FUDE@BH?L�KD@YDY�RDED�NF?YHIDEDI�RCD?�@YYDYYH?L�BCD�J@KTD�FM�BCD�EHLCBbFMbTYD�O��P@YYDBY�RCD?�BCD��D?BDE�HY�ED@YF?@GKA�NDEB@H?�BC@B�HB�RHKK�DXDENHYD�HBY�FUBHF?�BF�ED?DR�@�KD@YD�
36



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%���������&��	���	����	��'������	����(�(�)���*+��,+,*	�(�,+,,

-.

	/�01�)234�*+��,+,*��564����7//45/�678�7�97:73;4�01�<*.�*=,�=,,��7/�/60>3�?3�303;2@@435�7//45/�03�564�/5754A435�01�1?373;?7:�B0/?5?03C�564�:47/4�:?79?:?5?4/�7@4�?3;:2848�?3�0564@�;2@@435�:?79?:?5?4/�D<.�*E,�-+,F�738�0564@:03GH54@A�:?79?:?5?4/�D<*+�+E+�I,+F���64�A752@?5?4/�01�:47/4�:?79?:?5?4/�7@4�4/5?A7548�7/�10::0>/J�47@�43848�)234�*+�,+,E < .�*E,�-+,,+,. .�EKK�.*+,+,L .�LLE�.-L,+,I E�L*E�L,K,+,= ,�*,K�+E.�64@47154@ -L�*+,�*.-�057:�:47/4�B7MA435/ *K�II,�-I*�4//�7A0235�@4B@4/435?3G�?354@4/5 DE�*=K�*.-FN@4/435�O7:24�01�:47/4�:?79?:?5?4/ <*.�*=,�=,,PQRS�T�UVSWSXXSV�XSPR�YZ[\ZYZR]�64��4354@�:47/4/�011?;4�17;?:?5?4/�2384@�:47/4�7G@44A435/�5675�7@4�/29̂4;5�50�/;6482:48�?3;@47/4/01�@4357:�B7MA435/���64�/;6482:48�@435�?3;@47/4/�7@4�7A0@5?_48�4O43:M�0O4@�564�54@A�01�564�:47/4�?3�7;;0@873;4�>?56�����
		N���64�8414@@48�@435�:?79?:?5M�01�<H+H738�<,�E==�IE.75�)234�*+��,+,*738�,+,,��@4/B4;5?O4:M�@4B@4/435/�564�8?114@43;4�945>443�564�;7/6�B7MA435/�A784�738�564�7A0235�4̀B43/48�/?3;4�?3;4B5?03�01�564�:47/4/���64�((��;035@7;5�@4?A92@/4/�564��4354@�10@�@435�7154@�?5�?/�B7?8�738�56?/�7A0235�?/�?3;:2848�?3�;035@7;5�@4?A92@/4A435�@4;4?O79:4�03�564�/5754A435�01�1?373;?7:�B0/?5?03��64��4354@�67/7:/0@4;0@848�7�@4;4?O79:4�1@0A�564��5754�4a27:�50564�8414@@48�@435�:?79?:?5M�50�@41:4;5�564�1252@4�@4?A92@/4A435�01�564�788?5?037:�@435�4̀B43/4�@4;0G3?_48��64�8414@@48�@435�:?79?:?5M�75�)234�*+��,+,*�?/�?3;:2848�?3�564�@?G65H01H2/4�7//45�738�0B4@75?3G�:47/4�:?79?:?5?4/�;7:;2:75?03�84/;@?948�?3��054�*�

37



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%���������&��	���	����	��'������	����(�(�)���*+��,+,*	�(�,+,,

-.

/012�3�45678�459:2/1�1;<71�=</>7�6/>�</2?@2/>2>�59:2/1�7<@@0;1�AB��BCDBE�FGCHDIJCK�LK�HGKDJMILC�FJE�DAB�EBHBIND�JF�HBEDLIC�OJPBECQBCDLR�NLSQBCDK�LCM�EBKGRDICO�MIKTGEKBQBCDK�QLMB�JC�TBALRF�JF�EBOIJCLR�HBCDBE�HJCKGQBEK���ABKB�HLKA�TLRLCHBK�LEB�KBOEBOLDBM�FEJQ�DAB�JNBELDICO�HLKA�LHHJGCDK�JF�DAB��BCDBE�LCM�LEB�EBKDEIHDBM�FJE�HJCKGQBE�KGNNJED���ICHB�DAB��BCDBE�IK�LHDICO�LK�LC�LOBCD�IC�NEJHBKKICO�DABKB�DELCKLHDIJCK��CJ�EBPBCGB�JE�BUNBCKB�IK�EBFRBHDBM�JC�DAB�LHHJQNLCSICO�KDLDBQBCDK�JF�LHDIPIDIBK���AB�FJRRJVICO�IK�L�KGQQLES�JF�JNBELDICO�LHDIPIDS�CJD�EBNJEDBM�IC�DAB�KDLDBQBCDK�JF�LHDIPIDIBK�FJE�DAB�SBLEKBCMBM�)GCB�*+��,+,*LCM�,+,,W,+,* ,+,,�GNNJEDW�JHILR��BHGEIDS�LCM�JDABE�HRIBCD�KGNNJED X-+�,YZ�+.[ X--�[[Z�+*\(IKTGEKBQBCDKW�IPICO�JGD�JF�AJQB X Y�*\Y�*Y- X .�+-.�*Z+�DABE�MIKTGEKBQBCDK Z�]Y]�[-. Y�[Y[�.\\X-+�,YZ�+.[ X--�[[Z�+*\/012�̂�49:_<:>:1̀ �6/>�6a6:96b:9:1̀&ICLCHILR�LKKBDK�LPLIRLTRB�FJE�OBCBELR�BUNBCMIDGEB��DALD�IK�VIDAJGD�MJCJE�JE�JDABE�EBKDEIHDIJC�RIQIDICO�DABIE�GKB��VIDAIC�JCB�SBLE�JF�DAB�KDLDBQBCD�JF�FICLCHILR�NJKIDIJCLD�)GCB�*+��,+,*LCM�,+,,��HJQNEIKB�DAB�FJRRJVICOW,+,* ,+,,&ICLCHILR�LKKBDK�LD�BCM�JF�SBLE�LPLIRLTRB�VIDAIC�JCB�SBLEW�LKA XYY�+]\�*., XZ,�,]Y�\]\�JCDELHD�EBIQTGEKBQBCD�EBHBIPLTRB��CBD�JF�HJCDELHD�LMPLCHB *+�-,\�..- ,,�,*[�,+]	HHJGCDK�EBHBIPLTRB�FEJQ��CDBEQBMILDB��LEB�&LHIRIDIBK Z�]-]�ZYY Z�-[Y�]*]&ICLCHILR�LKKBDK�LPLIRLTRB�FJE�OBCBELR�BUNBCMIDGEBK�VIDAIC�JCB�SBLE X\+�+*[�Z[] X.]�.\\�+*Y�LHAEBOIJCLR�HBCDBE�KGTQIDK�L�QJCDARS�NGEHALKB�JF�KBEPIHB�BUNBCMIDGEB�NEJcBHDIJC�DJ�((��TBOICCICO�IC�(BHBQTBE�JF�BLHA�FIKHLR�SBLE��dS�&BTEGLES�-KD�JF�BLHA�SBLE��((��KALRR�LRRJHLDB�DJLRR�EBOIJCLR�HBCDBEK�CJ�RBKK�DALC�JCB�AGCMEBM�NBEHBCD�e-++fg�JF�DAB�BCLHDBM�TGMOBD�FJE�NBELDIJCK�LCM�CICBDShCICB�NBEHBCD�e\\fg�JF�DAB�BCLHDBM�TGMOBD�FJE�iGEHALKB�JF��BEPIHB���J�MJDAIK��ID�QLS�TB�CBHBKKLES�DJ�LQBCM�DAB��BCDBEjK�HJCDELHD�IC�JEMBE�DJ�LRRJHLDB�FGCMK�QLMBLPLIRLTRB�FEJQ�TGMOBD�LGOQBCDLDIJCK�LCM�DJ�QJPB�FGCMK�LQJCO�EBOIJCLR�HBCDBEK���C�DAB�BPBCDDALD�((��MBDBEQICBK�DALD�L�EBOIJCLR�HBCDBE�ALK�ICKGFFIHIBCD�FGCMK�DJ�QBBD�IDK�HJCDELHDGLRJTRIOLDIJCK��((��KALRR�QLkB�TBKD�BFFJEDK�DJ�KBHGEB�LMMIDIJCLR�FGCMK�LCMlJE�NEJPIMB�DAB�EBOIJCLRHBCDBE�VIDA�EBOGRLDJES�LCM�KDLDGDJES�EBRIBF���AB�HJCDELHD�VIDA�((��LRRJVK�FJE�LMcGKDQBCDK�DJDAB��BCDBEjK�LRRJHLDIJCK�LCM�FJE�DAB�NLSQBCD�JF�HRLIQK�GN�DJ�DVJ�SBLEK�LFDBE�DAB�HRJKB�JF�BLHAFIKHLR�SBLE� �C�LMMIDIJC��DAB�BCDBE�QLICDLICK�L�RICB�JF�HEBMID�eKBB��JDB�Zg�DJ�QLCLOB�HLKA�FRJV�EBmGIEBQBCDK�LK�CBBMBM�KAJGRM�DABEB�TB�MBRLSK�IC�EBIQTGEKBQBCD�FJE�BUNBCMIDGEBK�FEJQ�((��
38



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%���������&��	���	����	��'������	����(�(�)���*+��,+,*	�(�,+,,

-.

/012�3�450617821982:2/1�;2<=1;�><82�5=</�?@��@AB@C�DEFADFCD�G�EFDBHC@BIC@J@AB�?@GKB?�LGC@�EKGA�B?CFMN?�B?@��GKIOFCAIG�PMQKIL�JEKFR@@DS�@BIC@J@AB��RDB@J�TP���U�OFC�IBD�@JEKFR@@D���?@�GLBMGCIGK�LFDB�J@B?FV�MD@V�OFCV@B@CJIAIAN�B?@�Q@A@OIB�FQKINGBIFAD�ID�B?@�PCFW@LB@V�AIB�X@A@OIB��FDB�'@B?FV��AV@C�B?IDJ@B?FV��B?@�GLBMGCIGK�EC@D@AB�YGKM@�FO�ECFW@LB@V�Q@A@OIBD�ID�B?@�YGKM@�FO�Q@A@OIBD�@ZE@LB@V�BF�Q@EGIV�OFC�LMCC@AB�GLBIY@�@JEKFR@@D�GAV�C@BIC@@D���?@�	LLMJMKGB@V�PFDBH�@BIC@J@AB�X@A@OIB�QKINGBIFA�T	PX�U�ID�B?@�GLBMGCIGK�EC@D@AB�YGKM@�FO�Q@A@OIBD�GBBCIQMB@V�BF�@JEKFR@@�D@CYIL@C@AV@C@V�ECIFC�BF�B?@�YGKMGBIFA�VGB@���?@�	PX��@[MGKD�B?@�EC@D@AB�YGKM@�FO�ECFW@LB@V�Q@A@OIBDJMKBIEKI@V�QR�G�OCGLBIFA�@[MGK�BF�D@CYIL@�BF�VGB@�FY@C�D@CYIL@�GB�OMKK�@KINIQIKIBR�GN@���?@P@CIFVIL�X@A@OIB��FDB�ID�B?@�GLBMGCIGK�EC@D@AB�YGKM@�FO�Q@A@OIBD�GBBCIQMB@V�BF�FA@�R@GC�FO�D@CYIL@��?ID�@[MGKD�B?@�EC@D@AB�YGKM@�FO�Q@A@OIBD�VIYIV@V�QR�D@CYIL@�GB�@ZE@LB@V�C@BIC@J@AB���?@GLBMGCIGK�GDDMJEBIFAD�GC@�DMJJGCI\@V�Q@KF]̂ _ �$�̀ab�cac̀ _ �$�̀ab�cacc(IDLFMAB��GB@D@V�BF�V@B@CJIA@��@B�P@CIFVIL�X@A@OIB��FDB d�efg ,�h+gD@V�BF�V@B@CJIA@�X@A@OIB��QKINGBIFAD f�,+g d�efg�FANHB@CJ��GB@�FO��@BMCA�FA�PKGA�	DD@BDD@V�BF�V@B@CJIA@��@B�P@CIFVIL�X@A@OIB��FDB e�++g f�f+gD@V�BF�V@B@CJIA@�X@A@OIB��QKINGBIFAD e�++g e�++g
@A@CGK�IAOKGBIFA ,�*+g ,�*+g�@GKB?��FDB��C@AV�@GKB?�LGC@�LFDB�BC@AV�CGB@�GDDMJ@V�OFC�A@ZB�R@GC -+�,hg e�edg�GB@�BF�]?IL?�B?@�LFDB�BC@AV�ID�GDDMJ@V�BF�V@LKIA@�TB?@�MKBIJGB@�BC@AV�CGB@U d�,fg d�,fg�@GC�B?GB�B?@�CGB@�C@GL?@D�B?@�MKBIJGB@�BC@AV�CGB@ ,+.+ ,+.+�MJQ@C�FO�PGCBILIEGABD	LBIY@�@JEKFR@@D e-+ ff-�@BIC@V�@JEKFR@@D -i* -.,�?@��@AB@C�ID�C@[MIC@V�BF�C@LFNAI\@�GA�@ZE@AD@�@GL?�R@GC�@[MGK�BF�B?@��@B�P@CIFVIL�PFDB��@BIC@J@AB�X@A@OIB��FDB�� �?@��@AB@C�C@LFNAI\@D�B?@�EFDBHC@BIC@J@AB�?@GKB?�LGC@�EKGA�KIGQIKIBR�GD�B?@�MAOMAV@V�	PX�IA�IBD�OIAGALIGK�DBGB@J@ABD��	KK�EC@YIFMDKR�MAC@LFNAI\@V�GLBMGCIGK�NGIAD�FC�KFDD@D�GC@�C@OK@LB@V�IA�B?@�DBGB@J@AB�FO�OIAGALIGK�EFDIBIFA���?@�EKGA�IB@JD�AFB�R@B�C@LFNAI\@V�GD�G�LFJEFA@AB�FO�E@CIFVIL�EKGA�@ZE@AD@D��QMB�IALKMV@V�GD�G�D@EGCGB@�L?GCN@�BF�A@B�GDD@BD��GC@�MAGJFCBI\@V�GLBMGCIGK�A@B�NGIA�FO�j-h�*h.�hhiGAV�j-.�ifh�fidOFC�B?@�R@GCD�@AV@V�)MA@�*+��,+,*GAV�,+,,��C@DE@LBIY@KR��?@�E@ADIFAHC@KGB@V�L?GAN@D�FB?@C�B?GA�A@B�E@CIFVIL�E@ADIFA�LFDB�IALC@GD@V�A@B�GDD@BD�QR�j-�f*i�d-*GAV�jd�*+d�hf.OFC�B?@�R@GCD�@AV@V�)MA@�*+��,+,*GAV�,+,,��C@DE@LBIY@KR�
39



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%���������&��	���	����	��'������	����(�(�)���*+��,+,*	�(�,+,,

-.

�/0�123324567�89:30�;<2=5>0?�9�<0@26@53598526�21�8/0�@/9670?�56�8/0�;396A?�:060158�2:35798526?BC �$�DEF�GEGD C �$�DEF�GEGG�:35798526?�98�:07566567�21�H09< IJ.�*KJ�+,L IKK�*-+�KJL�0<=5@0�@2?8 ,�.LK�MJK *�ML+�+MM�680<0?8�@2?8 ,�,+,�.MM -�M-J�MKM	@8N9<593�O7956P�32?? O-�JL+�.+MP O-+�.K.�,.*PQ060158?�;95> O-�M.+�KL*P O-�J+,�LKLP�:35798526?�98�06>�21�H09< IK+�,.-�-J- IJ.�*KJ�+,L�/0�123324567�89:30�;<2=5>0?�9�<0@26@53598526�21�8/0�@/9670?�56�8/0�;396A?�9??08?BC �$�DEF�GEGD C �$�DEF�GEGG&95<�=93N0�21�;396�9??08?�98�:07566567�21�H09< I,.�J-.�+MM I*,�JRM�+M-	@8N93�<08N<6�26�;396�9??08? ,�.-L�,-+ OJ�,+J�+KLP�S;32H0<�@268<5:N8526? -�.+L�.KL -�KJL�+,*Q060158?�;95> O-�M.+�KL*P O-�J+,�LKLP&95<�=93N0�21�;396�9??08?�98�06>�21�H09< *-�*MM�KJ, ,.�J-.�+MM�08�9S2N68�<0@2765T0>�56�8/0�?8980S068?�21�15696@593�;2?58526 IO-.�L-J�KLLP IO-L�L*K�LM*P

40



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%���������&��	���	����	��'������	����(�(�)���*+��,+,*	�(�,+,,

-.

�/0�1/234536�147082/032/9/:0�;/:/<30�6470�64:73707�4<�0=/�<4>>4?3:@�64914:/:07AB �$�CDE�FDFC B �$�CDE�FDFF�/2G36/�6470 H ,�I.J�KLJ H *�K.+�+KK�:0/2/70�6470 ,�,+,�IKK -�K-L�KJK�/0M2:�4:�N77/07 O-�P+I�.K,Q O-�P.+�,++Q	94203RN034:�4<�O@N3:7Q�42�>477/7 O-�+K,�KL-Q OJJ.�+KPQ�/0�1/234536�147082/032/9/:0�;/:/<307�64707 H ,�*,K�.+I H ,�.JJ�LJJ�=/�:/0N66M9M>N0/5N94M:0�2/64@:3R/5�N7�N�7/1N2N0/�3:62/N7/�3::/0�N77/07�4<�H-.�*.P�..IN:5�H-P�IJ.�JILN7�4<�)M:/�*+��,+,*N:5�,+,,��2/71/603G/>S��<42�12342�7/2G36/�6470�N:5�M:N94203R/5�:/0�N60MN23N>�@N3:�O>477Q�54/7�:40�=NG/�N:�4<<7/003:@�N662MN>�<249�0=/�((��04�2/<>/60�0=/�<M0M2/�2/39;M27/9/:0�4<�7M6=�;/:/<307���=/�N66M9M>N0/5�@N3:�37�2/64@:3R/5�3:12/1N35�/T1/:7/N:5�40=/2�N77/074:�0=/�70N0/9/:07�4<�<3:N:63N>�1473034:�������UU$�U�=/�1>N:V7�N77/07�N2/�2/1420/5�N0�<N32�GN>M/��&N32�GN>M/�37�5/<3:/5�N7�0=/�1236/�0=N0�?4M>5�;/�2/6/3G/5�04�7/>>�N:�N77/0�42�1N35�04�02N:7</2�N�>3N;3>30S�3:�N:�425/2>S�02N:7N6034:�;/0?//:�9N2W/0�1N203631N:07�N0�0=/�9/N7M2/9/:0�5N0/��	�2/6/:0�N664M:03:@�70N:5N25�=N7�/70N;>37=/5�N�<N32�GN>M/�=3/2N26=S�0=N0�12342303R/7�0=/�3:1M07�04�GN>MN034:�0/6=:3XM/7�M7/5�04�9/N7M2/�<N32�GN>M/���=/�=3/2N26=S�@3G/7�0=/�=3@=/70�1234230S�04�M:N5YM70/5�XM40/5�1236/7�3:�N603G/�9N2W/07�<42�35/:036N>�N77/07�42�>3N;3>303/7�O>/G/>�-�9/N7M2/9/:07Q�N:5�0=/�>4?/70�1234230S�04�9/N7M2/9/:07�3:G4>G3:@�73@:3<36N:0�M:4;7/2GN;>/�3:1M07�O>/G/>�*�9/N7M2/9/:07Q��=/�0=2//�>/G/>7�4<�0=/�<N32�GN>M/�=3/2N26=S�N2/�N7�<4>>4?7AZ �/G/>�-�3:1M07�N2/�XM40/5�1236/7�OM:N5YM70/5Q�3:�N603G/�9N2W/07�<42�35/:036N>�N77/07�42�>3N;3>303/7�0=N0�0=/��/:0/2�=N7�0=/�N;3>30S�04�N66/77�N0�0=/�9/N7M2/9/:0�5N0/�Z �/G/>�,�3:1M07�N2/�3:1M07�40=/2�0=N:�XM40/5�9N2W/0�1236/7�3:6>M5/5�3:�>/G/>�-�0=N0�N2/�4;7/2GN;>/�<42�0=/�N77/0�42�>3N;3>30S��/30=/2�532/60>S�42�3:532/60>S�Z �/G/>�*�3:1M07�N2/�M:4;7/2GN;>/�3:1M07�<42�0=/�N77/0�42�>3N;3>30S��=/�>/G/>�3:�0=/�<N32�GN>M/�=3/2N26=S�?30=3:�?=36=�N�<N32�9/N7M2/9/:0�3:�307�/:032/0S�<N>>7�37;N7/5�4:�0=/�>4?/70�>/G/>�3:1M0�0=N0�37�73@:3<36N:0�04�0=/�<N32�GN>M/�9/N7M2/9/:0�3:�307�/:032/0S��=/�<4>>4?3:@�0N;>/7�7/0�<420=�;S�>/G/>��?30=3:�0=/�<N32�GN>M/�=3/2N26=S��0=/�1>N:V7�N77/07�N0�<N32GN>M/�N7�4<)M:/�*+A B �$�CDE�FDFC [$\$��] [$\$��F [$\$��C �̂����N7=�N:5�6N7=�/XM3GN>/:07 H -�*,K�JJ* H 8 H 8 H -�*,K�JJ*'M0MN>�<M:57A�XM30S -.�,+K�.*P *J-�I+* 8 -.�JJI�PL+&3T/5�3:649/ P�.I,�++P ,�+*J�K*- 8 -+�+-P�K*I_N>N:6/5 8 LK*�K-- 8 LK*�K--�40N> H,I�J-J�L.P H ,�IJ-�+LJ H 8 H*-�*KK�JL,
41



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%���������&��	���	����	��'������	����(�(�)���*+��,+,*	�(�,+,,

,+

- �$�./0�1/11 2$3$��4 2$3$��1 2$3$��. 5�����678�69:�;678�<=>?@6A<9B7 C D�,**�E*+ C F C F C D�,**�E*+'>B>6A�G>9:7H�=>?BI DJ�E,*�K*, *LL�**, F DE�+JE�MJL&?N<:�?9;OP< E�L*M�++* D�M*Q�DQM F Q�,EE�,+DR6A69;<: F M*Q�,ED F M*Q�,ED�OB6A C,K�*QK�,JK C *�+,,�M+D C F C,M�LDM�+JJ�8<�?9@<7BP<9B�OST<;B?@<�OG�B8<�UA69�?7�BO�UVO@?:<�6�V6B<�OG�V<B>V9�;OPP<97>V6B<�W?B8�6�PO:<V6B<�:<XV<<�OG�V?7Y�OG�AO77�OG�UV?9;?U6A�69:�V<B>V9�@OA6B?A?BI��	�BV>7B<<�6:P?9?7B<V7�B8<�UA69�677<B7�69:�?9@<7BP<9B�V<7UO97?S?A?BI�GOV�B8<�677<B7�?7�677?X9<:�BO�O>B7?:<�?9@<7BP<9B�P696X<V7���8<�677<B7�OG�B8<�UA69�6V<�U<V?O:?;6AAI�V<S6A69;<:�BO�V<P6?9�W?B8?9�B8<�:<7?V<:�B6VX<B�6AAO;6B?O97�Z����!����[����\]��̂��$_���#̀	;B>6A�G>B>V<�;O7B7�P6I�@6VI�7?X9?G?;69BAI�GVOP�B8<�<7B?P6B<7�>7<:�?9�;6A;>A6B?9X�B8<�	aR��GOV�6�@6V?<BI�OG�V<67O97��&>B>V<�;O7B7�P6I�@6VI�GVOP�<7B?P6B<7�:><�BO�6�@6V?<BI�OG�G6;BOV7�?9;A>:?9X��S>B�9OB�A?P?B<:�BO��;869X<7�?9�P<:?;6A�;O7B7��6UUA?;6SA<�A6W7��POVB6A?BI�V6B<7��V<B?V<P<9B�V6B<7��B<VP?96B?O9�V6B<7��V6B<�OG�V<B>V9��OV�OB8<V�;869X<7�?9�<;O9OP?;�OV�:<POXV6U8?;�677>PUB?O97���]b�c��d�\]��̂��$]�����c � �$�#$�$������[̂$��]�8<�GOAAOW?9X�<7B?P6B<:�S<9<G?B�U6IP<9B7�GOV�B8<�9<NB�B<9�I<6V7�6V<�<NU<;B<:�BO�S<�U6?:�O9�6�G?7;6A�I<6V�S67?767�GOAAOW7H e$��]�\�_��f�- �$�./0,+,L C D�EM*�,JD,+,K D�QD,�J+Q,+,J ,�+E*�J+,,+,E ,�,J*�D,*,+,M ,�LM,�JDJ,+,Qg,+** DK�LD+�Q++�OB6A C,K�Q,J�DDDhijk�lm�nokhpqih�orsh�8<��<9B<V�;O9BV?S>B<7�BO�B8<��6A?GOV9?6�a>SA?;��PUAOI<<7t��<B?V<P<9B��I7B<P�ua���v��69�6X<9BP>AB?UA<F<PUAOI<V�U>SA?;�<PUAOI<<�V<B?V<P<9B�7I7B<P�B86B�6;B7�67�6�;OPPO9�?9@<7BP<9B�69:�6:P?9?7BV6B?@<�6X<9B�GOV�U6VB?;?U6B?9X�U>SA?;�<9B?B?<7�W?B8?9��6A?GOV9?6���>S7B69B?6AAI�6AA�OG�B8<��<9B<Vt7�<PUAOI<<7�U6VB?;?U6B<�?9�a����a����>7<7�B8<��9BVI�	X<��OVP6A��O7B�'<B8O:�BO�G>9:�S<9<G?B7��9:<V�B8?7�P<B8O:��UVOT<;B<:�S<9<G?B7�6V<�:<B<VP?9<:�GOV�6AA�P<PS<V7�69:�B8<�677O;?6B<:�A?6S?A?B?<7�6V<�7UV<6:�?9�6�P699<V�B86B�UVO:>;<7�A<@<A�699>6A�;O7B�67�6�U<V;<9B�OG�U6I�?9�<6;8�I<6V�GVOP�B8<�6X<�OG�8?V<�BO�B8<�677>P<:�V<B?V<P<9B�6X<���8<�;O7B�6AAO;6B<:�BO�B8<�;>VV<9B�G?7;6A�I<6V�?7�;6AA<:�B8<�9OVP6A�;O7B�
42



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%���������&��	���	����	��'������	����(�(�)���*+��,+,*	�(�,+,,

,-

�./01233�4156789:6815;�<73�<//71=8.<6302�>?�1@�;<0<72�<5A�B<C3;���D3��35637�8;�73E:873A�61�4156789:63�6D3�73.<8585C�<.1:56�5343;;<72�61�@:5A�9353@86;�@17�86;�3./01233;��:;85C�6D3�<46:<78<0�9<;8;�<A1/63A�92�6D3�F����G1<7A�1@�	A.858;67<6815���16<0�736873.356�3=/35;3�@17�6D3�23<7;�35A3A�):53�*+��,+,*<5A�,+,,B<;�H,�II-�>+I<5A�H,�>I-�+,-��73;/3468J302��D3�<46:<78<0�4<04:0<6815;�<5A�4156789:6815�7<63;�C3537<63A�92��<0F����<73�9<;3A�15�J<781:;�<;;:./6815;�<91:6�015CK637.�A3.1C7</D84�<5A�34151.84�6735A;�<5A�93D<J817���D3��<0F����<46:<78<0�<;;:./6815;�<5A�4<04:0<6815;�<73�85�<4417A<543�B86D�
1J375.356<0�	441:5685C��6<5A<7A;�G1<7A�L
	�GM�C:8A<543���1B3J37��
	�G�C:8A<543�8;�516�<//084<903�61�6D3��35637��<;�6D3��35637�8;�<�515/71@86�17C<58N<6815�BD373�6D3�<//71/78<63�C3537<002�<443/63A�<441:5685C�/78548/03;�@17�73/17685C�;D1:0A�93�85�<4417A<543�B86D�&85<548<0�	441:5685C��6<5A<7A;�G1<7A�L&	�GM�C:8A<543���5�17A37�@17�6D3��35637�61�196<85�<�J<0:<6815�73/176�85�<4417A<543�B86D�&	�G��6D3��35637�D<;�196<853A�6D3�435;:;�A<6<�@71.�F����<015C�B86D�/0<5�<;;36�9<0<543;�@17�6D3�@8;4<0�23<7�35A3A�):53�*+��,+,*<5A�,+,,<5A�D<A�<5�<46:<78<0�J<0:<6815�/37@17.3A�85�<4417A<543�B86D�&	�G�61�73417A�6D3�:5@:5A3A�/35;815�1908C<6815�<5A�730<63A�/35;815�3=/35;3�85�6D3�;6<63.356;�1@�@85<548<0�/1;86815�<5A�;6<63.356;�1@�<468J8683;��73;/3468J302��<;�1@�<5A�@17�6D3�23<7;�35A3A�):53�*+���,+,*<5A�,+,,���D3�<46:<78<0�<;;:./6815;�<73�;:..<78N3A�9301BO P �$�QRS�TRTQ P �$�QRS�TRTTU"���V�"��WW V�����W(8;41:56��<63 X�>+? ,�YZ?�15CK637.��<63�1@��36:75�15�F0<5�	;;36; I�[+? I�[+?�<0<72��5473<;3;�L<55:<002M X�++? X�++?� V!$����������"�����W	468J3�.3.937; I-+ ZZ>�7<5;@3773A�.3.937; Y, >X�37.85<63A�.3.937; X*- *>X�36873A�.3.937;�17�9353@848<783; ,[Y ,IY�D3��35637�8;�73E:873A�61�7341C58N3�<5�3=/35;3�3<4D�23<7�3E:<0�61�6D3��36�F3781A84�F1;6K�36873.356�G353@86��1;6� �D3��35637�7341C58N3;�6D3�/35;815�/0<5�08<980862�<;�6D3�:5@:5A3A�	G��85�86;�@85<548<0;6<63.356;��	00�/73J81:;02�:57341C58N3A�<46:<78<0�C<85;�17�01;;3;�<73�73@03463A�85�6D3;6<63.356;�1@�@85<548<0�/1;86815���D3�/0<5�863.;�516�236�7341C58N3A�<;�<�41./15356�1@�/3781A84/0<5�3=/35;3;��9:6�8540:A3A�<;�<�;3/<7<63�4D<7C3�61�536�<;;36;��<73OP �$�QRS�TRTQ P �$�QRS�TRTT5<.1768N3A�3=/3783543�01;; H-+�-XZ�YY- H [�I+,�I+Z5<.1768N3A�01;;�@71.�<;;36�736:75 *�>I>�>>, ,�[*X�>Y-5<.1768N3A�C<85�@71.�<;;:./6815�4D<5C3; LZY�*Y[�[YZM LX,�YZ*�Y>>M	.1768N<6815�<.1:56 -�+Y*�ZZZ K�5A�1@�23<7�C<85 HLXX�*Y-�Z>>M HL*-�Z-I�Z[-M�D3�/35;815K730<63A�4D<5C3;�16D37�6D<5�536�/3781A84�/35;815�41;6�85473<;3A536�<;;36;�92�H-,�*[Z�*>-<5A�HX[�ZXY�Y-*@17�6D3�23<7;�35A3A�):53�*+��,+,*<5A�,+,,��73;/3468J302�
43



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%���������&��	���	����	��'������	����(�(�)���*+��,+,*	�(�,+,,

,,

�-.�/01102345�6781.�9:0;3<.=�7�:.>04>31376304�0/�6-.�>-745.=�34�6-.�9174?=�8.4./36�0813576304=@A �$�BCD�ECEB A �$�BCD�ECEE�813576304=�76�8.5344345�0/�F.7: GHIJ�KIH�LJI G,K*�LIL�JHJ�.:;3>.�>0=6 I�*MK�+MM H*�MJN�J,I�46.:.=6�>0=6 I�HMK�IHN M�L*I�M+*	>6O7:371�5734 PHJ�LLL�IHNQ PM*�M*J�L+IQR174�7S.4<S.46 KLI�+LK T�U9.:3.4>.�10== H�KL*�*NJ ,�+LL�KM,V.4./36=74<�.U9.4=.=973< PM�+,,�K,+Q PJ�LHI�JL,Q�813576304=�76�.4<�0/�F.7: GHI*�MJM�LKM G,+*�+HH�HHH�-.�/01102345�6781.�9:0;3<.=�7�:.>04>31376304�0/�6-.�>-745.=�34�6-.�9174?=�7==.6=@A �$�BCD�ECEB A �$�BCD�ECEE&73:�;71O.�0/�9174�7==.6=�76�8.5344345�0/�F.7: GHLJ�LH*�*IJ GHK*�+L,�*HN	>6O71�:.6O:4�04�9174�7==.6= I�++*�K** PH,�,,*�MLKQ�S910F.:�74<�.S910F..�>046:38O6304= J�*,M�LK* H,�+HL�LJKV.4./36=74<�.U9.4=.=973< PM�+,,�K,+Q PJ�LHI�JL,Q&73:�;71O.�0/�9174�7==.6=�76�.4<�0/�F.7: HKL�M,H�NJ, HLJ�LH*�*IJ�.6�7S0O46�:.>0543W.<�34�6-.�=676.S.46=�0/�/3474>371�90=36304 GP*I�+LK�KIKQ GPK+�HMN�+M*Q�.6�9.:30<3>�90=6:.63:.S.46�8.4./36�>0=6�>04=3=6=�0/�6-.�/01102345�>0S904.46=@A �$�BCD�ECEB A �$�BCD�ECEE�.:;3>.�>0=6 G I�*MK�+MM GH*�MJN�J,I�46.:.=6�>0=6 I�HMK�IHN M�L*I�M+*�U9.>6.<�:.6O:4�04�9174�7==.6= PI�I*J�KHLQ PH+�IHN�HMIQ	S0:63W76304�0/�9:30:�=.:;3>.�>0=6 KI�L,+ T�.>0543W.<�4.6�7>6O7:371�5734= PH�+I*�KKKQ T�.6�9.:30<3>�90=6T:.63:.S.46�8.4./36�>0=6= G M�KN+�*LJ GH+�,I+�HK*�-.�7>>OSO176.<�4.6�7S0O46�:.>0543W.<�7=�7�=.97:76.�34>:.7=.60�4.6�7==.6=�0/�GLL�*IH�KMM74<�G*H�KHJ�KNH7=�0/�)O4.�*+��,+,*74<�,+,,��:.=9.>63;.1F��/0:�O47S0:63W.<�4.6�7>6O7:371�5734�P10==Q�<0.=�406�-7;.�74�0//=.66345�7>>:O71�/:0S�6-.�((��60�:./1.>6�6-.�/O6O:.�:.3S8O:=.S.46�0/�=O>-�8.4./36=��
734=�7:.�:.>0543W.<�349:.973<�.U9.4=.�74<�06-.:�7==.6=�74<�10==.=�7:.�0//=.6�236-�:.>.3;781.=�/:0S�6-.��676.�/0:�9.4=304�9174�04�6-.�=676.S.46=�0/�/3474>371�90=36304�7=�0/�)O4.�*+��,+,*74<�,+,,��:.=9.>63;.1F�
44



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%���������&��	���	����	��'������	����(�(�)���*+��,+,*	�(�,+,,

,*

�-.�/01102345�.673897.:�;.4./37�<9=8.476/0>�7-.�4.?7�7.4�=.9>69>.�.?<.@7.:�70�;.�<93:�04�9�/36@91�=.9>�;963696�/011026A B$��C�D�E��F�G �$�HIJ,+,K L M�NON�OOM,+,N P�+,*�QRK,+,M P�N*N�KNQ,+,P P�R*+�KNO,+,O O�**,�*O,,+,RS,+** N+�RR*�MR+�0791 LOO�K+Q�+MQTUVW�XX�YZU[[\V[WTV]�̂T_�ZUTV\T̀ WTZ\W]�4�9@@0>:94@.�237-�7-.�7.>86�0/�7-.�((��@047>9@7��94�9a:37�89=�;.�<.>/0>8.:�;=�94�9a7-0>3b.:�6797.�>.<>.6.47973c.���-0a1:�6a@-�9a:37�:36@106.�94=�a4911029;1.�@0676��7-.��.47.>�89=�;.�139;1.�70�7-.��797.�/0>�>.38;a>6.8.47�0/�6a@-�@0676���4�7-.�0<34304�0/�7-.��.47.>d6�89495.8.47��7-.�.//.@7�0/�94=�:3691102.:�@0676�20a1:�;.�38897.>391�70�7-.�/3494@391�6797.8.476�96�0/�)a4.�*+��,+,*94:�,+,,��-.��.47.>d6�@047>9@7�237-�((��<>0c3:.6�/a4:345�/0>�6.>c3@.6�a4:.>�7-.��947.>894�	@7���4�7-.�.c.47�7-97�7-.�0<.>973046�0/�7-.��.47.>�>.6a17�34�9�:./3@37�<0637304�97�7-.�.4:�0/�7-.�@047>9@7�=.9>��((��89=�>.9110@97.�6a><1a6�/a4:6�237-34�7-.��797.�0/��913/0>439�6=67.8�70�6a<<1.8.47�7-.��.47.>d6�/a4:345���-0a1:�9�6=67.8S23:.�:./3@37�0@@a>��((��36�>.ea3>.:�70�>.<0>7�70�7-.�
0c.>40>�0/��913/0>439�94:�7-.�9<<>0<>397.�/36@91�@088377..�0/�7-.��797.��.536197a>.�94:�>.@088.4:�9@73046�70�6.@a>.�9::3730491�/a4:6�0>�>.:a@.�.?<.4:37a>.6��((��>.@088.4:973046�9>.�6a;6.ea.471=�>.c3.2.:�;=�7-.�
0c.>40>�94:�7-.��.536197a>.�94:�9�:.@36304�36�89:.�237-�>.59>:�70�6<.@3/3@�9@73046��34@1a:345�7-.�<0663;1.�6a6<.46304�0/�7-.�.47371.8.47�����$"��f$�#��F�����F��F�$$g$��C�-.��.47.>�>.79346�9�6a;67947391�<0>7304�0/�376�19;0>�/0>@.�7->0a5-��0@391��.>c3@.6�4304���0@91�P,Q���.>c3@.6��8<10=..6��47.>49730491�4304���-36�19;0>�/0>@.�36�6a;h.@7�70�@011.@73c.�;9>5934345�95>..8.476�94:��96�6a@-��>.4.507397304�0/�6a@-�95>..8.476�@0a1:�.?<06.�7-.��.47.>�70�94�34@>.96.�34�-0a>1=�@0676�94:�20>i�670<<95.6���-.��.47.>d6�@011.@73c.�;9>5934345�95>..8.47�237-�7-.�a4304�36�.//.@73c.�7->0a5-�(.@.8;.>�QO��,+,,��4�&.;>a9>=�,+,*��7-.��.47.>�>973/3.:�9�4.2�@011.@7�;9>5934345�95>..8.47�.//.@73c.�&.;>a9>=�QP��,+,*�7->0a5-�&.;>a9>=�QM��,+,O�j�$g���kg$���l�C ���"$�-.��.47.>�-96�.1.@7.:�70�6.1/S346a>.�376�a4.8<10=8.47�346a>94@.���-.��.47.>�36�>.ea3>.:�70�>.38;a>6.�7-.�6797.�0/��913/0>439�/0>�;.4./376�<93:�70�376�/0>8.>�.8<10=..6�m$F���n���$�C�-.��.47.>�36�34c01c.:�34�c9>30a6�@19386�94:�1.591�9@73046�34�7-.�40>891�@0a>6.�0/�;a634.66��o96.:�a<04�@0a46.1�94:�89495.8.47d6�0<34304��7-.�>.601a7304�0/�6a@-�8977.>6�36�.37-.>�@0c.>.:�;=�346a>94@.�0>�2311�407�-9c.�9�897.>391�9:c.>6.�.//.@7�04�7-.�/3494@391�<0637304��>.6a17�0/�0<.>97304�0>�@96-�/1026�
45



��

��������	
����	�����
��	

46



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%

&'

����(����)��*+��(�������)�)�(��	��	,	�(���	����(�(�-���./��&/&.0$1$����2������3��44567�� 87�2������3���8��9�6���$ �44�4���"$�:�4���8�� 9!$� �8$�";�����44567�� 87�� 9!$� 0$1$����<=�$�1�� �$4 <=�$�1�� �$4����> !�$"���$��4����(?@ABCD?EC�FG��HIJACKFEL�@?JKAM��HIJACKFE�N
BAECO�GFB��EGAECO�AEH�)ADKMK?O�+AOO?H�CPBFIQP��CAC?�FG��AMKGFBEKA����(?@ABCD?EC�FG�(?R?MF@D?ECAM��?BRKJ?O�ABMS��EC?BR?ECKFE��?BRKJ?O TU�VTV �VTV	VW//.X Y XTW�''Z Y [\]\̂ _�̀abaĉ _�̂d ĉbe Y XTW�''Z Y [

47



��

������	�
����	
��������������	��������������������������������� �!"#��$�%&�&�� �������� ���'���
�������
��(�	��)�*+�(����
��)�)(��	��,��(
�����((�-���./���/�.0123�4�567898�1:�;<3830272910�=>�?@@ABC?DEFDG�
@=>HIJ>�AK�LC>DHFMIN>O�AK�)>H>N?J��P?NHOQ
@=>HIJ>RFD@JIH>O�M=>�K>H>N?J�GN?DM�?DH�JA?D�?@MFSFMF>O�AK��ANM=�	AO��DG>J>O��AIDME��>GFAD?J��>DM>N���D@�?DH�FO�CN>O>DM>H�AD�M=>�?@@NI?J�T?OFO�AK�?@@AIDMFDGU��=>�FDKANB?MFAD�FD�M=FO�O@=>HIJ>�FO�CN>O>DM>H�FD�?@@ANH?D@>�PFM=�M=>�N>VIFN>B>DMO�AK��FMJ>�����
���AH>�AK�)>H>N?J��>GIJ?MFADO�+?NM��//��W�����X��YX���Z �� �[&�\&]"��&X&� Ẑ���Z �!���$���&Ẑ���Y��"Y� �\&]"��&X&� Z�����_&Y&�����̀ ��YZQ�DFKANB��IFH?D@>R���=>N>KAN>��OAB>�?BAIDMO�CN>O>DM>H�FD�M=FO�O@=>HIJ>�B?E�HFKK>N�KNAB�?BAIDMO�CN>O>DM>H�FD��AN�IO>H�FD�M=>�CN>C?N?MFAD�AK��M=>�T?OF@�KFD?D@F?J�OM?M>B>DMO��=>�CINCAO>�AK�M=>�
@=>HIJ>�FO�MA�CN>O>DM�?�OIBB?NE�AK�M=AO>�?@MFSFMF>O�AK��ANM=�	AO��DG>J>O��AIDME��>GFAD?J��>DM>N���D@�KAN�M=>�E>?N�>DH>H�-ID>�./���/�.��P=F@=�=?S>�T>>D�KFD?D@>H�TE�M=>���
���AS>NDB>DM��)AN�CINCAO>O�AK�M=>�
@=>HIJ>��K>H>N?J�?P?NHO�FD@JIH>�?JJ�K>H>N?J�?OOFOM?D@>�>DM>N>H�FDMA�HFN>@MJE�?DH�FDHFN>@MJE�T>MP>>D��ANM=�	AO��DG>J>O��AIDME��>GFAD?J��>DM>N���D@�?DH�M=>�K>H>N?J�GAS>NDB>DM���ANM=�	AO��DG>J>O��AIDME��>GFAD?J��>DM>N���D@�HFH�DAM�>J>@M�MA�IO>�M=>�a/b�H>�BFDFBFO�FDHFN>@M�@AOM�N?M>�?O�?JJAP>H�IDH>N�M=>��DFKANB��IFH?D@>�0123�c�58dee7<f�1:�89g09:9h702�7hh1d0290g�;1i9h938LC>DHFMIN>O�N>CANM>H�AD�M=>�
@=>HIJ>�?N>�N>CANM>H�AD�M=>�?@@NI?J�T?OFO�AK�?@@AIDMFDG��
I@=�>LC>DHFMIN>O�?N>�N>@AGDFj>H�KAJJAPFDG�M=>�@AOM�CNFD@FCJ>O�@ADM?FD>H�FD�M=>��DFKANB��IFH?D@>�P=>N>FD�@>NM?FD�MEC>O�AK�>LC>DHFMIN>O�?N>�DAM�?JJAP?TJ>�AN�?N>�JFBFM>H�?O�MA�N>FBTINO>B>DM�

48



����������	�
�������������
���	��������������������������������������� !��"�#$�$���������������%

&'

����(����)�)��(��
��	�(�*�������(��������	����(�(+���,-��&-&,./01234�5�6.7889:;�3<�=7>213:?@�A/@7B1@C����"����D���$E$��F�GHI�JK�LMNOPJQRS�QIHJQP�OSSMINT UVJNOKOIN�UPIQULW�XJUPQJW�JYIQ�KOULUXOLW�QIHJQPOUZT[LPIQOLW�\IL]UISŜIS_�ONIUPOKOIǸ �IS a �J�OZUOKOXLUP�NIKOXOIUXĜOIS_�ONIUPOKOIN�PbLP�LQI�UJP�XJUSONIQIN�PJ�cI�VLPIQOLW\IL]UISŜIS_̀ �IS a �JUI�QIHJQPIN�JUXJVHWOLUXI�VLPIQOLW�PJ�KOULUXOLW�SPLPIVIUPS�UJPIǸ �IS a �JC$d$�����e��dF�UPIQULW�XJUPQJW�JYIQ�VLfJQ�HQJZQLVST[LPIQOLW�\IL]UISŜIS_�ONIUPOKOIǸ �IS a �J�OZUOKOXLUP�NIKOXOIUXĜOIS_�ONIUPOKOIN�PbLP�LQI�UJP�XJUSONIQIN�PJ�cI�VLPIQOLW\IL]UISŜIS_̀ �IS a �JUI�QIHJQPIN�GHI�JK�LMNOPJQRS�QIHJQP�OSSMIN�JU�XJVHWOLUXI�KJQ�VLfJQHQJZQLVST UVJNOKOIN	UG�LMNOP�KOUNOUZS�NOSXWJSIN�PbLP�LQI�QIgMOQIN�PJ�cI�QIHJQPIN�OU�LXXJQNLUXI�\OPb��IXPOJU�&--�hijJK�PbI�UOKJQV�
MONLUXÌ �IS a �J�NIUPOKOXLPOJU�JK�VLfJQ�HQJZQLVT ��E$����C$d$�������k��E������ F�$�	���lm�ili �HIXOLW��NMXLPOJU�n
QLUPS�KJQ��UKLUPSLUN�)LVOWOIS(JWWLQ�PbQISbJWN�MSIN�PJ�NOSPOUZMOSb�cIP\IIU��GHI�	�LUN��GHIoHQJZQLVST p'h-�---	MNOPII�gMLWOKOIN�LS�WJ\qQOS]�LMNOPIÌ a �IS �J./01234�55�6r2494029B�.191/8/41�r24>24s@�JUI�UJPIN�./01234�555�6r/>/:9B�=t9:>@�r24>24s@�94>�u7/@1234/>�v3@1@�JUI�UJPIN�
49



��

�������	�
��������������������������������������������������������������������	������ !"#" !" $�%&!�$'()*�("#'($�' � $"( %+�,' $('+�'-"(�.� % ,�%+�("#'($� /�% !�' �,'0#+�% ,"�% !�'$1"(�0%$$"(*�2%*"!�' �% �%&!�$�'.�.� % ,�%+�*$%$"0" $*�#"(.'(0"!�� �%,,'(!% ,"�3�$1456789:79;<=>?;?94@;<9><8>@A����B��������������������������������������������������������������C�����������D������E�������	��F������������������������CC���G������	���������������������������HIJKLMNKMO�PQRSOSMT�UOVMRVLRW�������G��������FC��������X��������	�����D������E�����������	�������������F������	������������������������������������������������������FC��������������F�����	�	��������C������������	�Y����Z[���[�Z�����������������������F������	����B�������	����������\C���������������	�����	�����������������������������������������������������	�������������F������������B���������������C������������������]]]]]]]]]]]]���[�̂��_K̀ILO�IM�aMOKLMVb�cIMOLIb�dJKL�eSMVMfSVb�_K̀ILOSMT���C������������C��	��F���������������	�����	�������������F����������������������������������������������������������������g�������������������B���	����������C�������h���������������i������G�����	�������������������C�������������������CC��C����������������F�������	�������C��C�����	��\C�������������C�������������	�������������F������G�������	�������C��C�����	��\C������������C��������������		���B�������	����������������������������������������������g�����������������������������������������\C���������C��������������		���B�������	����������������������������������������������g����������������������	��������������������������\�������������������������C���������	�������������������������F�����F��������FC������������������F����������	�C��	��F�������������������	������������C��B�������������������������F�������F������������F����G��������NVOKLSVb�jKVkMKWW�������	�������������FG���������	���	��������������������������������������������������������G���C����G�������������F��������F�������F�����	�����������g��	�������������F��������������G��C��B������������������������������������F����G��������WSTMSlSfVMO�RKlSfSKMfm�������	�������������FG���������	���	�������������������������������������������B�����������F�����������n�����������FC�����������������F���������������G����������������������B�������o�����������������	���������������������	���������F�����C��C���������G����������	�����C������C���	�������������������������������������������	��������	��������������������������������F�����G��F�����������n���������������	�������	���������X�B�����������F��������������������������������������������	��������	����������������������������������������������G��F�����������n��������p���B����F�����������n���������������	�������	��������F����\�����������������������	����
50



��

������	�
	������
��	�
�	�����	���������	����	��	����� � !	�"��� ��#"	���$�� %"	���$�	&'"�'"�	(���'	)��	� !"#"�	*�$ �+	,"!�� �#	*" �"�-	. %/0�	�� � %��#	����"1" ��	��"	��""	���1	1��"���#	1������"1" �-	&"	�"����1"2	�"���	��	���	%�1�#�� %"	&��'	%"���� 	���3���� �	��	#�&�-	�"!$#���� �-	%� ���%��-	� 2	!�� �	�!�""1" ��-	 � %�1�#�� %"	&��'	&'�%'	%�$#2	'�3"	�	2��"%�	� 2	1��"���#	"��"%�	� 	�'"	�� � %��#	����"1" ��/	4�&"3"�-	���3�2� !	� 	��� �� 	� 	%�1�#�� %"	&��'	�'��"	���3���� �	&��	 ��	� 	��5"%��3"	��	�$�	�$2��-	� 2	�%%��2� !#+-	&"	2�	 ��	"6��"��	�$%'	� 	��� �� /	7'"	�"�$#��	��	�$�	�"���	2��%#��"2	 �	� ��� %"�	��	 � %�1�#�� %"	��	��'"�	1���"��	�'��	��"	�"8$��"2	��	�"	�"����"2	$ 2"�	9�:��
��
�	;<����
=	>��
�����/	?<�����	�@	A���	������7'"	�$����"	��	�'��	�"����	��	��#"#+	��	2"�%���"	�'"	�%��"	��	�$�	�"��� !	��	� �"� �#	%� ���#	� 2	%�1�#�� %"	� 2	�'"	�"�$#��	��	�'��	�"��� !-	� 2	 ��	��	���3�2"	� 	��� �� 	� 	�'"	"��"%��3" "��	��	�'"	��!� �B���� 0�	� �"� �#	%� ���#	��	� 	%�1�#�� %"/	7'��	�"����	��	� 	� �"!��#	����	��	� 	�$2��	�"����1"2	� 	�%%��2� %"	&��'	9�:��
��
�	;<����
=	>��
������ 	%� ��2"�� !	�'"	��!� �B���� 0�	� �"� �#	%� ���#	� 2	%�1�#�� %"/	�%%��2� !#+-	�'��	%�11$ �%���� 	��	 ��	�$����#"	���	� +	��'"�	�$����"/CDECFCGHD	I	JKDLGMGEFKNOPQ	RSTUVTTSPW	JVQXPTYT	ZW[\]]]]]]]]]]]]-	�̂�_

51



��

�������	�
���������������������������������������������������������������������	����� !"#$#!"#!%�&'" %()*+�)#$()%�(!�,(-$. &!,#�/()�-&0()�/#"#)&.�$)(1)&-�&!"�(!� !%#)!&.�,(!%)(.�(2#)�,(-$. &!,#�)#3' )#"�45�%6#�'! /()-�1' "&!,#789:;<�:=�>:?9@AB=C8�D:;�EBF:;�G8H8;B@�I;:J;B?KLMNMON�ON�PQROS�TUVUSQW�XSOYSQZ[����\��������������������������������������������������]��̂ _������̀����������_����	��̂ _��������a����̂����������b����������KPc�dOZLWMQNeU�fgLLWUZUNh�������������\��������������̂���������		����������������������������������������������]�̂�i���	�������_�����̂�	�����������������j��������k�k�������������������������������������������]�̂�i���	�������_�����̂����������	�������������̂ �̂����	��������]������������������	�������̂ _����������������	��������������l�������������������������_������������������������������������������������̂ _�������������̂�����������_�����̀����������_����	��̂ _��������a����̂�������	����������b�\��������������\��������������̂���������		����������̂�i���	�������_�����̂�	������������������j��������k�k��cQmMm�nOS�KLMNMON�ON�PQROS�TUVUSQW�XSOYSQZ[���������������������	��̂ _�����������������̀�����������������������������������_�����������o��������������	��̂ ����p����������������__���b������	���������������������������qOrUSNZUNh�sgVMhMNY�fhQNVQSVm���������b��������̂ _��������t��������	�����o������������p�����������������a����̂������	�u�����k�o����dOVU�On�TUVUSQW�vUYgWQhMONmw����k����xNMnOSZ�sVZMNMmhSQhMrU�vUygMSUZUNhmz�dOmh�XSMNeMLWUmz�QNV�sgVMh�vUygMSUZUNhm�nOS�TUVUSQW�s{QSVm|o��	��̂�t������}��~������_����b��������������������������������������o��	��̂�t�����������	������������b�����������������]�����_����b��������	��������������	���̂ _��������������	�������_�����[��������a���������b������_��������	�����������������������������������������������������̂������������������������_����b��������������������̀��������\�������������a����̂����������������������������[��b����\������������������\������̀����\���b������������		�����������__��_���������_��\������b�����	��������_����������̂ _������	�������̂�i���	�������_�����̂��~������������������_��\�����������������̂���������	����������������������������������������������]���̂ _������̀���������̂ _��������a����̂�������	����������b�\��
52



��

�������	
	�	�	����������������������	������������������� !���"#�$!�%!� #���%�&��'�'���()����������$����*�!�"!+���*$!��'�*�����,�� #��������!�,��*���������%�!$�$$�%��+��������#%!���!#!+��%!� #���%�&��'�'���()��������!$#�&�,����)���,���)#���!��,�)#��,��* �!+���!�!$%!����%��!�����������������  #�%�"#��!-!��'.!�/���#��0!)��12���!��#0�����,3�%45�$�*���# �!����4678	���9��������	
	�	�	������:�678	��������	����;)�!"<�%��+������!!"��������!��"#����)���%��"!)�&'��'���������#�!�%!� #���%�&��'�'�%!� #���%���()����������$����*�!�"!+�!%%)���*,&'��'��*)��!$��)*!����!�,��*�= ������! ���!�!�-!��'.!�/���#��0!)��12���!��#0�����,3�%45�%!� #���%�"���*!�!)��)*��42���!��"#����)���%����'��'#�+�#!$���)���%�")����!��"�!#)�����)���%���*�'���$!�����!���)��������'�����)*��%!�*)%��*���%%!�*��%�&��'������##1�%%� ��*�)*���������*��*�,>�?�������678	�	��@���8��8�,��*�'�A��$!��B)�*��%�&�##�#&�1�*���%��������#�!�%!� #���%�&'�����=����4C'����D!$�!�*���%�����������#�!�%!� #���%����)#����$�!�$��)*��'��'���'��$!��'�����)#����$�!����!�,��$��)*��1��+!#+�%!##)��!�,$!����1,�������!��#!�����!��,����� ���������!��,!��'�!+����*�!$�������#%!���!#4-!�%!� #���%�&��'�'�%!� #���%���()����������$����*�!�"!+���%!���*���*�������#�$�'�������)"�������##�D�#�'!!*�'��,��*�+�*)�##1!����'����������,��&!)#*��$#)��%��'�<)*�������*�"1�����!��"#�)���!$�'��� !��!�%!� #���%��"!)�-!��'.!�/���#��0!)��12���!��#0�����5�%!� #���%�&��'�'���()��������!$�'���<!�$�*���# �!�������&'!#�43� ��$!��������)*�����%%!�*��%�&��'������##1�%%� ��*�)*���������*��*�,>�?�������678	�	��@���8��8�,��*�'�A��$!��B)�*��%�,&�EF G=��%��� �!$����!��#<)*�������*�������� �!$����!��#�D� ��%����'�!)�'!)��'��)*��4F 3*����$1��*�������'����D�!$�������#�!�%!� #���%�,&'��'��*)��!$��)*!����!�,��**�������* ��$!���)*�� �!%�*)������ !���+��!�'!�����D�4H)%' �!%�*)�����%#)*��=�������,!������"����,�+�*��%������*���-!��'.!�/���#��0!)��12���!��#0�����,3�%45�%!� #���%�&��'�'�%!� #���%���()����������$����*�!�"!+���* ��$!������)%'!�'�� �!%�*)�����&�%!���*���*��%�����1���'�%��%)�����%��4F ;"������)�*������*���!$-!��'.!�/���#��0!)��12���!��#0�����,3�%45��������#%!���!#!+��%!� #���%���#�+����!�'��)*����!�*���!*������)*�� �!%�*)����'������  �! ��������'�%��%)�����%����*�!������*�� !��!��������#%!���!#!+��%!� #���%����%%!�*��%�&��'�'�A��$!��B)�*��%�,")��!�$!��'� )� !��!$�= ���������! ���!�!��'��$$�%��+�����!$-!��'.!�/���#��0!)��12���!��#0�����,3�%45��������#%!���!#!+��%!� #���%�4/%%!�*���#1,�!�)%'! ���!����= �����*4I������()���*�!%!��)��%���&��'�'!��%'����*&��'�!+�����%������*���,��!��!�'���������,�'� #����*�%! ���*������!$�'��)*����*��1�����$�%���*�$�%���%�����*�������#&��D���������������#%!���!#!+��%!� #���%��'��&��*����$��**)�����'��)*��4
53



��

������	�
	�
���
�	��
���	����	������
���	����������	��	��������	�������	� ��	��!"������#$%&'&	()#*	')#	+#&%,*	-.	-/#.0'%-*	-1	0	2-*'.-3	-4#.	2-5/3%0*2#	+-#&	*-'	033-(	50*0,#5#*'	-.	#5/3-6##&7	%*	')#	*-.503	2-8.&#	-1	/#.1-.5%*,	')#%.	0&&%,*#+	18*2'%-*&7	'-	/.#4#*'7	-.	+#'#2'	0*+	2-..#2'7	*-*2-5/3%0*2#	(%')	0	'6/#	-1	2-5/3%0*2#	.#98%.#5#*'	-1	0	1#+#.03	/.-,.05	-*	0	'%5#36	:0&%&;	�	!�������	<��=��>>	��	��������	�������	� ��	��!"������%&	0	+#1%2%#*267	-.	0	2-5:%*0'%-*	-1	+#1%2%#*2%#&7	%*	%*'#.*03	2-*'.-3	-4#.	2-5/3%0*2#7	&82)	')0'	')#.#	%&	0	.#0&-*0:3#	/-&&%:%3%'6	')0'	50'#.%03	*-*2-5/3%0*2#	(%')	0	'6/#	-1	2-5/3%0*2#	.#98%.#5#*'	-1	0	1#+#.03	/.-,.05	(%33	*-'	:#	/.#4#*'#+7	-.	+#'#2'#+	0*+	2-..#2'#+7	-*	0	'%5#36	:0&%&;	�	>�?��������	����������	��	��������	�������	� ��	��!"������%&	0	+#1%2%#*267	-.	0	2-5:%*0'%-*	-1	+#1%2%#*2%#&7	%*	%*'#.*03	2-*'.-3	-4#.	2-5/3%0*2#	(%')	0	'6/#	-1	2-5/3%0*2#	.#98%.#5#*'	-1	0	1#+#.03	/.-,.05	')0'	%&	3#&&	&#4#.#	')0*	0	50'#.%03	(#0@*#&&	%*	%*'#.*03	2-*'.-3	-4#.	2-5/3%0*2#7	6#'	%5/-.'0*'	#*-8,)	'-	5#.%'	0''#*'%-*	:6	')-&#	2)0.,#+	(%')	,-4#.*0*2#;A8.	2-*&%+#.0'%-*	-1	%*'#.*03	2-*'.-3	-4#.	2-5/3%0*2#	(0&	1-.	')#	3%5%'#+	/8./-&#	+#&2.%:#+	%*	')#	�8+%'-.B&	C#&/-*&%:%3%'%#&	1-.	')#	�8+%'	-1	D-5/3%0*2#	&#2'%-*	0:-4#	0*+	(0&	*-'	+#&%,*#+	'-	%+#*'%16	033	+#1%2%#*2%#&	%*	%*'#.*03	2-*'.-3	-4#.	2-5/3%0*2#	')0'	5%,)'	:#	50'#.%03	(#0@*#&&#&	-.	&%,*%1%20*'	+#1%2%#*2%#&	%*	%*'#.*03	2-*'.-3	-4#.	2-5/3%0*2#;	E%4#*	')#&#	3%5%'0'%-*&7	+8.%*,	-8.	08+%'	(#	+%+	*-'	%+#*'%16	0*6	+#1%2%#*2%#&	%*	%*'#.*03	2-*'.-3	-4#.	2-5/3%0*2#	')0'	(#	2-*&%+#.	'-	:#	50'#.%03	(#0@*#&&#&7	0&	+#1%*#+	0:-4#;	F-(#4#.7	50'#.%03	(#0@*#&&#&	-.	&%,*%1%20*'	+#1%2%#*2%#&	%*	%*'#.*03	2-*'.-3	-4#.	2-5/3%0*2#	506	#$%&'	')0'	(#.#	*-'	%+#*'%1%#+;A8.	08+%'	(0&	*-'	+#&%,*#+	1-.	')#	/8./-&#	-1	#$/.#&&%*,	0*	-/%*%-*	-*	')#	#11#2'%4#*#&&	-1	%*'#.*03	2-*'.-3	-4#.	2-5/3%0*2#;	�22-.+%*,367	*-	&82)	-/%*%-*	%&	#$/.#&&#+;G)#	/8./-&#	-1	')%&	.#/-.'	-*	%*'#.*03	2-*'.-3	-4#.	2-5/3%0*2#	%&	&-3#36	'-	+#&2.%:#	')#	&2-/#	-1	-8.	'#&'%*,	-1	%*'#.*03	2-*'.-3	-4#.	2-5/3%0*2#	0*+	')#	.#&83'&	-1	')0'	'#&'%*,	:0&#+	-*	')#	.#98%.#5#*'&	-1	')#	H*%1-.5	E8%+0*2#;	�22-.+%*,367	')%&	.#/-.'	%&	*-'	&8%'0:3#	1-.	0*6	-')#.	/8./-&#;IJKILIMNJ	O	PQJRMSMKLQTUVW	XYZ[\ZZYV]	P\ŴVZ_Z	̀]abcccccccccccc7	�d�e

54



NLACRC Bylaws     Page 40 
Adopted Marchy __11, 20242 

 
 

43397714.1 

 

interest.. 
 

(dc) Duties.  The duties of the Vendor Advisory Committee shall be to provide advice, 
guidance, recommendations, and technical assistance to the Board to assist the Board in carrying 
out its mandated duties.  The Vendor Advisory Committee shall designate one (1) of its 
members to serve as a member of the Board. 
 
Section 10.  Consumer Advisory Committee. 
 

(a) Composition.  The Consumer Advisory Committee shall be composed of adult 
consumers who reside in the regional center’s catchment area and participate in five Consumer 
Advisory Committee meetings during any 12-month period. 
 

(b) Election of Committee Chair.  The Consumer Advisory Committee chair shall be 
a member of the Board of Trustees and elected by the Board of Trustees elected by the 
committee. The term of office shall be one year with no limitations on the number of terms.  
However, the Nominating Committee should give consideration to alternating their nomination 
for the position among eligible board members.  Election of the committee chair will occur at 
the time of the regular board elections.  The Nominating The Committee committee will also 
recommend the nomination of  elect a vice-chair. 

(c) Duties.  The duties of the Consumer Advisory Committee shall be to provide the 
Center’s Board of Trustees with recommendations on legislation or services and supports 
provided by the center or other publicly funded entities. 

 
(d) Board Liaison.  The Board of Trustees may appoint a liaison to attend committee 

meetings for the purpose of attending and participating in monthly committee meetings, 
facilitating communication between the committee and the Board of Trustees on a monthly 
basis and completing a monthly CAC Liaison Report for the board. The Board Liaison 
should be an individual served by NLACRC, and the board should give consideration to 
alternating the liaison position amongst eligible board members from year to year.   
 
Section 11.  Strategic Planning Committee 
 

(a) Composition. The Strategic Planning Committee shall be consistent with 
requirements found in the Lanterman Developmental Disabilities Services Act for regional 
centers when convening any task force or advisory group.  As such, the Strategic Planning 
Committee may have members who are or who represent primary consumers, family members, 
service providers, the State Council, and staff.  The Strategic Planning Committee should have 
not less than twelve (12) or more than sixteen (16) members, of which a minimum being 60% 
board members.  The chairperson is selected by the members of the committee.  The board 

Formatted: Font: Garamond, 14 pt

55

KVisokey
Highlight



NLACRC Bylaws     Page 14 
Adopted Marchy __11, 20242 

 
 

43397714.1 

 

announcing the outcome of the election, the Secretary of the Board will state whether or not 
the nominee was elected; the number of votes for or against will not be divulged.   In the event 
candidates receiving a majority of the votes cast by the Trustees eligible to vote are less than 
the number of Trustees to be elected, then, subject to Subsection (d), the Board may declare a 
vacancy, or vacancies, on the Board.  In the event a Trustee position remains vacant because of 
a tie vote among candidates, each of whom has received a majority of the votes cast by Trustees 
eligible to vote, a run-off vote shall be conducted and the candidate, or candidates, receiving 
the highest votes shall be elected to fill the vacant Trustee position or positions.   Each Board 
member can vote only once for each vacant position and cast no more votes than the total 
number of vacant positions to be voted on.  After the election, the secretary will keep the used 
ballots for a limited period of time so anyone wanting to see the used ballots will have the 
opportunity to do so. 

(f) Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, the Vendor Advisory 
Committee shall be entitled to designate one member from its Committee to serve as a Trustee 
at the meeting at which Trustee elections are held.  The Trustee designated by the Vendor 
Advisory Committee shall serve a term of one year. 
 

(g) Each Trustee shall serve as a member of the Board until such time as he or she: 
 

(1) Resigns, which for this purpose shall include a Trustee’s deemed resignation 
for failure to satisfy the attendance requirements for Board members as described 
Subsection (h) of this Section 7. 

(2) Is removed for cause, including but not limited to noncompliance with the 
Board Code of Conduct, by a majority of the Trustees then in office.  A Trustee may be 
removed for cause if he or she has been declared of unsound mind by a final order of 
court, has been convicted of a felony, or has been found by a final order or judgment of 
any court to have breached any duty under Article 3 of the California Corporations Code. 

(3) Is removed without cause by two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Trustees then in 
office, provided notice of any proposed action to remove a Trustee without cause is 
mailed certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, to each Trustee then in office 
at least twenty (20) days prior to the scheduled meeting at which the proposed removal 
is to be considered. 

(4) Completes his or her term in office or, if sooner, completes seven years in 
office as a Trustee in an eight-year period. 

 
(h) In the event a Trustee shall be absent from either three consecutive regularly-

scheduled Board meetings or from three consecutive committee meetings or shall be absent 
from five regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from five committee meetings during any 
twelve month period, then the Trustee shall, without any notice or further action required of 
the Board, be automatically deemed to have resigned from the Board effective immediately.  

Formatted: Font: Garamond, 14 pt

56

KVisokey
Highlight



NLACRC Bylaws     Page 26 
Adopted Marchy __11, 20242 

 
 

43397714.1 

 

merit confidence, so long as, in any case, the Trustee acts in good faith, after reasonable 
inquiry when the need therefore is indicated by the circumstances and without knowledge 
that would cause that reliance to be unwarranted. 

 
(c) Freedom From Liability – Except as provided in Corporations Code section 5233, 

relating to self-dealing transactions, a person who performs the duties of Trustee, should not 
No Trustee shall be held personally liable for the debts, liabilities, or obligations of the Regional 
Center, nor shall they have any liability based upon any alleged failure to discharge their 
obligations as a Trustee. 
 
 ARTICLE V 
 
 OFFICERS 
 
Section 1.  Number and Title.  The officers of the Regional Center shall be members of the 
Board and shall consist of a President, First Vice President, Second Vice President, Treasurer, 
ARCA delegate and ARCA alternate, and Secretary, and such other officers as may be 
provided for by the Board by resolution.  The same person may not serve concurrently as 
more than one Officer named above. 
 
Section 2.  Election.  The officers of the Regional Center shall be elected by the Board at the 
regularly scheduled June meeting of the Board.  A slate of nominees shall be submitted by the 
Nominating Committee prior to the Board’s regularly scheduled June meeting.  A Trustee can 
only be nominated for one office.  Nominations may be made from the floor at the meeting in 
which the election is held or at any time prior to the election for that office.  In the event that 
there is more than one (1) nominee for an office or should any Board member request it, the 
vote shall be by secret ballot.  The candidate receiving the highest number of votes shall be 
elected to the office provided that he or she has received a majority vote in favor of election.  
In the event that no candidate receives a majority vote in favor of election, there shall be a 
runoff between the two (2) highest candidates.  Election shall be by individual office, in the 
order the offices are identified in these Bylaws. 
 
Section 3.  Term of Office.  Officers shall serve for a term of one (1) year commencing on 
July 1 and ending on June 30 of the following calendar year or, if later, on the date his or her 
successor is elected.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, an officer may be removed by the vote of 
two-thirds (2/3) of the total membership of the Board.  Notice of a proposed removal action 
shall be mailed to the full Board prior to the general meeting at which such vote would be taken.  
With the exception of the President, who may serve no more than two (2) consecutive terms 
of office, Tthere is no limitation to the number of terms that may be served. 

Formatted: Font: Garamond, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Garamond, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Garamond, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Garamond, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Garamond, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Garamond, 14 pt

57

KVisokey
Highlight



 
 
 
 
 
 

Supporting people with developmental disabilities in the San Fernando, Santa Clarita, and Antelope Valleys since 1974. 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
      Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311   | www.nlacrc.org 

 
 
 
 

Administrative Affairs Committee 
Meetings Schedule 

 
FY 2023-24 

 
 

Thursday, July 27, 2023 
6:15 p.m. 

 
 No meeting in August 2023  
 

Thursday, September 28, 2023 
6:00 p.m. 

 
No meeting in October 2023 

 
Thursday, November 30, 2023 - Cancelled 

6:00 p.m. 
 

No meeting in December 2023 and January 2024 
 

Tuesday, January 23, 2024 
6:00 p.m. 

 
ThursdayTuesday, February 2927, 2024 

6:00 p.m. 
 

No meeting in March 2024 
 

ThursdayTuesday, April 2523, 2024 

58

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 
 
 
 
 
 

Supporting people with developmental disabilities in the San Fernando, Santa Clarita, and Antelope Valleys since 1974. 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
      Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311   | www.nlacrc.org 

 

6:1500 p.m. 
 

No meeting in May & June 2024 

59

http://www.nlacrc.org/


NLACRC  
Administrative Affairs Committee 

  CRITICAL CALENDAR  
FY 2023-24 

Month Activity 

July AA Orientation for new committee.   
AA      Review policies & procedures, board audit section, action log for 

previous fiscal year, and meeting schedule. 
C         Review center’s contract with DDS. 
C Are there any changes to the center’s contract that require committee 

attention or change in Board Policy? 
C Has the center’s contract been signed? 
F Review approved critical calendar for new fiscal year. 
F         Status report on new credit line and cash flow. 
HR Review 4th quarter human resources report. 
HR      Review any Board Member Conflict of Interest 
L         Quarterly legal update (Executive session). 
F Review POS Late Bill Report  
F Review Detailed Financial Reports  

August  (The committee does not meet in August) 

September  HR   Review 1st quarter human resources report. 
I           Recommend to the Board to authorize an officer to secure workers 
             compensation insurance for next calendar year. 
I  Review Center’s insurance coverage for the new fiscal year. 
PRMT  Review 4th quarter fees report on U.S. Bank transactions. 
UAL     Review 4th quarter fees report on U.S. Bank & Highmark Capital 

transactions. 
F           Update on independent audit 
HR    Ensure personnel policies in compliance with DDS contract. 

October  (The committee does not meet in October) 

November  PRMT   Review 1st quarter fees report on U.S. Bank transactions. 
UAL      Review 1st quarter fees report on U.S. Bank & Highmark Capital 

transactions. 
AA        Contract Process Training (Operations & Purchase of Services) 
C           Status report on lease agreements. 
F           Update on independent audit 
L           Quarterly legal update (Executive session). 

December  (The committee does not meet in December) 

60



NLACRC  
Administrative Affairs Committee 

  CRITICAL CALENDAR  
FY 2023-24 

Month Activity 

January (The committee does not meet in January) 

February F          Review annual CPA audited financial statement. 
F  Review management letter, if any. 
F  Review management response to letter, as needed. 
F    Review auditor’s response to management response letter, as needed. 
PRMT   Review 2nd quarter fees report on U.S. Bank transactions. 
UAL      Review 2nd quarter fees report on U.S. Bank & Highmark Capital 

transactions. 
F  Review Purchase of Services (“POS”) projection of surplus/deficit. 
HR    Review 2nd quarter human resources report. 
L           Quarterly legal update (Executive session). 
F Review Detailed Financial Reports 
F Review ARCA PEP Statewide Report 
I            Review Insurance for Upcoming Fiscal Year 

March  L           CPA presentation on IRS Form 990 tax return. (The committee does 
not meet in March) 

April  AA         Review and approve draft critical calendar for upcoming fiscal year  
F    Establish credit line for upcoming fiscal year - yes/no? 
F  Review and make recommendation to Board regarding ARCA dues for       

upcoming fiscal year 
L           Quarterly legal update (Executive session)  
HR    Review 3rd quarter human resources report. 
I            Recommend to the Board to authorize an officer to secure insurance in         
              June for next fiscal year. 

PRMT    Review 3rd quarter fees report on U.S. Bank transactions 
UAL       Review 3rd quarter fees report on U.S. Bank & Highmark Capital 

transactions. 
F           Status report on current credit line and cash flow 
F           Establish credit line for the budget year for upcoming fiscal year 
AA        Operational contracts deadline in April 
L           CPA presentation on IRS Form 990 tax return. 

May (The committee does not meet in May) 

June  (The committee does not meet in June) 

Monthly or as F Review budget allocation from DDS 
61



NLACRC  
Administrative Affairs Committee 

  CRITICAL CALENDAR  
FY 2023-24 

Month Activity 

needed F Review budget amendments              
AA       Committee trainings 
F          Review statewide regional center POS Report                    
F          Review contracts 
F          Review Audit Report(s) conducted by various entities of the Center 
L          Update on pending litigation 
HR       Report on union-related issues 

LEGEND 
 AA:        Administrative Affairs                       HR:  Human Resources          L:   Legal 
 C:           Contract                                            I:      Insurance                       F:   Fiscal  
 PRMT:   Post-Retirement Medical Trust          UAL:  CalPERS Unfunded Accrued Liability Trust                                                                                         

 

[ccal.2023_24] Approved: June 14, 2023 

62



NLACRC – VENDOR CONTRACT REQUEST – EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Other Vendorizations with Vendor’s Tax Identification Number (TIN):  

Vendor #  Service Code  Service Code Description 

Vendor Name:  
Vendor Number: 
Service Code:  

Virtue Home Care DBA Clarendon at Home 
Inc. HL1084
862 

Service Code Description:  In Home Respite 
Service Address:  6724 Gaviota Ave, 

Van Nuys CA 91406 

Service Description: Virtue Home Care is an in home respite agency that will provide non‐medical respite to 
families of NLACRC consumers so that caregivers can receive a rest from the additional strain of caring for a family 
member with an intellectual or developmental disability  

Staffing: Respite is provided on a 1:1 basis, (or  sibling rate 1:2 and 1:3) who is supported by NLACRC. They can 
offer respite services in English, Spanish, Tagalog and Indonesian.   

n/a

63



 

HL1084-862 Page 1 of 3 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

No. Description Contract Summary 

1. 
Contract Overview: 

(New or Amendment) (POS or 

OPS) 

New 

Purchase of Services (POS) 

2. 
The Name of Vendor or Service 

Provider 

Virtue Home Care dba Clarendon at Home 

Vendor Number: HL1084, Service Code: 862 

3. The Purpose of the Contract 

Service Provider provides In-Home Respite 

Services Agency services pursuant to statute and 

Title 17 regulations, Sections 56702 through 

56734 and Sections 56776 through 56802. 

Pursuant to WIC, Section 4418.6, respite care is 

a service offered for individuals with 

developmental disabilities. Respite care means 

temporary and intermittent care provided for 

short periods of time. The rate of reimbursement 

for respite care services is established by the 

Department of Developmental Services 

(“DDS”). However, NLACRC calculates a rate 

that is less than the DDS set rate for those 

situations when more than one consumer 

(“siblings”) is being provided respite at the same 

time. 

4. The Contract Term 
Five (5) year contract effective April 1, 2024 

through March 31, 2029. 

5. The Total Amount of the Contract 

Projected annual cost is $464,912.27 per year, 

or $2,324,561.35 over the entire five (5) year 

term of the contract based on average 

utilization of similar vendorizations – the 

service code 862 new vendors vendored in the 

last five years. 

6. 
The Total Proposed Number of 

Consumers Served 

Projected 40 consumers per month. 

7. 
The Rate of Payment or Payment 

Amount 

Payment will be reimbursed to service provider 

based on 1) the actual services authorized; 2) 

the actual services provided; and 3) the 

authorized DDS-set rate, $30.11 hourly rate.  

8. 
Method or Process Utilized to 

Award the Contract. 

Based on vendorization requirements under 

statute and regulation for In-Home Respite 

Services Agency services. 

64

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

 

HL1084-862 Page 2 of 3 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org

9. 
Method or Process Utilized to 

Establish the Rate or the Payment 

Amount 

Rate for 1:1 ratio is established by DDS. 

Projected rate, pending DDS approval. 

Anticipated to be $30.11 per hour. 

The hourly rate per consumer for sibling rates 

is calculated according to the following 

formula: 

• For 2 siblings: rate x 1.25 / 2 consumers

• For 3 siblings: rate x 1.50 / 3 consumers

10. 
Exceptional Conditions or Terms: Yes/No 

If Yes, provide explanation 
None 

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Administrative Affairs 

Committee reviewed and discussed the above Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement 

(“Contract”) and is recommending an action of the Board of Trustees to Approve the Contract. 

February 29, 2024 

Brian Gatus, Board Treasurer Date 

65

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

 

HL1084-862 Page 3 of 3 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Board of Trustees reviewed 

and discussed the Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement (“Agreement”, or “Contract”) for 

Virtue Home Care dba Clarendon at Home and passed the following resolution: 

RESOLVED THAT in compliance with NLACRC’s Board of Trustees Contract Policy, 

the Contract between NLACRC and Virtue Home Care dba Clarendon at Home was 

reviewed and approved by NLACRC’s Board of Trustees on March 13, 2024. 

NLACRC’s Board of Trustees hereby authorizes and designates any officer of NLACRC 

to finalize, execute and deliver the Contract on behalf of NLACRC, in such form as 

NLACRC’s legal counsel may advise, and on such further terms and conditions as such Officer 

may approve. The final terms of the Contract shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution 

of the Contract by such Officer. For purposes of this authorization, an “Officer” means 

NLACRC’s Interim Executive Director, Deputy Director, Chief Financial Officer, or Chief 

Information Officer, and no one else. 

Certification by Secretary:  I certify that: (1) I am the Secretary of the NLACRC; (2) the 

foregoing Resolution is a complete and accurate copy of the Resolution duly adopted by 

NLACRC’s Board of Trustees; (3) the Resolution is in full force and has not been revoked or 

changed in any way. 

March 13, 2024 

Lillian Martinez, Board Secretary Date 

66

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

NLACRC – VENDOR CONTRACT REQUEST – EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
Other Vendorizations with Vendor’s Tax Identification Number (TIN):  
 

Vendor # Service Code Service Code Description 

n/a   

 

Vendor Name: Rockin’ Oldies II Corporation dba Home Instead Senior Care 
Vendor Number: PL2181 
Service Code: 062 
Service Code Description: Personal Assistance   
Service Address: 5950 Canoga Ave Suite #210, Woodland Hills, CA 91367 
Service Area: San Fernando Valley 

  
Service Description: Personal Assistance provides support to individuals of all ages who have 
been diagnosed with a developmental disability and need intermittent or regularly scheduled 
temporary non‐medical care and supervision provided in the consumer's own home. 
 
Services will be provided to clients over the age of 18. 
 
Services are available in English, Spanish, and Tagalog 
 

Staffing: 1:1, 1:2, 1:3  
 

Median Rate: Statewide median rate is $26.42/hour for 1:1 personal assistance 
 
Employment: 
 

Exceptional Conditions: n/a 

67



  

  

PL2181-062  Page 1 of 3 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

  

Contract Summary and Board Resolution  
No. Description Contract Summary 

1.  Contract Overview: 
(New or Amendment) (POS or OPS) 

New Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement, 
Purchase of Services (POS) 

2.  The Name of Vendor or Service 
Provider 

ROCKIN’ OLDIES II CORPORATION DBA 
HOME INSTEAD SENIOR CARE 
Vendor Number: PL2181 Service Code: 062 

3.  The Purpose of the Contract 

Contractor will provide Personal Assistance 
services pursuant to Title 17, Section 54356 and 
the DDS published guidelines regarding 
Miscellaneous Services revised 05/10/2010. The 
service provider will provide personal assistance 
and support. 
 

4.  The Contract Term Five (5) year contract effective June 1, 2023 
through May 31, 2028. 

5.  The Total Amount of the Contract 

Projected annual value of the contract is 
$166,302.72 based on a cost statement. The 
projected total value of the contract over the 5 
year term is $831,513.60 based on projected 
utilization of 49 hours per consumer per month. 
 

6.  The Total Proposed Number of 
Consumers Served 

Projected 9 consumers per month. 

7.  The Rate of Payment or Payment 
Amount 

Payment will be reimbursed to service provider 
based on 1) the actual services authorized; 2) the 
actual services provided; and 3) the authorized 
Usual & Customary (U&C) rate of up to $32.08 
per hour, per consumer. 

8.  Method or Process Utilized to 
Award the Contract. 

Based on vendorization requirements under 
statute and regulation for Personal Assistance 
services. 

9.  
Method or Process Utilized to 
Establish the Rate or the Payment 
Amount 

Pursuant to 17 CCR, Section 57210(a)(19), the 
phrase “usual and customary rate” (“U&C 
Rate”) means the rate which is regularly charged 
to the general public by a vendor for a service 
that is used by both regional center consumers 
and/or their families and where at least 30% of 
the recipients of the given service are not 
regional center consumers or their families. 

10.  Exceptional Conditions or Terms: Yes/No 
If Yes, provide explanation 

None 

 

68

http://www.nlacrc.org/


  

  

PL2181-062  Page 2 of 3 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

  
 
 
The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Administrative Affairs 
Committee reviewed and discussed the above Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement 
(“Contract”) and is recommending an action of the Board of Trustees to Approve the Contract. 
 
   

February 29, 2024 
  Brian Gatus, Board Treasurer  Date 

69

http://www.nlacrc.org/


  

  

PL2181-062  Page 3 of 3 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

  

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Board of Trustees reviewed 
and discussed the Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement (“Agreement”, or “Contract”) for 
Rockin’ Oldies II Corporation dba Home Instead Senior Care and passed the following 
resolution: 
 
RESOLVED THAT in compliance with NLACRC’s Board of Trustees Contract Policy, the 
Contract between NLACRC and Rockin’ Oldies II Corporation dba Home Instead Senior 
Care. was reviewed and approved by NLACRC’s Board of Trustees on March 13, 2024. 
 
NLACRC’s Board of Trustees hereby authorizes and designates any officer of NLACRC to 
finalize, execute and deliver the Contract on behalf of NLACRC, in such form as NLACRC’s 
legal counsel may advise, and on such further terms and conditions as such Officer may approve. 
The final terms of the Contract shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Contract 
by such Officer. For purposes of this authorization, an “Officer” means NLACRC’s Interim 
Executive Director, Deputy Director, Chief Financial Officer, and Chief Information Officer, and 
no one else. 

 
Certification by Secretary:  I certify that: (1) I am the Secretary of the NLACRC; (2) the 
foregoing Resolution is a complete and accurate copy of the Resolution duly adopted by 
NLACRC’s Board of Trustees; (3) the Resolution is in full force and has not been revoked or 
changed in any way. 
 
 

  March 13, 2024 
Lillian Martinez, Board Secretary  Date 

 

70

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

   

 

 

PL2228-612  Page 1 of 3 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

No. Description Contract Summary 

1.  Contract Overview: 
(New or Amendment) (POS or OPS) 

New  Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement 
Purchase of Services (POS) 

2.  The Name of Vendor or Service 
Provider 

DV Therapy Inc. 
Vendor Number: PL2228,  
Service Code: 612 

3.  The Purpose of the Contract 

The service provider will provide Behavior 
Analyst services pursuant to Title 17, Section 
54342 . The service provider will assesses the 
function of a behavior of a consumer and 
designs, implements, and evaluates instructional 
and environmental modifications to produce 
socially significant improvements in the 
consumer's behavior through skill acquisition 
and the reduction of behavior. 

4.  The Contract Term Five (5) year contract effective April 01, 2024 
through March 31, 2029. 

5.  The Total Amount of the Contract 

Projected annual cost is $263,688.00 per year, or 
$1,318,440.00 over the entire five (5) year term 
of the contract based on the cost statement. 
 

6.  The Total Proposed Number of 
Consumers Served 

Projected 50 consumers per month. 

7.  The Rate of Payment or Payment 
Amount 

Payment will be reimbursed to service provider 
based on 1) the actual services authorized; 2) the 
actual services provided; and 3) the authorized 
$109.87 hourly rate.  

8.  Method or Process Utilized to 
Award the Contract. 

Based on vendorization requirements under 
statute and regulation for Behavior Analyst 
services. 

9.  
Method or Process Utilized to 
Establish the Rate or the Payment 
Amount 

Negotiated hourly rate of $109.87 is based on a 
cost statement. The rate negotiated complies with 
WIC, Section 4691.9 (b) which states that 
effective July 1, 2008 “no Regional Center may 
negotiate a rate with a new service provider, for 
services where rates are determined through a 
negotiation between the Regional Center and the 
provider, that is higher than the Regional 
Center’s median rate for the same service code 
and unit of service, or the statewide median rate 

71

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

 

 

PL2228-612  Page 2 of 3 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

for the same service code and unit of service, 
whichever is lower.” The provider’s stated cost 
is $110.18. However, the provider has agreed to 
accept the statewide median rate of $109.87, 
which is lower than NLACRC median rate of 
$115.92 per hour. 

10.  Exceptional Conditions or Terms: Yes/No 
If Yes, provide explanation 

None 
 
 

 
The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Administrative Affairs 
Committee reviewed and discussed the above Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement 
(“Contract”) and is recommending an action of the Board of Trustees to Approve the Contract. 
 
   

February 29, 2024 
Brian Gatus, Board Treasurer  Date 

 

72

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

 

 

PL2228-612  Page 3 of 3 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Board of Trustees reviewed 
and discussed the Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement (“Agreement”, or “Contract”) for 
DV Therapy Inc. and passed the following resolution: 
 
RESOLVED THAT in compliance with NLACRC’s Board of Trustees Contract Policy, the 
Contract between NLACRC and DV Therapy Inc.  was reviewed and approved by NLACRC’s 
Board of Trustees on March 13, 2024. 
 
NLACRC’s Board of Trustees hereby authorizes and designates any officer of NLACRC to 
finalize, execute and deliver the Contract on behalf of NLACRC, in such form as NLACRC’s 
legal counsel may advise, and on such further terms and conditions as such Officer may approve. 
The final terms of the Contract shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Contract 
by such Officer. For purposes of this authorization, an “Officer” means NLACRC’s interim 
Executive Director, Deputy Director, Chief Financial Officer, or Chief Information Officer, and 
no one else. 

 
Certification by Secretary:  I certify that: (1) I am the Secretary of the NLACRC; (2) the 
foregoing Resolution is a complete and accurate copy of the Resolution duly adopted by 
NLACRC’s Board of Trustees; (3) the Resolution is in full force and has not been revoked or 
changed in any way. 
 
 

  March 13, 2024 
Lillian Martinez, Board Secretary  Date 

 

73

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 
Vendor Name: DV Therapy Inc. 
 
Vendor #:PL2228 Svc Code: 612- Behavior Analyst Date: 2/22/24 

 

NLACRC – VENDOR CONTRACT REQUEST – EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
Other Vendorizations with Vendor’s Tax Identification Number (TIN): 
 

Vendor # 
Service 
Code 

Description 

HL1017 805 Infant Development Program 

HL1008 805 Infant Development Program 

HL1009 805 Infant Development Program 

HL1010 805 Infant Development Program 

PL2108 102 Individual and Family Training 

PL1762 707 Speech Pathology 

PL2229 615 Behavior Management Asst (Pending) 

PL2230 616 Behavior Management Technician (Pending) 

 

 
Service Address: 190 Sierra Ct. #806. Palmdale Ca., 93550  
 
Service Description: Behavior Analyst means an individual who assesses the function of a 
behavior of a consumer and designs, implements, and evaluates instructional and 
environmental modifications to produce socially significant improvements in the consumer's 
behavior through skill acquisition and the reduction of behavior. Behavior Analysts engage in 
functional assessments or functional analyses to identify environmental factors of which 
behavior is a function. A Behavior Analyst shall not practice psychology, as defined in Business 
and Professions Code section 2903. A regional center shall classify a vendor as a Behavior 
Analyst if an individual is recognized by the national Behavior Analyst Certification Board as a 
Board Certified Behavior Analyst. 
 

Service Area: Antelope Valley 
 
Staffing: 1:1 
 
 
 

74



 
Vendor Name: DV Therapy Inc. 
 
Vendor #:PL2229 Svc Code: 615- Behavior Management Assistant Date: 2/21/24 

NLACRC – VENDOR CONTRACT REQUEST – EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
Other Vendorizations with Vendor’s Tax Identification Number (TIN): 
 

Vendor # 
Service 
Code 

Description 

HL1017 805 Infant Development Program 

HL1008 805 Infant Development Program 

HL1009 805 Infant Development Program 

HL1010 805 Infant Development Program 

PL2108 102 Individual and Family Training 

PL1762 707 Speech Pathology 

PL2229 612 Behavior Analyst (Pending) 

PL2230 616 Behavior Management Technician (Pending) 

 

 
Service Address: 190 Sierra Ct. #806. Palmdale Ca., 93550  
 
Service Description: A regional center shall classify a vendor as a behavior management 
assistant if the vendor designs and/or implements behavior modification intervention services 
under the direct supervision of a behavior management consultant; or if the vendor assesses the 
function of a behavior of a consumer and designs, implements, and evaluates instructional and 
environmental modifications to produce socially significant improvements in the consumer's 
behavior through skill acquisition and the reduction of behavior, under direct supervision of a 
Behavior Analyst or Behavior Management Consultant, and meets either of the following 
requirements: (A) Possesses a Bachelor of Arts or Science Degree and has either: 1. Twelve 
semester units in applied behavior analysis and one year of experience in designing and/or 
implementing behavior modification intervention services; or 2. Two years of experience in 
designing and/or implementing behavior modification intervention services. (B) Is registered as 
either: 1. A psychological assistant of a psychologist by the Medical Board of California or 
Psychology Examining Board; or 2. An Associate Licensed Clinical Social Worker pursuant to 
Business and Professions Code, Section 4996.18. 

 
 
Service Area: Antelope Valley 
 
Staffing: 1:1 
 
 
 

75



 

   

 

 

PL2229-615  Page 1 of 3 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

No. Description Contract Summary 

1.  Contract Overview: 
(New or Amendment) (POS or OPS) 

New Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement 
Purchase of Services (POS) 

2.  The Name of Vendor or Service 
Provider 

DV Therapy Inc. 
Vendor Number: PL2229,  
Service Code: 615 

3.  The Purpose of the Contract 

The service provider will provide Behavior 
Management Assistant services pursuant to Title 
17, Section 54342 . The service provider will 
assess the function of a behavior  of a consumer 
and will design, implement, and evaluate 
instructional and environmental modifications to 
produce socially significant improvements in the 
consumer's behavior through skill acquisition 
and the reduction of behavior, under direct 
supervision of a Behavior Analyst or Behavior 
Management Consultant, 

4.  The Contract Term Five (5) year contract effective April 01, 2024 
through March 31, 2029. 

5.  The Total Amount of the Contract 

Projected annual cost is $944,760.96 per year, or 
$4,723,804.80 over the entire five (5) year term 
of the contract based on the cost statement. 
 

6.  The Total Proposed Number of 
Consumers Served 

Projected 37 consumers per month. 

7.  The Rate of Payment or Payment 
Amount 

Payment will be reimbursed to service provider 
based on 1) the actual services authorized; 2) the 
actual services provided; and 3) the authorized 
$64.48 hourly rate.  

8.  Method or Process Utilized to 
Award the Contract. 

Based on vendorization requirements under 
statute and regulation for Behavior Management 
Assistant services. 

9.  
Method or Process Utilized to 
Establish the Rate or the Payment 
Amount 

Negotiated hourly rate of $64.48 is based on a 
cost statement. The rate negotiated complies with 
WIC, Section 4691.9 (b) which states that 
effective July 1, 2008 “no Regional Center may 
negotiate a rate with a new service provider, for 
services where rates are determined through a 
negotiation between the Regional Center and the 
provider, that is higher than the Regional 

76

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

 

 

PL2229-615  Page 2 of 3 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

Center’s median rate for the same service code 
and unit of service, or the statewide median rate 
for the same service code and unit of service, 
whichever is lower.” The provider’s stated cost 
is $64.89 per hour. However, the provider has 
agreed to accept the statewide median rate of 
$64.48, which is lower than NLACRC median 
rate of $65.76 per hour. 

10.  Exceptional Conditions or Terms: Yes/No 
If Yes, provide explanation 

None 
 
 

 
The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Administrative Affairs 
Committee reviewed and discussed the above Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement 
(“Contract”) and is recommending an action of the Board of Trustees to Approve the Contract. 
 
   

February 29, 2024 
Brian Gatus, Board Treasurer  Date 

 

77

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

 

 

PL2229-615  Page 3 of 3 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Board of Trustees reviewed 
and discussed the Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement (“Agreement”, or “Contract”) for 
DV Therapy Inc. and passed the following resolution: 
 
RESOLVED THAT in compliance with NLACRC’s Board of Trustees Contract Policy, the 
Contract between NLACRC and DV Therapy Inc.  was reviewed and approved by NLACRC’s 
Board of Trustees on March 13, 2024. 
 
NLACRC’s Board of Trustees hereby authorizes and designates any officer of NLACRC to 
finalize, execute and deliver the Contract on behalf of NLACRC, in such form as NLACRC’s 
legal counsel may advise, and on such further terms and conditions as such Officer may approve. 
The final terms of the Contract shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Contract 
by such Officer. For purposes of this authorization, an “Officer” means NLACRC’s Executive 
Director, Deputy Director, Chief Financial Officer, or Chief Information Officer, and no one 
else. 

 
Certification by Secretary:  I certify that: (1) I am the Secretary of the NLACRC; (2) the 
foregoing Resolution is a complete and accurate copy of the Resolution duly adopted by 
NLACRC’s Board of Trustees; (3) the Resolution is in full force and has not been revoked or 
changed in any way. 
 
 

  March 13, 2024 
Lillian Martinez, Board Secretary  Date 

 

78

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 
Vendor Name: DV Therapy Inc. 
 
Vendor #:PL2230 Svc Code: 616- Behavior Management Technician Date: 2/22/24 

NLACRC – VENDOR CONTRACT REQUEST – EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
Other Vendorizations with Vendor’s Tax Identification Number (TIN): 
 

Vendor # 
Service 
Code 

Description 

HL1017 805 Infant Development Program 

HL1008 805 Infant Development Program 

HL1009 805 Infant Development Program 

HL1010 805 Infant Development Program 

PL2108 102 Individual and Family Training 

PL1762 707 Speech Pathology 

PL2229 615 Behavior Management Asst (Pending) 

PL2228 612 Behavior Analyst (Pending) 

 
Service Address: 190 Sierra Ct. #806. Palmdale Ca., 93550  
 
Service Description: Behavior Management Technician (Paraprofessional) -- Service 
Code 616. A regional center may vendor a group practice, vendored pursuant to Section 
54319(d), for the above service. The Behavior Management Technician (Paraprofessional) 
shall practice under the direct supervision of a certified Behavior Analyst or a Behavior 
Management Consultant who is within the same vendored group practice. The Behavior 
Management Technician (Paraprofessional) implements instructional and environmental 
modifications to produce socially significant improvements in the consumer's behavior 
through skill acquisition and the reduction of behavior. The Behavior Management 
Technician (Paraprofessional) shall meet the following requirements: 

(1) Has a High School Diploma or the equivalent, has completed 30 hours of 
competency-based training designed by a certified behavior analyst, and has six 
months experience working with persons with developmental disabilities; or 
(2) Possesses an Associate's Degree in either a human, social, or educational 
services discipline, or a degree or certification related to behavior management, 
from an accredited community college or educational institution, and has six 
months experience working with persons with developmental disabilities. 

 
 
Service Area: Antelope Valley 
 
Staffing: 1:1 
 
 
 

79



 

   

 

 

PL2230-616  Page 1 of 4 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

No. Description Contract Summary 

1.  Contract Overview: 
(New or Amendment) (POS or OPS) 

New Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement 
Purchase of Services (POS) 

2.  The Name of Vendor or Service 
Provider 

DV Therapy Inc. 
Vendor Number: PL2230,  
Service Code: 616 

3.  The Purpose of the Contract 

The service provider will provide Behavior 
Management Technician (Paraprofessional) 
services pursuant to Title 17, Section 54342. The 
Behavior Management Technician 
(Paraprofessional) implements instructional and 
environmental modifications to produce socially 
significant improvements in the consumer's 
behavior through skill acquisition and the 
reduction of behavior. Service provider shall 
only utilize staff to provide direct, face-to-face, 
services. 
 
The Behavior Management Technician 
(Paraprofessional) shall practice under the direct 
supervision of a certified Behavior Analyst or a 
Behavior Management Consultant who is within 
the same vendored group practice and meets 
either of the following requirements 

1. Has a High School Diploma or the 
equivalent, has completed 30 hours of 
competency-based training designed by a 
certified behavior analyst, and has six 
months experience working with persons 
with developmental disabilities; or 

 
2. Possesses an Associate's Degree in either 

a human, social, or educational services 
discipline, or a degree or certification 
related to behavior management, from an 
accredited community college or 
educational institution, and has six 
months experience working with persons 
with developmental disabilities. 

 

80

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

 

 

PL2230-616  Page 2 of 4 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

4.  The Contract Term Five (5) year contract effective April 01, 2024 
through March 31, 2029. 

5.  The Total Amount of the Contract 

Projected annual cost is $1,073,592.00 per year, 
or $5,367,960.00 over the entire five (5) year 
term of the contract based on the cost statement. 
 

6.  The Total Proposed Number of 
Consumers Served 

Projected 37 consumers per month. 

7.  The Rate of Payment or Payment 
Amount 

Payment will be reimbursed to service provider 
based on 1) the actual services authorized; 2) the 
actual services provided; and 3) the authorized 
$48.36 hourly rate.  

8.  Method or Process Utilized to 
Award the Contract. 

Based on vendorization requirements under 
statute and regulation for Behavior Management 
Technician (Paraprofessional) services. 

9.  
Method or Process Utilized to 
Establish the Rate or the Payment 
Amount 

Negotiated hourly rate of $48.36 is based on a 
cost statement. The rate negotiated complies with 
WIC, Section 4691.9 (b) which states that 
effective July 1, 2008 “no Regional Center may 
negotiate a rate with a new service provider, for 
services where rates are determined through a 
negotiation between the Regional Center and the 
provider, that is higher than the Regional 
Center’s median rate for the same service code 
and unit of service, or the statewide median rate 
for the same service code and unit of service, 
whichever is lower.” The provider’s stated cost 
of $48.36 per hour is the same as statewide and 
NLACRC median rates of $48.36 per hour. 
 
Per 17 CCR, Section 57332(12), rate of payment 
for service code 616 is calculated as no more 
than 75 percent of the regional center's median 
hourly rate for Behavior Management Assistant--
Service Code 615, or the statewide median rate 
for Behavior Management Assistant--Service 
Code 615, whichever is lower. The service  code 
615 statewide median  rate is currently $64.48 
per hour and the NLACRC median rate is 
$65.76. Therefore, the service code 616 
statewide median rate is $48.36 and the 
NLACRC median rate is $49.32. 

 

81

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

 

 

PL2230-616  Page 3 of 4 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

10.  Exceptional Conditions or Terms: Yes/No 
If Yes, provide explanation 

None 
 
 

 
The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Administrative Affairs 
Committee reviewed and discussed the above Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement 
(“Contract”) and is recommending an action of the Board of Trustees to Approve the Contract. 
 
   

February 29, 2024 
Brian Gatus, Board Treasurer  Date 

 

82

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

 

 

PL2230-616  Page 4 of 4 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Board of Trustees reviewed 
and discussed the Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement (“Agreement”, or “Contract”) for 
DV Therapy Inc. and passed the following resolution: 
 
RESOLVED THAT in compliance with NLACRC’s Board of Trustees Contract Policy, the 
Contract between NLACRC and DV Therapy Inc.  was reviewed and approved by NLACRC’s 
Board of Trustees on March 13, 2024. 
 
NLACRC’s Board of Trustees hereby authorizes and designates any officer of NLACRC to 
finalize, execute and deliver the Contract on behalf of NLACRC, in such form as NLACRC’s 
legal counsel may advise, and on such further terms and conditions as such Officer may approve. 
The final terms of the Contract shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Contract 
by such Officer. For purposes of this authorization, an “Officer” means NLACRC’s Executive 
Director, Deputy Director, Chief Financial Officer, or Chief Information Officer, and no one 
else. 

 
Certification by Secretary:  I certify that: (1) I am the Secretary of the NLACRC; (2) the 
foregoing Resolution is a complete and accurate copy of the Resolution duly adopted by 
NLACRC’s Board of Trustees; (3) the Resolution is in full force and has not been revoked or 
changed in any way. 
 
 

  March 13, 2024 
Lillian Martinez, Board Secretary  Date 

 

83

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

NLACRC – VENDOR CONTRACT REQUEST – EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
Other Vendorizations with Vendor’s Tax Identification Number (TIN):  
 

Vendor # Service Code Service Code Description 

N/A   

 
Vendor Name:  Dr. Tumini Sekibo 
Vendor Number:  PL2262 
Service Code:  785 
Service Code 
Description: 

Clinical Psychologist 

Service Address: All services to be provided at the NLACRC offices – in Lancaster or  
Chatsworth 

 
Service Description:  
 
Clinical psychologist will conduct comprehensive psychological evaluations for English, Nigerian Pidgin 
and Igbo-speaking children and teenagers applying for regional center services.  
 
Service Area: San Fernando Valley, Antelope Valley 
 
Staffing: N/A 
 

84



 

PL2262-785  Page 1 of 3 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

 

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

No. Description Contract Summary 

1.  
Contract Overview: 

(New or Amendment) (POS or OPS) 

New, Professional Services Agreement 

Purchase of Services (POS) 
 

2.  
The Name of Vendor or Service 

Provider 

Dr. Tumini Sekibo 

Vendor Number: PL2262, Service Code: 785 
 

3.  The Purpose of the Contract 

The service provider is validly licensed as a 

psychologist by the California Board of 

Psychology; and provides diagnosis and 

psychotherapy of mental and emotional 

disorders; or provides individual and group 

testing and counseling in order to assist 

individuals achieve more effective personal, 

social, educational, and vocational development 

and adjustment. 
 

4.  The Contract Term 
Five (5) year contract effective April 1, 2024 

through March 31, 2029. 
 

5.  The Total Amount of the Contract 

Projected annual cost is $110,329.22 per year, or 

$551,646.11 over the entire five (5) year term of 

the contract based on FY2023 expenditure of 

similar Clinical Psychologist vendorizations. 
 

6.  
The Total Proposed Number of 

Consumers Served 

Projected 23 consumers per month based on 

FY2023 expenditure of similar Clinical 

Psychologist vendorizations. 
 

7.  
The Rate of Payment or Payment 

Amount 

Payment will be reimbursed to service provider 

based on 1) the actual services authorized; 2) the 

actual services provided; and 3) the authorized 

SMA rates:  
• Evaluation: (1st hour) $107.69/hour, each add'l hour (2 

hrs max.) $77.94/hr 

• Test Administration, Scoring: (1st 30 min) $41.88, 

(each add'l 30 min, 9 30 min max.) $39.01 

• Test Evaluation & Scoring for two or more tests (up to 

90 min): $149.57 

• Out of Office Call: $7.50/day 

• Developmental Test Administration: $170.31/90 min 

• Neuropsychological testing evaluation: $158.85/90 min 

o Each additional hour: $89.46/hour 
 

8.  
Method or Process Utilized to 

Award the Contract. 

Based on vendorization requirements under 

statute and regulation for Clinical Psychologist 

services. 
 

 

85

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

PL2262-785  Page 2 of 3 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

 

 

9.  

Method or Process Utilized to 

Establish the Rate or the Payment 

Amount 

The maximum rate of reimbursement shall be in 

accordance with the Schedule of Maximum 

Allowances (SMA), pursuant to 17 CCR, Section 

57332(b)(4). 
 

10.  
Exceptional Conditions or Terms: Yes/No 

If Yes, provide explanation 

NLACRC’s Clinical team has an average of 280 

psychological evaluations per month. Timely 

scheduling of new intake cases or assessment for 

a child nearing 3 years of age or 5 years of age 

when eligible under the Provisional Eligibility 

Program (PEP), is imperative to meet DDS-

mandated timelines and provide consumers the 

appropriate services that may be needed.  
 

 

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Administrative Affairs 

Committee reviewed and discussed the above Professional Services Agreement (“Contract”) 

and is recommending an action of the Board of Trustees to Approve the Contract. 

 

   

February 29, 2024 

Brian Gatus, Board Treasurer  Date 

 

 

86

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

PL2262-785  Page 3 of 3 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

 

 

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Board of Trustees reviewed 

and discussed the Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”, or “Contract”) for Dr. 

Tumini Sekibo and passed the following resolution: 

 

RESOLVED THAT in compliance with NLACRC’s Board of Trustees Contract Policy, the 

Contract between NLACRC and Dr. Tumini Sekibo was reviewed and approved by NLACRC’s 

Board of Trustees on March 13, 2024. 

 

NLACRC’s Board of Trustees hereby authorizes and designates any officer of NLACRC to 

finalize, execute and deliver the Contract on behalf of NLACRC, in such form as NLACRC’s 

legal counsel may advise, and on such further terms and conditions as such Officer may approve. 

The final terms of the Contract shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Contract 

by such Officer. For purposes of this authorization, an “Officer” means NLACRC’s Interim 

Executive Director, Deputy Director, Chief Financial Officer, or Chief Information Officer, and 

no one else. 

Certification by Secretary:  I certify that: (1) I am the Secretary of the NLACRC; (2) the 

foregoing Resolution is a complete and accurate copy of the Resolution duly adopted by 

NLACRC’s Board of Trustees; (3) the Resolution is in full force and has not been revoked or 

changed in any way. 

 

 

  March 13, 2024 

Lillian Martinez, Board Secretary  Date 

 

87

http://www.nlacrc.org/


NLACRC – VENDOR CONTRACT REQUEST – EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Other Vendorizations with Vendor’s Tax Identification Number (TIN): 

Vendor # Service Code Service Code Description 
HL1020 805 Infant Development Program

Vendor Name: Ride On LA 
Vendor Number: PL2263 
Service Code: 106 
Service Code Description: Specialized Recreational Therapy 
Service Address: 10860 Topanga Canyon Blvd, Chatsworth, CA 91311

Service Area: San Fernando Valley

Service Description: 

Ride On provides adaptive horseback riding lessons to children over the age of 5 and 
adults with cognitive and physical disabilities. Purpose is to learn the skills to ride a horse which is 
taught by a certified adaptive riding instructor certified through the Professional 
Association of Therapeutic Horsemanship International (PATH Intl.). Adaptive Riding 
lessons are taught as private, semi-private, or group lessons. The volunteer-to-rider ratio is based 
on the individual needs of each rider. Some riders may require a volunteer leading 
the horse as well as 1-2 side walkers, whereas some riders may not need any volunteer 
assistance.  

Staffing: 
     Individual ratio is 1:1
     Semi-private lesson is 1:2
     Group lesson is 1:5 

U&C Rate Comparisons:
      - Social Horse Adventures $65.00 per lesson
      - Ahead with Horse $47.50 per lesson
      - Paradise Valley Equine Therapy  $71 per lesson
      - Saddle Up Therapeutic Riding $40 per lesson

Median Rate: The statewide median rate for 1:1 specialized recreational therapy is $43.47/hour 
and the NLACRC median rate is $27.98/hour. The group statewide median rate is $72.75/hour and 
there is no NLACRC median rate for group.

88



PL2263-106  Page 1 of 3 

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

No. Description Contract Summary 

1.  
Contract Overview: 

(New or Amendment) (POS or OPS) 

New or Amendment, 

Purchase of Services (POS) 

2.  
The Name of Vendor or Service 

Provider 

Ride On LA 

Vendor Number: PL2263     Service Code: 106 

3.  The Purpose of the Contract 

The service provider will provide Specialized 

Recreational Therapy services pursuant to Title 

17, Section 54356 and the DDS published 

guidelines regarding Miscellaneous Services 

revised 05/10/2010. The service provider will 

provide Specialized Recreational Therapy 

services by providing therapy to consumers, as 

necessary for the consumer to achieve an IPP 

objective. Specialized Recreational Therapy is 

designed to maximize and strengthen family and 

consumer interaction and skills. 

 

The service provider is primarily engaged in 

providing adaptive horseback riding lessons to 

children over the age of 5 and adults. Lessons are 

offered either individual, semi-private or group. 

4.  The Contract Term 
Five (5) year contract effective 04/01/2024 

through 03/31/2029 

5.  The Total Amount of the Contract 

Projected annual cost is $31,200 per year, or 

$156,000 over the entire five (5) year term of the 

contract based on provider’s Usual & Customary 

rates and projected once a week lesson. 

 
• 1:1 ratio, 3 consumers: $180/week 

• 1:2 ratio, 2 consumers: $120/week 

• 1:5 ratio, 5 consumers: $300/week 

6.  
The Total Proposed Number of 

Consumers Served 
Projected 10 consumers per month. 

7.  
The Rate of Payment or Payment 

Amount 

Payment will be reimbursed to service provider 

based on 1) the actual services authorized; 2) the 

actual services provided; and 3) the authorized 

Usual & Customary rates. 

 
• Private lesson (1:1 ratio): $60/30 minute lesson 

• Semi-private lesson (1:2 ratio): $60/60 minute lesson 

• Group lesson (1:5 ratio): $60/60 minute lesson 

8.  
Method or Process Utilized to 

Award the Contract. 

Based on vendorization requirements under 

statute and regulation for Specialized 

Recreational Therapy services. 

89



 

PL2263-106  Page 2 of 3 

9.  

Method or Process Utilized to 

Establish the Rate or the Payment 

Amount 

Pursuant to 17 CCR, Section 57210(a)(19), the 

phrase “usual and customary rate” (“U&C 

Rate”) means the rate which is regularly charged 

to the general public by a vendor for a service 

that is used by both regional center consumers 

and/or their families and where at least 30% of 

the recipients of the given service are not 

regional center consumers or their families. 

10.  
Exceptional Conditions or Terms: Yes/No 

If Yes, provide explanation 
None 

 

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Administrative Affairs 

Committee reviewed and discussed the above Professional Services Agreement (“Contract”) 

and is recommending an action of the Board of Trustees to Approve the Contract. 

 

   

February 29, 2024 

Brian Gatus, Board Treasurer  Date 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

90



 

PL2263-106  Page 3 of 3 

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Board of Trustees reviewed 

and discussed the Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”, or “Contract”) for Ride On 

LA and passed the following resolution: 

 

RESOLVED THAT in compliance with NLACRC’s Board of Trustees Contract Policy, the 

Agreement between NLACRC and Ride On LA was reviewed and approved by NLACRC’s 

Board of Trustees on March 13, 2024. 

 

NLACRC’s Board of Trustees hereby authorizes and designates any officer of NLACRC to 

finalize, execute and deliver the Contract on behalf of NLACRC, in such form as NLACRC’s 

legal counsel may advise, and on such further terms and conditions as such Officer may approve. 

The final terms of the Contract shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Contract 

by such Officer. For purposes of this authorization, an “Officer” means NLACRC’s Interim 

Executive Director, Deputy Director, Chief Financial Officer, or Chief Information Officer, and 

no one else. 

 

Certification by Secretary:  I certify that: (1) I am the Secretary of the NLACRC; (2) the 

foregoing Resolution is a complete and accurate copy of the Resolution duly adopted by 

NLACRC’s Board of Trustees; (3) the Resolution is in full force and has not been revoked or 

changed in any way. 

 

 

  March 13, 2024 

Lillian Martinez, Board Secretary  Date 

 

91



 

NLACRC – VENDOR CONTRACT REQUEST – EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

Other Vendorizations with Vendor’s Tax Identification Number (TIN):  
 

Vendor # Service Code Service Code Description 
HL0999 915 Residential Facility Adults-Staff Operated 

 
Vendor Name: Phiba Home, INC 
Vendor Number: PL2254 
Service Code: 109 
Service Code Description: Supplemental Residential Program Support 
Service Address: 20112 Lanark Street, Canoga Park, CA 91306 
Service Area: San Fernando Valley 

  
Service Description: This vendor is approved to provide 1:1 staffing on a consumer specific basis. 
This vendorization is to be used in conjunction with the home with vendor# HL0999, level 3-staff 
operated 4 bed. 
  
Staffing:  
Direct Care Staff Qualifications are: 

• Have a minimum of six months of prior experience providing direct supervision and 
special services; or  

• Within six months of beginning to provide direct supervision and special services in the 
facility, complete at least 8 hours of continuing education per year. 

• Within the first 40 hours of providing consumer services in the facility, all new direct care 
staff shall complete an on-site orientation.  

• One year from the date on which the direct care staff was hired to satisfactorily complete 
the first 35-hour competency-based training course and pass the competency test 
applicable to that training segment, or to pass a challenge test applicable to that training 
segment; and 

• Two years from the date on which the direct care staff was hired to satisfactorily complete 
the second 35-hour competency-based training course and pass the competency test 
applicable to that training segment, or to pass a challenge test applicable to that training 
segment. 
 

• Direct care staff shall complete any additional training in a specific knowledge area(s) 
which has been identified as needing improvement in the written notification pursuant 
to Title 17 Section 56033.  
 

Staffing: n/a 
 

Employment Component: n/a 
 

Exceptional Conditions: Replaces PL0596 due to facility address change 
 

92



 

   

 

PL2254-109  Page 1 of 3 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

No. Description Contract Summary 

1.  
Contract Overview: 

(New or Amendment) (POS or OPS) 

New, Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement 

Purchase of Services (POS) 

2.  
The Name of Vendor or Service 

Provider 

Phiba Home, Inc. 

Vendor Number: PL2254,  

Service Code: 109 

3.  The Purpose of the Contract 

Contractor will provide Supplemental 

Residential Services Program Support services 

pursuant to Title 17, Section 54356 and the DDS 

published guidelines regarding Miscellaneous 

Services revised 05/10/2010. The service 

provider will provide, or obtain, time limited 

supplemental staffing in excess of the amount 

required by regulation. Supplemental Residential 

Program Support is designed to implement an 

objective in the consumer’s IPP and allows the 

consumer to remain in their current residential 

environment. Supplemental Residential Program 

Support services include, but are not limited to: 

assistance and training in skills for activities of 

daily living and in socially appropriate skills to 

replace (and serve the same function/purpose as) 

a challenging behavior. 

4.  The Contract Term 
Five (5) year contract effective April 01, 2024 

through March 31, 2029. 

5.  The Total Amount of the Contract 

Projected annual cost is $99,293.04 per year, or 

$496,465.20 over the entire five (5) year term of 

the contract based on the cost statement. 

 

6.  
The Total Proposed Number of 

Consumers Served 

Projected 2 consumers per month. 

7.  
The Rate of Payment or Payment 

Amount 

Payment will be reimbursed to service provider 

based on 1) the actual services authorized; 2) the 

actual services provided; and 3) the authorized 

$21.89 hourly rate.  

8.  
Method or Process Utilized to 

Award the Contract. 

Based on vendorization requirements under 

statute and regulation for Supplemental 

Residential Program Support services. 

9.  

Method or Process Utilized to 

Establish the Rate or the Payment 

Amount 

Negotiated hourly rate of $21.89 is based on a 

cost statement. The rate negotiated complies with 

WIC, Section 4691.9 (b) which states that 

effective July 1, 2008 “no Regional Center may 

93

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

 

 

PL2254-109  Page 2 of 3 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

negotiate a rate with a new service provider, for 

services where rates are determined through a 

negotiation between the Regional Center and the 

provider, that is higher than the Regional 

Center’s median rate for the same service code 

and unit of service, or the statewide median rate 

for the same service code and unit of service, 

whichever is lower.” The provider’s stated cost 

of $21.89 is the same as the statewide and  

NLACRC median rates of $21.89 per hour 

10.  
Exceptional Conditions or Terms: Yes/No 

If Yes, provide explanation 

Previous vendorization PL0596 vendored 

effective January 3, 2005. PL2254 replacing 

PL0596 due to facility address change. 

 

 

 

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Administrative Affairs 

Committee reviewed and discussed the above Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement 

(“Contract”) and is recommending an action of the Board of Trustees to Approve the Contract. 

 

   

February 29, 2024 

Brian Gatus, Board Treasurer  Date 

 

94

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

 

 

PL2254-109  Page 3 of 3 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Board of Trustees reviewed 

and discussed the Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement (“Agreement”, or “Contract”) for 

Phiba Home, Inc. and passed the following resolution: 

 

RESOLVED THAT in compliance with NLACRC’s Board of Trustees Contract Policy, the 

Contract between NLACRC and Phiba Home, Inc.  was reviewed and approved by NLACRC’s 

Board of Trustees on March 13, 2024. 

 

NLACRC’s Board of Trustees hereby authorizes and designates any officer of NLACRC to 

finalize, execute and deliver the Contract on behalf of NLACRC, in such form as NLACRC’s 

legal counsel may advise, and on such further terms and conditions as such Officer may approve. 

The final terms of the Contract shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Contract 

by such Officer. For purposes of this authorization, an “Officer” means NLACRC’s Executive 

Director, Deputy Director, Chief Financial Officer, or Chief Information Officer, and no one 

else. 

 

Certification by Secretary:  I certify that: (1) I am the Secretary of the NLACRC; (2) the 

foregoing Resolution is a complete and accurate copy of the Resolution duly adopted by 

NLACRC’s Board of Trustees; (3) the Resolution is in full force and has not been revoked or 

changed in any way. 

 

 

  March 13, 2024 

Lillian Martinez, Board Secretary  Date 

 

95

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

FY23 HDO 999 projects (3)  Page 1 of 6 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

 

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

No. Description Contract Summary 

1.  
Contract Overview: 

(New or Amendment) (POS or OPS) 

First Amendments to CPP Housing Agreement, 

Purchase of Services (POS) 

2.  
The Name of Vendor or Service 

Provider 

Brilliant Corners 
 

1. Project #: NLACRC-2223-2 (EBSH for Children) 

Vendor Number: PL2186, Service Code: 999 
 

2. Project #: NLACRC-2223-3 (EBSH for Adults) 

Vendor Number: PL2187, Service Code: 999 
 

3. Project #: NLACRC-2223-4 (EBSH for Adults) 

Vendor Number: PL2188, Service Code: 999 

 

3.  The Purpose of the Contract 

Three CPP Housing Agreements each in connection 

with the purchase and renovation of a property to suit 

the needs of four (4) individuals with developmental 

disabilities who require the services of an Enhanced 

Behavioral Supports Home (“EBSH”). 

 

One property will be developed as an Enhanced 

Behavioral Supports Home (EBSH) for children: 3 

ambulatory, 1 non-ambulatory. 

 

Second property will be developed as an Enhanced 

Behavioral Supports Home (EBSH) for adult males: 

2 ambulatory, 2 non-ambulatory. 

 

Third property will be developed as an Enhanced 

Behavioral Supports Home (EBSH) for adult males 

with delayed egress: 2 ambulatory, 2 non-

ambulatory. 

 

The purpose of each First Amendment is 1) to 

establish milestones for renovation funding, and 

2) for PL2188-999 only, per DDS approval, to 

increase the Maximum Funding Amount by 

$234,571. 

 

4.  The Contract Term 

Thirty (30) year contracts effective June 1, 2023 

through the earlier of (1) the date HDO is no longer 

owner of the Property or (2) May 31, 2053. 

 

The termination or expiration of the Agreement shall 

not affect the continued enforceability of the 

documents intended to survive its termination. 

 

96

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

FY23 HDO 999 projects (3) – 1st amendments  Page 2 of 6 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

 

 

5.  The Total Amount of the Contract 

1. PL2186: $350,000 Acquisition; $400,000 

Renovation  

2. PL2187: $350,000 Acquisition; $400,000 

Renovation 

3. PL2188: 

Original: $350,000 Acquisition; 

               $400,000 Renovation     

1st amendment: $379,597 Acquisition; 

                         $604,974 Renovation     

 

6.  
The Total Proposed Number of 

Consumers Served 

Each EBSH will have a capacity of 4 consumers 

7.  
The Rate of Payment or Payment 

Amount 

PL2186 and PL2187: Up to $750,000 per project. 

Property Acquisition:  Payment will be based 

on the actual cost of the property purchased 

and actual escrow fees up to either (1) a 

maximum contribution of 25% of the 

property purchase price and escrow fees; or 

(2) $350,000; whichever is less. 

Renovation: $400,000    

PL2188: Acquisition and Renovation: $984,571 

8.  
Method or Process Utilized to 

Award the Contract. 

Brilliant Corners was awarded funding through a 

Request for Proposal (“RFP”) process. 

Children’s EBSH RFP that was published by 

NLACRC on March 2, 2023 and closed on April 10, 

2023. Applicant was selected on May 3, 2023. 

Adult EBSH RFP that was published by NLACRC 

on March 30, 2023 and closed on May 3, 2023. 

Applicant was selected on May 26, 2023. 

9.  

Method or Process Utilized to 

Establish the Rate or the Payment 

Amount 

Funding was established in NLACRC’s FY2022-

2023 Community Placement Plan 

(“CPP”)/Community Development Resource Plan 

(“CRDP”) approved by DDS in part on February 1, 

2023 and March 9, 2023, and amended on April 19, 

2023.  The acquisition of the property will be 

pursuant to DDS CPP Housing Guidelines for Fiscal 

Year 2018-2019, dated July 16, 2018 and DDS 

CPP/CRDP Guidelines for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, 

dated September 29, 2022. 

 

 

97

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

FY23 HDO 999 projects (3) – 1st amendments  Page 3 of 6 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

 

 

9. 

Method or Process Utilized to 

Establish the Rate or the Payment 

Amount (continued) 

During property acquisition, which has since 

completed escrow, on January 23, 2024, DDS  

approved increase to funding for PL2188-999 

(NLACRC-2223-4). DDS will allocate the 

additional $234,571 in FY 2022-23 CPP funds in the 

next allocation cycle. 

10.  
Exceptional Conditions or Terms: Yes/No 

If Yes, provide explanation 

The renovation funding for the property acquired 

and the service provider start-up funding (who will 

operate the EBSH) will be provided by DDS shortly 

after NLACRC enters into a contract with Brilliant 

Corners for the acquisition funding. 

 

The restrictive covenant on the property acquired by 

Brilliant Corners for this project will not have a term 

limit on it.   

 

Brilliant Corners is the current owner of the 

following five (5) permanent housing projects to 

serve a maximum of twenty-one (21) consumers: 

 
Exceptional Conditions or Terms: Yes/No 

If Yes, provide explanation 

(continued) 

1. ARSPSHN:  5149 Babcock Avenue; Valley 

Village (Commencement date January 1, 2013) 

2. SRF:  5651 Kelvin; Woodland Hills 

(Commencement date June 1, 2014) 

3. SRF:  6532 Kelvin; Winnetka          

(Commencement date April 4, 2013) 

4. SRF:  19638 Mayall Street; Northridge 

(Commencement date January 1, 2013) 

5.  EBSH: 35158 Wyse Road, Santa Clarita 

(Commencement date June 1, 2020) 

 

There is a restrictive covenant on each of the above 

properties that establishes that the above properties 

shall be maintained and be utilized solely for the 

benefit of the individuals with developmental 

disabilities for a term of 55 years. 

 

The Funding Agreement (for above properties) and 

the CPP Housing Agreement (for this project) 

provides provisions that Brilliant Corners must 

demonstrate that are not included in the Restrictive 

Covenant, such as insurance requirements, 

maintaining records, reporting requirements, 

improvement requirements, management, repair, and 

maintenance requirements, and legal remedies if 

Brilliant Corners fails to comply with the Funding 

Agreement/CPP Housing Agreement or Restrictive 

Covenant. 
 

98

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

FY23 HDO 999 projects (3) – 1st amendments  Page 4 of 6 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

 

 

11.  Additional reference: 

ARFPSHN:  Adult Residential Facilities for Persons with 

Special Heath Care Needs (5-bed facility), as per WIC, 

Section 4684.50-4684.75.  Statute requires that 

ARFPSHN’s have operable automatic fire sprinkler system 

that is approved by the State Fire Marshal and that meets 

the national Fire Protection Association (NFPA) and an 

alternative power source to operate all functions of the 

facility for a minimum of six (6) hours in the event the 

primary power source is interrupted.  Provide services to 

individuals with developmental disabilities who require 

24-hour care and supervision and who have complex 

medical and health care service needs.  Requires that the 

provider have licensed professional personnel on staff, 

such as a RN and LVN that can provide a variety of 

nursing interventions, including but not limited to 

tracheostomy care and suctioning, special medication 

regimes including injection and intravenous medications, 

management of insulin-dependent diabetes, treatment for 

wounds or pressure ulcers, pain management and palliative 

care, etc.  

 

 Additional reference (continued): 

EBSH: Enhanced Behavioral Supports Homes (EBSH) (4 

bed facility), as per WIC Section 4684.80-4684.87.  

Provide services to individuals with developmental 

disabilities who require 24-hour nonmedical care and who 

required enhanced behavioral supports, staffing and 

supervision in a homelike setting to support and address a 

consumer’s challenging behaviors, which are beyond what 

is typically available in other community facilities licensed 

as an adult residential facility or a group home.  Requires a 

minimum of 16 hours of emergency intervention training 

for the service provider’s staff and additional training for 

direct care staff to address the specialized needs of the 

consumers.  

 

SRF:  Specialized Residential Facility-Habilitation (4-bed 

facility).  Provide services to individuals with 

developmental disabilities who require 24-hour care and 

supervision and whose needs cannot be appropriately met 

within the array of other community living options 

available.  Primary services include personal care and 

supervision services, homemaker, chore, attendant care, 

companion services, medication oversight to the extent 

permitted under State law.  Incidental services may include 

therapeutic social and recreational programming provided 

in a home-like environment, home health care, physical 

therapy, occupational therapy, speech therapy, medication 

administration, intermittent skilled nursing services, and/or 

transportation as specified in the IPP.   Provides 24-hour 

on-site response staff to meet scheduled or unpredictable 

needs. 

 

 

99

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

FY23 HDO 999 projects (3) – 1st amendments  Page 5 of 6 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

 

 

 

 

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Administrative Affairs 

Committee reviewed and discussed the above three (3) CPP Housing Agreement Amendments 

(“Amendments”) and is recommending an action of the Board of Trustees to Approve the 

Contract. 

 

   

February 29, 2024 

Brian Gatus, Board Treasurer  Date 

 

100

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

FY23 HDO 999 projects (3) – 1st amendments  Page 6 of 6 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

 

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Board of Trustees reviewed 

and discussed the three (3) CPP Housing Agreements (“Amendments”) for Brilliant Corners and 

passed the following resolution: 

 

RESOLVED THAT in compliance with NLACRC’s Board of Trustees Contract Policy, the 

Contracts between NLACRC and Brilliant Corners was reviewed and approved by NLACRC’s 

Board of Trustees on March 13, 2024. 

 

NLACRC’s Board of Trustees hereby authorizes and designates any officer of NLACRC to 

finalize, execute and deliver the Contract on behalf of NLACRC, in such form as NLACRC’s 

legal counsel may advise, and on such further terms and conditions as such Officer may approve. 

The final terms of the Contract shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Contract 

by such Officer. For purposes of this authorization, an “Officer” means NLACRC’s Interim 

Executive Director, Deputy Director, Chief Financial Officer, or Chief Information Officer, and 

no one else. 

Certification by Secretary:  I certify that: (1) I am the Secretary of the NLACRC; (2) the 

foregoing Resolution is a complete and accurate copy of the Resolution duly adopted by 

NLACRC’s Board of Trustees; (3) the Resolution is in full force and has not been revoked or 

changed in any way. 

 

 

  March 13, 2024 

Lillian Martinez, Board Secretary  Date 

 

101

http://www.nlacrc.org/


Ultra Jiu Jitsu Academy 

Vendor #: PL2144 Svc Code: 008, Sports Club Date: 2/20/24

NLACRC – VENDOR CONTRACT REQUEST – EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Other Vendorizations with Vendor’s Tax Identification Number (TIN): 

Vendor # 
Service 
Code 

Description 

n/a 

Service Address: 26069 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 

Service Description: UJJA teaches Jiu Jitsu (a martial art) and self-defense. 

Jiu Jitsu is a highly skillful martial art that involves the use of leverage, angles, pressure, and timing 
to get an opponent to the ground and control him/her, then forcing him/her to submit by 
applying chokes or joint locks—there is no striking (e.g., punches, kicks). Jiu Jitsu has two main 
forms, GI (wearing a kimono) and No-Gi (wearing a rashguard/T-shirt and shorts); No-Gi Jiu Jitsu 
is commonly called grappling. Originating in Japan, Jiu Jitsu was created to enable a smaller, 
weaker person to defend against, or even defeat, a larger and stronger opponent. Jiu Jitsu 
techniques can be learned and practiced by kids, adults, and seniors regardless of size, strength, 
or physical limitation—Jiu Jitsu can be enjoyed by everyone! 

Jiu Jitsu is both a mental and physical workout that optimizes strength, endurance, balance, 
coordination, flexibility, self-control, and the ability to strategize and remain calm whilst under 
pressure—Jiu Jitsu is often referred to as chess for the body. 

In addition to our live (in-person) classes, members also have access to our proprietary online 
curriculum (technique videos, pictures, and written descriptions). 

Service Area: Santa Clarita Valley 

U&C Rate Comparison: 

• The Edge Martial Arts, $149/M for children and adults

• Gracie Jiu-Jitsu Santa Clarita, $150/M for children and adults

• Check Mat Valencia, $199/M adults, $169/M children; $99/M equipment fee

Median Rate: Service code 008 does not have a median rate. 

Staffing: n/a 

Employment Component: n/a 

Exceptional Conditions: n/a

102



PL2144-008 Page 1 of 3 

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

No. Description Contract Summary 

1. 
Contract Overview: 

(New or Amendment) (POS or 

OPS) 

First Amendment,
 Purchase of Services (POS) 

2. 
The Name of Vendor or Service 

Provider 

Ultra Jiu Jitsu Inc. 

Vendor Number: PL2144     Service Code: 008 

3. The Purpose of the Contract 

The service provider will provide Sports Club 

services pursuant to Title 17, Section 54356 and 

the DDS published guidelines regarding 

Miscellaneous Services revised 05/10/2010. The 

service provider will provide Sports Club 

services for individuals with developmental and 

other disabilities who seek to improve or 

maintain physical, cognitive, and social 

wellbeing through the provision of a structured, 

supervised learning experience in a healthy, 

supportive, and culturally sensitive 

environment.   

The service provider is primarily engaged in 

providing jiu jitsu martial arts classes. 

Classes for children are provided at a maximum 

1 coach to 6-8 student ratio and adult classes are 

provided at 1 coach to 10-20 student ratio. 

Monthly membership requires a minimum of 

one class per week attendance. 

The purpose of the First Amendment is to adjust 

the Usual & Customary rate from $160 per 

month to $175 per month effective September 1, 

2023. 

4. The Contract Term 
Two (2) year contract effective 02/01/2023 

through 01/31/2025 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org

103

http://www.nlacrc.org/


 

PL2144-008  Page 2 of 3 

5.  The Total Amount of the Contract 

Projected annual cost is $42,000 per year, or 

$84,000 over the entire two (2) year term of the 

contract based on provider’s Usual & Customary 

rates. 

 

20 consumers x $175/month = $3,500/M 

6.  
The Total Proposed Number of 

Consumers Served 
Projected 20 consumers per month. 

7.  
The Rate of Payment or Payment 

Amount 

Payment will be reimbursed to service provider 

based on 1) the actual services authorized; 2) the 

actual services provided; and 3) the authorized 

Usual & Customary rates. 

8.  
Method or Process Utilized to 

Award the Contract. 

Based on vendorization requirements under 

statute and regulation for Sports Club services. 

9.  

Method or Process Utilized to 

Establish the Rate or the Payment 

Amount 

Pursuant to 17 CCR, Section 57210(a)(19), the 

phrase “usual and customary rate” (“U&C 

Rate”) means the rate which is regularly charged 

to the general public by a vendor for a service 

that is used by both regional center consumers 

and/or their families and where at least 30% of 

the recipients of the given service are not 

regional center consumers or their families. 

 

There is not a median rate for service code 008. 

 

10.  
Exceptional Conditions or Terms: Yes/No 

If Yes, provide explanation None 

 

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Administrative Affairs 

Committee reviewed and discussed the above Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement 

(“Contract”) and is recommending an action of the Board of Trustees to Approve the Contract. 

 

   

February 29, 2024 

Brian Gatus, Board Treasurer  Date 

 

 
 

 

 

 

104



 

PL2144-008  Page 3 of 3 

   

 

 

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Board of Trustees reviewed and 

discussed the Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement (“Amendment”) for Ultra Jiu 

Jitsu Inc. and passed the following resolution: 

 

RESOLVED THAT in compliance with NLACRC’s Board of Trustees Contract Policy, the 

Agreement between NLACRC and Ultra Jiu Jitsu Inc. was reviewed and approved by NLACRC’s 

Board of Trustees on March 13, 2024. 

 

NLACRC’s Board of Trustees hereby authorizes and designates any officer of NLACRC to 

finalize, execute and deliver the Contract on behalf of NLACRC, in such form as NLACRC’s legal 

counsel may advise, and on such further terms and conditions as such Officer may approve. The 

final terms of the Contract shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Contract by 

such Officer. For purposes of this authorization, an “Officer” means NLACRC’s Interim Executive 

Director, Deputy Director, Chief Financial Officer, or Chief Information Officer, and no one else. 

 

Certification by Secretary:  I certify that: (1) I am the Secretary of the NLACRC; (2) the 

foregoing Resolution is a complete and accurate copy of the Resolution duly adopted by 

NLACRC’s Board of Trustees; (3) the Resolution is in full force and has not been revoked or 

changed in any way. 

 

 

  March 13, 2024 

Lillian Martinez, Board Secretary  Date 

 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Main 818-778-1900  •  Fax 818-756-6140  |  9200 Oakdale Avenue #100,  Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org 

 

105

http://www.nlacrc.org/


Zooz Fitness 

Vendor #: PL2143 Svc Code: 008 Date: 2/20/24 

NLACRC – VENDOR CONTRACT REQUEST – EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Other Vendorizations with Vendor’s Tax Identification Number (TIN): 

Vendor # 
Service 
Code 

Description 

n/a n/a n/a 

Service Address: 17650 Ventura Blvd. Encino, CA 91316 

Service Area: San Fernando Valley 

Service Description: 

Zooz Fitness offers group fitness classes that provide an opportunity for individuals with developmental and other 
disabilities to practice functional training that will support their activities of daily living. Each class incorporates a 
variety of movements that focus on muscular strength, cardiovascular endurance, flexibility, mobility, and balance 
training. Routines are a combination of bodyweight and equipment-based training, and often include sport-specific 
movements (i.e. dribbling, kicking, hand-eye coordination, throwing, agility, jumping, lateral coordination, dancing, 
etc…). All of our training supports engaging with our underlying foundational systems, including our proprioceptive 
and vestibular senses. 

Staffing: 

Trainers are over age 21, must have CPR/First Aid certification, Live Scan clearance, and at least 1 year 
of fitness training experience. 

Employment Component: n/a 

Exceptional Conditions: n/a 

106



PL2143-008  Page 1 of 3 

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

No. Description Contract Summary 

1.  
Contract Overview: 

(New or Amendment) (POS or OPS) 

First Amendment 

Purchase of Services (POS) 

2.  
The Name of Vendor or Service 

Provider 

ZOOZ Fitness, LLC 

Vendor Number: PL2143     Service Code: 008 

3.  The Purpose of the Contract 

The service provider will provide Sports Club 

services pursuant to Title 17, Section 54356 and 

the DDS published guidelines regarding 

Miscellaneous Services revised 05/10/2010. The 

service provider will provide Sports Club 

services for individuals with developmental and 

other disabilities to practice functional training 

that will support their activities of daily living.  

Each class incorporates a variety of movements 

that focus on muscular strength, cardiovascular 

endurance, flexibility, mobility, and balance 

training.   

 

The service provider is primarily engaged in 

providing Sports Club services. 

 

The purpose of the First Amendment is to add 

individual services to existing group classes. 

4.  The Contract Term 
Five (5) year contract effective 01/01/2023 

through 12/31/2027. 

5.  The Total Amount of the Contract 

Projected annual cost is $256,256.00 per year, or 

$1,281,280.00 over the entire five (5) year term 

of the contract based on provider’s Usual & 

Customary rates. 

 
45-minute class, individual (1:1 ratio):  $60/session 

60-minute class, individual (1:1 ratio):  $80/session 

60-minute class, group: $28/session 

Average:               $56 

Classes/Week:        11 

Consumers/Class:    8 (12 max; U&C serves 30% non-RC) 

                         $4,928 projected weekly expenditure 

                             x 52 (weeks/year) 

                     $256,256 projected annual expenditure 

6.  
The Total Proposed Number of 

Consumers Served 
Projected 8 consumers per month. 

107



 

PL2143-008  Page 2 of 3 

7.  
The Rate of Payment or Payment 

Amount 

Payment will be reimbursed to service provider 

based on 1) the actual services authorized; 2) the 

actual services provided; and 3) the authorized 

Usual & Customary rates. 

8.  
Method or Process Utilized to 

Award the Contract. 

Based on vendorization requirements under 

statute and regulation for Sports Club services. 

9.  

Method or Process Utilized to 

Establish the Rate or the Payment 

Amount 

Pursuant to 17 CCR, Section 57210(a)(19), the 

phrase “usual and customary rate” (“U&C 

Rate”) means the rate which is regularly charged 

to the general public by a vendor for a service 

that is used by both regional center consumers 

and/or their families and where at least 30% of 

the recipients of the given service are not 

regional center consumers or their families. 

10.  
Exceptional Conditions or Terms: Yes/No 

If Yes, provide explanation 
None 

 

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Administrative Affairs 

Committee reviewed and discussed the above Amendment to Professional Services Agreement 

(“Amendment”) and is recommending an action of the Board of Trustees to Approve the 

Contract. 

 

   

February 29, 2024 

Brian Gatus, Board Treasurer  Date 

 

 

108



 

PL2143-008  Page 3 of 3 

Contract Summary and Board Resolution 

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Board of Trustees reviewed 

and discussed the Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”, or “Contract”) for ZOOZ 

Fitness, LLC and passed the following resolution: 

 

RESOLVED THAT in compliance with NLACRC’s Board of Trustees Contract Policy, the 

Agreement between NLACRC and ZOOZ Fitness, LLC was reviewed and approved by 

NLACRC’s Board of Trustees on March 13, 2024. 

 

NLACRC’s Board of Trustees hereby authorizes and designates any officer of NLACRC to 

finalize, execute and deliver the Contract on behalf of NLACRC, in such form as NLACRC’s 

legal counsel may advise, and on such further terms and conditions as such Officer may approve. 

The final terms of the Contract shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Contract 

by such Officer. For purposes of this authorization, an “Officer” means NLACRC’s Interim 

Executive Director, Deputy Director, Chief Financial Officer, or Chief Information Officer, and 

no one else. 

 

Certification by Secretary:  I certify that: (1) I am the Secretary of the NLACRC; (2) the 

foregoing Resolution is a complete and accurate copy of the Resolution duly adopted by 

NLACRC’s Board of Trustees; (3) the Resolution is in full force and has not been revoked or 

changed in any way. 

 

 

  March 13, 2024 

Lillian Martinez, Board Secretary  Date 

 

109



REPORT ON PERSONNEL CLASSIFICATIONS 

1 

 

 

 Regional 
Center: North Los Angeles County Regional Center Year: 2024 

(Effective February 2024) 

 

INSTRUCTIONS: Please provide a listing of ALL personnel classifications used by the regional center and their 
associated hourly salary schedule (range). You may copy and use additional sheets of this form. 

 

 

Personnel Classification Hourly or Annual Salary Range 

Accountant $33.05 -$46.71 

Accountant Junior $28.91 -$40.86 

Accounting/Payroll Analyst $35.65 - $50.37 

Accounting Specialist $25.35 - $35.81 

Accounting Specialist Senior $25.82 -$36.50 

Accounting Supervisor $46.30 - $62.51 

Administrative Assistant $28.06 - $39.65 

Aging Adult Specialist $28.91 -$40.86 

Applications Administrator I $36.17 - $51.10 

Assistant Psychological Supervisor $46.44 - $55.29 

Autism Program Clinical Services Specialist $42.12 - $59.52 

Autism Program Coordinator $42.12 - $59.52 

Behavioral Consultant $42.12 - $59.52 

Behavioral Services Manager $72.79 - $98.27 

Behavioral Services Supervisor $63.53 - $85.77 

Chief Consumer & Comm Services Officer $71.21 - $109.47 

Chief Financial Officer $85.72 - $115.73 

Chief Human Resources Officer $84.24 - $113.73 

Chief Informational Officer $97.68 - $131.86 

Clinical Services Director $110.16 - $164.37 

Community Services Director $68.68 - $92.72 

Community Living Specialist $28.91 -$40.86 

Community Services Manager $52.36 - $70.69 

Community Services Specialist (inclusive of HCBS, CPP, RQA) $28.91 -$40.86 

Community Services Specialist $28.91 -$40.86 

Community Services Supervisor - BS $43.84 - $58.54 

Community Services Supervisor - MS $45.53 - $61.47 

Consumer Advocate $21.85 -$30.87 

Consumer Services Coordinator $25.82 -$38.56 

Consumer Services Coordinator Specialist - Enhanced Case $28.91 - $40.86 

Consumer Services Coordinator Specialist - Floater $28.91 -$40.86 

 

110



REPORT ON PERSONNEL CLASSIFICATIONS 

2 

 

 

 

Personnel Classification Hourly or Annual Salary Range 

Consumer Services Coordinator Specialist – Officer of the Day $28.91 -$40.86 

Consumer Services Coordinator Specialist – Self-Determination $30.96 - $43.74 

Consumer Services Director $64.65 - $87.28 

Consumer Services Manager $52.36 - $70.69 

Consumer Services Specialist - Specialized $28.91 - $40.86 

Consumer Services Specialist - CPP $28.91 - $40.86 

Consumer Services Supervisor - BS $40.51 - $54.69 

Consumer Services Supervisor - MS $42.53 - $57.42 

Consumer Services Supervisor - CPP/CRDP/SDP $43.36 - $58.54 

Consumer Services Supervisor – LCSW $43.36 - $58.54 

Consumer Services Transition Liaison $30.96 - $43.74 

Contract Administration and Privacy Manager $47.15 - $63.65 

Contract and Compliance Specialist $30.96 - $43.74 

Contract and Compliance Supervisor $45.53 - $61.47 

Controller $67.50 - $91.12 

Deputy Director $78.69 - $121.97 

Deaf Specialist $30.96 - $43.74 

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Supervisor $43.36 - $58.54 

Director of Finance $69.06 - $96.12  

Due Process Officer $39.03 - $58.93 

Emergency Management Specialist $44.34 - $59.86 

Employment Services Specialist $28.91 - $40.86 

Executive Administrative Assistant $35.65 - $50.37 

Executive Director $108.17 - $156.25 

Facilities Services Manager $46.21 - $62.38 

Facilities Supervisor $39.32 - $53.08 

Fair Hearings and Administrative Procedures Manager $52.51 - $70.89 

Federal Revenue Supervisor $40.51 - $54.69 

Federal Revenues Specialist $28.91 - $40.86 

Health and Safety Specialist $28.91 - $40.86 

Human Resources Coordinator $31.38 - $44.32 

Human Resources Director $69.06 - $96.12 

Human Resources Generalist $33.38 - $47.17 

Human Resources Manager $53.12 - $73.25 

Human Resources Specialist I $31.38 - $44.32 

Human Resources Specialist II $32.95 - $46.55 

 
 

 

111



REPORT ON PERSONNEL CLASSIFICATIONS 

3 

 

 

 

Personnel Classification 
Hourly or Annual Salary Range 

Human Resources Supervisor $46.75 - $63.11 

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act Specialist (IDEA Specialist) $37.32 - $52.73 

Infrastructure Engineer $60.26 - $74.06 

Intake Associate $21.85 - $31.81 

Intake Specialist $28.91 - $40.86 

Intake Supervisor $42.53 -$53.97 

iSeries System Operator $30.77 - $43.48 

IT Business Analyst $42.75 - $60.40 

IT Director $71.20 - $109.47 

IT Operations Manager $67.10 - $90.59 

IT Specialist I $34.50 - $48.75 

IT Specialist II $36.17 - $51.11 

IT Support Manager $65.43 - $88.33 

IT Lead Training $31.38 - $44.32 

Judicial/Forensics Specialist $30.96 - $43.74 

Lead IT Specialist $42.75 - $60.40 

Lead Training Consumer Services Coordinator $33.05 - $46.71 

LGBTQ Specialist $28.91 - $40.86 

Medical Services Manager $93.48 - $135.35 

Nurse Consultant - LVN $37.55 - $53.05 

Nurse Consultant - RN $42.12 - $59.52 

Nursing Services Supervisor $59.04 - $79.70 

Office Assistant I $20.45 - $28.89 

Office Assistant II $20.99 - $29.66 

Office Assistant III $22.45 -$31.73 

Office Services Assistant $28.06 - $39.65 

Operations Accounting Supervisor $46.30 - $62.51 

Outreach Language Specialist – Armenian, Farsi, Tagalog $30.96 - $43.74 

Parent and Family Support Specialist $28.91 - $40.86 

Participant Choice Specialist $30.96 - $43.74 

Payroll Specialist $31.38 - $44.32 

Placement Specialist $28.91 - $40.86 

Psychologist, Ph.D. $45.33 - $64.05 

Psychological and Intake Manager $72.79 - $98.27 

 
 
 
 
 

 

112



REPORT ON PERSONNEL CLASSIFICATIONS 

4 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Personnel Classification Hourly or Annual Salary Range 

Psychological Services Supervisor $63.53 - $85.77 

Public Information Manager $54.74 - $73.89 

Public Information Specialist $28.91 - $40.86 

Public Information Supervisor $40.51 - $54.69 

Quality Improvement and Outcomes Manager $50.95 - $79.91 

Records and Document Management Supervisor $40.51 - $54.69 

Resource Developer (inclusive of CPP, Residential and Day 
Program) 

$28.91 - $40.86 

Resource Development Specialist $28.91 - $40.86 

Risk Assessment Specialist $28.91 - $40.86 

Risk Assessment Supervisor $40.51 - $54.69 

Senior Contract and Privacy Specialist $32.95 - $46.56 

Senior Clinical Psychological Specialist $50.83 - $68.62 

Senior Facilities and Records Manager $62.50 - $77.22 

Systems Administrator $54.76 - $77.38 

Technology Utilization Specialist $36.17 - $51.10 

Training and Development Supervisor $42.38 - $57.21 

Training Specialist I $31.38 - $44.32 

Training Specialist II $33.38 - $47.17 

Transfer Coordinator $20.45 - $28.88 

Vendor Coordinator $20.45 - $28.88 

Workforce & Employment Specialist $28.91 - $40.86 
  

  

  

  

  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

113



 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Board of Trustees Policy 

Board/Staff Interaction 

• Board members are encouraged to meet with staff to enable members to familiarize 
themselves with regional center operations. 

 
• Board members are encouraged to seek information from staff to enable members to 

discharge their duties as board members. 

• If a board member has a concern from a parent or consumer, board member can 
connect with parent and family support specialists (NLACRC Parent & Family 
Support Specialist Hotline 661-951-1220 or email at pfsssupport@nlacrc.org) to 
provide a timely response and follow up. Parent and Family Support Specialists will 
track this type of communication to ensure completion and resolution.  

• For any communication between NLACRC staff and a board member regarding a 
consumer’s a signed consent from legal guardian for release of information is 
necessary.  

Consent Release 
Records - Spanish.doc        

Consent Release 
Records - English.docx 

  
• If a board member has a question or needs further information, board member can 

email board support boardsupport@nlacrc.org to provide the support as needed. 
 

• If a board member’s request to staff would require the staff member to allocate his or 
her time in a manner that interferes with his or her job responsibilities, the staff 
member should so inform the Executive Director, who will discuss with the Board 
President. 

 
• When a board member’s request for staff assistance has been met with a response that 

accommodation would require a reallocation of staff time away from the staff 
member’s usual job responsibilities, the board member should redirect his or her 
request through the president of the board, the executive director, or the appropriate 
board committee. 

 
[policy.bd.BSI] Revised: 02-29-2024 

114

mailto:pfsssupport@nlacrc.org
mailto:boardsupport@nlacrc.org


64 

 

 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Board of Trustees 

Disability Community Organization, 
Service Provider, and Elected Representative Visit Policy 

Purpose 

To build and promote greater knowledge, better understanding, and community partnerships between 
and among the center’s Board of Trustees, disability community organization, service providers, and 
elected representatives within the center’s service area. 

 
Intent 

 
During a trustee’s term on the board, the trustee should become knowledgeable and familiar with the 
center’s service provider community plus develop relationships with disability community organizations, 
elected representatives whose districts include the center. Typical disability community organizations 
include the Office of Clients Rights Advocacy, Disability Rights California, and the State Council on 
Developmental Disabilities. Elected representatives include federal, state, county, and local officials. 
To support the development and/or building of relationships with our stakeholders, each trustee is 
encouraged to visit disability community organizations, service providers, and/or elected 
representatives during the course of each fiscal year. Ideally, trustees should become knowledgeable 
and build relationships with service providers and elected representatives in the valley in which the 
trustee lives, given that a trustee’s place of residence is one criterion for board membership. Visits also 
afford trustees the opportunity to share with disability community organizations, service providers, 
and elected representatives the activities and concerns of the board as they relate to the oversight of 
the regional center and the regional center system as a whole. Finally, as trustees conduct visits and 
report back to the board, the collective knowledge of the board will increase and solidify a stronger 
foundation for decision making. 

 
In situations where the board wishes additional or more specific information on a disability community 
organization, service provider, or types of service, the agency or service provider will be invited to make a 
presentation at a meeting of the Board of Trustees. The center’s executive director will arrange the 
presentation. After such presentation, the board may choose to send a delegation to conduct a visit. 

Implementation 
 
The Government & Community Relations Committee will develop a strategy that encompasses the 
purpose and intent of this policy, using their Framework for Strategy Implementation. Development of 
the strategy will take place in the current fiscal year for implementation in the upcoming fiscal year. 
Examples of types of events that will encompass this strategy are visits to service providers/elected 
representatives, participation in grass roots visits, attending a related non-profit agency’s, organization’s, or 
service provider’s board meeting, etc. 

 
[policy.bd.dcosperv] Reviewed: 02/29/24 

115



65 

 

 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Board of Trustees 

Disability Community Organization, 
Service Provider, and Elected Representative Visit Policy 

Framework for Strategy Implementation 

 
NLACRC board members must maintain an active role in building and sustaining relationships 
within our disability community organizations, elected representative, and service provider 
communities. As such, all board members are expected and must participate in a minimum 
of at least one disability community organization, legislative, and service provider event, 
although participation in more than one visit/event is highly encouraged. 

The purpose of attending these types of events is typically to convey a message, deliver a 
regional center information package, discuss the center’s position on an issue, show support, 
share information, education, and/or discuss legislative issues as they pertain to the regional 
center system. Upon completion of any visit, a board member should provide feedback on 
what happened during their visit at the next board meeting following the visit. 

1. Visits to disability community organizations, service providers, and/or elected 
representatives: 

■ Visits to disability community organizations and service providers are typically 
scheduled through the Board Support Executive Administrative Assistant. 

■ Visits to elected representatives (outside of Grass Roots activities) are typically 
scheduled by the board members. Prior to any visit, board members can contact 
the Board Support Executive Administrative Assistant for a formal NLACRC 
information packet. 

2. Participation in disability community organization, service provider, and elected 
representative events (examples): 

■ Non-profit service provider or disability community organizations board 

meetings. 

■ Service provider events (annual dinners, celebrations, etc.) 
■ Elected representative events (outreach events, candidate forums, etc.) 

■ Grass Roots elected representative visits. 

■ Any other type of visit/event that encompasses the purpose and intent of the 
board’s Disability Community Organization, Service Provider, and Elected 
Representative Visits Policy. 

Many events can be found on the NLACRC website calendar of events or you can contact the 
Board Support Executive Administrative Assistant at boardsupport@nlacrc.org for more 
information. 

 
 

[policy.bd.dcosperv.framework] (Rev. 2/22/2024) 
116

mailto:boardsupport@nlacrc.org


North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Board of Trustees Policy Statement 

 
Committee Chair Alternate 

 
 

The office of Committee Chair alternate is established in Article V, Sections 10 and 11 of 
the bylaws of North Los Angeles County Regional Center. The Committee Chair alternate 
shall be member of the Board of Trustees and elected by the Board of Trustees. Committee 
Chair Alternate volunteers in this role to assume the position in the absence of the chair with 
willingness to lead the committee and exercise the responsibilities as set forth in this policy. 

 
The duties of the Committee Chair Alternate include: 

 
1. Willing to accept a leadership role as a Committee Chair alternate during board 

meetings. 
 

2. Able to explain goals and objectives of the committee to execute committee 
responsibilities. 

 
3. Able to work effectively in a large group and with individuals who may have 

differing opinions. 
 

4. Willing to commit the time to fully participate in committee activities. 
 
5. Participate in the committee preparation meeting as needed. 

 
 
The Committee Chair alternate shall report to the Committee Chair and Board of 
Trustees regarding actions taken and assure that the board votes, when possible, on any 
issues requiring such action. 

 
 
 
 
 

6 
Final draft  

117



Board Self-Assessment (BSA)

118



BSA Types Available

• Board Self-Assessment for Nonprofit Boards

• Board Self-Assessment for Independent Schools

• Board Self-Assessment for Private Foundations

• Board Self-Assessment for Associations

• Board Self-Assessment for Community Foundations

“Assessing board performance is the most effective way to ensure your board members understand 
their duties and utilize effective good governance practices.”

119

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
This is a list of all assessments that we offer currently. The BSA, ACE, and Peer to Peer are the overarching types which are then split into subgroups for more specificity



The BSA is an easy online survey your board members take to assess your board 
performance. BoardSource recommends that boards assess their overall 

performance every two years and build tangible board development plans based on 
what they learn.

120

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
BSA is our most popular product.  Helps board evaluate themselves and we hope lead to a better board future.  Split into four sections whose core questions are pulled from the ten basic responsibilities of nonprofit boards



DEI Questions in the BSA

• Board Composition
• Board Recruitment

• Board Orientation 
• Social Interactions Outside Board Room
• Board Values
• Board Behavior

• Candid Communication
• Inclusion in Board Programs and Services

Questions in the BSA are related to the following topics:

121

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
In 2018 we added new DI&E questions to help boards look further into areas around the people on the board, the culture of the board, and the inclusivity of those that serve on the board in regards to board service and communicationCan send full list of questions to those who want them, but have just broken each section that contains DI&E questions into general groupings for easy viewingThese questions get at the core of what does your board look like, how are you recruiting, how are you treating and training new board members, are you trying to interact outside the board room socially, are you having the right inclusive conversations and does your full board participate and feel included?



Frequently Asked Questions

Q: How long does 
the survey take?
A: 30-45 minutes
on average per 

person

Q: Can we customize 
the survey?

A: We do not allow for 
any edits to be made 
to the survey at this 

time

Q: How quickly can we get this 
done? 

A:  Average project length is 
one month*. 

*Estimate based on the following factors: 
a. Set-up: 3-5 business days
b. Survey run time: 2 weeks 
c. Report creation & delivery: 3-5 business 

days

122



123

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Just want to stress that we allow a lot of flexibility in our timeline for the client to pick and choose, but we have 3 main steps that we have minimum times for and especially due to our current capacity.  Just want to make sure we are adjusting client’s expectations when having conversations with them about what we can do



Pricing

Board Self-Assessment (BSA)

DECK

Pricing for an assessment tool varies based on your membership with BoardSource. To 
learn more about our membership offerings, please visit our website or contact our 
member relations team at 202-349-2580 or members@boardsource.org.

Looking for more to help present your results to the full board? BoardSource offers 
the DECK as an add-on purchase option. The DECK contains 15-20 PowerPoint slides 
featuring highlights from your assessment results and basic comparison scores 
benchmarking your assessment scores against other nonprofit boards that have used 
our BSA tool.

124

https://boardsource.org/board-support/membership/
mailto:members@boardsource.org
https://boardsource.org/product/board-self-assessment-deck/


Use your Results to…
• Identify gaps between expected and actual 

performanceIdentify Gaps

• Ensure that all board members have a shared 
understanding of the board and CEO’s roles and 
responsibilities

Develop Shared 
Understanding

• Provide a context for discussing opportunities to 
strengthen the boardProvide Context

• Model accountability and enhance credibility for the 
organization among staff, volunteers, donors, and 
other constituencies

Follow Best 
Practices

The final report for the BSA benchmarks your board’s responses against other nonprofit organizations that have answered the 
same questions. Some find this helpful as you consider your board’s performance relative to your peers across the country.

125

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Want boards to use these results to start a conversation or even strengthen an already started conversationHave literature and resources in each portion of the report to aid the board as they view the reportBenchmarking (raw aggregate data of boards completing the same assessment) Versus Best Practices (combo of research/field observations from consultants and staff)



Testimonials

“I like that the board can do the 
assessment online and the information is 
compiled in a succinct way to present to 
the board upon completion. It is easy for 

board members to complete. The 
assessment helps the board understand 
where improvements can be made and 

work to make improvements in that area. 
For us, it is fundraising. It puts the issue 

front and center with them.”
— Jackie Mayo, HomeSource East 

Tennessee

“Customer service was 
highly responsive and most 
helpful.  Overall, we feel that 

the survey provides great 
value for the money and 

time invested.” – Jim 
Williamson, Community 

Foundation of Greater New 
Britain, CT

“As a client, I was totally 
taken away by the depth of 

expertise, willingness to 
partner, level of service and 

the deep empathy for my 
nonprofit partners 
demonstrated by 

BoardSource staff. Hats off!” 
– Atul Tandon , Tandon 

Institute

126



 

 
 
 
 

North Los Angeles County 
Regional Center 

 
Service Standards 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Adopted by the Board of Trustees 
January 11, 2023 

 
Approved by the 

Department of Developmental Services 
September 19, 2023 

 

127



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 1 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Contents  
TABLE OF CONTENTS .................................................................................................................................. 1 
INTRODUCTION (Approved: July 22, 2010) ....................................................................................................... 4 
I.  CASE FINDING AND PUBLIC INFORMATION (Approved: November 18, 2022) (Pending approval from DDS)
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 INTAKE AND ASSESSMENT .................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
II.  PRENATAL/GENETICS/AT RISK (Approved: July 22, 2010) ........................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
III.  EARLY START PROGRAM (Approved: November 16, 2018) ............................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 INDIVIDUALIZED FAMILY SERVICE PLAN (IFSP) ...................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 PROCEDURES FOR IFSP DEVELOPMENT, REVIEW, AND EVALUATION........ Error! Bookmark not 

defined. 
 PARTICIPANTS IN INITIAL AND ANNUAL IFSP MEETINGS AND PERIODIC REVIEWS ........ Error! 

Bookmark not defined. 
 CONTENT OF THE IFSP ......................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 INTERIM IFSP ............................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 DESIGNATION OF SERVICES ON THE IFSP .................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 BASIS FOR THE PROVISIO OF SERVICES THROUGH REGIONAL CETNER ... Error! Bookmark not 

defined. 
 INTERNAL REVIEW PROCESS PRIOR TO PROVISION OF SERVICES THROUGH THE 

REGIONAL CENTER ................................................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 TRANSFER .................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 TRANSITION FROM EARLY INTERVENTION SERVICES ................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 EARLY START APPEALS AND COMPLAINTS ................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
IV.  INDIVIDUAL PROGRAM PLAN (IPP) DEVELOPMENT (Approved: November 16, 2018) ............. Error! 
Bookmark not defined. 
 PARTICIPANT-DIRECTED SERVICES ................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 SOURCE OF FUNDING IDENTIFICATION & ACQUISITION .................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 INTERAGENCY DISPUTE RESOLUTION ......................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 SERVICE COORDINATION ................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 ANNUAL STATEMENTS .......................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
V.  FAMILY SUPPORTS AND LIVING ARRANGEMENTS (Approved: March 23, 2022) ............................. 7 
 FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES & RESPITE ............................................................................................................... 7 
 RESPITE SERVICES .......................................................................................................................................................... 7 
               CHILDREN ..................................................................................................................................................................... 8 
               ADULTS ........................................................................................................................................................................... 9 
 DAY CARE SERVICES ...................................................................................................................................................... 9 
               CHILDREN ................................................................................................................................................................... 10 
               ADULTS ......................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

128



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 2 
 

 PERSONAL ASSISTANTS .............................................................................................................................................. 11 
               CHILDREN ................................................................................................................................................................... 11 
               ADULTS ......................................................................................................................................................................... 11 
 CAMPING, SOCIAL RECREATION AND NONMEDICAL THERAPIES ..................................................... 12 
 OTHER FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES .................................................................................................................... 12 
 LICENSED RESIDENTIAL SERVICES ..................................................................................................................... 12 
 INDEPENDENT LIVING SERVICES........................................................................................................................ 15 
 SUPPORTED LIVING SERVICES ............................................................................................................................... 17 
 STANDARDIZED ASSESSMENT QUESTIONNAIRE ......................................................................................... 18 
 RENT, MORTGAGE, AND LEASE PAYMENTS ................................................................................................... 19 
 IN-HOME SUPPORT SERVICES ................................................................................................................................. 19 
 SEX OFFENDERS ............................................................................................................................................................ 20 
VI.  SOCIAL RECREATION, CAMP, AND NON-MEDICAL THERAPIES (Approved: March 23, 2022) ... 21 
 CAMP AS A FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICE .............................................................................................................. 22 
 CAMP AS A FORM OF DAYCARE ............................................................................................................................. 22 
 SOCIALIZATION, LEISURE, AND RECREATION SKILLS .............................................................................. 23 
 SOCIAL RECREATION SERVICES AS A FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICE ....................................................... 25 
 NON-MEDICAL THERAPIES ...................................................................................................................................... 25 
 NON-MEDICAL THERAPIES AS A FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICE ................................................................. 26 
 NON-MEDICAL THERAPIES AS A SOCIALIZATION SERVICE ................................................................... 26 
 NON-MEDICAL THERAPIES AS HABILITATION, THERAPY, OR TREATMENT ................................. 27 
VII.  EDUCATIONAL AND VOCATIONAL SERVICES (Approved: March 23, 2022) ....... Error! Bookmark not 
defined. 
 SCHOOL AGE............................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 SPECIAL EDUCATION ............................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 ADULTS .......................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 COMPETATIVE INTEGRATED EMPLOYMENT ........................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 PAID INTERNSHIP PROGRAM ............................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 TAILORED DAY SERVICE ..................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 VOUCHERED COMMUNITY-BASED TRAINING SERVICE ..................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 SENIORS ........................................................................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
VIII.  CLINICAL SERVICES (Approved: March 23, 2022) .......................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 HEALTH CARE SERVICES ...................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 PHYSICAL AND OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY ................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 BEHAVIORAL SERVICES ........................................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 SPEECH AND COMMUNICATION THERAPY ................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 COUNSELING SERVICES ........................................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 EXPERIMENTAL TREATMENTS/DEVICES .................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
IX.  LEGAL STATUS AND PROTECTIONS (Approved: October 8, 2018) .............. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

129



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 3 
 

 CONSERVATORSHIP ................................................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 DIVERSION .................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 PEER REVIEW OF BEHAVIOR MODIFICATION INTERVENTIONS THAT MAY CAUSE PAIN OR 

TRAUMA ........................................................................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 PRIVACY AND CONFIDENTIALITY AND RELEASE OF CONSUMER PROTECTED HEALTH 

INFORMATION ........................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 NOTICE OF PRIVACY PRACTICES ..................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 MINIMUM NECESSARY USE AND DISCLOSURE OF PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION

 ........................................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 COMPLAINTS .............................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES-NO RETALIATION OR INTIMIDATION ... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 SAFEGUARDS .............................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 BUSINESS ASSOCIATES ........................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 TRAINING AND AWARENESS ............................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 SANCTIONS .................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 COORPORATION WITH PRIVACY OVERSIGHT AUTHORITIES .......... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 INVESTIGATION AND ENFORCEMENT ........................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 HUMAN IMMUNODEFICIENCY VIRUS (HIV)/ACQUIRED IMMUNE DEFICIENCY SYNDROME 

(AIDS) .............................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 HIV/AIDS EDUCATION .......................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 HIV TESTING .............................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 CONFIDENTIALITY AND RELEASE OF HIV/AIDS RELATED CONSUMER INFORMATION Error! 

Bookmark not defined. 
 HIV/ AIDS AND SERVICE PROVISION ............................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
X.  TRANSPORTATION SERVICES (Appeocws: May 14, 2012)........................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
XI.  APPEAL PROCESS (Approved: September 19, 2023) ........................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 ADEQUATE NOTICE ................................................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE .................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 INFORMAL MEETING ............................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 MEDIATION ................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 FAIR HEARING ........................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 ACCESS TO RECORDS .............................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

 
 
 
  
 

130



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 4 
 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center Service Standards 
INTRODUCTION 

 
North Los Angeles County Regional Center (NLACRC) is guided by the Lanterman 
Developmental Disabilities Services Act in the provision of services and supports for persons 
with developmental disabilities and their family members. The Act specifies activities and 
obligations the center must discharge to meet its responsibilities. NLACRC fully accepts these 
responsibilities and will endeavor to meet the needs of consumers1 within the constraints of its 
budget. 

As part of the activities conducted on behalf of a consumer by the NLACRC, services and 
supports may be purchased for a consumer as identified on his or her Individual Program Plan 
(IPP). However, consideration must first be given to viable generic and natural services and 
supports available to the consumer. Services and supports purchased on behalf of a consumer 
by the NLACRC must take into consideration the needs, preferences, and choices of the 
consumer. Services and supports should be flexible and individually tailored to the consumer 
and, where appropriate, his or her family. Finally, services and supports must be effective in 
meeting the goals and objectives on the consumer’s IPP and reflect a cost-effective use of public 
resources. 

Services and supports purchased on behalf of a consumer by NLACRC must assist the 
consumer to achieve the greatest self-sufficiency possible and to exercise personal choice. 
Furthermore, such services and supports, within the context of the IPP, must show a high 
preference to choices that result in allowing a minor to live with his or her family, an adult to 
live as independently as possible in the community, and a consumer of any age to interact with 
persons without disabilities in positive and meaningful ways. To ensure consumers have viable 
access to quality services and supports within their home communities, NLACRC will work in 
a collaborative effort with the Area Board and other private or public organizations to provide: 

 Information - NLACRC will provide consumers with quality and timely information 
about options. Consumers cannot make informed choices without current and complete 
information about generic, community and vendored support services. Information may 
be disseminated in collaboration with the Area Board. 

 Advocacy - NLACRC will advocate for publicly funded agencies to meet their legal 
responsibilities to serve consumers. NLACRC may conduct systems advocacy jointly 
with the Area Board and will work collaboratively with Disability Rights California to 
provide comprehensive advocacy training. 

 

 
1  This includes an adult or child with a developmental disability and/or a family member(s) who has primary or legal 

responsibility for a minor child who has a developmental disability 

131



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 5 
 

 Options - NLACRC will encourage and facilitate the creation of quality service and 
support options for consumers. In collaboration with NLACRC’s Vendor Advisory 
Committee, community best practices standards will be developed and implemented. 

 Consumer Choice and Responsibility - NLACRC will respect the choices of 
consumers and acknowledges their ability to accept responsibilities that may be 
consistent with those for persons without disabilities of the same age. 

 Excellence - NLACRC accepts its responsibility for adopting policies that ensure the 
center is effectively and efficiently managed. Accordingly, the Board of Trustees ensures 
that services are purchased within the framework of the law and service standards as set 
forth by the board. 

 Responsiveness - NLACRC will respond to the urgent and critical needs of consumers 
and/or their family members in a timely and professional manner. The center’s Board 
of Trustees envisions that an appropriate response will be consistent with the consumer’s 
or their family member’s situation and may entail exercising greater flexibility as well as 
creativity in applying the center’s service standards. In addition, the center maintains an 
after-hours business line, (818) 778-1900, to provide consumers, their family members 
and service providers in immediate need with access to the center. 

NLACRC’s service standards and policies do not include all possible therapies. Potential 
therapies will be considered upon review by NLACRC clinicians within the context of 
the planning team2 process. NLACRC clinicians are California-licensed and/or board-
certified health care professionals who may include, but are not limited to, physicians, 
psychologists, board certified behavior analysts, registered nurses, dentists, pharmacists, 
and registered dental assistants who are NLACRC staff or contractors. 

NLACRC is prohibited from purchasing experimental treatments, therapeutic services 
or devices that have not been clinically determined or scientifically proven to be effective 
or safe or for which risks, and complications are unknown. In view of the often-complex 
nature of consumers’ needs, it is recognized that some individual circumstances have not 
been anticipated by these service standards or service needs that occur infrequently. This 
may include other services and supports not specified in these standards. In such cases, 
the executive director may review staff recommendations and authorize purchase of 
service requests.  
 
 
In adopting these standards, the Board of Trustees is acting in its role of establishing the 
service philosophy, standards, and general policy for NLACRC. The board delegates 

 
2  Planning team means the individual with the developmental disability, the parents or legally appointed guardian of a minor, 

or the legally appointed conservator of an adult consumer, one or more regional center representatives, including the 
designated service coordinator pursuant to subdivision (b) of section 4640.7 and any individual, including the service 
provider, invited by the parents or legally appointed guardian of a minor, or the legally appointed conservator of an adult 
consumer. 

 

132



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 6 
 

responsibility for the general management of NLACRC and the establishment of 
operational policies and procedures consistent with these standards to the executive 
director pursuant to this action. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

133



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 7 
 

I. FAMILY SUPPORTS AND LIVING ARRANGEMENTS 
Service and Procedural Standards 

 

PHILOSOPHY 
 

It is the philosophy of NLACRC that consumers and/or their family members should decide 
where they live. This means NLACRC will work with families to maintain their minor children 
at home when it is the families’ preference and, for adult consumers, help them to access living 
options of their choice. To this end, NLACRC will work to empower consumers and their 
family members as well as advocate on their behalf. The regional center is dedicated to 
providing family support and will plan with each family to identify services that meet each 
unique need. As such, the planning team should consider each family’s responsibility to provide 
typical supports. 
 

FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES & RESPITE 
 

DEFINITIONS: 

Family support services mean services and supports provided to a minor with a 
developmental disability or his or her family and that contributes to the ability of the family to 
reside together. These services may include respite, daycare cost assistance, personal assistance, 
adaptive equipment, advocacy, necessary appliances, counseling and mental health services. 

Effective October 1, 2011, for consumers eligible for the Home and Community Based 
Services (HCBS)/Medicaid Waiver, daycare and respite services purchased using vouchers are 
required by law to be used in conjunction with a Financial Management Service (FMS) provider. 
An FMS provider assists a family member with verifying worker eligibility status, collecting and 
processing timesheets of worker(s), processing payroll, withholdings, filing and payment of 
applicable taxes and insurance, performing billing payments and reimbursements, and 
maintaining all source documentation related to the authorized service(s). This service 
arrangement is known as participant-directed services. 
 

RESPITE SERVICES 

 In-home respite services mean intermittent or regularly scheduled temporary non- 
medical care and supervision provided in the consumer’s own home when the consumer 
resides with a family member. 

 Cost-effective out-of-home respite service options may include temporary residential 
services, vendored weekend program (Saturday program), and other services designed 
to provide planned relief from the ongoing care and supervision of the consumer.  

  
 

134



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 8 
 

POLICIES 
 

CHILDREN 

It is the policy of NLACRC to empower and advocate for consumers and families to access 
existing personal and community resources, such as Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, 
and Treatment (EPSDT), whenever possible to meet their family support needs. Thus, to the 
extent that the law requires, NLACRC will encourage families to use these resources before 
expending the center’s funds. NLACRC will consider the provision of generic resources in the 
family support planning process when the authorization of the service, or some portion 
thereof, is for the expressed purpose of providing for the care and/or supervision of the child 
or for the purpose of providing respite to the child’s caregiver. Additionally, the planning team 
must give consideration to the ordinary care, support, and supervision that a family must 
provide to a child of the same age without a disability and to cost-effectiveness. 

The regional center may only purchase respite services when the care and supervision needs of 
a consumer exceed that of an individual of the same age without a developmental disability. As 
such, regional center-funded services will focus on services required by and resulting from the 
consumer’s developmental disability. NLACRC will seek to provide effective family support 
services. This may include using creative and innovative approaches to meet objectives 
contained in the consumer’s Individual Program Plan (IPP)/Individual Family Service Plan 
(IFSP) and represent a cost-effective use of public funds. 

NLACRC will use the most commonly encountered situations to help in determining the 
typical level of support services for a minor consumer. The situations relate to the increasing 
care and supervision the minor may need based on his or her age and degree of disability. 
Finally, NLACRC cannot anticipate all situations, and therefore, individualized planning is 
essential. NLACRC recognizes that there may be circumstances in which a family needs an 
exceptional amount of respite services. Exceptional circumstances may include medical or 
behavioral conditions, either acute or chronic, which require an intense amount of care, 
supervision and/or treatment or an acute medical or physical condition that impacts the 
caregiver’s ability to provide appropriate care and supervision to the minor consumer. 
Therefore, NLACRC’s executive director or his or her designee may approve respite services 
at an exceptional level. The service coordinator must make a request for an exception, which 
must be reviewed by the Center’s staffing committee; the committee will make a 
recommendation regarding the proposed family support plan. The service coordinator will 
reconvene with the family/caregiver to discuss the committee’s recommendation and complete 
the individualized program planning process. In the event there is disagreement regarding the 
amount of respite services to be included in an individual’s IPP, NLACRC will provide a 
written notice and appeal rights; please see the Fair Hearing Service Standard. 

135



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 9 
 

All respite purchase of service (POS) authorizations will be reviewed for Family Cost 
Participation Program eligibility and all eligible consumers will be subject to requirements of 
the program.  
 

ADULTS 

It is the policy of NLACRC to support adult consumers who choose to live in the home of a 
family member. To this end, NLACRC will provide support services that allow the caregivers 
periodic relief from the ongoing responsibilities of care and supervision. The regional center 
will typically purchase respite services when the care and supervision needs of a consumer 
exceed that of an individual of the same age without a developmental disability. Furthermore, 
it is the policy of NLACRC to empower and advocate for consumers and families to access 
existing personal and community resources, such as generic resources, whenever it is 
appropriate to meet family support needs. Thus, to the extent that the law requires, NLACRC 
will consider the provision of generic resources in the family support planning process when 
the authorization of the services, or some portion thereof, is for the expressed purpose of 
meeting the care and/or supervision needs of the individual or for the purpose of providing 
respite to the individual’s caregiver. The need for respite often correlates to the consumer’s 
increasing need for care and supervision due to the degree of his or her disability. Finally, 
NLACRC cannot anticipate all situations, and therefore, individualized planning is essential.  

NLACRC recognizes that there may be circumstances in which a family needs an exceptional 
amount of respite services. Exceptional circumstances may include medical or behavioral 
conditions, either acute or chronic, which require an intense amount of care, supervision and/or 
treatment or an acute medical or physical condition that impacts the caregiver’s ability to provide 
appropriate care and supervision to the minor consumer. Therefore, NLACRC’s executive 
director or his or her designee may approve respite at an exceptional level. The service 
coordinator must make a request for an exception, which must be reviewed by the Center’s 
staffing committee; the committee will make a recommendation regarding the proposed family 
support plan. The service coordinator will reconvene with the family/caregiver to discuss the 
committee’s recommendation and complete the individualized program planning process. In 
the event there is disagreement regarding the amount of respite service to be included in an 
individual’s IPP, NLACRC will provide a written notice and appeal rights; please see the Fair 
Hearing Service Standard. 
 
DAY CARE SERVICES 
 
DEFINITION: 
 
Day care services mean services that provide appropriate non-medical care and supervision, 
while a parent is engaged in employment in or out of the home and/or engaged in educational 
activities leading to employment, to ensure the consumer’s safety in the absence of family 
members. Day care services will attend to the consumer’s basic self-help needs and other 
activities of daily living including interaction, socialization, and continuation of usual daily 

136



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 10 
 

routines which would ordinarily be performed by the family member. Day care services can be 
provided by a licensed family day care agency, a licensed childcare center, a licensed day-camp, 
preschool, a family member voucher arrangement, or through participant-directed services, if 
eligible. 
 
POLICIES 
 

CHILDREN 

It is the policy of NLACRC to empower and advocate for consumers and families to access 
existing personal and community resources whenever possible to meet their day care needs. 
Thus, to the extent that the law requires, NLACRC will encourage families to use these 
resources before expending the center’s funds. Additionally, that the planning team must give 
consideration to the ordinary care. This also means that consideration must be given to the 
ordinary care, support, and supervision that a family must provide to a child of the same age 
without a disability and to cost-effectiveness. 
 
NLACRC may pay the cost of the day care services that exceed the cost of providing day care 
to a child without a disability when the child resides in the family home. NLACRC may pay in 
excess of this amount when a family can demonstrate a financial need and when doing so will 
enable the child to remain in the family home. All day care POS authorizations will be reviewed 
for Family Cost Participation Program eligibility and all eligible consumers will be subject to 
requirements of the program. 
 

ADULTS 

It is the policy of NLACRC to support adult consumers who choose to live in the home of a 
family member. The NLACRC acknowledges that adult consumers may require care and 
supervision in the absence of a caregiver and that parents/guardians/caregivers may not be able 
to provide constant ongoing care and supervision while engaged in employment or educational 
activities leading to employment. As such, NLACRC will provide day care services to adult 
consumers in need of care and supervision during the absence of their usual caregiver. 
 
NLACRC will use the following factors in determining the need for day care services: 

 Length of time the consumer is able to be left unsupervised. 
 Availability of natural supports (family members, friends, neighbors, etc.). 
 Parent’s employment status and/or educational activities leading to employment. 
 Consumer’s involvement in a day program. 
 Eligibility and/or use of generic services such as In-Home Support Services. 

 

137



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 11 
 

PERSONAL ASSISTANTS 

DEFINITION 
 

CHILDREN 

Personal assistant services are to assist with bathing, grooming, dressing, toileting, meal 
preparation, feeding, and protective supervision is a typical parental responsibility for minor 
children. Personal assistant services for minor children will be considered on an exception basis 
when the needs of the consumer are of such a nature that it requires more than one person to 
provide the needed care. There may be exceptional circumstances as a result of the severity 
and/or intensity of the developmental disability that may impact the family’s ability to provide 
specialized care and supervision while maintaining the child in the family home. Eligibility 
and/or use of generic services such as In-Home Support Services will be explored and accessed 
where possible prior to NLACRC funding as an exception. 
 

ADULTS 

Personal assistant services are to assist consumers who require support in the following areas 
of activities of daily living, including bathing, grooming, dressing, toileting, meal preparation, 
feeding, and protective supervision. Personal assistant services are intended to provide adult 
consumers with appropriate care and supervision and assist consumers in maintaining 
community living arrangements, including a living arrangement in the family home, if that is 
the consumer’s preference. 
 

POLICY 
 
It is the policy of NLACRC to support adult consumers who choose to live in the home of a 
family member. The NLACRC acknowledges that adult consumers may require care and 
supervision in the absence of a caregiver and that parents/guardians/caregivers may not be 
able to provide constant ongoing care and supervision due to aging, declining health, or 
other mitigating factors. As such, NLACRC will provide personal assistant services to adult 
consumers in need of care and supervision and/or enhanced care and supervision. 
 
NLACRC will use the following factors in determining the need for personal assistant: 

 Length of time the consumer is able to be left unsupervised. 
 Availability of natural supports (family members, friends, neighbors. etc.). 
 Consumer’s involvement in a day program. 

 

 Eligibility and/or use of generic services such as In-Home Support Services, 
college/university special student services, or Department of Rehabilitation. 

 

 Support based on an assessed need when   a   consumer’s   behavioral   or medical 
issues are of such severity that a parent requires assistance in the home in order to 
adequately care for the consumer. 

138



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 12 
 

CAMPING, SOCIAL RECREATION AND NONMEDICAL THERAPIES 
 

It is the policy of NLACRC to provide family support in a manner that allows parents and 
families to obtain planned relief from caregiving responsibilities for child and adults while 
meeting the care and supervision needs of the individual we serve. Camping, social recreation 
and nonmedical therapies that provide parent and families the opportunity to schedule time for 
relief may be considered to meet the individualized need of the parent/caregiver and family, as 
identified in the IPP. Please see the Camp, Social Recreation and Nonmedical Therapies Service 
Standard for definition and policies. 
 
 
OTHER FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES 

DEFINITION 
 

Other family support services may include, but are not limited to adaptive equipment, advocacy, 
necessary appliances and supplies, homemaker services, diapers, education and training 
services, and counseling and mental health services. 

POLICY 
 

NLACRC will provide other family support services as determined through the individual 
program planning process. This process must include consideration of typical parental 
responsibility to provide a similar service to a child without a disability, the availability of generic 
sources that have a legal responsibility to provide services (such as private health insurance, 
local education agencies, California Children’s Services, and Medi-Cal), and the cost-
effectiveness of services and service providers of comparable quality. 
 
NLACRC may purchase diapers for children 3 years of age or older. NLACRC may purchase 
diapers for children less than three 3 years of age when a family can demonstrate a financial 
need and when doing so will enable the child to remain in the family home. 
 
NLACRC may purchase van modifications for consumers to enable them to access the 
community when generic or natural supports are not available. Modifications must be 
consistent with the most cost-effective adaptation that meets the individualized need of the 
consumer and must represent the lowest of three bids from vendored service providers. 
 
LICENSED RESIDENTIAL SERVICES 

DEFINITION 

Licensed residential services are designed to provide training and supervised living 
arrangements for children and adults with developmental disabilities in other than the 
individual’s home or that of a family member. Residential services include community care 
facilities, foster homes for children and adults, health care facilities, and state developmental 
centers. 

139



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 13 
 

POLICY 

It is the policy of NLACRC to help consumers obtain residential services based upon goals and 
objectives contained in their IPPs. NLACRC will also adhere to the following: 

 

 Ensure that every viable alternative has been given to help families in maintaining their 
children at home, before considering out-of-home placement. 

 Use only licensed facilities for residential services suitable to meet a consumer’s needs. 
Within available licensed residential service alternatives, preference in placement will be 
as follows: 
a. Family-like settings. 
b. Small (6 beds or less) settings. 
c. Placements integrated into community settings. 

 Effective July 1, 2012, a regional center shall not purchase residential services from a 
State Department of Social Services licensed 24-hour residential care facility with a 
licensed capacity of 16 or more beds, with two exceptions: 
a. The residential facility has been approved to participate in the Home and 

Community-Based Services Waiver or another existing waiver program or is 
certified to participate in the Medi-Cal program; or 

b. The service provider has a written agreement and specific plan prior to July 1, 
2012, with the vendoring regional center to downsize the existing facility by 
transitioning its residential services to living arrangements of 15 beds or less or 
restructure the large facility to meet federal Medicaid eligibility requirements on 
or before June 30, 2013. 

 In order to maintain a consumer’s preferred living arrangement and adjust the residential 
services and supports in accordance with changing service needs identified in the IPP, 
NLACRC may enter into a signed written agreement with a residential service provider 
for a consumer’s supervision, training, and support needs to be provided at a lower 
Alternative Residential Model (ARM) rate level as indicated        on the consumer’s IPP 
rather than at the current ARM service level for which the  residential provider is 
vendored to care for the other residents of the home. In such a case, NLACRC will 
ensure the following: 
a. Services provided to other facility residents comply with the applicable service 

requirements for the facility’s approved service level. 
 

b. Protection of the health and safety of each facility resident. 
 
 

c. Identification of the revised services and supports to be provided to the consumer 
whose needs have changed. 
 

d. If the service needs of the identified consumer change such that the consumer 
requires a higher level of supervision, training, and support, NLACRC shall 

140



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 14 
 

provide supplemental support, alternatives or will consider pursuing an 
adjustment of the consumer’s service level to meet the consumer’s changing 
needs. 
 

e. There is agreement between NLACRC, the consumer, and the service provider 
that the service provider can safely provide the services and supports needed by 
the consumer, as indicated in the IPP. 

 Investigate appropriate and economically feasible alternatives for residential services 
within the center’s catchment area before placing a consumer outside the area. If suitable 
services cannot be found within the area, NLACRC may seek service outside its area. 
NLACRC will set a priority on placing a consumer as close to his or her home 
community as possible, however, placements may be made anywhere in the state of 
California. 

 Pursuant to statutory requirements, a consumer who has been convicted of a sex offense 
against a minor shall not be placed in a community care facility within one mile of an 
elementary school or community location where children are known to gather.3  

 
 Pursuant to statutory requirements, a consumer for whom registration is required 

pursuant to the Sex Offender Registration Act4 shall not be placed in any residence 
within 2,000 feet of any public or private school or park or community location where 
children regularly gather.5  

 Per statutory requirements, no consumer released on parole for imprisonment of an 
offense requiring registration pursuant to the Sex Offender Registration Act shall reside 
in a single-family dwelling with any other person required to register pursuant to the Sex 
Offender Registration Act unless those persons are legally related by blood, marriage, or 
adoption.6  
 

 NLACRC can only authorize the purchase of an out-of-state residential service identified 
in a consumer’s IPP when the director determines the proposed service or an 
appropriate alternative, as determined by the director, is not available from resources and 
facilities within the state. Prior to the expenditure of funds, NLACRC must seek the 
Department of Developmental Services’ (DDS’s) approval for funding an out-of-state 
residential service. The request must be submitted to the director of the DDS, in writing, 
signed by the executive director and include the following information: 
a. Name and location of the out-of-state service provider and a description of the 

services to be provided to the regional center consumer; 

 

3   Health and Safety Code Section 1564 (a). 
 

4   Penal Code Section 290, et seq. 
 

5   Penal Code Section 3003.5(b). 
 

6   Penal Code Section 3003.5(a) This restriction is applicable during the period of parole. 
 

141



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 15 
 

b. Verification that NLACRC has contacted the other state’s agency responsible for 
providing services to individuals with developmental disabilities to confirm that 
the identified service provider is in good standing and is utilized by its home state 
in the provision of services; 

c. Verification that NLACRC has also contacted the other state’s licensing or 
certification agency (as applicable to that state) and confirmed that the residential 
program is in good standing and authorized to provide services; 

d. Name of the educational agency that will be responsible for facilitating and 
funding educational services for the consumer, as applicable; 

e. NLACRC’s plan for quarterly face-to-face monitoring of the consumer and 
his/her IPP objectives; 

f. NLACRC’s plan for ensuring the out-of-state provider reports special incidents 
to the regional center in conformity with Title 17 regulations; 

g. Description of the consumer, his/her residential service needs, and current IPP; 

h. Proposed effective date for authorization to begin, period of time for which 
NLACRC is seeking authorization to expend state funds for the purchase of out-
of-state residential services (up to six months per request), and the rate of 
payment; and 

i.   The NLACRC’s efforts to locate, develop or adapt an appropriate program for 
the consumer within the state, and an explanation of how the regional center 
determined that the out-of-state residential provider is appropriate and can meet 
the needs of the consumer (include whether referral was result of a fair hearing, 
court order, etc.). 

The DDS may approve a request to purchase an out-of-state residential service for no 
more than six months per request, for the duration of any out-of-state placement. Should the 
regional center determine that funding of the service is needed for an additional six- month 
period or less, the regional center shall submit a new request for approval with all relevant 
information pursuant to the list above. In addition, the new request must include an updated 
report for inclusion in the consumer’s IPP, summarizing the regional center’s efforts to locate, 
develop, or adapt an appropriate program for the consumer within the state. 

 
INDEPENDENT LIVING SERVICES 

DEFINITION 
 
Independent living services (ILS) are designed to give consumers the supports they may need 
to live in or transition to their own homes (whether leased, rented, or owned). NLACRC may 
provide this service on a permanent or periodic basis as defined on each consumer’s IPP. 
 

142



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 16 
 

ILS offer individual or group training and support in some or all of the following areas: cooking; 
cleaning; shopping; menu planning; meal preparation; money management, including check 
cashing and purchasing activities; use of public transportation; personal health and hygiene; 
self-advocacy; social skill development; use of medical and dental services, as well as other 
community resources; community resource awareness such as police, fire, or emergency help; 
and home and community safety. The service may also help consumers to recruit, train, and 
hire individuals to provide personal care and other assistance including in-home supportive 
services workers. ILS are conducted in natural environments and activities are not simulated 
but are conducted as part of everyday life while participating and living in one’s own 
community. 
 
ILS include varying levels of instruction and support based on the consumer’s needs. ILS may 
also be used with other services to promote the competence of parents who have a 
developmental disability. 
 

POLICY 
 

It is the policy of NLACRC to support consumers in selecting their living options. As such, 
NLACRC will work with adult consumers, and where appropriate their family members, to 
determine the type and amount of ILS required by consumers to live in homes they lease, rent, 
or own, homes of family members, or transition to homes they lease, rent, or own. In 
determining the provision of ILS, natural supports (such as family members) and generic 
resources (such as In-Home Support Services) must be explored as possible alternatives or 
adjuncts to ILS based on the consumer’s identified need(s). 
 
To make the determination of the amount of service needed, an assessment of the consumer’s 
strengths and needs must be completed.   The focus of the assessment should be based on 
specific needs for support and/or critical skills deficits identified in the IPP process. The 
assessment should use baseline information, specific measurable outcomes, and what methods 
and strategies will be employed to achieve them, as well as a recommendation for service 
frequency and intensity necessary to achieve progress towards identified outcomes. 
 
The provision of ILS may entail the consumer moving from his or her family’s home or licensed 
residential facility to a single or shared living arrangement. For others, the service may be 
provided to the consumer in the family’s home or licensed residential facility, in preparation for 
moving to his or her own home or in supporting the consumer in the family’s home. 
 
For ILS related to transitioning to a more independent setting, ILS typically would be provided 
during the last six months prior to the planned move and there must be some indication that 
the consumer has, or will have, the necessary funds to make the move. 
 
ILS may include varying levels of instruction and support based the individual’s needs to 
maintain the ability to live and participate in the community. Continuation of training in specific 
areas is dependent on documented measurement of progress. 
 

143



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 17 
 

In the event that a consumer is a registered sex offender with applicable residency restrictions 
pursuant to Penal Code 3003.5, the consumer’s residence must comply with the proximity 
requirements identified in the aforementioned code. ILS services may assist a consumer in 
locating a residence that meets the proximity requirements. In the event that a consumer 
chooses to reside in a location that violates the proximity requirements, the center will be unable 
to provide ILS services and supports. A decision to deny or terminate ILS services may be 
appealed through the fair hearing process; please see the Fair Hearing Service Standard.7  

 
SUPPORTED LIVING SERVICES 

DEFINITION 

Supported living services (SLS) afford consumers the opportunity to live in homes they rent, 
lease, or own with support services available to the consumer in his or her residence as often 
and as long as needed. This service model allows the consumer to remain in his or her own 
home even if the support needs of the consumer change, provided that this is the consumer’s 
preferred living option as documented on the IPP. 

The range of SLS and supports available include, but are not limited to: assessment of consumer 
needs; assistance in finding, modifying and maintaining a home; facilitating circles of support 
to encourage the development of unpaid and natural supports in the community; advocacy and 
self-advocacy facilitation; development of employment goals; social behavioral, and daily living 
skills training and support; development and provision of 24-hour emergency response system; 
securing and maintaining adaptive equipment and supplies; recruiting, training, and hiring 
individuals to provide personal care and other assistance, (including in-home supportive 
services workers, paid neighbors, and paid roommates); providing respite and emergency 
relief for personal care attendants; and facilitating community participation. 

A consumer is eligible for SLS upon a determination made through the IPP process that 
the consumer: 
 

 Is at least 18 years of age. 
 

 Has expressed directly or through the consumer’s personal advocate, as appropriate, a 
preference for: 
a. SLS among the options proposed during the IPP process, and 

 

b. Living in a home that the consumer chooses and is not the place of residence of 
a parent, conservator, or caregiver of the consumer. Consumers will not be denied 
eligibility for SLS solely because of the nature and severity of their disabilities. 

 

POLICY 
 

 
7   Penal Code Section 3003.5 states that it is unlawful for any person for whom registration is required, pursuant to Section 

290, to reside within 2000 feet of any public or private school or park where children regularly gather. Penal Code 290 is 
also known as the “Sex Offender Registration Act.” 

 

144



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 18 
 

It is the policy of NLACRC to support consumers in their choice of living options. SLS are 
such an option and NLACRC will work with adult consumers and/or their family members to 
develop individualized supported living service plans that reflect the consumer’s choices about 
where and with whom he or she lives as well as the selection of service providers. Plans must 
include an assessment of the consumer’s preferences and needs (inclusive of comprehensive 
strategies to ensure the availability of paid and unpaid members to comprise the consumer’s 
circle of support group), strategies that detail how the consumer’s emotional, social and 
recreational needs will be met, and schedules of amounts and types of training and support 
activities to be provided. Finally, the provision of SLS must be effective in meeting the goals 
and objectives contained in the consumer’s IPP and be a cost-effective use of public funds. 
 
NLACRC will confirm that all appropriate and available sources of natural and generic supports 
have been utilized to the fullest extent possible for a consumer living in a supported living 
arrangement. 
 
Effective July 1, 2011, for consumers receiving SLS who share a household with one or more 
adults receiving SLS, NLACRC will consider whether efficiencies in the provision of service 
may be achieved if some tasks are shared, meaning the tasks can be provided at the same time 
while still ensuring that each person’s individual needs are met. These tasks shall only be shared 
to the extent they are permitted under the Labor Code and related regulations. At the time of 
development, review, or modification of a consumer’s IPP, for housemates currently in a 
supported living arrangement or planning to move together into a supported living 
arrangement, or for consumers who live with a housemate not receiving supported living 
services who is responsible for the task, NLACRC will consider, with input from the service 
provider, whether any tasks, such as meal preparation and cleanup, menu planning, laundry, 
shopping, general household tasks, or errands can appropriately be shared. If tasks can be 
appropriately shared, NLACRC will purchase the pro-rated share of the activity. Upon a 
determination of a reduction in services, NLACRC will inform the consumer of the reason for 
the determination and shall provide a written notice of fair hearing rights pursuant to Welfare 
and Institutions Code, Section 4701. 
 
STANDARDIZED ASSESSMENT QUESTIONNAIRE 
 

To ensure that consumers in or entering supported living arrangements receive the appropriate 
amount and type of supports to meet the person’s choice and needs as determined by the IPP 
team and that generic resources are utilized to the fullest extent possible, the IPP team shall 
complete a standardized assessment questionnaire at the time of development, review, or 
modification of a consumer’s IPP. 
 
The questionnaire shall be used during the team meetings, in addition to the provider’s 
assessment, to assist in determining whether the services provided or recommended are 
necessary and sufficient and that the most cost-effective methods of supported living are 
utilized. 
 
 

145



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 19 
 

The IPP team shall utilize the standardized assessment questionnaire developed and provided 
to the regional centers by the Department of Developmental Services. 
 

RENT, MORTGAGE, AND LEASE PAYMENTS 
 
Rent, mortgage, and lease payments of a supported living home and household expenses are 
the responsibility of the consumer and any roommate who resides with the consumer. 
NLACRC shall not make rent, mortgage, or lease payments on a supported living home, or pay 
for household expenses of consumers receiving SLS, except under the following circumstances: 
 
 The executive director of the regional center verifies in writing that making the rent 

mortgage, or lease payments or paying for household expenses is required to meet the 
specific care needs unique to the individual consumer as set forth in an addendum to the 
consumer’s IPP, and is required when a consumer’s demonstrated medical, behavioral, 
or psychiatric condition presents a health and safety risk to himself or herself, or another. 
 

 During the time period that regional center is making rent, mortgage, or lease payments, 
or paying for household expenses, the SLS vendor shall assist the consumer in accessing 
all sources of generic and natural supports consistent with the needs of the consumer. 

NLACRC shall not make rent, mortgage, or lease payments on a supported living home or pay 
for household expenses for more than six months, unless NLACRC finds that it is necessary 
to meet the consumer’s particular needs pursuant to the IPP. The regional center shall review a 
finding of necessity on a quarterly basis and the executive director shall annually verify that the 
requirements set forth in paragraph (1) above continue to be met. 

If NLACRC has been contributing to rent, mortgage, or lease payments or paying for 
household expenses prior to July 1, 2009, the service coordinator shall, at the time of IPP 
review, determine if these contributions are still needed. If these contributions are no longer 
appropriate, a transition plan to end regional center’s contributions (not to exceed 6 months) 
is permitted. 
 

IN-HOME SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
NLACRC shall not purchase SLS for a consumer to supplant In-Home Support Services.  
 
NLACRC shall not purchase supportive services for a consumer who meets the criteria to 
receive, but declines to apply for, in-home supportive services8  benefits. The regional center’s 
executive director may waive this if there is a finding that extraordinary circumstances exist. 
 
 
 

 
8   Supportive Services include domestic services, related services, heavy cleaning, personal care services, accompaniment to 

health-related appointments or alternative resource sites, yard hazard abatement, protective supervision, teaching and 
demonstration directed at reducing the need for other supportive services, and paramedical services. 

 

146



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 20 
 

SEX OFFENDERS 
 
In the event that a consumer is a registered sex offender with applicable residency restrictions 
pursuant to Penal Code 3003.5, the consumer’s residence must comply with the proximity 
requirements identified in the aforementioned code. SLS services may assist a consumer in 
locating a residence that meets the proximity requirements. In the event that a consumer 
chooses to reside in a location that violates the proximity requirements, the center will be unable 
to provide SLS services and supports.9  A decision to deny or terminate SLS services may be 
appealed through the fair hearing process; please see the Fair Hearing Process Service 
Standard. 
 
EXCEPTION PROCEDURE 
 
NLACRC cannot anticipate all requests for family support services and living arrangements. 
It is recognized that some individual needs are so unique that they are not addressed in this 
service standard. Therefore, NLACRC’s executive director or his or her designee may grant 
exceptions.   The planning team must make a request for an exception to the center’s staffing 
committee. The committee must review the request and make a recommendation to the 
executive director. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
9   Panel Code Section 3003.5 states that it is unlawful for any person for whom registration is required, pursuant to Section 

290, to reside within 2000 feet of any public or private school or park where children regularly gather. Penal Code 290 is 
also known as the “sex Offender Registration Act.” 

147



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 21 
 

II. SOCIAL RECREATION, CAMP, AND NON-MEDICAL THERAPIES 
Service and Procedural Standards 

 

PHILOSOPHY 
 
It is the philosophy of NLACRC that people with developmental disabilities have access to age 
appropriate social/recreational activities that promote community integration. NLACRC 
believes that such activities are an important and necessary part of all people’s lives. These 
activities help to ensure a person’s emotional well-being, promote and develop friendships, and 
enhance social opportunities. As such, NLACRC will promote the participation of people with 
developmental disabilities in meaningful social/recreational activities. Activities such as camp, 
social recreation and nonmedical therapies are often considered social/recreational in nature, 
however, may meet other needs in the IPP such as those related to family support, social skills 
development, or community inclusion. 
 
NLACRC seeks to support and empower families to maintain their children at home when it 
is the families’ preference. The Center is dedicated to providing family support services that 
meet unique and individualized needs. NLACRC also supports the empowerment of 
consumers to have increased opportunities to enhance their social skills and friendships. 
NLACRC believes social skills development is essential to establishing and maintaining 
friendships, fostering emotional development, academic success, and teaching skills that will be 
important for employment later in life. NLACRC recognizes that socialization, leisure, and 
recreation activities are valuable and may remove barriers to facilitate consumers' full 
participation in a broad range of community opportunities. Inclusion in one’s community is an 
important consideration in the program planning process, and toward that end, the planning 
team must consider those   social recreational opportunities available that will support an 
individual’s inclusion in an integrated setting when that setting meets the individualized needs 
of the consumer. 
 
A regional center shall not require a consumer or family member to: 
(1) Exhaust services under the In-Home Supportive Services program in order for their 

regional center to consider funding or to authorize purchasing social recreation services, 
camping services, and nonmedical therapies, including, but not limited to, specialized 
recreation, art, dance, and music. 
 

(2) Exchange respite hours or any other service or support authorized by the regional center 
for service hours of social recreation services, camping services, or nonmedical therapies, 
including, but not limited to, specialized recreation, art, dance, and music, as a condition 
of service authorization by the regional center of social recreation services, camping 
services, and nonmedical therapies. 

 
 

(3)   Pay a copayment, or a similar shared pay arrangement aimed at offsetting costs in order 

148



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 22 
 

to receive social recreation services, camping services, or nonmedical therapies, 
including, but not limited to, specialized recreation, art, dance, and music. 

 
Lastly, NLACRC seeks for individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities to have 
access to age-appropriate, non-medical therapies when they are needed as a family support 
service, opportunity for social skills development, or choice and preference for accessing 
community integration and socialization in the community.  When developing a family support 
plan the focus is on the individual and the family of the individual with developmental 
disabilities and the needs and preferences of the individual and the family, when appropriate.  
The provision of services to consumers and their families is intended to meet the goals stated 
in the individual program plan, reflect the preferences and choices of the consumer, and reflect 
the cost-effective use of public resources. 
 
 
CAMP AS A FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICE 

DEFINITION 
 
Family Support Services mean services and supports that are provided to individuals with  an 
intellectual or developmental disability and their family that ultimately contributes to the ability 
for the family to have the supports necessary to continue to reside together. 

POLICY 
 

NLACRC will authorize camp as a family support service for children and adults when it is 
identified for increased access and inclusion, in the individual program plan, the camping 
service is an  effective means of meeting the individualized need of the child as an outcome in 
the individual program plan. 
 

CAMP AS A FORM OF DAYCARE 
 

DEFINITION 
 

Day care services mean services that provide appropriate non-medical care and supervision, 
while a parent is engaged in employment in or out of the home and/or engaged in 
educational activities leading to employment, to ensure the consumer’s safety in the absence of 
family members. Day care services will attend to the consumer’s basic self-help needs and other 
activities of daily living including interaction, socialization, and continuation of usual daily 
routines which would ordinarily be performed by the family member. Day care services can be 
provided by a licensed family day care agency, a licensed childcare center, preschool, a family 
member voucher arrangement, or through participant- directed services, if eligible. A share of 
cost will not be assessed for camp as a form of daycare. 
 
POLICY 

149



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 23 
 

 

NLACRC will authorize camp as a form of daycare service for children and adults when parent 
is engaged in employment in or out of the home and/or engaged in educational activities 
leading to employment, to ensure the consumer’s safety in the absence of family members and 
this service will meet a need identified in the individual program plan. 
 
SOCIALIZATION, LEISURE, AND RECREATION SKILLS 
 
DEFINITIONS: 
 

Socialization, leisure, and recreation services are those services and supports designed to 
enhance the development of appropriate socialization skills for children who may have social 
skill challenges which limit age-appropriate socialization opportunities or adults who may have 
difficulty in developing friendships. 
 
Social skills are those abilities and behaviors needed to initiate, plan, explore and 
participate in meaningful, age-appropriate social relationships and activities. 
 
Social skills challenges may include but are not limited to: excessive shyness or passivity; 
limited responses to social approaches by others; inappropriate social interactions (e.g., 
teasing/bullying); excessive friendly advances toward others; socially unacceptable mannerisms, 
difficulty in developing friendships, and other behaviors (easily frustrated, resistive) that might 
interfere with appropriate social interaction with peers and others. 

Social/recreational activities help individuals to learn and develop age-appropriate social 
skills. Also, these activities provide opportunities in both integrated and specialized settings 
to engage in hobbies, participate in recreational events, and pursue leisure interests. Typically, 
consumers access and participate in social/recreational activities via their families, residential 
services, or day programs. 
 

In communities where such opportunities are not available to persons with developmental 
disabilities, NLACRC will encourage publicly and privately funded socialization, leisure, and 
recreational programs to adapt their services in order to accommodate our consumers. 
NLACRC also recognizes that some individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities 
are precluded from participation in typical social activities by virtue of their behavior, physical 
condition, or level of skill. 
 
 

POLICY 
 
It is the policy of NLACRC to advocate and supply information to consumers, their family 
members, and service providers on social/recreational activities. This will enable consumers, 
their family members, and/or service providers to arrange for individual or group 
social/recreational activities. 

150



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 24 
 

When an individual’s behavior, physical condition, or level of functioning precludes 
participation in most social activities, and their day services do not provide social/recreational 
opportunities, a specialized program may be indicated to develop the specific social skills 
needed for that individual. In those instances, the goal of the program would be for the 
consumer to acquire the social and behavioral skill(s) identified in the consumer’s Individual 
Program Plan (IPP) to enable the consumer to participate in more integrated social/recreational 
opportunities. 
 
For consumers whose individual social/recreational needs are met through the natural 
involvement in one’s family activities or residential service program, services may be funded to 
enhance access and community inclusion.  The provision of services to consumers is intended 
to meet the goals stated in the individual program plan, reflect the preferences and choices of 
the consumer, and reflect the cost-effective use of public resources. 
 

Such children and adults often require supports that are absent from many typical 
social/recreation programs. Accordingly, NLACRC will purchase socialization, leisure and 
recreation services or supports under the following circumstances: 

• When the consumer is eligible for regional center services; 
 

• The NLACRC program planning has determined that the consumer has social skill 
challenge(s), as defined above, and such challenge(s) has been documented in the 
consumer's IPP; and 

 

• An opportunity has been identified to achieve an improvement in the consumer's social, 
recreational and leisure life in the community or to develop friendships and there is an 
agreement that a habilitative service designed to teach social skills is needed; and 

 

• NLACRC will not typically purchase a segregated (or not mainstream) socialization 
program when there is a generic service which is willing (either with or without supports) 
to include the consumer in its activities unless a unique situation warrants consideration 
of the segregated program in this circumstance; and 

 

• The consumer's Individual Program Plan will include specific desired outcomes and 
plans to develop social skills or friendships with the overall goal of including the 
consumer into social/recreation activities with nondisabled peers; and 

 

• The use of segregated (or not mainstream) socialization programming will be reviewed 
at regular intervals not to exceed six months. Program planning and progress toward 
participation in integrated or typical social recreation programs will be reviewed annually. 

• In determining the frequency/duration of socialization, leisure or recreation skill 
development for a child with a developmental disability, care is taken not to unduly 
interfere with the time that families spend together in social activities during weekends 
and vacations; and 

 

• Consumers who live in community care and health care residential homes are entitled 

151



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 25 
 

to receive social, leisure and recreation services as part of such residential programming 
as a rule these services may not be purchased for consumers who reside in such licensed 
homes. Please note, exceptions will be considered when the request for social, leisure, or 
recreation does not duplicate or enhances current programming that achieves these 
goals. 

 

• NLACRC will support funding a support staff to assist the consumer in their social, 
leisure and recreational programming to increase positive behavioral, social and/or 
emotional skills for consumers who are currently unable to access other resources or in 
mainstream settings. 

 
SOCIAL RECREATION SERVICES AS A FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICE 
 
DEFINTION 
 

Social/recreational activities help individuals to learn and develop age-appropriate social 
skills. Also, these activities provide opportunities in both integrated and specialized settings 
to engage in hobbies, participate in recreational events, and pursue leisure interests.  
 

POLICY 
 

NLACRC will authorize social recreational activities as a family support service for children and 
adults when the provision of the service will provide parents and/or caregivers relief from the 
demanding care and supervision of the consumer, as demonstrated in the individual program 
plan (IPP), and the use of a social recreational activity is an effective and cost-effective way of 
achieving a family support outcome in the IPP. 
 
NON-MEDICAL THERAPIES 
 
DEFINITIONS: 
 

Nonmedical therapies are services are used alongside evidence-based interventions or 
conventional treatments. These therapies can support habilitative services and may improve 
an individual’s quality of life.  
 

Social skills are those abilities and behaviors needed to initiate, plan, explore and participate 
in meaningful, age-appropriate social relationships and activities. 
 

Social skills challenges may include but are not limited to: excessive shyness or passivity; 
limited responses to social approaches by others; inappropriate social interactions (e.g., 
teasing/bullying); excessive friendly advances toward others; socially unacceptable mannerisms, 
difficulty in developing friendships, and other behaviors (easily frustrated, resistive) that might 
interfere with appropriate social interaction with peers and others. 
 

POLICY 

152



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 26 
 

 

In communities where such opportunities are not available to persons with developmental 
disabilities, NLACRC will encourage publicly and privately funded socialization, leisure, and 
recreational programs to adapt their services in order to accommodate individuals with 
developmental disabilities. NLACRC also recognizes that some individuals with intellectual and 
developmental disabilities are precluded from participation in typical social activities by virtue 
of their behavior, physical condition, or level of skill, and as such, may need specialized services 
or adaptations to generic services in the community to meet their individualized needs. 
 

NON-MEDICAL THERAPIES AS A FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICE 
 

DEFINTION 
 
Non-medical therapies include equine therapy, music therapy, dance therapy, art therapy and 
specialized recreation therapy. 
 

POLICY 
 
NLACRC will authorize non-medical therapies as a family support service for children and 
adults that are designed to provide the acquisition of skills to promote community inclusion 
and socialization opportunities.  Non-medical therapies requested as a form of family support 
will not be authorized as a clinical therapy or treatment. 
 
NON-MEDICAL THERAPIES AS A SOCIALIZATION SERVICE 
 
PHILOSOPHY 
 
Non-Medical Therapies such as equestrian therapy, music therapy, art therapy, and dance 
therapy, may provide individuals with opportunities to enhance social skill development 
through the development of relationships with community members and opportunities to 
practice social skills. Therefore, non-medical therapies may be considered in the program 
planning process when the planning team has identified an IPP outcome related to social 
skills development. 
 
POLICY 
 
NLACRC will purchase non-medical therapies under the following circumstances: 
 

• When the consumer is eligible for regional center services; and 
 

• The NLACRC program planning has determined that the consumer has social skill 
challenge(s), as defined above, and such challenge(s) has been documented in the 
consumer's record; and 

 

• An opportunity has been identified to achieve an improvement in the consumer's social, 
skills or to develop friendships and there is an agreement that a habilitative service 

153



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 27 
 

designed to teach social skills is needed; and 
 

• NLACRC, the consumer, the family and other program planning team members 
such as service providers have assessed and determined that most appropriate service 
to support the consumer’s social skills development is through participation in a 
nonmedical therapy; and 

 

• The program planning team certifies that typical social/recreational programs available 
in the community have been considered, and are not an appropriate option due to the 
individualized needs of the consumer; and 

 

• The consumer's Individual Program Plan will include specific desired outcomes and 
plans to develop social skills or friendships with the overall goal of including the 
consumer into social/recreation activities with nondisabled peers; and 

 

• Program planning and progress toward enhanced social skills will be reviewed 
annually. 

 

• In determining the frequency/duration of participation in a nonmedical therapy for a 
child with a developmental disability, care will be taken not to unduly interfere with the 
time that families spend together in social activities during weekends and vacations. 

 

• Consumers who live in community care and health care residential homes should be 
provided opportunities to socialize, and thus practice social skills, as part of residential 
programming. Please note, exceptions will be considered when the request for a 
nonmedical therapy does not duplicate or enhances current programming that achieves 
these goals. 

  
  
NON-MEDICAL THERAPIES AS HABILITATION, THERAPY, OR 
TREATMENT 
 
Therapies must be evidenced-based in order to be considered habilitative and in order for 
NLACRC to have the statutory authority to purchase. It is the policy of NLACRC to refrain 
from purchasing non-medical therapies as a therapeutic/medical treatment as non- medical 
therapies have yet to demonstrate clinical efficacy and evidence of effectiveness as a clinical 
therapy. Please know, regional centers do not have the statutory authority to purchase 
experimental treatments, therapeutic services, or devices that have not been clinically 
determined or scientifically proven to be effective or safe or for which risks, and complications 
are unknown. Experimental treatments or therapeutic services include experimental medical or 
nutritional therapy when the use of the product for that purpose is not a general physician 
practice. 
 
EXCEPTION PROCEDURE 
 
NLACRC cannot anticipate all requests for family support services and living arrangements. 
It is recognized that some individual needs are so unique that they are not addressed in this 

154



 

NLACRC Service Standards – Page 28 
 

service standard. Therefore, NLACRC’s executive director or his or her designee may grant 
exceptions.   The planning team must make a request for an exception to the center’s staffing 
committee. The committee must review the request and make a recommendation to the 
executive director. 
 
 
 
 
 

155



North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Director’s Report 

March 13, 2024 
 

1. LEGISLATIVE 
 ARCA has joined community stakeholders, including the Lanterman Coalition, in opposing any delay of the 
final provider rate increases. An opinion article in the Capitol Weekly emphasizes the importance for 
California policymakers to continue to invest in the developmental services system including equity and 
service capacity.  The proposal would result in the overall loss of $1 billion in anticipated funding including 
$400 million from federal sources. Quoting Amy Westling “Sustained funding and long-term investments 
remain critical to serving Californians with developmental disabilities”.  Efforts must continue to reach 
policymakers and the Administration to ensure continuous progress for individuals with developmental 
disabilities. 

The California Policy Center for Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities has a new report out titled 
"Homelessness and Housing Needs for Adults Served by the Department of Developmental Services and 
the Regional Center System in California." The report includes policy recommendations regarding housing 
needs of people with developmental disabilities. This report aligns with the emphasis of NLACRC Strategic 
Plan focus area 5 “Safe, Affordable and accessible housing”.  

2. Department of Developmental Services 
 

NLA received information on the expansion of permissible training topics and the updated 
timeline to submit training requests for the Early Start Provider Training initiative, funded 
through the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) of 2021. Permissible training topics have been 
expanded to include the following: Family engagement practices in early intervention; and 
Coursework for Associate of Science degrees and licensure for Speech-Language Pathology, 
Occupational Therapy, and Physical Therapy. The cost for training fees and/or staff time to 
attend training are reimbursable. Early Start providers have a deadline of 9/30/24 to submit their 
requests to NLA.  
 
On February 21, 2024 California Health and Human Services Agency (CalHHS) announced the 
establishment of a Master Plan for Developmental Services Stakeholder Committee that will 
develop the Plan to be released by March 2025. The Stakeholder Committee consists of a diverse 
group of individuals who bring varying backgrounds and experiences. In addition to the 
Stakeholder Committee, there will be subcommittees with subject matter experts, community 
partners, individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities, and family members.   
 
DDS has introduced TBL that would permanently eliminate the AFPF and FCPP fees charged to families. 
These have both been suspended since the beginning of the pandemic.  

 
3.  Coordinated Family Supports: 

Community Services department has created a series of information sessions regarding Coordinated 
Family Supports (CFS). These sessions, created for Case Management include information regarding the 
newly published CFS Directives issued by the Department of Developmental Services (DDS), as well as 
introductions to new CFS providers. The CFS Info Sessions are scheduled for February 27, March 26, and 
April 23. 
CFS identifies and provides supports, assistance and training for the consumer and their family in 
navigating comprehensive services and supports that are tailored to meet their unique needs, provides 

156



additional information & resources, assists with scheduling of service delivery including medical and other 
appointments, and identifies backup providers/supports for future planning. 
 
4. DDS Direct Service Professional Training Stipend Program: 
As of 2/27/2024 there are 46,590 individuals registered for this program.  

 
5. Association of Regional Center Agencies (ARCA):  
ARCA is recommending for the state to consider the following principles: the preservation of the 
entitlement to needed services and supports as defined in the Lanterman Act, ensuring the equitable 
availability of flexible and sustainable services needed to help individuals achieve person-centered 
outcomes, the alignment of policies and available supports based on California’s Employment First Policy, 
to support community inclusion and participation including accessible transportation, leveraging 
innovative technology and proactively prepare for the changing service needs of people served across 
their lifespans considering diagnostic and demographic trends. 

Also working in conjunction with DDS, ARCA continues their work in the following focus areas: Rate Model 
Implementation; Equity Next Steps as DDS is engaging in conversations with Georgetown University for a 
potential new study to better understand the source of inequities and make recommendations; Creating 
aa consistent Respite assessment tool ; Provisional Eligibility and how to implement the expansion of 
provisional eligibility to children in the Early Start program; ICF lag payments; and DSP Training Stipend 
Program.  

6. State Council on Developmental Disabilities (SCDD) 
NCI Surveys- Running through June 2024, DDS with the support of the State Council on Developmental 
Disabilities (SCDD) is conducting data collection for: (1) families with an adult with IDD living in their home, 
(2) families or guardians of an adult with IDD who does not live in their family home and (3) families with a 
child with IDD.  A report will be provided as surveys are received. 

 
7. CENTER OPERATIONS 
I. NLACRC Purchase of Service public meeting for fiscal year 2022/2023 will take place on March 26 at 10 
am & March 27 at 6 pm. Information for the meeting can be accessed through our website. 
 
II. ARCA Grass Roots gathering in Sacramento will be held on April 1st  and April 2nd.  
 
III. Tuition Reimbursement Status- 9 approved, 3 pending, 1 denied 
 

A. Staffing Data  
February New Hires: 1st cycle and 2nd cycle 

 2.12.24 – 4 

 2.26.24 - 8 
 

a. Staffing Changes   

 Transfers – 3 

 Promotions 5 

 Terminations - 6 
 

b. Recruitment- to date as of 2/29/2024 

 # of Offers Accepted - 35 

 # of pending offers - 1 

 # of Declines – 14 

157



 
In collaboration with People Scout recruitment company, a virtual hiring fair was conducted on February 
28, February 29, and March 1. A total of 130 individuals registered and 51 interviews were scheduled for 
the 3 days. We continue ongoing recruitment and interviews to fulfill vacancies. 
 

B. Quality Assurance  
For the month of February 2024, Community Services conducted 80 residential visits as follows: 
o 32 unannounced visits 

 26 - CCFs, 6 - ICFs, 0 - FHAs, 0- FFA (14 AV, 18 SFV/SC) 
o 20 Annual Reviews – CCF and Day Program (8 AV, 12 SFV/SC) 

o 28 Other: 0 Virtual, 28 In-Person Visits (DDS Reviews, New Provider Orientation, QA/RD Walkthrough, 7 

Day visit, SIR Follow/Complaint/CAP Follow-up, Attempted Unannounced Visits – provider was 
not home) 
o 1 Corrective Action Plans developed with residential providers 

o 0 Plan of Improvement with a non-residential provider 

 
C. Consumer Statistics  

As of February 2024, the Center served 35,766 consumers and applicants, including 4,926 in Early Start, 
and 28,088 (increase of 144) in the Lanterman program. The Center’s San Fernando Valley Office serves 
22,575 individuals, Antelope Valley serves 8,785 and the Santa Clarita Office serves 3,893 (these totals 
include applicants, and individuals served under Lanterman and the Early Start programs). 

   
Upcoming Community Events and Educational Training Opportunities: 

 
NLACRC’s Calendar of Events: Calendar of Events | NLACRC 

 
*Additional training and support groups are offered as well!  Please see NLACRC’s Calendar of 
Events, which includes a link for the Family Focus Resource Center, for information regarding 
dates, times and links for these events, trainings and more.  

 
 

Family Focus Resource Center: Events | California State University, Northridge (csun.edu) 
 

*Additionally, the Family Focus Resource Center coordinates several support groups including 
“Black & African American Family Focus Support Group” “Mamas Latinas Grupo de Apoyo” and 
the “Parent Check-In and Chat”.  Please see NLACRC’s Calendar of Events, which includes a link 
for the Family Focus Resource Center, for information regarding more support groups, training 
opportunities, dates, times, and links. 
 

 
Upcoming Disability Organization Events/Activities: 
State Council on Developmental Disabilities next council meeting March 19, 2024 
Disability Rights California’s next board meeting has not yet been announced 

 
 

  
 

158



Month Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Totals

# of Res'l & Day QA Staff 6 7

# Annual Facility Monitoring Visits 23 20 43

# Unannounced Visits 31 32 63

# Corrective Action Plans Issued 2 1 3

*Substantial Inadequacies Cited:

1.Threat to Health or Safety

2.Provision of fewer staff hours than req'd 1

3.Violations of Rights 1

4.Failure to implement consumer's IPP 1

5.Failure to comply with Admission Agreement 1 1

6.Deficiencies handling consumers' cash resources

7.Failure to comply with staff training reqs

8.L4 fails to use methods per program design

9.L4 fails to measure consumer progress

10.Failure to take action per CAP

11.Failure to use rate increase for purposes authorized 

12.Failure to ensure staff completes DSP requirements.

13.Failure to submit Special Incident Report

*per Title 17 §56054(a) 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Residential and Day Program Quality Assurance Monitoring Activities

January 2024 - December 2024

159



March 2023 Increase/
Total Decrease % Change

ALL VALLEYS
   Total Non-Early Start 26,357 28,088 1,731 6.57%
   Total Early Start 4,719 4,926 207 4.39%
   Unit Supervisor Cases (*) 219 421 202 92.24%
   Self Determination Specialist (*) 4 0 -4 -100.00%
   Prenatal Services 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
   Provisional Eligiblity 545 569 24 4.40%
   Development Center 14 14 0 0.00%
   Enhanced Caseloads 240 240 0 0.00%
   Enhanced Case Mgmt 32 32 0 0.00%
   Specialized 1:25 Caseloads 34 29 -5 -14.71%
Lead CSC Trainers 0 7 7 #DIV/0!
   Pending Transfer 40 45 5 12.50%
   Early Start Intake Services 235 459 224 95.32%
   Intake Services 953 936 -17 -1.78%

  TOTAL ALL VALLEYS 33,392 (**) 35,766 2,374 7.11%

SAN FERNANDO VALLEY
   Adult Services 6,385 6,391 6 0.09%
   Adult Unit Supervisor (*) 11 8 -3 -27.27%
   Transition Services 3,275 3,472 197 6.02%
   Transition Unit Supervisor (*) 26 201 175 673.08%
   School Age Services 6,717 7,492 775 11.54%
   School Age Unit Supervisor (*) 49 65 16 32.65%
   Early Start Services 3,293 3,355 62 1.88%
   Early Start Unit Supervisor (*) 0 1 1 #DIV/0!
   Early Start Intake Unit Supervisor (*) 0 14 14 #DIV/0!
   Prenatal Services 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
   Provisional Eligibility 545 569 24 #DIV/0!
   Provisional Unit Supervisor (*) 6 21 15 #DIV/0!
   On-Duty Specialist Unit 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
   Development Center 14 14 0 0.00%
   Enhanced Caseload 240 240 0 0.00%
   Enhanced Case Mgmt 32 32 0 0.00%
   Specialized 1:25 Caseloads 34 29 -5 -14.71%
   Pending Transfer 40 45 5 12.50%
   Early Start Intake Services 235 459 224 95.32%
   Intake Services 531 936 405 76.27%
   Self Determination Specialist (*) 3 0 -3 -100.00%

   TOTAL 20,575 22,575 1,908 9.27%

ANTELOPE VALLEY
   Self Determination Specialist (*) 1 0 -1 -100.00%
   Adult Services 2,724 2,780 56 2.06%
   Adult Unit Supervisor (*) 3 20 17 566.67%
   Transition Unit 1,809 1,961 152 8.40%
   Transition Unit Supervisor (*) 7 1 -6 -85.71%
   School Age Services 2,359 2,726 367 15.56%
   School Age Unit Supervisor (*) 38 57 19 50.00%
   Early Start Unit Supervisor (*) 77 0 -77 -100.00%
   Early Start Intake Unit Supervisor (*) 0 21 21 #DIV/0!
   Early Start Services 797 943 146 18.32%
   Intake Services 422 375 -47 -11.14%

   TOTAL 8,111 8,785 648 7.99%

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY
   Self Determination Specialist (*) 14 0 -14 -100.00%
   Adult Services 945 999 54 5.71%
   Transition Services 644 701 57 8.85%
   Transition Unit Supervisor (*) 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
   School Age Services 1,280 1,565 285 22.27%
   School Age Supervisor (*) 0 3 3 #DIV/0!
   Early Start Services 673 628 -45 -6.69%
   Early Start Unit Supervisor (*) 0 3 3 #DIV/0!
   Early Start Intake Unit Supervisor (*) 0 5 5 #DIV/0!

   TOTAL 3,542 3,893 354 9.99%

* Numbers not part of ratio count, but counted on Total All Valleys

NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER
MONTHLY STATISTICS RECAP

February 2024

February  2024
Total

**This number is our total number of consumers as January 2024 (Early Start, Lanterman  and others: Intake 
services, pending transfers, DC, enhanced case management, etc.) 

160



Month Consumers Growth % Change
Mar-23 33,392 362 1.08%
Apr-23 33,754 303 0.90%
May-23 34,057 171 0.50%
Jun-23 34,228 288 0.84%
Jul-23 34,516 152 0.44%
Aug-23 34,668 282 0.81%
Sep-23 34,950 183 1.11%
Oct-23 35,133 183 0.52%
Nov-23 35,339 206 0.58%
Dec-23 35,430 91 0.26%
Jan-24 35,622 192 0.54%
Feb-24 35,766 144 0.40%

Total 2,557
Average 213
Percent Chg 8%

NLACRC TOTAL (ALL SERVICES)
MONTHLY CONSUMER GROWTH

ALL VALLEYS

32,500

33,000

33,500

34,000

34,500

35,000

35,500

36,000

Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24

Monthly Consumer Growth

161



San Fernando Valley

Adult Services Unit Total Ser. Coor. Consumers Case Ratio Vacancies Consumers Case Ratio Floater OD Assoc.

Adult Unit 1 757 8 709 88.6 1 48 48.0

Adult Unit 2 852 9 782 86.9 2 70 35.0

Adult Unit 3 10 10

Adult Unit 4 863 7 616 88.0 4 247 61.8

Adult Unit 5 888 6 550 91.7 4 338 84.5

Adult Unit 6 919 8 737 92.1 2 182 91.0

Adult Unit 7 827 8 691 86.4 4 136 34.0

Adult Unit 8 839 7 588 84.0 4 251 62.8

Adult Unit 9 5

Adult Unit 10 4

Adult Unit 11 436 3 260 86.7 3 176 58.7 2

Total 6,391 56 4,943 88.3 33 1,448        43.9 2

Transition Services Unit Total Ser. Coor. Consumers Case Ratio Vacancies Consumers Case Ratio Floater OD Assoc.

Transition Unit 1 1,078 9 875 97.2 2 203 101.5 1

Transition Unit 2 1,100 10 1,002 100.2 1 98 98.0

Transition Unit 3 1,294 12 1,198 99.8 1 96 96.0

Transition Unit 4 4

3,472 31 3,075 99.2 8 397 49.6 1

School Age Services Consumers Ser. Coor. Consumers Case Ratio Vacancies Consumers Case Ratio Floater OD Assoc.

School Age 3 1,256 10 1,147 114.7 2 109 54.5

School Age 4 1,096 10 1,064 106.4 2 32 16.0

School Age 5 1,090 9 908 100.9 3 182 60.7

School Age 6 1,190 10 1,086 108.6 1 104 104.0

School Age 7 1,177 11 1,177 107.0 1

School Age 8 1,103 8 840 105.0 3 263 87.7

School Age 9 580 5 377 75.4 2 203 101.5

Total 7,492 63 6,599 104.7 14 893 64

Early Start Services Consumers Ser. Coor. Consumers Case Ratio Vacancies Consumers Case Ratio Floater OD Assoc.

Early Start 1 (Status 1 & 2) 499

     Early Start 1 Intake 14

Early Start 1 Total 513 5 426 85.2 5 87 17.4

Early Start 2 (Status 1 & 2) 524

     Early Start 2 Intake 21

Early Start 2 Total 545 6 471 78.5 3 74 24.7

Early Start 3 (Status 1 & 2) 487

     Early Start 3 Intake 26

Early Start 3 Total 513 6 458 76.3 4 55 13.8

Early Start 4 (Status 1 & 2) 429

     Early Start 4 Intake 23

Early Start 4 Total 452 5 377 75.4 4 75 18.8

Early Start 5 (Status 1 & 2) 560

     Early Start 5 Intake 60

Early Start 5 Total 620 7 561 80.1 1 59 59.0

Early Start 6 (Status 1 & 2) 341

     Early Start 6 Intake 26

Early Start 6 Total 367 4 314 78.5 5 53 10.6

Early Start 7 (Status 1 & 2) 303

     Early Start 7 Intake 42

Early Start 7 Total 345 5 332 66.4 2 13 6.5

     Status 1 Over 36 mo. 41

Total 3,355 38 2939 77.3 24 416 17.3

Consumers Ser. Coor. Consumers Case Ratio Vacancies Consumers Case Ratio Floater OD Assoc.

Total Non-Early Start 17,355 150 14,617 97.4 55 2,738        49.8 3

Total Early Start 3,355 38 2939 77.3 24 416          17.3

Total 20,710 188 17,556 93.4 79 3,154        39.9 3

February 2024 CSC Caseload Ratio
VacanciesFilled Positions

162



February 2024 CSC Caseload Ratio

SFV Self Determination Specialist* 2

Intake Services 561 9 561 62.3 #DIV/0! 2

Antelope Valley Consumers Ser. Coor. Consumers Case Ratio Vacancies Consumers Case Ratio Floater OD Assoc.

Adult Unit 1 725 1 61 61.0 11 664 60.4

Adult Unit 2 1,077 10 986 98.6 1 91 91.0

Adult Unit 3 978 11 978 88.9

Total 2,780 22 2,025      92.0 12 755 62.9

Transition Unit 1 1,110 7 717 102.4 6 393 65.5

Transition Unit 2 851 7 603 86.1 3 248 82.7

Total 1,961 14 1,320 94.3 9 641 71.2

School Age 1 1,104 10 950 95.0 2 154 77.0

School Age 2 1,084 10 1,013 101.3 3 71 23.7

School Age 3 538 4 435 108.8 4 103 25.8

Total 2,726 24 2,398 99.9 9 328 36.4

AV Early Start 1 (Status 1 & 2) 402

   AV Early Start 1 Intake 21

AV Early Start 1 Total 423 6 417 69.5 3 6 2.0

AV Early Start 2 (Status 1 & 2) 262

      AV Early Start 2 Intake 17

AV Early Start 2 Total 279 4 279 69.8 2

AV Early Start 3 (Status 1 & 2) 224

      AV Early Start 3 Intake 17

AV Early Start 3 Total 241 4 241 60.3 2

     Status 1 Over 36 mo. 13

Consumers Ser. Coor. Consumers Case Ratio Vacancies Consumers Case Ratio Floater OD Assoc.

Total Non-Early Start 7,467 60 5,743 95.7 30 1,724 57.5

Total Early Start 943 14 937 66.9 7 6 0.9

Total 8,410 74 6,680      90.3 37 1,730        46.8

AV Self Determination Specialist* 1

AV Intake Services 375 6 375 62.5 #DIV/0! 2

Santa Clarita Valley Consumers Ser. Coor. Consumers Case Ratio Vacancies Consumers Case Ratio Floater OD Assoc.

Adult Unit 999 9 831 92.3 2 168 84.0 1

Transition Unit 1 84 #DIV/0! 1 84 84.0

Transition Unit 2 617 5 466 93.2 2 151 75.5
Total 701 5 466 93.2 3 235 78.3

School Age Unit 1 1,047 10 1047 104.7 #DIV/0!

School Age Unit 2 518 6 518 86.3 4
Total 1,565 16 1,565 97.8 4

SCV Early Start (status 1 & 2) 257

      SCV Early Start Intake 4

SCV Early Start 1 Total 261 6 261 43.5 2

SCV Early Start 2 (status 1 & 2) 355

      SCV Early Start 2 Intake 12

SCV Early Start 2 Total 367 8 367 45.9 2

     Status 1 Over 36 mo. 13
Consumers Ser. Coor. Consumers Case Ratio Vacancies Consumers Case Ratio Floater OD Assoc.

Total Non-Early Start 3,265 30 2,862 95.4 9 403 44.8 1

Total Early Start 628 14 628 44.9 4

Total 3,893 44 3,490      79.3 13 403 31.0 1

SCV Self Determination Specialist* 1

163



February 2024 CSC Caseload Ratio

All Valleys Consumers Ser. Coor. Consumers Case Ratio Vacancies Consumers Case Ratio Floater OD Assoc.

Total Non-Early Start 28,087 240 23,222 96.8 94 4,865        51.8 3 1

Total Early Start 4,926 66 4,504 68.2 35 422          12.1

Sub-total 33,013 309 27,726    89.7 130 5,287        40.7 3 1

*Self Determination Specialist 3 1

*Total Non Early Start Supervisor 377

Total Early Start Supervisor Status 1&2 4

*Total Early Start Supervisor Intake 40

Intake Services 936 15 62.4 4

Early Start Intake 459 7 65.6 2 3

Prenatal Services

Provisional Eligibility 569 8 71.1 1

Enhanced Caseloads 240 6 40.0

On-Duty Specialist Unit 4

AV On-Duty/Floater Specialist Unit 3 4

SCV On-Duty/Floater Specialist Unit 1 1

Lead CSC Trainers 7 3 1

Development Center 14    

Enhanced Case Management 32 1

Specialized 1:25 Caseloads 29 1 2

Pending Transfer 45

Total 35,766 350 102.2 135 8 9 7

SFV Adult Unit Supervisor* 8

SFV Transition Unit Supervisor* 201

SFV School Age Unit Supervisor* 65

SFV Early Start Unit Supervisor* 1

SFV Early Start Intake Unit Supervisor* 14

Provisional Unit Supervisor 21

SCV Early Start Unit Supervisor* 3

SCV Early Start Intake Unit Supervisor* 5

SCV School Age Supervisor* 3

SCV Transition Supervisor*

SCV Adult Supervisor* 1

AV Adult Unit Supervisor* 20

AV Transition Supervisor* 1

AV School Age Supervisor* 57

AV Early Start Unit Supervisor*

AV Early Start Intake Unit Supervisor* 21

421

* Numbers not part of ratio count, but counted 

on Total Summary section

164



LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER 
Board Member Reporting Out Form 

~~~~~~~ 
Name:  Gabriela Eshrati 
Meeting:   SDLVAC 
Date of Meeting:  February 15, 2024 
 
1. Number of Attendees 

 
28 

2. Public Input: 
 
 
 
 

• FFRC Victoria Berrey Informed an upcoming All Abilities 
Fair in Lancaster on 3/16/2024.  

• Chair, Lori reminder everyone of SDP Support Group which 
meets the 1st Wednesday of the month at 4:30pm.  

3. Points of Discussion:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Coordinated Family Support Services – Presentation of the pilot 
service by Jennifer Parsons and Suzy Requarth of DDS.  When CFS 
service was introduced SDP was not eligible and as of 12/1/2023, SDP 
participants are eligible to receive the service. Service is available to 
adults living in the family home that are eligible for Regional Center 
services. The service funds are outside the SDP budget. The service is 
in the implementation phase that requires tracking of data and to do 
that it requires to be outside the budget. RFP – Areas of need 

4. Reported out to 
Committee/Meeting: 
 
 
 
 
 

Co-Chair Report –  
Letter was sent to DDS on behalf of NLACRC SDLAC outlining the 
concerns they have regarding requirements for vendorization.  
 
Co-Chair was elected to participate in electing the new Executive 
Director for NLACRC. It was reported that the meeting was conducted 
by a professional facilitator the system was frustrating as it was a 
webinar, none of the individuals recruiting were in the meeting. 
 
Committee Member talked at the Vendor Advisory Committee 
regarding SDP, the goal is to find out more regarding barriers that 
vendors and CSC’s encounter.  
 
Funding to Support Implementation of the SDP -  
Chair reviewed the directive that details how these funds need to be 
allocated. NLACRC received $130,112.51 and it needs to be spent by 
March 2026. All invoices need to be submitted by December 2025. In 
the past, funding has been used to include coaching, training, resource 
fairs, public training, translation, and support groups, etc. The 
Committee and NLA will need to agree on the allocation. NLA would 
like to continue funding for coaching to include more than 1 vendor 
and to continue with the SDP Support Group. 
 
RC Reported Out: Implementation report was presented.  
 
 

5. 
  

Area of Concerns: 
 
 
 
 

The goal continues to be to make the program easier for everyone.  

6. Action Items: 
 
 

Request for Interim ED and DD at NLACRC to attend next SDP 
LVAC.  

165



 
 
 

7. Questions for the Board: 
 
 
 
 

 No questions for the Board at this meeting.   

8. Miscellaneous 
 
 
 
 

 None 

 

166



North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Administrative Affairs Committee Meeting Minutes 

csmin_july_21_2021_Draft.docx 
January 22, 2024 

 
Present:  Brian Gatus, Ana Quiles, David Coe, Lillian Martinez, Rocio Sigala, Leticia Garcia, Andrew 

Ramirez, Sharmila Brunjes – Committee Members   
 

Vini Montague, Kimberly Visokey, Cristina Preuss, Evelyn McOmie, Ruth  Janka, Parita 
Burmee – Staff Members 

   
Victoria Berrey – Family Focus Resource Center, Jasmine Barrios – Minutes Services,  
‐ Guests 

 
Absent:     

  
 
I.  Call to Order 
 

Brian Gatus called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm. 
 
II.  Public Input  
 

No public input 
 

III.  Consent Items 
 

A.  Approval of Agenda  
 

M/S/C (A. Quiles/A. Ramirez) To approve the agenda as presented.  
 
B.  Approval of Minutes of the September 28, 2023 Meeting  

 
M/S/C (A. Quiles/A. Ramirez) To approve the Meeting Minutes as presented. 

 
IV.   Committee Business 

A. Review FY2023‐2024 Meeting Schedule – Brian Gatus  
The Committee was  tasked  to determine  if Committee meetings would move back  to a 
monthly basis format. Vini also noted a March meeting would be needed to review Form 
990 and the review of insurance that has been added in March on the Committee Critical 
Calendar. It was proposed that the Insurance Review item be added to the April Meeting 
agenda. In addition, Vini will review the statutory requirements for the review of Form 990 
to  determine  if  that  item will  be  added  to  the  April  Committee  agenda  or  if  a March 
Committee Meeting will be needed.  
 
After discussion,  it was determined  to move  the discussion offline  and proposals  to be 
reviewed at the February Committee meeting.  Concerns were raised regarding the volume 
of agenda items for both the Administrative Affairs and Executive Committees due to the 
bimonthly format while at the same time, facing challenges with long meetings when both 

167



NLACRC Administrative Affairs Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 2 
January 22, 2024 
 
 

Committees meet on  the  same night on a monthly basis. This  item will be added as an 
agenda item for the February Committee Meeting.  
 

B. Regional Center Operations & Purchase of Services Contract Process Training – 
Vini Montague – deferred. 
 

C. Report on Lease Agreements – Vini Montague – deferred. 
 

D. Change in Mileage Reimbursement Rate Effective January 1, 2024 Update – Vini Montague  
Vini  reviewed  the  information  as  presented  in  the  packet.  The  new  rate  for mileage 
reimbursement is 67 cents per mile. This rate became effective on January 1, 2024. 
 

E. FY2023‐2024 Financial Reports – Vini Montague 
Vini reviewed the reports as presented in the packet.  
1. FY2023‐2024 Financial Reports  

a. August 2023 
b. September 2023 
c. October 2023 
 

2. FY2023‐2024 Admin vs. Direct Allocation Report  
a. August 2023 
b. September 2023 
c. October 2023 
 

3. Social Recreation, Camp & Non‐Medical Therapies Services Report  
Evelyn reviewed the information as presented in the packet and noted that the data is 
showing upward trends. 

 
F. Social Recreation Reimbursement Process Update – Evelyn McOmie 

Evelyn shared that the Social Rec IPP planning requires Case Management. The contracts 
and Compliance Vendor Coordinator will issue the application for the parent to be issued 
the vendor number and provide the technical assistance needed for the parent to complete 
the  application  in  an  effort  to  expedite  the  process  with  a  goal  of  having  a  30‐day 
turnaround time for payment for parents that process.  
 
The new Social Rec FMS, Miji,  is scheduled to  launch by February 1, 2024; this will allow 
individuals who do not have an SSN or TIN to be reimbursed for Social Rec services. Issues 
were raised due to not having a Service Coordinator who understands Social Rec regarding 
IPP planning. NLA will be utilizing the Family Support Specialists to provide technical support 
for Social Rec challenges at the Case Management level.  
 
Ana  requested  information on  the number of  Social Rec  authorizations  that have been 
approved and processed but do not have payments to determine the outstanding ones. Vini 
will update the query to determine how many authorizations have zero payments in order 
to present the data to the Committee.  
 

168



NLACRC Administrative Affairs Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 3 
January 22, 2024 
 
 

G. Purchase of Services Outstanding Payments Discussion – Vini Montague  
Vini  reviewed  the data  as presented  in  the packet. This  item  is  a  tracking  log  that  lists 
instances  in which a Service Provider has escalated a payment  issue. Accounting reviews 
this log on a biweekly basis to resolve the noted issues as quickly as possible. In addition, 
the department  is  looking  into hiring an office assistant  to assist with  customer  service 
support to Service Providers. Ana stated that the Committee requests that NLA determine 
what  the  timeframe  would  be  from  services  provided  to  invoices  being  generated  to 
providers receiving payment.  
 

H.   Audits Update – Vini Montague 
1. DDS Audit of FY2021‐2022 and FY2022‐2023 

    Vini shared that this item is pending.  
 

2. Independent Audit of FY2022‐2023 
Vini noted that there was a delay in providing data to the auditors due to staffing issues.  
She is currently working with the auditors, who may still be able to complete the audit 
in  a  timely manner.  Vini will  follow  up with  the  auditors  to  find  out  how  late  the 
submission would be in the worst‐case scenario and will update the Committee at the 
next Committee Meeting. 
 
3. Social Security Audit 
Vini  reported  that  this  audit  is  pending  with  Disability  Rights  Advocates  who  is 
conducting the audit on behalf of Social Security Administration.  
 

I. Human Resources Update – Parita Burmee 
1. Monthly Human Resource Reports  
     Parita reviewed the information as presented in the packet.  

a. September 2023 
b. October 2023 
c. November 2023 
d. December 2023 
 

2. Temporary Staff Statistics Update 
     Parita reviewed the information as presented in the packet.  

a. September 2023 
b. October 2023 
c. November 2023 
d. December 2023 
 

Parita  explained  that  the  Temp  Policy  states  that  there  will  be  no  temporary 
employee staffed longer than 180 days and that by the 90th day, to determine if the 
temp will be offered a permanent position with NLA or if the temp contract will be 
allowed to expire. Ana requested that the policy be reviewed to ensure that NLA is 
abiding by the policy and that the report reflects that information.  
 

3. Status of People Scout Recruitment 
169



NLACRC Administrative Affairs Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 4 
January 22, 2024 
 
 

Parita reviewed the information and included the statistics in the chat. Ana requested 
that future report‐outs be included as a document in the packet for the Committee to 
review. It was noted that there are CSC Supervisor roles that require either a Master’s 
degree  or  a  Bachelor’s  degree  with  two  years  of  supervisory  experience.  Service 
Coordinator Roles do not require a Master’s degree.  
 
Ana requested information from HR on creating a short synopsis of requirements for the 
CSC positions for the Board to assist in recruiting for open CSC Roles. Parita will create a 
one‐sheet reference document for the Board.  
 

J. FRC and Resource Library Update  
1. Mobile Library Unit – Cristina Preuss 
Cristina noted that the Diversity Team met with the LACO Mobile Bus on December 13th 
to discuss the different activities that NLA wants to be available for the community.  

 
V.   Executive Session 

A. Quarterly Legal Update – deferred 
 

VI.          Review of Meeting Action Items 
 

A. Review  the  statutory  requirements  for  the  review of Form 990  to determine  if a  special March 
Committee Meeting will be scheduled. (Vini Montague)  

B. Add “Review of FY23‐24 Meeting Schedule” as an  item  to  the February Meeting agenda  (Board 
Support) 

C. Add “Review of Insurance” as an item to the February Meeting agenda (Board Support) 
D. Update the query to determine how many authorizations have zero payments in order to present 

the data to the Committee. (Vini Montague) 
E. Follow up with auditors regarding how late the audit submission will be. (Vini Montague) 
F.  To review the Temporary Staff Policy to ensure that NLA is abiding by the 180‐day allotted limit for 

temp staff. (Parita Burmee). 
G. To include statistics in a document to include with future report‐outs on this item (Parita Burmee) 
H. ACTION: To create a one‐sheet reference document regarding a synopsis of the requirements for 

open CSC positions. (Parita Burmee) 
 

VII.  Board Meeting Agenda Items 
 

The following items were identified for the Committee’s section of the next Board Meeting 
agenda: 

A. Minutes of the September 28th Meeting 
B. FY2023‐2024 Meeting Schedule 
C. Change in Mileage Reimbursement Rate Effective January 1, 2024 
D. FY2023‐2024 Financial Reports 
E. Purchase of Services Outstanding Payments 
F. Monthly Human Resources Reports 
 

VIII.   Announcements / Information Items / Public Input 
 

170



NLACRC Administrative Affairs Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 5 
January 22, 2024 
 
 

A. Next Meeting:  Thursday, February 29, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. 

B. Committee Attendance 

 
No public input 

 
IX.  Adjournment 
 

Ana Quiles, on behalf of the Committee Chair, adjourned the meeting at 7:23 p.m.  
 
 
Submitted by: 
Kimberly Visokey 
Executive Administrative Assistant 
 
 
(*) The majority of these minutes are taken from the Minutes Service submission and reviewed/edited as 
presented herein by NLACRC staff. 
 

171



© 2023 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO.  |  AJG.COM

Property & Casualty Insurance Program
February 23, 2024

172



© 2023 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO.  |  AJG.COM

2

Insurance Coverage Summary

Policy Company Blanket Limits Deductible Premium

General / Professional 
Liability
7/1/23 – 7/1/24

NIAC
A IX

General, Professional, and Sexual Abuse Liability
• $1 million per claim (separate limits) 
• $3 million annual aggregate (separate limits)
Employee Benefits Liability
• $1 million per claim
• $3 million annual aggregate 

N/A $149,711

Automobile Liability
7/1/23 – 7/1/24

NIAC
A IX

$1M CSL Non-owned / Hired Car Liability $500 Included above

Directors & Officers
7/1/23 – 7/1/24

NIAC
A IX

$1M D&O
$1M Employment Practices
$2M Policy Aggregate
$250,000 Wage & Hour Defense 
Defense costs are paid in addition to the limit of liability

$50,000
$50,000

$50,000

$77,273

Umbrella Liability
7/1/23 – 7/1/24

NIAC
A IX

$4M each claim and general aggregate that extends over 
the General, Professional, Abuse, Auto, Employers, and 
Employee Benefits Liability coverages.
$2M each claim and aggregate that extends over the D&O 
Liability

NIL $117,275

173



© 2023 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO.  |  AJG.COM

3

Insurance Coverage Summary

Policy Company Blanket Limits Deductible Premium

Property
7/1/23 – 7/1/24

Great American
A+ XV

$20.938,812 Building / Tenants Improvements
$4,135,972 Business Personal Property
$5,232,331 Business Income
$5,638,464 Computer Hardware

$500,000 Employee Dishonesty
$500,000 Forgery or Alteration
$500,000 Computer Fraud and Funds Transfer
$500,000 Investigative Expenses
$50,000 Fraudulent Impersonation 
ERISA Plan included

$1,000
$1,000

72 Hours
$1,000

$1,000
$1,000
$1,000
$1,000
$1,000

$70,764

Excess Crime
7/1/23 – 7/1/24

Great American
A+ XV

$3,500,000 Employee Theft 
$3,500,000 Forgery or Alteration Limit
$3,500,000 Theft of Money and Securities Limit
$3,500,000 Outside the Premises - Money & Securities Limit
$3,500,000 Computer Fraud Limit
$3,500,000 Funds Transfer Fraud Limit
$3,500,000 Money Orders & Counterfeit Currency Limit

$501,000
$501,000
$501,000
$501,000
$501,000
$501,000
$501,000

$11,919

174



© 2023 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO.  |  AJG.COM

4

Insurance Coverage Summary

Policy Company Blanket Limits Deductible Premium

Earthquake/Flood
7/1/23 – 7/1/24

Evanston
A XV

$5M per occurrence and in the aggregate
$38,476,251 in Total Insurance Value

EQ 5% of TIV 
subject to $25K 

minimum

Flood $25K

$65,519

175



© 2023 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO.  |  AJG.COM

5

Insurance Coverage Summary

Policy Company Blanket Limits Deductible Premium

Fiduciary Liability
7/1/23 – 7/1/24

Hudson
A XV

$1M each claim and aggregate $25,000 $5,369

Cyber Liability
7/1/23 – 7/1/24

Beazley/ Lloyds
A XV

$1M Cyber Incident Response Fund 
$1M Business Interruption and Extra Expenses
$1M Digital Data Recovery 
$1M Network Extortion 
$1M Cyber, Privacy, and Network Liability 
$1M Payment Card Loss 
$1M Regulatory Proceedings 
$1M Media Liability 
$1M Policy Aggregate
$250,000 Social Engineering Fraud

$100,000
$100,000/10 hr. 

$100,000
$100,000
$100,000
$100,000
$100,000
$100,000

$36,113

Employed Lawyers 
Professional Liability
7/1/23 – 7/1/24

Philadelphia
A++ XV

$1M per claim and aggregate $5,000 $8,703

Workers’ 
Compensation
1/1/23 – 1/1/24

Quality Comp
Not Rated

Safety National
$500K xs
A++ XV

Statutory Limits NIL $637,562

Volunteer Accident
6/1/23-6/1/24

Philadelphia 
Indemnity 

Insurance Co.

$25,000 Principle Sum
$500,000 Aggregate

NIL $300

176



© 2023 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO.  |  AJG.COM

6

Premium History

2023-24 Renewal Changes

• Volunteer Accident Coverage added for $300

• Workers Compensation Renewed January 1, 2024 for a Premium of $689,093 or 8% increase due to Payrolls increasing by 8%

• Revenues increased by 37% (impacts Liability, Directors & Officers, and Crime premiums)

• Number of Employees increased 4% (impacts Liability, Directors & Officers, and Crime premiums)

• Property coverage limits increased 6% to account for inflation

• Industry rates increased 5-15% depending on coverage; 43 insurance carriers approached for quotes

Policy 2019-20          2020-21           2021-22  2022-23 2023-24

General / Professional Liability $90,217 $105,341 $119,174 $128,103 $149,711 

Excess Liability $49,528 $52,689 $57,724 $62,585 $117,275 

Directors & Officers Liability $83,244 $84,200 $86,873 $94,609 $77,273 

Property $36,109 $42,596 $49,017 $59,936 $70,764 

Excess Crime $7,260 $8,439 $9,434 $10,835 $11,919 

Earthquake/Flood $34,247 $48,437 $51,625 $55,481 $65,519 

Cyber Liability $32,165 $32,949 $50,072 $36,137 $36,113 

Fiduciary Liability $4,868 $4,868 $5,111 $5,264 $5,369 

Employed Lawyers Liability $3,560 $8,703 $8,703 $8,703 $8,703 

Workers Compensation $633,316 $738,185 $622,816 $644,123 $637,562 

Total (All Policies) $974,514 $1,126,407 $1,060,549 $977,673 $1,180,208 

177



© 2023 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO.  |  AJG.COM

7

State of the Insurance Market

NIAC Update
• There is an underlying rate increase of 5-15% for all casualty lines. This does not account for changes in exposures or 

adjustments made due to loss history. 
• Renewal Directors & Officer Deductible will either stay at $50K or increase to $75K due to updated NIAC guidelines
• Excess Limits are lowering and outside options may have to be explored

178



Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Base Rent

Lease Summary
A B C D E F

Rentable 

Office Total Base Rent Square Foot Rate

Location Suite, if applicable # Months for FY2023-2024 (RSF) Per RSF

SFV Floor 1 thru 4 12 2,871,036.21$          93,315 2.5639$  

SFV Floor 7 (Suite 710) 12 398,988.36$              12,968 2.5639$  

SFV Floor 1 (Suite 101) 12 179,612.19$              5,832 2.5665$  

SFV Cage 12 23,016.00$                1,918 1.0000$  

SFV Parking (14 spaces) 12 4,200.00$  

Total SFV 3,476,852.76$          114,033 2.5408$  

AV Occupy Full Premises 12 1,307,849.00$          38,288 2.8465$  

Total AV 1,307,849.00$          38,288 2.8465$  

SCV Suites 150/120 12 377,137.80$              11,076 2.8375$  

SCV Suites 100/180/200/260 12 224,292.90$              11,271 2.8429$  

Total SCV 601,430.70$              22,347 2.8330$  

Total 5,386,132.46$          174,668 2.7614$  

179



Oakdale Lease Highlights

For Fiscal Year 2023-2024
Suites 100 through 400

Lease

Lease Highlight Section Description

Landlord Page 1 Omninet West Valley, LP

9420 Wilshire Blvd., Fourth Floor; Beverly Hills, CA  90212

ADDRESS Page 1 9200 Oakdale Avenue, Chatsworth, CA  91311

Square Footage Page 2 Suites RSF USF LOAD FACTTOR

100 (1st floor) 13,592 11,700 13.92%

(2nd floor) 25,355 21,600 14.81%

(3rd floor) 27,184 23,700 12.82%

(4th floor) 27,184 23,700 12.82%

Total 93,315 80,700 13.52%

TENANT'S SHARE Page 3 36.17% (93,315 rsf / 258,005 rsf)

TERM Page 2 125  months (October 1, 2016 to February 28, 2027)

LEASE COMMENCEMENT DATE Page 2 October 1, 2016

LEASE EXPIRATION DATE Page 2 February 28, 2027

OPTION TO TERMINATE Page 60 No Termination Option

Early termination option (last day of the 96 month, September 2024) under Article 33 has been deleted

pursuant to the Second Lease Amendment (Article 7) for 1st Floor Expansion Space

OPTION TO EXTEND Page 56 Two (2) periods of five (5) years each

Notice: minimum 9 months notice prior to the term

RENT TYPE Full Service Gross (Landlord pays taxes, insurance, common area maintenance expenses,

utilities, and janitorial)

BASE RENT ADJUSTMENT Page 2 Term #Mos Rate/RSF Monthly Rent Annual Rent

10/01/16 - 09/30/17: 12.00 $2.10 $195,961.50 $2,351,538.00

10/01/17 - 09/30/18: 12.00 $2.16 $201,840.35 $2,422,084.20

10/01/18 - 09/30/19: 12.00 $2.23 $207,895.56 $2,494,746.72

10/01/19 - 09/30/20: 12.00 $2.29 $214,132.42 $2,569,589.04

10/01/20 - 09/30/21: 12.00 $2.36 $220,556.39 $2,646,676.68

10/01/21 - 09/30/22: 12.00 $2.43 $227,173.09 $2,726,077.08

10/01/22 - 09/30/23: 12.00 $2.51 $233,988.28 $2,807,859.36

10/01/23 - 09/30/24: 12.00 $2.58 $241,007.93 $2,892,095.16

10/01/24 - 09/30/25: 12.00 $2.66 $248,238.17 $2,978,858.04

10/01/25 - 09/30/26: 12.00 $2.74 $255,685.31 $3,068,223.72

10/01/26 - 02/28/27: 5.00 $2.82 $263,355.87 $1,316,779.35

Total 125.00 $28,274,527.35

OPERATING EXPENSES AND TAXES Page 2 Base Year: 2017

Paid Monthy, with an Annual Reconciliation of Actual cost vs. Projcted cost

180



Oakdale Lease Highlights

For Fiscal Year 2023-2024
Suites 100 through 400

Lease

Lease Highlight Section Description

PARKING Page 3 Total: 466 parking passes (5 parking passes per 1,000 rsf)

-40 reserved stalls Grade Level

-14 single underground reserved Pass

-412 unreserved parking Grade Level

Rate: $25.00 per reserved pass x 14 parking space = $350.00 per month; the rest are free

SECURITY DEPOSIT Page 13 None ($0); However NLACRC paid $195,961.50 first month's rent upon execution of lease

LATE CHARGES Page 39 Late Charges are applied to overdue amounts after 5 days of due date

10% of overdue amount

RENT ABATEMENT Page 6-7 Month 2 through Month 12 $105,564.90 11.00 $1,161,213.90 

Month 13 through 15 $108,731.85 3.00 $326,195.55 

Month 16 through 24 $15,623.35 9 $140,610.15 

Month 25 $16,092.05 $16,092.05 

Total Rent Abatement $246,012.15 23.00 $1,644,111.65 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Page 22 HVAC:  $60.00 per hour

Art 9(g) Server Room Electricity use measured by a separate meter

Page 61 Monument signage, standard signage in Lobby, Eyebrow Signage on Prairie

Page 57 Right of First Refusal on First Floor

Page 4 May lease Storage Space at rate of $1.00 rsf

453Number of Staff (filled as of Jan. 31, 2024) 
Number of Authorized positions 635

Current Capacity (1 thru 4) 399

Current Capacity (7th floor) 62

Total  Capacity (Workstations & Offices) 461

Capacity (Family Resource Center) 3

181



Oakdale Lease Highlights

For Fiscal Year 2023-2024
Suite 710

Lease

Lease Highlight Section Description

Landlord Page 1 Omninet West Valley, LP

9420 Wilshire Blvd., Fourth Floor; Beverly Hills, CA  90212

ADDRESS Page 1 9200 Oakdale Avenue, Chatsworth, CA  91311

Square Footage Page 2 Suites RSF USF LOAD FACTTOR

710 (7th floor) 12,968 9,600 25.97%

Total 12,968 9,600 25.97%

TENANT'S SHARE Page 3 5.03% (12,968 rsf / 258,005 rsf)

TERM Page 2 109.50  months (February 15, 2018 to February 28, 2027)

LEASE COMMENCEMENT DATE Page 2 February 15, 2018 (earlier of 150 days from 09/18/2017 or commencement of business)

LEASE EXPIRATION DATE Page 2 February 28, 2027

OPTION TO TERMINATE Page 60 No Termination Option

Article 33 Early termination option (last day of the 96 month, September 2024) under Article 33 has been deleted

pursuant to the Second Lease Amendment (Article 7) for 1st Floor Expansion Space

OPTION TO EXTEND Page 56 Two (2) periods of five (5) years each

Notice: minimum 9 months notice prior to the term

RENT TYPE Full Service Gross (Landlord pays taxes, insurance, common area maintenance expenses,

utilities, and janitorial)

BASE RENT ADJUSTMENT Page 2 Term #Mos Rate/RSF Monthly Rent Annual Rent

10/01/16 - 09/30/17: 0.00 $2.10 $27,232.80 $0.00

10/01/17 - 09/30/18: 7.50 $2.16 $28,049.78 $210,373.35

10/01/18 - 09/30/19: 12.00 $2.23 $28,891.27 $346,695.24

10/01/19 - 09/30/20: 12.00 $2.29 $29,758.02 $357,096.24

10/01/20 - 09/30/21: 12.00 $2.36 $30,650.76 $367,809.12

10/01/21 - 09/30/22: 12.00 $2.43 $31,570.28 $378,843.36

10/01/22 - 09/30/23: 12.00 $2.51 $32,517.39 $390,208.68

10/01/23 - 09/30/24: 12.00 $2.58 $33,492.91 $401,914.92

10/01/24 - 09/30/25: 12.00 $2.66 $34,497.69 $413,972.28

10/01/25 - 09/30/26: 12.00 $2.74 $35,532.63 $426,391.56

10/01/26 - 02/28/27: 5.00 $2.82 $36,598.61 $182,993.05

Total 108.50 $3,476,297.80

OPERATING EXPENSES AND TAXES Page 2 Base Year: 2017

Paid Monthy, with an Annual Reconciliation of Actual cost vs. Projcted cost

PARKING Page 3 Total: 65 parking passes (5 parking passes per 1,000 rsf)

 -65 unreserved parking Grade Level

SECURITY DEPOSIT Page 13 None ($0)

LATE CHARGES Page 39 Late Charges are applied to overdue amounts after 5 days of due date

10% of overdue amount

RENT ABATEMENT Page 6-7 Month 2 through Month 6 $28,049.78 6.00 $168,298.68 

(11/01/16 through 04/01/17)

Total $28,049.78 6.00 $168,298.68

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Page 22 HVAC:  $60.00 per hour

Capacity (Workstations & Offices) 62

182



Oakdale Lease Highlights

For Fiscal Year 2023-2024
Suite 101

Lease

Lease Highlight Section Description

Landlord Page 1 Omninet West Valley, LP

9420 Wilshire Blvd., Fourth Floor; Beverly Hills, CA  90212

ADDRESS Page 1 9200 Oakdale Avenue, Chatsworth, CA  91311

Square Footage Page 2 Suites RSF USF LOAD FACTTOR

101 (1st Floor Expansion) 5,832 5,832 0.00%

Total 5,832 5,832 0.00%

TENANT'S SHARE Page 3 2.26% (5,832 rsf / 258,005 rsf)

TERM Page 2 40.84  months (October 6, 2023 to February 28, 2027)

LEASE COMMENCEMENT DATE Page 2 October 6, 2023 (the date Tenant commences to conduct business in Expansion Premises or the fifth

(5th) day following the date of Substantial Completion of the Improvements in the Expansion Premises)

LEASE EXPIRATION DATE Page 2 February 28, 2027

OPTION TO TERMINATE Page 60 No Termination Option

Early termination option (last day of the 96 month, September 2024) under Article 33 has been deleted

pursuant to the Second Lease Amendment (Article 7) for 1st Floor Expansion Space

OPTION TO EXTEND Page 56 Two (2) periods of five (5) years each

Article 31 Notice: minimum 9 months notice prior to the term

RENT TYPE Full Service Gross (Landlord pays taxes, insurance, common area maintenance expenses,

utilities, and janitorial)

BASE RENT ADJUSTMENT Page 2 Term #Mos Rate/RSF Monthly Rent Annual Rent

10/01/16 - 09/30/17: 0.00 $2.10 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/17 - 09/30/18: 0.00 $2.16 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/18 - 09/30/19: 0.00 $2.23 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/19 - 09/30/20: 0.00 $2.29 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/20 - 09/30/21: 0.00 $2.36 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/21 - 09/30/22: 0.00 $2.43 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/22 - 09/30/23: 0.00 $2.51 $14,638.32 $0.00

10/01/23 - 09/30/24: 11.84 $2.58 $15,077.47 $178,517.24

10/01/24 - 09/30/25: 12.00 $2.66 $15,529.79 $186,357.48

10/01/25 - 09/30/26: 12.00 $2.74 $15,995.69 $191,948.28

10/01/26 - 02/28/27: 5.00 $2.82 $16,475.56 $82,377.80

Total 40.84 $639,200.80

OPERATING EXPENSES AND TAXES Page 2 Base Year: 2023

Paid Monthy, with an Annual Reconciliation of Actual cost vs. Projcted cost

PARKING Page 3 Total: 29 parking passes (5 parking passes per 1,000 rsf)

 29 unreserved parking Grade Level

SECURITY DEPOSIT Page 13 None ($0)

LATE CHARGES Page 39 Late Charges are applied to overdue amounts after 5 days of due date

10% of overdue amount

RENT ABATEMENT None

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Capacity (Workstations & Offices) 11

183



Oakdale Lease Highlights

For Fiscal Year 2023-2024
Cage Storage

Lease

Lease Highlight Section Description

Landlord Page 1 Omninet West Valley, LP

9420 Wilshire Blvd., Fourth Floor; Beverly Hills, CA  90212

ADDRESS Page 1 9200 Oakdale Avenue, Chatsworth, CA  91311

Square Footage Page 2 Suites RSF USF LOAD FACTTOR Start Date

Storage Space 1,000 1,000 0.00% 8/18/2017

Storage Space 918 918 0.00% 10/1/2021

Total 1,918 1,918 0.00%

TERM (1,000 sq. ft. space) Page 2

TERM (918 sq. ft. space) Page 1

August 18, 2017 to February 28, 2027

October 1, 2021 to Februay 28, 2027

LEASE COMMENCEMENT DATE (1,000 sq. ft. space) Page 2 August 18, 2017

LEASE COMMENCEMENT DATE (918 sq. ft. space) Page 1 October 1, 2021

LEASE EXPIRATION DATE (1,000 sq. ft. space) Page 2

LEASE EXPIRATION DATE (918 sq. ft. space) Page 1

February 28, 2027 or with thirty (30) days notice 
February 28, 2027 or with thirty (30) days notice

BASE RENT Page 2 Term #Mos Rate/RSF Monthly Rent Annual Rent

08/18/17 - 09/30/17: 1.50 $1.00 $1,000.00 $1,500.00

10/01/17 - 09/30/18: 12.00 $1.00 $1,000.00 $12,000.00

10/01/18 - 09/30/19: 12.00 $1.00 $1,000.00 $12,000.00

10/01/19 - 09/30/20: 12.00 $1.00 $1,000.00 $12,000.00

10/01/20 - 09/30/21: 12.00 $1.00 $1,000.00 $12,000.00

10/01/21 - 09/30/22: 12.00 $1.00 $1,918.00 $23,016.00

10/01/22 - 09/30/23: 12.00 $1.00 $1,918.00 $23,016.00

10/01/23 - 09/30/24: 12.00 $1.00 $1,918.00 $23,016.00

10/01/24 - 09/30/25: 12.00 $1.00 $1,918.00 $23,016.00

10/01/25 - 09/30/26: 12.00 $1.00 $1,918.00 $23,016.00

10/01/26 - 02/28/27: 5.00 $1.00 $1,918.00 $9,590.00

Total 114.50 $174,170.00

184



Lease

Lease Highlight Section Description

Landlord Rami and Reem Dorghalli dba RD Properties

(formerly Fraber Properties II- Frank Visco)

ADDRESS 43850 10th Street West, Lancaster CA  93534

Square Footage Suites RSF USF LOAD FACTTOR

Full Occupancy 38,288 38,288 0.00%

Total 38,288 38,288 0.00%

TENANT'S SHARE of PREMISES 100.00%

TERM 180 months or 15 years

LEASE COMMENCEMENT DATE

LEASE EXPIRATION DATE January 31, 2036

OPTION TO TERMINATE none (due to new construction)

OPTION TO EXTEND Two (2) periods of five (5) years from May 31, 2035 as follows: 

1st optional renewal term: From August 31, 2034 to May 1, 2035;

Notice:  At least 9 months but not more than 18 months prior to option to extend

2nd optional renewal term: From August 1, 2039 to May 1, 2040;

Notice:  At least 9 months but not more than 18 months prior to option to extend

OPTION TO EXPAND Right and option to expand into second building on property

Notice to be provided to Landlord between 11/01/2025 and 11/1/2026

Provides a TI Allwoace for the Expansion Space of $78 per RSF (Section 61.4)

RENT TYPE

BASE RENT ADJUSTMENT Term #Mos Rate/RSF Monthly Rent Annual Rent

Projected Effective Date 1 02/1/21 - 01/30/22: 12 $2.6500 $101,463.00 $1,217,556.00

2 02/1/22 - 01/30/23: 12 $2.7295 $104,507.00 $1,254,084.00

3 02/1/23 - 01/30/24: 12 $2.8114 $107,642.00 $1,291,704.00

4 02/1/24 - 01/30/25: 12 $2.8957 $110,871.00 $1,330,452.00

5 02/1/25 - 01/30/26: 12 $2.9826 $114,198.00 $1,370,376.00

6 02/1/26 - 01/30/27: 12 $3.0721 $117,623.00 $1,411,476.00

7 02/1/27 - 01/30/28: 12 $3.1642 $121,152.00 $1,453,824.00

8 02/1/28 - 01/30/29: 12 $3.2592 $124,787.00 $1,497,444.00

9 02/1/29 - 01/30/30: 12 $3.3570 $128,530.00 $1,542,360.00

10 02/1/30 - 01/30/31: 12 $3.4577 $132,386.00 $1,588,632.00

11 02/1/31 - 01/30/32: 12 $3.5614 $136,358.00 $1,636,296.00

12 02/1/32 - 01/30/33: 12 $3.6682 $140,449.00 $1,685,388.00

13 02/1/33 - 01/30/34: 12 $3.7783 $144,662.00 $1,735,944.00

14 02/1/34 - 01/30/35: 12 $3.8916 $149,002.00 $1,788,024.00

15 02/1/35 - 01/30/36: 12 $4.0084 $153,472.00 $1,841,664.00

Total 180.00 $22,645,224.00

Rent Adjustment for Subsequent Years

Estimated RSF, final RSF will be determined 

after the construction is completed (Section 

62.6)

 Lease provides for 3% increase per year.

Full Service Gross (Landlord pays taxes, insurance, common area maintenance expenses, 

utilities, and janitorial); Additionally, Landlord will provide security

February 1, 2021

Antelope Valley Lease Highlights

For Fiscal Year 2023-2024

185



Lease

Lease Highlight Section Description

Antelope Valley Lease Highlights

For Fiscal Year 2023-2024

OPERATING EXPENSES AND TAXES Base Year: 2021

Paid Annually

PARKING Tenant has use of the entire parking lot at no cost

272 parking spaces as follows:

150 parking spaces for NLACRC's exclusive use

46 new unreserved parking spaces

10 reserved parking spaces

2 Electronic vehicle charging stations

64 pre-existing unreserved parking spaces on the property

SECURITY DEPOSIT None ($0)

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS Tenant Improvement allowance is $90.00 rsf or $3,445,920 (excludes outdoor area)

NLACRC has first right of refusal to 43630 10th Street West ("Second Building")

Build to Suit-New construction; delivery date projected to be December 1, 2020

Early Access up to 45 days prior to the expected Substantial Completion date

Landlord responsible for Holdover Rent in the event premises is not available

133Number of Staff (filled as of Jan. 31, 2024) 
Number of Authorized positions 204

Capacity (Workstations & Offices) 153

Capacity (Family Resource Center) 3

On May 8, 2019, NLACRC's Board of Trustees authorized NLACRC Officer's to execute a 

Lease Agreement with Fraber Proerties II, LLC.

Common Area Operating Expense (CAOE) is $0 until Calendar Year 2021

Controllable Expenses (all expenses except Taxes,Utilities, and Insurance) shall not 

exceed 4% per year

Afterhours HVAC is $40.00 per hour

Building Security. Mon-Sun (check in times 4 times per day)

Conditional Waiver of Deed Restriction (Palmdale Regional Medical Center has a no 

compete clause on the property deed)

186



Lease

Lease Highlight Section Description

Landlord Page 2 Tourney Road Investments, LLC

4605 Lankershim Blvd. #707; North Hollywood, CA  91602-1818

ADDRESS Page 2 25360 Magic Mountain Parkway, Valencia California 91355

Square Footage Suite RSF USF LOAD FACTOR

Page 2 150 9,620 8,364 13.06%

120 1,456 1,263 13.26%

100 3,907 3,397 13.05%

180 1,004 873 13.05%

200 3,262 2,836 13.06%

260 3,098 2,694 13.04%

Total 22,347 19,427 15.03%

TENANT'S SHARE 45.08%:  (22,347 RSF / 49,570 total RSF)

TERM 1 D 120 months or 10 years

ORIGINAL LEASE COMMENCEMENT DATE 1 D  June 1, 2022

LEASE EXPIRATION DATE 1 D  May 31, 2032

OPTION TO TERMINATE Option to terminate lease effective on May 31, 2029

Written notice to landlord no later than May 31, 2028

Termination Fee: Unamortized free rent, TI's and commissions @6%, 2 months base rent

OPTION TO EXTEND 31 No Option to Renew

RENT TYPE 18 & 19

BASE RENT ADJUSTMENT Term #Mos Rate/RSF Monthly Rent Annual Rent

1 06/01/22 - 05/31/23: 12 $2.75 $61,454.00 $737,448.00

2 06/01/23 - 05/31/24: 12 $2.83 $63,242.00 $758,904.00

3 06/01/24 - 05/31/25: 12 $2.92 $65,253.00 $783,036.00

4 06/01/25 - 05/31/26: 12 $3.00 $67,041.00 $804,492.00

5 06/01/26 - 05/31/27: 12 $3.10 $69,276.00 $831,312.00

6 06/01/27 - 05/31/28: 12 $3.19 $71,287.00 $855,444.00

7 06/01/28 - 05/31/29: 12 $3.28 $73,298.00 $879,576.00

8 06/01/29 - 05/31/30: 12 $3.38 $75,533.00 $906,396.00

9 06/01/30 - 05/31/31: 12 $3.48 $77,768.00 $933,216.00

10 06/01/31 - 05/31/32: 12 $3.59 $80,226.00 $962,712.00

Total 120.00 $8,452,536.00

OPERATING EXPENSES AND TAXES 3 Base Year: Calendar Year 2022

Comment: 

Paid Monthy, with an Annual Reconciliation of Actual cost vs. Projected cost

Full Service Gross (Landlord pays taxes, insurance, common area maintenance expenses, 

utilities, and janitorial)

Santa Clarita Valley Lease Highlights

For Fiscal Year 2023-2024

187



Lease

Lease Highlight Section Description

Santa Clarita Valley Lease Highlights

For Fiscal Year 2023-2024

PARKING 5 4 spaces per 1,000 rsf leased, free 

90 unreserved parking spaces

SECURITY DEPOSIT 6 $27,803.76

If annual revenue falls below $300 million, additional $52,380.10 security deposit required

LATE CHARGES 11 Late Charges are applied to overdue amounts after 5 days of due date

5% of overdue amount

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 76H HVAC at $85.00 per hour

66Number of Staff (filled as of Jan. 31, 2024) 
Number of Authorized positions 86

Capacity (Workstations & Offices) 77

Capacity (Family Resource Center) 2

Landlord does not currently provide reserved parking, but if it became available, Landlord shall 

provide NLACRC with a share of the reserved parking spaces based on the overall parking 

allocation

188



Trustee Service Fees by Quarter for Post-Retirement Medical Trust
Fiscal Year 2023-2024

A B C D E F
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Total Fees

Description of Fees 7/1/2022-9/30/2023 10/1/2023-12/31/2023 1/1/2024-3/31/2024 4/1/2024-6/30/2024 FY 2023-2024
Base Fee 125.00$                       125.00$                       250.00$                       
Adjustment to Meet Minimum Base Fee -$                            -$                            

Total Ongoing Flat Fee 125.00$                       125.00$                       -$                            -$                            250.00$                       
Trustee/Custody Fee first $1 Million @ $0.004 1,000.00$                    1,000.00$                    2,000.00$                    
Trustee/Custody Fee next $4 Million @ $0.002 2,000.00$                    2,000.00$                    4,000.00$                    
Trustee/Custody Fee next $20 Million @ $0.001 5,000.00$                    5,000.00$                    10,000.00$                  
Trustee/Custody Fee next $20 Million @ $0.0005 532.56$                       853.54$                       1,386.10$                    

Total Ongoing Fees 8,532.56$                    8,853.54$                    -$                            -$                            17,386.10$                  
Fiduciary Return Fee/Grantor's Tax Letter Preparation -$                            -$                            -$                            -$                            -$                            
Transaction Fees -$                            -$                            -$                            -$                            -$                            

Total One-Time Fees -$                            -$                            -$                            -$                            -$                            

Total Bank Fees (US Bank) 8,657.56$                    8,978.54$                    -$                            -$                            17,636.10$                  
Investment Management Fee on Balance @ $0.0035 25,602.89$                  27,849.77$                  53,452.66$                  

Total Investment Management Fee (Highmark) 25,602.89$                  27,849.77$                  -$                            -$                            53,452.66$                  

Total Fees 34,260.45$                  36,828.31$                  -$                            -$                            71,088.76$                  

Market Value of PMRT/Trustee/Custody Fees 29,260,445.66$           31,828,308.55$           61,088,754.21$           

Market Value of PMRT 29,260,445.66$           31,828,308.55$           -$                            -$                            61,088,754.21$           
Market Value of Investment Management Fees 29,260,445.66$           31,828,308.55$           61,088,754.21$           

Market Value of Investments 29,260,445.66$           31,828,308.55$           -$                            -$                            61,088,754.21$           

Percent Fees to Market Value 0.12% 0.12% 0.12%

PRMT Fees FY2024
189



Explanation of Post-Retirement Medical Trust Fees

Description Explanation of  Fees How Calculated

Set Up Fee One time initial fee upon acceptance of relationship $250.00 minimum at account set up

Base Fee Fee Charged per each Account $250.00 per year or $62.50 per quarter

Minimum Base Fee $250.00 per year or $62.50 per quarter

Investment Management Fees .35% of the funds not managed by USBank

Trustee/Custody Fees .40% on the first  $1,000,000 or (0.0040)**
.20% on the next  $4,000,000 or (0.0020)
.10% on the next $20,000,000 or (0.0010)
.05% on all over $25,000,000 or (0.0005)

Participant Loans Fees charged for participant loans. Not applicable.  Loans are not allowed.

Benefit Payments & check Fees charged for benefit payments made to participants Single disbursement                 $10.00 each

** Increases to .50% on the first $1,000,000 or 
(0.0050) if there are no USBank proprietary 
funds.

Minimum Fee Charged per each Plan is $500.00.  Since 
NLACRC is only paying $250.00 because it has just one 
account, NLACRC is charged an additional $250.00 ($500 
minimum charge less $250 for one account)

All investments, non-proprietary USBank funds, are 
subject to investment management fees.  Investment 
management fees are calculated on the market value of 
the assets held in the account. Investment management 
fees do not apply to USBank proprietary funds. (Highmark 
Funds are USBank proprietary funds.)

Fees charged based on the market value of the assets 
held in the account for the trustee/custodian services 
provided by USBank.

PRMT Fees FY2024
190



Explanation of Post-Retirement Medical Trust Fees

Description Explanation of  Fees How Calculated

     issuance    or beneficiaries. Recurring periodic disbursement 
to same individual                      $2.00 each

Investment Transactions Not applicable.

Insurance Policies Fees charged for insurance contract investments. Not applicable.  There are no insurance
     contracts investments in the trust.

Mortgage/Trust Deed Investments Fees charged for any mortgage/trust deed Not applicable.  There are no such type 
      investments.     of investments in the trust.

Extraordinary Fees

Late Fees If the account cannot be charged for fees after thirty (30) 
days, the fees not paid will be subject to a late charge.

1% per month on the unpaid balance

Fees charged for the purchase, sale, transfer, or 
reorganization items, including but not limited to mergers, 
full and partial calls, conversions, exchanges, and 
tender/purchase offers.

Other services performed by the trustee/custodian not 
specifically contemplated by the parties at the inception of 
the account shall, upon mutual consent, be subject to 
extraordinary fees based upon the time and services 
rendered in performing services.

Examples, include but are not limited to, out-of-
pocket expenses; and class action processing 
fees equal to 6% of the recovered funds.

PRMT Fees FY2024
191



A B C D E F
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Total Fees

Description of Fees 7/1/2023-9/30/2023 10/1/2023-12/31/2023 1/1/2024-3/31/2024 4/1/2024-6/30/2024 FY 2023-2024
Base Fee 125.00$                         125.00$                         250.00$                         
Adjustment to Meet Minimum Base Fee -$                               -$                               

Total Base Fees 125.00$                         125.00$                         -$                               -$                               250.00$                         
Trustee/Custody Fee first $1 Million @ $0.005 1,250.00$                      1,250.00$                      2,500.00$                      
Trustee/Custody Fee next $4 Million @ $0.002 2,000.00$                      2,000.00$                      4,000.00$                      
Trustee/Custody Fee next $20 Million @ $0.001 1,069.94$                      1,252.93$                      2,322.87$                      
Trustee/Custody Fee next $20 Million @ $0.0005 -$                               -$                               -$                               

Total Trustee Fees 4,319.94$                      4,502.93$                      -$                               -$                               8,822.87$                      
Fiduciary Return Fee/Grantor's Tax Letter Preparation -$                               
Wire Fees (Payments to CalPERS) -$                               

Total One-Time Fees/Credits -$                               -$                               -$                               -$                               -$                               

Total US Bank Fees 4,444.94$                      4,627.93$                      -$                               -$                               9,072.87$                      
Investment Management Fee on Balance @ $0.0035 7,884.83$                      7,884.83$                      

Total Investment Management Fees (Highmark) 7,884.83$                      -$                               -$                               -$                               7,884.83$                      

Total Fees 12,329.77$                    4,627.93$                      -$                               -$                               16,957.70$                    

Market Value of UAL/Trustee/Custody Fees 9,279,767$                    10,011,716$                  19,291,483$                  

Market Value of UALTrust 9,279,767$                    10,011,716$                  -$                               -$                               19,291,483$                  
Market Value of UAL/Investment Management Fees 9,011,231$                    9,011,231$                    

Market Value of Investments 9,011,231$                    -$                               -$                               -$                               9,011,231$                    

Percent Fees to Market Value 0.13% 0.05%

Trustee Service Fees by Quarter for CalPERS Unfunded Trust ("UAL")
Fiscal Year 2023-2024

UAL Fees FY2024
192



Explanation of CalPERS Unfunded Trust ("UAL")

Description Explanation of  Fees How Calculated

Set Up Fee One time initial fee upon acceptance of relationship $250.00 minimum at account set up

Base Fee Fee Charged per each Account $250.00 per year or $62.50 per quarter

Minimum Base Fee $250.00 per year or $62.50 per quarter

Investment Management Fees .35% of the funds not managed by USBank

Trustee/Custody Fees .50% on the first  $1,000,000 or (0.0040)**
.20% on the next  $4,000,000 or (0.0020)
.10% on the next $20,000,000 or (0.0010)
.05% on all over $25,000,000 or (0.0005)

Participant Loans Fees charged for participant loans. Not applicable.  Loans are not allowed.

** Increases from .40% to .50% on the first 
$1,000,000 or (0.0050) if there are no USBank 
proprietary funds.

Minimum Fee Charged per each Plan is $500.00.  Since 
NLACRC is only paying $250.00 because it has just one 
account, NLACRC is charged an additional $250.00 ($500 
minimum charge less $250 for one account)

All investments, non-proprietary USBank funds, are subject 
to investment management fees.  Investment management 
fees are calculated on the market value of the assets held 
in the account. Investment management fees do not apply 
to USBank proprietary funds. (Highmark Funds are 
USBank proprietary funds.)

Fees charged based on the market value of the assets held 
in the account for the trustee/custodian services provided 
by USBank.

Page 2 UAL Fees FY2024
193



Explanation of CalPERS Unfunded Trust ("UAL")

Description Explanation of  Fees How Calculated

Benefit Payments & check Fees charged for benefit payments made to participants Single disbursement                 $10.00 each
     issuance    or beneficiaries. Recurring periodic disbursement 

to same individual                      $2.00 each

Investment Transactions Not applicable.

Insurance Policies Fees charged for insurance contract investments. Not applicable.  There are no insurance
     contracts investments in the trust.

Mortgage/Trust Deed Investments Fees charged for any mortgage/trust deed Not applicable.  There are no such type 
      investments.     of investments in the trust.

Extraordinary Fees

Late Fees If the account cannot be charged for fees after thirty (30) 
days, the fees not paid will be subject to a late charge.

1% per month on the unpaid balance

Fees charged for the purchase, sale, transfer, or 
reorganization items, including but not limited to mergers, 
full and partial calls, conversions, exchanges, and 
tender/purchase offers.

Other services performed by the trustee/custodian not 
specifically contemplated by the parties at the inception of 
the account shall, upon mutual consent, be subject to 
extraordinary fees based upon the time and services 
rendered in performing services.

Examples, include but are not limited to, out-of-
pocket expenses; and class action processing 
fees equal to 6% of the recovered funds.

Page 3 UAL Fees FY2024
194



Board of Trustees Budget vs Expenditures

Fiscal Year 2023‐2024

A B C D E

Approved Budget % of Budget

Budget YTD Expenses Remaining Utilized

No Description 05/31/23 (B‐C) (C/B)

1 Board Retreat, Board Dinner and CAC Holiday Party 20,000.00$         ‐$                     20,000.00$           0.00%

2 NLACRC Legislative Events 3,500.00$           ‐$                     3,500.00$              0.00%

3 ARCA Meetings, Conferences, & Activities (includes airfare, hotels, cabs, meals, parking, etc.) 4,000.00$           1,856.84$           2,143.16$              46.42%

4 Board Member Support to Participate in Meeting & Events (overnight mailing, iPads, supplies, etc) 28,000.00$         16,919.18$         11,080.82$           60.43%

5 Transportation for Board Members (Keolis) 1,000.00$           167.08$               832.92$                 16.71%

6 Child Care/Attendant Care Support for Board Members 12,000.00$         1,365.29$           10,634.71$           11.38%

7 Meals for Board and Board Committee Meetings   3,000.00$           1,772.27$           1,227.73$              59.08%

8 Board & VAC Member Recruitment Expenses 2,000.00$           ‐$                     2,000.00$              0.00%

9 Board Meeting Supplies (nameplates, flowers, greeting cards, paper goods) 9,000.00$           2,074.17$           6,925.83$              23.05%

10 Sponsorships 4,000.00$           ‐$                     4,000.00$              0.00%

11 Board Training 15,000.00$         ‐$                     15,000.00$           0.00%

Total 101,500.00$       24,154.83$         77,345.17$           23.80%

Approved Board Budget
Paid through Feb 15,2024 

195



A B C D E F G H
Estimated E-1 Projected Consumers Per Capita Proj. Deficit/Surplus

Rank Regional Center  Expenditures Contract Deficit/Surplus Status 1 & 2 Allocation Per Capita
D - C D/F E/F

1 Inland 848,106,040                  745,684,487              (102,421,553)         46,340           16,092           (2,210)                            
2 North LA 809,893,697                  736,353,413              (73,540,284)           32,904           22,379           (2,235)                            
3 San Diego 649,271,063                  596,243,517              (53,027,546)           38,745           15,389           (1,369)                            
4 South Central 546,266,130                  515,383,862              (30,882,268)           20,401           25,263           (1,514)                            
5 Orange 628,430,795                  598,683,299              (29,747,496)           24,795           24,145           (1,200)                            
6 Valley Mountain 376,825,055                  350,864,354              (25,960,701)           18,532           18,933           (1,401)                            
7 East LA 387,009,546                  376,385,175              (10,624,371)           14,103           26,688           (753)                               
8 Westside  412,029,189                  403,744,005              (8,285,184)             10,546           38,284           (786)                               
9 Harbor 356,987,785                  351,663,831              (5,323,954)             17,212           20,431           (309)                               
10 Alta 691,835,781                  696,928,593              5,092,812              29,425           23,685           173                                
11 Golden Gate 490,904,740                  498,127,095              7,222,355              10,077           49,432           717                                
12 Central Valley 499,716,726                  513,060,597              13,343,871            26,509           19,354           503                                
13 San Gabriel 408,488,449                  424,384,165              15,895,716            15,507           27,367           1,025                             
14 Lanterman 326,373,981                  347,549,281              21,175,300            12,112           28,695           1,748                             
15 Far Northern 257,970,399                  281,736,843              23,766,444            9,345             30,148           2,543                             
16 Tri Counties 434,124,066                  458,693,323              24,569,257            18,525           24,761           1,326                             
17 Kern 277,445,500                  303,520,176              26,074,676            13,051           23,256           1,998                             
18 East Bay 728,695,608                  758,937,263              30,241,655            24,573           30,885           1,231                             
19 Redwood Coast 144,289,983                  177,630,825              33,340,842            4,471             39,730           7,457                             
20 San Andreas 705,223,664                  740,458,267              35,234,603            18,798           39,390           1,874                             
21 North Bay 411,115,591                  506,886,276              95,770,685            10,158           49,900           9,428                             

Totals 10,391,003,788             10,382,918,647         (8,085,141)             416,129         24,951           (19)                                 

PEP dated February 10, 2024

Summary of Regional Center Expenditures Projection Report (Excludes CPP)
Projected Deficit/Surplus

Sorted Highest to Lowest (Deficit) / Sorted Lowest to Highest (Surplus) (Column E)

R:\FIN-ADMIN\Shared Folder With CFO\Board Reports\Administrative Affairs\Admin Affairs FY24\PEP Reports from ARCA\PEP-Monthly Summary 2023-24 -without CPP_2024.02

196



A B C D E F G H
Estimated E-1 Projected Consumers Per Capita Proj. Deficit/Surplus

Rank Regional Center  Expenditures Contract Deficit/Surplus Status 1 & 2 Allocation Per Capita
D - C D/F E/F

1 North Bay 411,115,591                  506,886,276              95,770,685            10,158           49,900           9,428                             
2 Golden Gate 490,904,740                  498,127,095              7,222,355              10,077           49,432           717                                
3 Redwood Coast 144,289,983                  177,630,825              33,340,842            4,471             39,730           7,457                             
4 San Andreas 705,223,664                  740,458,267              35,234,603            18,798           39,390           1,874                             
5 Westside  412,029,189                  403,744,005              (8,285,184)             10,546           38,284           (786)                               
6 East Bay 728,695,608                  758,937,263              30,241,655            24,573           30,885           1,231                             
7 Far Northern 257,970,399                  281,736,843              23,766,444            9,345             30,148           2,543                             
8 Lanterman 326,373,981                  347,549,281              21,175,300            12,112           28,695           1,748                             
9 San Gabriel 408,488,449                  424,384,165              15,895,716            15,507           27,367           1,025                             
10 East LA 387,009,546                  376,385,175              (10,624,371)           14,103           26,688           (753)                               
11 South Central 546,266,130                  515,383,862              (30,882,268)           20,401           25,263           (1,514)                            
12 Tri Counties 434,124,066                  458,693,323              24,569,257            18,525           24,761           1,326                             
13 Orange 628,430,795                  598,683,299              (29,747,496)           24,795           24,145           (1,200)                            
14 Alta 691,835,781                  696,928,593              5,092,812              29,425           23,685           173                                
15 Kern 277,445,500                  303,520,176              26,074,676            13,051           23,256           1,998                             
16 North LA 809,893,697                  736,353,413              (73,540,284)           32,904           22,379           (2,235)                            
17 Harbor 356,987,785                  351,663,831              (5,323,954)             17,212           20,431           (309)                               
18 Central Valley 499,716,726                  513,060,597              13,343,871            26,509           19,354           503                                
19 Valley Mountain 376,825,055                  350,864,354              (25,960,701)           18,532           18,933           (1,401)                            
20 Inland 848,106,040                  745,684,487              (102,421,553)         46,340           16,092           (2,210)                            
21 San Diego 649,271,063                  596,243,517              (53,027,546)           38,745           15,389           (1,369)                            

Totals 10,391,003,788             10,382,918,647         (8,085,141)             416,129         24,951           (19)                                 

Summary of Regional Center Expenditures Projection Report (Excludes CPP)
Per Capita Allocation

Sorted Highest to Lowest (Column G)
PEP dated February 10, 2024

R:\FIN-ADMIN\Shared Folder With CFO\Board Reports\Administrative Affairs\Admin Affairs FY24\PEP Reports from ARCA\PEP-Monthly Summary 2023-24 -without CPP_2024.02

197



Service 
Code

Service Code Description
Number of 

Authorizations
July August September October November December January February March April May June Total

24 Purchase Reimbursement 457 245,993$      61,928$        35,777$        22,825$        18,759$        3,127$          -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              1,500$          389,909$      

24 Purch Reimb - no billing 126 -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$              

850 Camping Services 22 32,945$        13,548$        -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              46,493$        

850 Camping Svs - no billing 33 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

8 Sports Club 72 6,636$          8,567$          10,796$        12,170$        11,538$        -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              49,706$        

8 Sports Club - no billing 29 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

693 Music Therapist 0 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

693 Music Therapist - no billing 1 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

63 Clinical based Music Lesson 4 810$             710$             1,380$          1,250$          1,070$          -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              5,220$          

63 CB Music Lesson - no billing 3 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

Total Paid Auth's 555 286,384$      84,752$        47,953$        36,245$        31,367$        3,127$          -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              1,500$          491,328$      

Total Auth's - No billing 192 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

Payments

North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Social Recreation, Camp & Non-Medical Therapies Services
Fiscal Year 2023-2024

Claims Paid as of December 14, 2023 (November 2023 State Claim)

198



Service 
Code

Service Code Description
Number of 

Authorizations
July August September October November December January February March April May June Total

24 Purchase Reimbursement 884 133,946$      40,413$        26,695$        19,473$        34,783$        41,002$        44,025$        41,544$        45,703$        43,158$        40,528$        174,382$      685,652$      

24 Purch Reimb - no billing 33 -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$              

850 Camping Services 31 6,348$          1,375$          -$              400$             450$             5,200$          700$             350$             500$             350$             450$             32,573$        48,696$        

850 Camping Svs - no billing 35 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

8 Sports Club 24 -$              -$              1,222$          1,222$          1,222$          1,222$          1,222$          1,222$          1,556$          1,668$          3,376$          4,992$          18,923$        

8 Sports Club - no billing 7 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

63 Clinical based Music Lesson 2 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              345$             460$             460$             775$             660$             940$             1,005$          4,645$          

63 CB Music Lesson - no billing 0 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

Total Paid Auth's 941 140,294$      41,788$        27,918$        21,095$        36,455$        47,769$        46,407$        43,576$        48,534$        45,835$        45,293$        212,951$      757,916$      

Total Auth's - No billing 75 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

Payments

North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Social Recreation, Camp & Non-Medical Therapies Services
Fiscal Year 2022-2023

Claims Paid as of December 14, 2023 (November 2023 State Claim)

199



Service 
Code

Service Code Description
Number of 

Authorizations
July August September October November December January February March April May June Total

24 Purchase Reimbursement 153 9,162$          -$              1,300$          -$              -$              5,198$          1,190$          774$             3,658$          3,542$          6,009$          59,327$        90,160$        

24 Purch Reimb - no billing 8 -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$              

850 Camping Services 2 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              3,000$          -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              875$             3,875$          

850 Camping Svs - no billing 0 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

Total Paid Auth's 155 9,162$          -$              1,300$          -$              -$              8,198$          1,190$          774$             3,658$          3,542$          6,009$          60,202$        94,035$        

Total Auth's - No billing 8 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

Payments

North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Social Recreation, Camp & Non-Medical Therapies Services
Fiscal Year 2021-2022

Claims Paid as of December 14, 2023 (November 2023 State Claim)

200



Service 
Code

Service Code Description
Number of 

Authorizations
July August September October November December January February March April May June Total

24 Purchase Reimbursement 579 270,737$      79,272$        47,217$        35,586$        31,583$        21,617$        10,931$        -$              -$              -$              -$              1,500$          498,442$      

24 Purch Reimb - no billing 83 -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$              

850 Camping Services 26 32,945$        15,098$        -$              -$              -$              2,255$          -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              50,298$        

850 Camping Svs - no billing 33 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

8 Sports Club 79 6,636$          8,567$          10,796$        12,655$        12,023$        12,921$        -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              63,597$        

8 Sports Club - no billing 31 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

693 Music Therapist 0 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

693 Music Therapist - no billing 1 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

63 Clinical based Music Lesson 6 810$             710$             1,380$          1,250$          1,570$          1,760$          -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              7,480$          

63 CB Music Lesson - no billing 2 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

Total Paid Auth's 690 311,128$      103,646$      59,394$        49,491$        45,176$        38,552$        10,931$        -$              -$              -$              -$              1,500$          619,817$      

Total Auth's - No billing 150 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

Payments

North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Social Recreation, Camp & Non-Medical Therapies Services
Fiscal Year 2023-2024

Claims Paid as of January 18, 2024 (December 2023 State Claim)

201



Service 
Code

Service Code Description
Number of 

Authorizations
July August September October November December January February March April May June Total

24 Purchase Reimbursement 932 138,383$      40,413$        27,223$        20,343$        36,991$        41,492$        56,922$        42,324$        46,297$        47,585$        42,039$        190,898$      730,911$      

24 Purch Reimb - no billing 15 -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$              

850 Camping Services 31 6,348$          1,375$          -$              400$             450$             5,200$          700$             350$             500$             350$             450$             32,573$        48,696$        

850 Camping Svs - no billing 35 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

8 Sports Club 25 -$              -$              1,222$          1,222$          1,222$          1,222$          1,222$          1,222$          1,556$          1,668$          3,376$          5,104$          19,035$        

8 Sports Club - no billing 6 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

63 Clinical based Music Lesson 2 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              345$             460$             460$             775$             660$             940$             1,005$          4,645$          

63 CB Music Lesson - no billing 0 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

Total Paid Auth's 990 144,731$      41,788$        28,445$        21,965$        38,663$        48,259$        59,305$        44,356$        49,128$        50,263$        46,805$        229,579$      803,287$      

Total Auth's - No billing 56 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

Payments

North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Social Recreation, Camp & Non-Medical Therapies Services
Fiscal Year 2022-2023

Claims Paid as of January 18, 2024 (December 2023 State Claim)

202



Service 
Code

Service Code Description
Number of 

Authorizations
July August September October November December January February March April May June Total

24 Purchase Reimbursement 153 9,162$          -$              1,300$          -$              -$              5,198$          1,190$          774$             3,658$          3,542$          6,009$          59,327$        90,160$        

24 Purch Reimb - no billing 8 -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$              

850 Camping Services 2 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              3,000$          -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              875$             3,875$          

850 Camping Svs - no billing 0 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

Total Paid Auth's 155 9,162$          -$              1,300$          -$              -$              8,198$          1,190$          774$             3,658$          3,542$          6,009$          60,202$        94,035$        

Total Auth's - No billing 8 -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

Payments

North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Social Recreation, Camp & Non-Medical Therapies Services
Fiscal Year 2021-2022

Claims Paid as of January 18, 2024 (December 2023 State Claim)

203



Service Month 

Avg Work Days 

Between Invoice 

Generated &  

Submitted by Vendor

Avg Work Days 

Between Invoice 

Submitted by Vendor 

& Paid by NLACRC

# of Invoices Generated 

>30 Days After Service 

Month

% of Invoices 

Generated >30 Days 

After Service Month

07/2023 11.52 12.68 500 25%

08/2023 10.42 13.43 445 23%

09/2023 9.11 12.29 253 15%

10/2023 9.50 11.17 140 9%

11/2023 7.47 10.43 20 1%

12/2023 12.92 10.43 0 0%

01/2024

02/2024

03/2024

04/2024

05/2024

06/2024

FY2024 Averages 10.16 11.74 226 12%

Service Month 

# of FY2024 

Authorizations 

Generated >20 Days 

After Start Date 

Total # of 

Authorizations 

Generated Per Service 

Month

% of FY2024 

Authorizations 

Generated >20 After 

Start Date

07/2023 3,249 54,517 6%

08/2023 1,393 5,713 24%

09/2023 1,192 4,995 24%

10/2023 1,289 5,313 24%

11/2023 1,229 4,744 26%

12/2023 781 3,869 20%

01/2024 509 4,623 11%

02/2024

03/2024

04/2024

05/2024

06/2024

FY2024 Averages 1,377 11,968 19%

Summary of Invoice Payment Processing Timeline for FY2024 Authorizations

Payments through December 2023 State Claim (01/19/2024)

Summary of FY2024 Authorization Processing Timeline

204



Service Month 

Avg Work Days 

Between Invoice 

Generated &  

Submitted by Vendor

Avg Work Days 

Between Invoice 

Submitted by Vendor 

& Paid by NLACRC

# of Invoices Generated 

>30 Days After Service 

Month

% of Invoices 

Generated >30 Days 

After Service Month

07/2022 18.18 12.28 947 37%

08/2022 18.18 13.04 991 38%

09/2022 17.72 12.95 985 37%

10/2022 16.58 12.51 790 32%

11/2022 15.34 12.57 966 36%

12/2022 19.29 14.10 832 32%

01/2023 15.72 13.64 1054 43%

02/2023 14.20 13.88 871 34%

03/2023 13.97 13.82 777 34%

04/2023 13.55 13.11 674 31%

05/2023 12.26 12.79 563 27%

06/2023 10.54 13.22 501 26%

FY2023 Averages 15.46 13.16 829.25 34%

Service Month 

# of FY2023 

Authorizations 

Generated >20 Days 

After Start Date 

Total # of 

Authorizations 

Generated Per Service 

Month

% of FY2023 

Authorizations 

Generated >20 After 

Start Date

07/2022 3,137 52,913 6%

08/2022 1,367 5,108 27%

09/2022 1,512 4,830 31%

10/2022 1,284 4,284 30%

11/2022 1,577 4,686 34%

12/2022 1,132 3,820 30%

01/2023 2,158 5,677 38%

02/2023 1,138 4,418 26%

03/2023 1,260 5,016 25%

04/2023 999 4,418 23%

05/2023 1,908 5,488 35%

06/2023 683 4,958 14%

FY2023 Averages 1,513 8,801 26%

Summary of Invoice Payment Processing Timeline for FY2023 Authorizations

Payments through December 2023 State Claim (01/19/2024)

Summary of FY2023 Authorization Processing Timeline

205



Quarter
FY 23/24

Hold New Hires Promotions Separations

2nd Quarter 66 34 13 31

Quarter
FY 23/24

Separation 
Reasons

Totals

Retire 6
School 0
Relocation 2
Personal 19
Other 4

North Los Angeles County Regional Center

FY 2023/2024

Quarterly Human Resources Report

Oct - Dec

206



CSC Vacancies CSC Growth Positions Open Other Positions:   
Total Open Positions 

Vacant
Positions on Hold 

Positions Filled as of 
1/31/24

FY23/24 
Authorized 
Positions

% Filled
New Hires Started in the 

month
Separations in 

the Month
Jan '23 - 

Turnover Rate

All 
Locations

79 64 62 205 68 652 925 70.49% 10 11 1.69%

SFV 46 38 49 133 49 453 635 71.34% 7 7

AV 28 16 9 53 17 133 204 65.20% 1 1

SCV 5 10 4 19 2 66 86 76.74% 2 3

CSC Vacancies 79 CSC Growth Positions 64

Location Pos # Service Coordinators Department/ Location Open as of Date Location Pos # Service Coordinators Department/ Location
Open as of 

Date

SFV 469 CSC - SPECIALIZED ADULT 3 - CPP 4/9/2022 SFV 552 CSC EARLY START 1 1/4/2023

AV 336 CSC AV EARLY START 11/21/2022 AV 765 CSC AV ADULT 1 2/16/2023

SFV 440 CSC ADULT 8 12/5/2022 AV 777 CSC AV SCHOOL AGE 3 2/16/2023

SFV 296 CSC TRANSITION 1 1/6/2023 AV 779 CSC AV SCHOOL AGE 3 2/16/2023

AV 77 CSC AV ADULT 1 2/8/2023 AV 846 CSC AV EARLY START 3 2/16/2023

SFV 174 CSC ADULT 2 2/22/2023 AV 850 CSC AV EARLY START 2/16/2023

SFV 167 CSC ADULT 5 3/14/2023 AV 851 CSC AV EARLY START 2/16/2023

AV 426 CSC AV EARLY START 2 3/17/2023 SCV 784 CSC SCV SCHOOL AGE 2 2/16/2023

SFV 421 CSC EARLY START 3 3/29/2023 SCV 785 CSC SCV SCHOOL AGE 2 2/16/2023

SCV 98 CSC SCV TRANSITION 2 4/10/2023 SCV 786 CSC SCV SCHOOL AGE 2 2/16/2023

AV 72 CSC AV ADULT 2 4/12/2023 SCV 788 CSC SCV SCHOOL AGE 2 2/16/2023

AV 396 CSC AV ADULT 1 4/21/2023 SCV 838 CSC SCV EARLY START 2 2/16/2023

AV 84 CSC AV ADULT 1 4/27/2023 SFV 729 CSC ADULT 9 2/16/2023

AV 586 CSC AV SCHOOL AGE 1 5/1/2023 SFV 730 CSC ADULT 9 2/16/2023

SFV 172 CSC ADULT 6 5/5/2023 SFV 733 CSC ADULT 9 2/16/2023

SFV 591 CSC ADULT 4 5/5/2023 SFV 734 CSC ADULT 9 2/16/2023

SCV 100 CSC SCV ADULT 5/22/2023 SFV 735 CSC ADULT 9 2/16/2023

AV 537 CSC AV SCHOOL AGE 2 6/5/2023 SFV 740 CSC TRANSITION 4 2/16/2023

SFV 390 CSC TRANSITION 1 6/5/2023 SFV 741 CSC TRANSITION 4 2/16/2023

AV 215 CSC AV SCHOOL AGE 2 6/13/2023 SFV 745 CSC TRANSITION 4 2/16/2023

SFV 458 CSC EARLY START 3 6/20/2023 SFV 746 CSC TRANSITION 4 2/16/2023

SFV 209 CSC ADULT 7 6/22/2023 SFV 795 CSC ADULT 10 2/16/2023

SFV 56 CSC ADULT 7 6/28/2023 SFV 796 CSC ADULT 10 2/16/2023

SFV 575 CSC ADULT 3 - CPP 6/30/2023 SFV 805 CSC ADULT 11 2/16/2023

SFV 331 CSC ADULT 8 7/7/2023 SFV 818 CSC EARLY START 6 2/16/2023

SFV 30
OFFICER OF THE DAY 
SPEC

OD (FORMERLY ADULT 5) 7/10/2023 SFV 653 CSC SCHOOL AGE 8 4/24/2023

SFV 456 CSC SCHOOL AGE 4 7/16/2023 SCV 234 CSC SCV EARLY START 5/15/2023

SCV 635
OFFICER OF THE DAY 
SPEC

SCV ADULT 7/17/2023 SFV 553 CSC EARLY START 4 6/20/2023

SFV 106 CSC EARLY START 2 7/17/2023 SFV 70 CSC ADULT 4 6/23/2023

AV 572 CSC AV TRANSITION 2 7/19/2023 AV 774 CSC AV SCHOOL AGE 1 6/26/2023

AV 198 CSC AV TRANSITION 2 7/20/2023 AV 775 CSC AV SCHOOL AGE 2 6/26/2023

AV 773 CSC AV SCHOOL AGE 3 7/20/2023 AV 780 CSC AV SCHOOL AGE 3 6/26/2023

AV 24
OFFICER OF THE DAY 
SPEC

AV/OD FL 7/31/2023 AV 853 CSC AV EARLY START 3 6/26/2023

SFV 158 CSC ADULT 5 8/14/2023 SFV 836 CSC EARLY START - INTAKE 6/26/2023

SFV 117 CSC EARLY START 4 8/17/2023 SFV 800 CSC ADULT 10 6/27/2023

SFV 240 CSC EARLY START 4 8/18/2023 SFV 801 CSC ADULT 10 6/27/2023

SFV 288 CSC SCHOOL AGE 8 8/23/2023 SFV 803 CSC ADULT 11 6/27/2023

AV 88 CSC AV ADULT 1 8/28/2023 SFV 814 CSC EARLY START 6/27/2023

AV 254 CSC AV ADULT 1 8/28/2023 SFV 816 CSC EARLY START 6 6/27/2023

SFV 329 CSC ADULT 4 8/28/2023 SFV 819 CSC EARLY START 6 6/27/2023

SFV 419 CSC ADULT 7 8/30/2023 SFV 820 CSC EARLY START 6 6/27/2023

SFV 244 CSC ADULT 8 9/11/2023 SFV 823 CSC EARLY START 3 6/27/2023

SFV 351 CSC SCHOOL AGE 5 9/14/2023 SFV 824 CSC EARLY START 3 6/27/2023

SCV 116 CSC SCV EARLY START 9/22/2023 SFV 825 CSC EARLY START 4 6/27/2023

SFV 360 CSC SCHOOL AGE 8 9/25/2023 SFV 830 CSC EARLY START 7 6/27/2023

SCV 588 CSC SCV TRANSITION 9/28/2023 AV 27 OFFICER OF THE DAY SPEC AV/OD FL 7/3/2023

SFV 115 CSC EARLY START 2 9/29/2023 SFV 813 CSC EARLY START 2 7/3/2023

SFV 107 CSC EARLY START 4 10/9/2023 AV 781 CSC AV SCHOOL AGE 3 7/31/2023

SFV 142 CSC TRANSITION 2 10/9/2023 AV 875 FLOATER SPECIALIST AV EARLY START 3 7/31/2023

SFV 184 CSC ADULT 4 10/9/2023 SFV 866 FLOATER SPECIALIST - OD CASE MANAGEMENT 7/31/2023

SFV 261 CSC TRANSITION 3 10/9/2023 SFV 874 FLOATER SPECIALIST EARLY START 7 7/31/2023

AV 74 CSC AV ADULT 1 10/23/2023 SFV 37 OFFICER OF THE DAY SPEC OD (FORMERLY TRANS 2) 8/31/2023

AV 275 CSC AV ADULT 1 10/23/2023 SFV 758 CSC SCHOOL AGE 9 11/8/2023

AV 361 CSC AV ADULT 1 10/23/2023 AV 771 CSC AV SCHOOL AGE 3 11/20/2023

AV 466 CSC AV ADULT 3 10/23/2023 AV 782 CSC AV SCHOOL AGE 3 11/20/2023

SFV 356 CSC SCHOOL AGE 4 10/25/2023 SFV 564 FLOATER SPECIALIST TRANSITION 1 12/4/2023

AV 83 CSC AV TRANSITION 1 10/27/2023 AV 606 CSC AV ADULT 2 12/4/2023

SFV 119 CSC EARLY START 10/31/2023 SCV 712 CSC - INTAKE SCV EARLY START INTAKE 12/4/2023

SFV 233 CSC SCHOOL AGE 5 11/6/2023 SFV 812 CSC EARLY START 6 1/5/2024

SFV 176 CSC ADULT 5 11/20/2023 SCV 695 CSC SCV TRANSITION 2 1/12/2024

SFV 195 CSC ADULT 2 11/20/2023 SFV 806 CSC BILINGUAL ADULT 11 1/15/2024

SFV 208 CSC ADULT 7 11/20/2023 SCV 842 CSC SCV EARLY START 2 1/19/2024

SFV 211 CSC ADULT 7 11/20/2023 SFV 658 CSC ADULT 1 1/29/2024

SFV 450 CSC EARLY START 1 11/30/2023 SCV 539 CSC - MW SCV ADULT 1/31/2024

AV 406 CSC AV TRANSITION 1 12/4/2023

AV 691 CSC AV INTAKE 12/4/2023

SFV 109 CSC EARLY START 7 12/4/2023

SFV 250 CSC ADULT 5 12/4/2023

AV 568 FLOATER SPECIALIST AV/OD FL 12/14/2023

AV 587 CSC AV SCHOOL AGE 1 12/15/2023

SFV 171 CSC ADULT 6 12/15/2023

AV 357 CSC AV TRANSITION 1 12/18/2023

AV 76 CSC AV TRANSITION 2 1/1/2024

SFV 524 CSC ADULT 8 1/1/2024

AV 482 CSC AV TRANSITION 1 1/2/2024

SFV 348 CSC EARLY START 5 1/4/2024

AV 87 CSC AV TRANSITION 1 1/5/2024

SFV 414 CSC SCHOOL AGE 3 1/15/2024

SFV 156 CSC SCHOOL AGE 8 1/29/2024

HUMAN RESOURCES REPORT

Jan-24

207



FY23/24 Authorized Positions
Positions Added Based on 

FY 23/24 Growth

925 56

Open Other Positions:        62 Positions on Hold 68

Location Pos # All Other Positions Department/ Location Open as of Date Location Pos # Hold Positions Dept/ Location
Hold as of 

Date

SFV 624 PSYCHOLOGICAL SERVICES SUP CLINICAL SERVICES 9/4/2022 AV 305 FAMILY ADVOCATE AV - PUBLIC INFO & TRAIN 2/28/2022

SFV 218 DEPUTY DIRECTOR ADMINISRATION EXECUTIVE 10/7/2022 SFV 25 TECHNICAL SUPPORT ENGINEER INFO TECHNOLOGY 4/25/2022

SFV 40 COMMUNITY SERVICES SPECIALIST - CPP COMMUNITY SERVICES I 2/13/2023 SFV 398 PSYCHOLOGIST CLINICAL SERVICES 7/25/2022

SFV 634 OFFICE ASSISTANT II RECORDS & DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT 2/16/2023 SFV 701 LEAD RISK ASSESSMENT SPEC RISK ASSESSMENT 7/29/2022

SFV 794 CONSUMER SERVICE SUPERVISOR ADULT 10 2/16/2023 SFV 8 DIRECTOR OF FINANCE ACCOUNTING I 8/29/2022

SFV 26 ACCOUNTING SPECIALIST SR ACCOUNTING - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 1 6/20/2023 SFV 647 ACCOUNTANT JR ACCOUNTING 9/23/2022

SFV 203 ACCOUNTING SPECIALIST SR ACCOUNTING - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 1 6/20/2023 AV 847 CSC AV EARLY START 3 2/16/2023

AV 882 LEAD SERVICE COORDINATOR TRAINER SA/TRANSITION 7/11/2023 AV 848 CSC AV EARLY START 3 2/16/2023

AV 883 LEAD SERVICE COORDINATOR TRAINER SA/TRANSITION 7/11/2023 AV 849 CSC AV EARLY START 3 2/16/2023

AV 884 LEAD SERVICE COORDINATOR TRAINER SA/TRANSITION 7/11/2023 AV 854 CSC AV EARLY START 3 2/16/2023

AV 885 LEAD SERVICE COORDINATOR TRAINER SA/TRANSITION 7/11/2023 SCV 789 CSC SCV SCHOOL AGE 2 2/16/2023

AV 890 LEAD SERVICE COORDINATOR TRAINER EARLY START 7/11/2023 SFV 731 CSC ADULT 9 2/16/2023

SCV 876 LEAD SERVICE COORDINATOR TRAINER SA/TRANSITION 7/11/2023 SFV 732 CSC ADULT 9 2/16/2023

SCV 877 LEAD SERVICE COORDINATOR TRAINER SA/TRANSITION 7/11/2023 SFV 736 CSC ADULT 9 2/16/2023

SFV 878 LEAD SERVICE COORDINATOR TRAINER ADULT 7/11/2023 SFV 737 CSC ADULT 9 2/16/2023

SFV 879 LEAD SERVICE COORDINATOR TRAINER ADULT 7/11/2023 SFV 738 CSC ADULT 9 2/16/2023

SFV 886 LEAD SERVICE COORDINATOR TRAINER TRANSITION 1 7/11/2023 SFV 743 CSC TRANSITION 4 2/16/2023

SFV 888 LEAD SERVICE COORDINATOR TRAINER SCHOOL AGE 7/11/2023 SFV 744 CSC TRANSITION 4 2/16/2023

SFV 889 LEAD SERVICE COORDINATOR TRAINER EARLY START 7/11/2023 SFV 747 CSC TRANSITION 4 2/16/2023

SFV 196 INTAKE ASSOCIATE CLINICAL SERVICES - INTAKE 7/28/2023 SFV 748 CSC TRANSITION 4 2/16/2023

AV 901 OFFICE ASSISTANT II CLINICAL/ INTAKE 7/31/2023 SFV 749 CSC TRANSITION 4 2/16/2023

SFV 697 CONSUMER SERVICES SUPERVISOR TRANSITION 3 7/31/2023 SFV 754 CSC SCHOOL AGE 9 2/16/2023

SFV 870 INTAKE ASSOCIATE EARLY START - INTAKE 7/31/2023 SFV 755 CSC SCHOOL AGE 9 2/16/2023

SFV 891 ACCOUNTANT JR ACCOUNTING 7/31/2023 SFV 759 CSC SCHOOL AGE 9 2/16/2023

SFV 892 ACCOUNTANT JR ACCOUNTING 7/31/2023 SFV 762 CSC ADULT 9 2/16/2023

SFV 904 IT TRAINING SPECIALIST II INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 7/31/2023 SFV 769 CSC TRANSITION 4 2/16/2023

SFV 246 JUDICIAL/FORENSICS SPECIALIST ADULT 3 - CPP 8/13/2023 SFV 770 CSC SCHOOL AGE 9 2/16/2023

SFV 127 OFFICE ASSISTANT II FACILITIES 8/18/2023 SFV 790 CSC ADULT 10 2/16/2023

AV 367 CONSUMER SERVICES SUPERVISOR AV ADULT 1 8/28/2023 SFV 791 CSC ADULT 10 2/16/2023

AV 235 CONSUMER SERVICES SUPERVISOR AV TRANSITION 1 9/11/2023 SFV 792 CSC ADULT 10 2/16/2023

AV 873 CONSUMER SERVICES SUPERVISOR AV ADULT 4 9/11/2023 SFV 793 CSC ADULT 10 2/16/2023

SCV 342 OFFICE ASSISTANT II FACILITIES 9/11/2023 SFV 797 CSC ADULT 10 2/16/2023

SFV 21 ACCOUNTING SPECIALIST ACCOUNTING - ACCOUNTS PAY 1 9/11/2023 SFV 798 CSC ADULT 10 2/16/2023

SFV 42 RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT SPECIALIST COMMUNITY SERVICES I 9/11/2023 SFV 799 CSC ADULT 10 2/16/2023

SFV 48 COMMUNITY SERVICES SPECIALIST COMMUNITY SERVICES II 9/11/2023 SFV 807 CSC ADULT 11 2/16/2023

SFV 54 PSYCHOLOGICAL SERVICES SUP CLINICAL SERVICES - PSYCH 9/11/2023 SFV 810 CSC ADULT 11 2/16/2023

SFV 366 ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT COMMUNITY SERVICES 9/11/2023 SFV 821 CSC EARLY START 6 2/16/2023

SFV 374 OUTREACH LANG SPECIALIST CONSUMER SERVICES - SUPPORT 9/11/2023 SFV 827 CSC EARLY START 7 2/16/2023

SFV 383 ACCOUNTING SPECIALIST ACCOUNTING - REVENUES 9/11/2023 SFV 831 CSC EARLY START 7 2/16/2023

SFV 442 AUTISM CLINICAL SVCS SPECIALIST CLINICAL SERVICES 9/11/2023 SFV 832 CSC EARLY START 7 2/16/2023

SFV 443 ACCOUNTING SPECIALIST ACCOUNTING - REVENUES 9/11/2023 SFV 742 CSC TRANSITION 4 2/17/2023

SFV 478 COMMUNITY SERVICES SPECIALIST - CPP COMMUNITY SERVICES I 9/11/2023 AV 859 CSC AV SA - PROV ELIGIBILITY 4/1/2023

SFV 492 OFFICE ASSISTANT II FACILITIES 9/11/2023 SCV 857 CSC AV SA - PROV ELIGIBILITY 4/1/2023

SFV 532 DEIB SUPERVISOR CONSUMER SERVICES 2 9/11/2023 SFV 856 CSC AV SA - PROV ELIGIBILITY 4/1/2023

SFV 544 PSYCHOLOGICAL SERVICES SUP CLINICAL SERVICES - PSYCH 9/11/2023 SFV 858 CSC AV SA - PROV ELIGIBILITY 4/1/2023

SFV 545 EMPLOYMENT SERVICES SPECIALIST COMMUNITY SERVICES 9/11/2023 SFV 319 PUBLIC INFORMATION MANAGER PUBLIC INFORMATION 5/9/2023

SFV 569 HUMAN RESOURCES SPECIALIST I HUMAN RESOURCES 9/11/2023 SFV 860 CSC ADULT 11 6/23/2023

SFV 578 ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT ACCOUNTING - ADMINISTRATION 9/11/2023 SFV 861 CSC ADULT 11 6/23/2023

SFV 582 ACCOUNTANT JR ACCOUNTING - ACCOUNTS PAY 1 9/11/2023 SFV 862 CSC ADULT 11 6/23/2023

SFV 604 EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT ADMINISRATION EXECUTIVE 9/11/2023 SFV 721 EXEC ADMIN ASSISTANT INFO TECHNOLOGY 7/7/2023

SFV 628 IT SPECIALIST I INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 9/11/2023 SFV 897 OFFICE ASSISTANT II ACCOUNTING 7/17/2023

SFV 708 IDEA SPECIALIST SCHOOL AGE 9/11/2023 SFV 921 ACCOUNTING SPECIALIST ACCT - POS PAYMENTS 7/31/2023

SFV 863 COMMUNITY SERVICES SPECIALIST COMMUNITY SERVICES 9/11/2023 SFV 362 OFFICE ASSISTANT III RECS & DOC MANAGEMENT 8/23/2023

SFV 864 COMMUNITY SERVICES SPECIALIST COMMUNITY SERVICES 9/11/2023 AV 907 CSC AV ADULT 4 9/11/2023

SFV 924 DUE PROCESS OFFICER CONTRACT ADMIN RISK ASSESS 1 9/11/2023 AV 909 CSC AV ADULT 4 9/11/2023

SFV 925 VENDOR COORDINATOR COMMUNITY SERVICES 9/11/2023 AV 915 CSC AV ADULT 4 9/11/2023

SFV 927 LEAD IT SPECIALIST INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 9/11/2023 AV 908 CSC AV ADULT 4 9/11/2023

SFV 928 HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR HUMAN RESOURCES 9/11/2023 AV 910 CSC AV ADULT 4 9/11/2023

SCV 96 OFFICE ASSISTANT II EARLY START - SUPPORT 12/29/2023 AV 911 CSC AV ADULT 4 9/11/2023

SFV 498 HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER HUMAN RESOURCES 12/29/2023 AV 912 CSC AV ADULT 4 9/11/2023

SFV 11 ACCOUNTANT JR ACCOUNTING - AUDITS & REVENUE 12/31/2023 AV 913 CSC AV ADULT 4 9/11/2023

SFV 31 EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT ADMIN - EXECUTIVE SUPPORT 12/31/2023 AV 914 CSC AV ADULT 4 9/11/2023

AV 916 CSC AV ADULT 4 9/12/2023

AV 917 CSC AV ADULT 4 9/13/2023

SFV 149 CSC SCHOOL AGE 3 10/23/2023

SFV 289 CSC SCHOOL AGE 5 10/23/2023

SFV 291 CSC SCHOOL AGE 7 10/23/2023

SFV 429 CSC SCHOOL AGE 4 10/23/2023

208



New Hires Started in the month 10 Separations in the Month  11

Locatio
n

Pos # Position Hire Date Location Pos # Position Separation Reason Term Month

SCV 787 CSC - MW 1/2/2024 SFV 1 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR RETIREMENT 1/31/2024

SFV 21 ACCOUNTING SPECIALIST 1/2/2024 SFV 552 CSC PERSONAL 1/4/2024

AV 316 CSC - BILINGUAL 1/15/2024 SFV 348 CSC PERSONAL 1/4/2024

SFV 929 RETIRED ANNUITANT (PT) 1/22/2024 SFV 482 CSC PERSONAL 1/2/2024

SCV 228 CSC 1/29/2024 SFV 812 CSC PERSONAL 1/5/2024

SFV 243 CSC 1/29/2024 AV 87 CSC PERSONAL 1/5/2024

SFV 829 CSC 1/29/2024 SFV 247 CSC PERSONAL 1/3/2024

SFV 815 CSC 1/29/2024 SFV 125 ADMIN ASSISTANT OTHER EMPLOYMENT 1/12/2024

SFV 299 CSC 1/29/2024 SCV 695 CSC FAMILY REASONS 1/12/2024

SFV 2 EXEC ADMIN ASSISTANT 1/29/2024 SCV 842 CSC PERSONAL 1/18/2024

SCV 539 CSC PERSONAL 1/31/2024

209



FY2023-2024: 7/1/2023 - 1/31/2024

Count Status Job Title Location Department Start Date End Date Days of Service Reason Temp to Hire, Direct Hire or Supplemental

1 Converted Accounting Specialist SFV Accounting 1/23/2023 7/5/2023 117

Recruiting assistance needed due to increase in open requisitions.  Sourced through 
a temp agency after unable to successfully secure a direct hire

Temp to Perm

1 Converted Consumer Service Coordinator SFV Case Management 8/15/2023 11/17/2023 67

Recruiting assistance needed due to increase in open requisitions.  Sourced through 
a temp agency after unable to successfully secure a direct hire

Temp to Perm

1 Converted Consumer Service Coordinator SCV Case Management 8/29/2023 12/1/2023 65

Recruiting assistance needed due to increase in open requisitions.  Sourced through 
a temp agency after unable to successfully secure a direct hire

Temp to Perm

1 Converted Consumer Service Coordinator SFV Case Management 8/30/2023 11/17/2023 56

Recruiting assistance needed due to increase in open requisitions.  Sourced through 
a temp agency after unable to successfully secure a direct hire

Temp to Perm

1 Converted Executive Administrative Assistant (Board) SFV Administration 9/20/2023 1/29/2024 88

Recruiting assistance needed due to increase in open requisitions.  Sourced through 
a temp agency after unable to successfully secure a direct hire

Temp to Perm

1 Converted Executive Administrative Assistant (Board) SFV Administration 10/3/2023 12/1/2023 41

Recruiting assistance needed due to increase in open requisitions.  Sourced through 
a temp agency after unable to successfully secure a direct hire

Temp to Perm

1 Converted Consumer Service Coordinator AV Case Management 10/10/2023 12/1/2023 36

Recruiting assistance needed due to increase in open requisitions.  Sourced through 
a temp agency after unable to successfully secure a direct hire

Temp to Perm

1
Assignment 

Ended Vendor Coordinator (Administrative Assistant) SFV Community Services 10/17/2023 10/23/2023 5

Assist with DDS project

Temp Only

1 Active Consumer Service Coordinator SFV Case Management 11/17/2023 n/a

Recruiting assistance needed due to increase in open requisitions.  Sourced through 
a temp agency after unable to successfully secure a direct hire

Temp to Perm

1
Assignment 

Ended Consumer Service Coordinator SFV Case Management 11/20/2023 12/1/2023 8

Recruiting assistance needed due to increase in open requisitions.  Sourced through 
a temp agency after unable to successfully secure a direct hire

Temp to Perm

1 Active Consumer Service Coordinator AV Case Management 11/21/2023 n/a

Recruiting assistance needed due to increase in open requisitions.  Sourced through 
a temp agency after unable to successfully secure a direct hire

Temp to Perm

1 Active Vendor Coordinator (Administrative Assistant) SFV Community Services 12/5/2023 n/a

Assist with DDS project

Temp Only

1 Active Office Assistant SFV Office Services 1/17/2024 n/a

Reception

Temp to Perm

Accounting 1
Administration 2
Community Services 2
Contracts Administration 0
Case Management 7
HR 0
Office Services 1
Finance Administration 0
Payroll 0

Grand Total 13

Average Length of Service 53.6666667
New 0
Active 4
Converted 7
Assignment Ended 2

Temporary Employees Report - January 2024

Department Totals

Conversion Totals

210



1 peoplescout.com © 2024 PeopleScout – A TrueBlue Company  |  Confidential and Proprietary  

RPO Recruitment Activity Since Go-Live (11/21/2023)

People Scout Update

31
OFFERS ACCEPTED

(Verbal + Written)

5
OFFERS PENDING

ACCEPTANCE

11
OFFERS DECLINED

211



2 peoplescout.com © 2024 PeopleScout – A TrueBlue Company  |  Confidential and Proprietary  

CANDIDATE OFFERS UPDATE
NLACRC + PS

Offers Accepted since Go-Live (31):
• 21 CSCs
• 3 CS Supervisors
• 1 Employment Services Specialist
• 1 IT Specialist 
• 1 Office Assistant II
• 1 Administrative Assistant
• 2 Accounting Specialists
• 1 Sr. Accounting Specialist

CSC

CSC Supervisor

IT Specialist

Office Assistant

Admin Assistant

Accounting Spec

Sr Accounting Spec

0 5 10 15 20 25

Offers Accepted since 11/21

Offers Accepted since 11/21

212



   

 

   

 

 
North Los Angeles County Regional Center 

Consumer Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes (Via Zoom) 
February 7th , 2024 

 
 
Present: Pamela Aiona, Bill Abramson, Destry Walker, Jennifer Koster, and Juan 

Hernandez – Committee Members  
 

Alex Phuong, Yaneth, Santos Rodriguez, Kristine Mosteiro, Lesly Forbes, 
Albert Feliciano, Minutes Services - Guests 

 
Christina Preuss, Kimberly Visokey – Staff 

 
Absent:  George Alvarado 
  
 
I. Call to Order & Introductions  

J. Hernandez called the meeting to order at 3:11 pm, and introductions were made 
by all committee members, staff, and guests.  
 

II.  Consent Items  
A. Approval of Agenda 

 
M/S/C (J. Hernandez/L. Forbes) To approve the Agenda. Motion passed. 

 
B. Approval of Minutes from January 3rd, 2024 Meeting 

Two typos were found: a misspelling of George’s last name, and in part 3, 
the letter C, ORKA was abbreviated incorrectly.  

 
M/S/C (J. Hernandez/L. Forder) To approve the January 3rd, 2024 minutes. 
Motion passed. 

 
III.  Committee Business 

A. Flyer Update- Kristine M. DEIB 
K. Mosteiro shares the first version of the revised CAC (Community 

Advisory Committee) flyer, highlighting upgrades in graphics, added dates, 

and a QR code for easy scanning. Two versions are presented – one with a 

213



NLACRC Consumer Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes                                                            Page 2 
Febuary 7, 2024 

 

 

   

 

white background and another with a purple background. Feedback is sought 

from the participants. 

 

B. Abramson expresses a preference for the white background for better 

readability, while J. Hernandez appreciates the effort and leans towards the 

white background as well. Hernandez suggests that the graphic in the middle 

lacks representation of the community and suggests adding elements like a 

person in a wheelchair or using special devices to reflect diversity better. L. 

Forbes agrees with the idea of including individuals with physical challenges, 

emphasizing inclusivity. Juan also suggests adding text to the QR code 

section to guide individuals on how to use it, considering not everyone may 

be tech-savvy. 

 

The discussion shifts to promoting the flyer, with J. Hernandez suggesting 

involving the Vendor Advisory Committee (VAC) to share it among vendors 

for increased attendance. C. Preuss mentions plans for mass mailing to 

attract new committee members and participants. J. Hernandez supports the 

idea of involving vendors and expresses readiness to attend vendor meetings 

to promote the committee. The hope is to increase attendance, especially 

when in-person meetings become feasible post-pandemic. 

 

K. Visokey inquires about future updates to the flyer, and K. Mosteiro 

confirms that it will be updated and shared with relevant team members 

soon. 

 
Action Item: K. Mosteiro will go forward with the white background for the 
flyer 
 
Action Item: K. Mosteiro will add instructional text to the QR code  
 
Action Item: K. Mosteiro will add more representation to the flyer, such as 
including people with disabilities  
 
Action Item: C. Preuss will share the flyer with the Vendor Advisory 
Committee (VAC) 

214



NLACRC Consumer Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes                                                            Page 3 
Febuary 7, 2024 

 

 

   

 

 
 

B. CAC Goals Update 
J. Hernandez addresses the next agenda item, the update on CAC 
(Community Advisory Committee) goals. There’s a brief discussion about 
locating the updated goals in the meeting packet. C. Preuss mentions not 
finding them but suggests Kimberly might have a copy. K. Visokey 
volunteers to find and share the updated goals. 
 
While Hernandez acknowledges that the goals are not currently in the packet, 
C. Preuss confirms that the presented goals were reviewed and approved 
during a board meeting. Kimberly assured that she would locate the 
document. 
 
C. Preuss acknowledges the absence of the goals in the packet and proposes 
sending them to the participants after the meeting. B. Abramson supports 
this idea, and K. Visokey suggests moving on to the next agenda item while 
she locates the document for later discussion. 
 
Action Item: K. Visokey will send out the board-approved CAC goals packet 
to the committee.  

 
C. Meeting update – Meetings will be held virtually via Zoom for the remainder 

of the Fiscal Year. 
J. Hernandez announces that the meetings will continue to be held virtually 
for the remainder of the year due to a combination of COVID-19 concerns 
and the need for technology updates in the meeting rooms. The decision is 
influenced by recent issues with audio during the last attempt at a virtual 
meeting, prompting the need for room upgrades to support hybrid-style 
meetings. Once the technological improvements are in place, the committee 
anticipates returning to a hybrid meeting format. 
 
B. Abramson acknowledges current technology challenges, expressing the 
hope that, in the future, the committee might return to in-person meetings. 
Juan Hernandez agrees but highlights the widespread adoption of online 
platforms like Zoom, making it more convenient for many participants. He 

215



NLACRC Consumer Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes                                                            Page 4 
Febuary 7, 2024 

 

 

   

 

also mentions the ongoing challenges posed by different COVID variants, 
making a complete return to in-person meetings less likely. 

 
D. Training/Presentation Update – Cristina P. 

C. Preuss takes over, explaining that the training schedule aligns with the 

fiscal year, starting in July and ending in June. She outlines the planned 

trainings, including one by Albert Feliciano on reporting of use in February, 

emergency preparedness in March, a postponed presentation by the 

Department of Mental Health in April, adult protective services in May, and 

legislative education in June. 

 

J. Hernandez acknowledges potential confusion due to the fiscal format but 

assures that the details are available. He briefly discusses the recent 

committee meeting, highlighting the approval of a course related to their 

operations and announcing C. Preuss as the interim director following Ruth 

Jinka’s departure. He expresses hope for a qualified replacement and 

emphasizes the challenges of the interim deputy director role. 

 

J. Hernandez touches upon contractual matters discussed in the meeting and 

transitions to the topic of awkward representation. C. Preuss confirms that 

there are scheduled trainings with the Office of Clients Rights, including 

financial awareness in March, client rights in June, voting rights in 

September, and fair hearings in December. 

 

E. OCRA Quarterly Public Presentations update 
 

F. Reporting abuse presentation- Albert F state council 
The presentation by Albert Feliciano focuses on the topic of mandated 
reporting, particularly in the context of individuals working in professions 
obligated to report abuse or neglect. Albert, an advocate with the State 
Council on Developmental Disabilities, LA Office, emphasizes the 
importance of understanding and fulfilling the responsibility of mandated 
reporting. He covers aspects such as who is mandated to report, the types of 
abuse that must be reported, signs to look for, and the reporting process. 
Albert also highlights the need for maintaining confidentiality throughout the 

216



NLACRC Consumer Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes                                                            Page 5 
Febuary 7, 2024 

 

 

   

 

reporting process to protect the dignity and rights of the individuals 
involved. 
 
A brief Q&A followed the presentation where A. Feliciano clarified that as a 
mandated reporter, he is legally required to report any suspicion or evidence 
of abuse, regardless of the victim’s wishes. The discussion also touched upon 
the role of psychologists and other professionals as mandated reporters. 
Additionally, the importance of reporting even minor suspicions was 
emphasized, highlighting the legal obligation to report any potential abuse or 
neglect. The session concluded with a participant requesting the presentation 
to be shared in the chat. 

 
IV.  Identify Agenda Items for the Next Board Meeting 

A.  Minutes from the February 7, 2024 Meeting 
 K. Visokey mentions specific action items, including updating the flyer based 

on committee recommendations for the March 6th meeting. Additionally, 
they plan to send out the approved flyer to the VAC chair and committee 
members, incorporating it into the March VAC agenda. K. Visokey also 
mentions sending the board-approved CAC goals to the committee. These 
action items are summarized as key tasks for the upcoming activities. 

 
V.  Announcements/Information/Public Input 

A. Abilities Expo 
J. Hernandez informs the group about the Abilities Expo happening on 
March 15 at the convention center, which provides information on programs 
and services not only for physically disabled individuals but also for those 
with cognitive disabilities. He recommends attending, emphasizing that there 
are resources for everyone, including low-income housing, utilities, and job 
training. The discussion includes details about registration, transportation, 
and potential attendance by group members, with B. Abramson expressing 
interest but also noting the need to coordinate transportation logistics. 
Contact information exchange for coordinating attendance is also discussed, 
with members suggesting using the chat for sharing details. The conversation 
concludes with plans for the event and well wishes for a participant in a 
Boeing Tournament. 

B. Next Meeting March 6, 2024 (3pm) 
C. Attendance Sheet 

217



NLACRC Consumer Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes                                                            Page 6 
Febuary 7, 2024 

 

 

   

 

There’s a query about a missed meeting in August 2020, and Christina Preuss 
assures they will check the minutes for clarification. 
 
Action Item: C Preuss will check the minutes following a query about a 
missed meeting in August 2020 
 

D. DDS Training 
C. Preuss shares information about upcoming webinars by the Department 
of Developmental Services on home and community-based services 
requirements. C. Preuss requests K. Visokey to email the flyer to participants 
for registration details. The webinars are scheduled for Friday and Saturday, 
with recordings available for those unable to attend. The conversation 
concludes with gratitude for the information shared.  
 
Action Item: K. Visokey will email the DDS flyer to participants with 
registration details. 
 

VI.  Adjournment 
 J. Hernandez adjourned the meeting at 5:11 pm.  
 
 
Submitted by: 

Kimberly Visokey 
Executive Administrative Assistant 
 
 
(*) The majority of these minutes are taken from the Minutes Service submission and reviewed/edited as 
presented herein by NLACRC staff. 

 

218



North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Consumer Services Committee Meeting Minutes 

csmin_july_21_2021_Draft.docx 
November 15, 2023 

 
 
Present: Rocio Sigala, Alma Rodriguez, Cathy Blin, George Alvarado, Nicholas Abrahms, Jennifer 

Koster, Juan Hernandez, Curtis Wang, Anna Hurst, Michael Costa, Sharmila Brunjes, 
Vivien Seda, Erica Beall   – Committee Members  

 
Kimberly Visokey, Xochitl Aragon, Evelyn McOmie, Gabriella Eshrati, Cristina Preuss, 
Silvia Haro – Staff Members 

  
Lori Walker- SDLVAC Co-Chair, Richard Dier- SDLVAC Co-Chair, Nicholas Mendoza- Coach 
for George Alvarado, Jasmine Barrios- Minutes Services - Guests 

 
 

Absent:    
  

 
I. Call to Order & Introductions 
 

Rocio Sigala called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
II. Public Input  
 

Ana Quiles invited the Committee to attend an upcoming Executive Committee Meeting 
on November 30th at 6 pm.  
 
Curtis Wang inquired about the Board Dinner Workgroup invite that he got via email. 
Board Support to reach out to Curtis to further discuss.  
 
Richard Dier announced that he would be attending the Executive Committee Meeting 
on November 30th.  

 
III. Consent Items 
 

A. Approval of Agenda  
 
Under Committee Action items, Rocio amended Item B. Including Parents, Guardians, 
Conservators as Service Providers Discussion to read Including Parents, Guardians, 
Conservators as Service Coordinators Discussion.  
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/C. Wang) To approve the agenda as revised.  

 
B. Approval of Minutes of September 20th Meeting  

 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/C. Wang) To approve the meeting minutes as presented. 
 

219

file:///C:/Users/bza8405/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/BVU9A5E4/csmin_july_21_2021_Draft.docx


NLACRC Consumer Services Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 2 
November 15, 2023 
 

 

IV. Committee Business - Evelyn McOmie 
 

A. Board Audit 
I. Ensure the Service Standards are consistent with NLA’s Mission, Vision, and Values 
Statements 
This information was reviewed as presented in the packet. The service standards were 
revised to include updates to the section on Social Recreation. 
 
M/S/C (C. Blin/G. Alvarado) To approve the revision to the service standards as 
presented.  
 
II. Review NLA’s Mission, Vision, and Values statement to determine if NLA is providing 
adequate guidance in establishing Consumer Services Policy  
Evelyn explained that the Committee reviews the changes to the service standards and 
approves them for presentation to the Board, which ultimately sends to DDS upon 
approval. The most recent approved Notice of Action was recently approved and is 
highlighted in the packet. IDEA Part C- Early Start language has also been sent to DDS 
for approval and is pending review. Any updates from DDS will be communicated to the 
Committee as soon as it becomes available.  
The Committee agreed that the current standards are aligned with NLA’s mission, vision, 
and values statements.   
 

V. Committee Action Items 
 

A.  Community Services Quality Assurance Monitoring Presentation – Venus/Xochitl 
The NLA Quality Assurance team shared information on the Quality Assurance 
department at NLA. Their presentation was reviewed as presented in the packet. The 
Quality Assurance (QA) Unit resolves questions and complaints about program services 
and monitors residential facilities for compliance with regulations and adherence to 
their program designs. QA ensures that services meet the resident’s needs in a manner 
consistent with Title 17 of the Lanterman Act. The QA team consists of 8 QA specialists 
who oversee over 400 homes in all three NLA valleys.  
 
Roles and Responsibilities of the QA Unit: 

• Monitor and evaluate residential facilities to ensure compliance with regulations.  

• Observation of resident activities during regularly scheduled daily activities for 
compliance with program design and IPP objectives.  

• Review of resident records. 

• Review and follow up on residential special incident reports.  

• Review and follow up on client rights violations, investigate and respond to 
allegations of abuse, neglect, or immediate danger. 

•  Investigate and mediate complaints made by residents, family members, and 
community members and received by NLA & DDS.  

• Identify conditions of substantial inadequacy in program services and delivery.  

• Quarterly reporting, CAP, and sanctions to DDS for statewide tracking.  

• Attend statewide risk management quarterly meetings. 
220



NLACRC Consumer Services Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 3 
November 15, 2023 
 

 

 
  Corrective Action Plan (CAP) 

• Correct action plans are developed when a substantial inadequacy has been 
identified.  

• Community services QA supervisor, QA facility liaison, case management and the 
vendor meet within ten working days of the identification and verification of a 
substantial inadequacy to collaboratively develop a written corrective action 
plan to bring the facility into compliance. The CAP is issued within two days of 
the meeting and describes:  

o The substantial inadequacy statute, regulation, IPP, or admission 
agreement requirement  

o the methods by which the administrator is to correct the substantial 
inadequacy and 

o the timeframe to correct the substantial inadequacy within 30 days, not 
to exceed six months. 

   
   Sanctions - Title 17 Section 56057 

• If a substantial inadequacy is not corrected within the timeframe specified in the 
CAP, or if there are two findings of substantial inadequacy in the same facility 
within any 12-month period, NLA will apply sanctions per title 17 of the 
Lanterman Act. 

• Once sanctioned, NLA may meet with the resident’s authorized representative 
to discuss the situation, recommend relocation, and discuss the consequences 
of refusing to relocate. NLA may not place the resident back into the facility until 
the facility complies with the CAP. 

• The Residential Liaison shall visit the facility to review and document actions 
taken by the administrator to implement the CAP. It will document any 
substantial inadequacies which are not corrected within the specified 
timeframe. Once all areas of the plan have been met, QA conducts an 
unannounced visit and closes the CAP. If, during the visit, actions of the CAP have 
not been implemented, the administrator will be informed that another visit will 
be completed. 

 
Residential Liaisons 
 Vendored residential homes are assigned a QA liaison and a CSC liaison to 
 collaborate with:  

• Support the vendor and residents residing in the home.  

• Monitor the health and safety of the residents in the home.  

• Ensure service delivery.  

• Conduct interviews for the purpose of investigations.  

• Risk, mitigate and address any challenges or concerns.  

• Develop corrective action plans and attend compliance meetings with the 
vendor to bring them into compliance.  

• Complete the new residential vendor orientation.  
 
Quality assurance provides ongoing technical assistance and continuing education. 

221



NLACRC Consumer Services Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 4 
November 15, 2023 
 

 

Venus clarified that these trainings are for families, individuals, and vendors as well.  
 

B.  Including Parents, Guardians, and Conservators as Service Coordinators discussion  
 

Rocio Sigala asked the Committee for feedback on implementing the option for families 
and guardians to serve as Service Coordinators for individuals as part of the traditional 
system outside of SDP. Evelyn McOmie explained that if a family member decides to be 
a Service Coordinator, that person would actively be responsible for participation in IPP 
planning and logistics, which include drafting the IPP. However, because of protected 
HIPAA information, the family would not have access to NLA’s system, which would 
require an NLA staff member to be involved in utilizing the Sandis computer system.  
 
Evelyn shared that she and her team are in the process of developing “Parent 
University,” which would be modules with learning Service Standards, IPP Planning, 
generic resources, and other subjects. This program would also be used to integrate and 
train parents and families to understand the system. It would consider this in 
conjunction with parents/guardians with being a service coordinator.  
 
Rocio proposed that a workgroup be developed to further work on a plan for this item. 
According to NLA records, there have only been two parents who have been able to go 
through the process of becoming a Service Coordinator. One of those parents was at the 
meeting and, through the meeting chat, offered to join the potential workgroup to 
provide their experience to the group.  Evelyn will work with her team to determine the 
bandwidth for creating this group and will revisit this item with the Committee.  
 

 
VI.  Committee Report Updates 
 

A. Self-Determination Program Report 
Gabriela Eshrati reviewed the SDP Report as presented in the packet.   
 
As of November 1st: 
Participants have completed Orientation: 699 
Total number of budgets that are certified: 334 
Total number of budgets that are in the certification process: 12 
Total number of spending plans that are approved: 265 
Total number of spending plans in progress: 67 
Total number of PCPs completed: 293 
Total number of participants that have opted out of SDP after enrolling: 2 
Total number of Inter-Regional Center Transfers (out):3 
Total number of participants that have fully transitioned into SDP with approved 
spending plans and active SDP IPPs: 265 
 

       1. SDLVAC Board Liaison Report  
The report was reviewed as presented in the packet. Gabriela noted that the SDLVAC needs 
more communication and collaboration with the Board to address concerns related to SDP. 

222



NLACRC Consumer Services Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 5 
November 15, 2023 
 

 

Rocio asked if Gabriela could reach out to DDS about the GTI 1% non-payroll expense that 
was implemented. 
 

B. 1st Quarter Intake Data by Location Report  
Evelyn reviewed the information as presented in the packet.  
 
July Intake Case Total: 966 
Over 120 Days: 42 
% Over 120 Days: 4.35 % 
 
August Intake Case Total: 848 
Over 120 Days: 48 
% Over 120 Days: 5.66 % 
 
September Intake Case Total: 906 
Over 120 Days: 34  
% Over 120 Days: 3.75 % 

 
C. 1st Quarter Appeals Report  

Evelyn reviewed this report as presented in the packet.  
 
Number of NOAs Sent: 846 
Number of Appeals filed from Total NOAs: 23 (Services), 18 (Eligibility) 
Number of Appeals Filed: 41 
 

D. 1st Quarter Disparity Committee Report 
Cristina reviewed this report as presented in the packet.  
Areas of concern that were mentioned include what can be done to identify provider 
shortages by area and other barriers to service provision. 
 

         
VII.  Chief Consumer and Community Services Officer Report - Evelyn McOmie 

A.  IPP Training/IPP Manual for CSCs Update  
NLA recently updated a new virtual training regarding Person-Centered IPP training 
developed for Service Coordinators and was rolled out in October to supervisors; 
November will see the first cohort for this training. This program will walk the CSCs 
through the process and highlight various tools to help with annual and quarterly IPP 
reviews.  Evelyn highlighted her team of 15 people who helped create this training. The 
training will be revisited in 18 months to ensure quality and compliance.  

 
B.  IFSP Training Manual for Early Start Staff Update  
 Similarly to the IPP training, NLA is developing a training for IFSP training that is 
 scheduled to be completed in the spring of 2024.  
 
C. Lead CSC Trainer Model Update  
 Evelyn shared that there are 4 Lead Trainers for CSCs that will be responsible for 

223



NLACRC Consumer Services Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 6 
November 15, 2023 
 

 

 supplementing the training process. All are currently at the San Fernando Valley 
 location.  
 
D.  Trainings for Case Management/Onboarding of New Staff Update  

In addition to IPP training for new staff, NLA has 50 trainings that supervisors, managers 
and directors will conduct throughout various times. NLA is looking to streamline how 
trainings is produced and published. There have been 21 trainings that have been 
converted to the LMS virtual process.  
 

E.  Training for Onboarding Parents Update  
A workgroup created a policy for onboarding families into the system after intake. This 
group developed the Roadmap for parents and is looking to create a series of 8 modules 
regarding multiple subjects to provide families with knowledge, tools and resources to 
navigate the system. A pilot program is planned for 2024.  

 
F.  Internal Assessments Update  
 NLA directors and managers are creating a staff workgroup to review assessment tools 
 to better streamline assessments and forms for maximum efficiency.  
 
G.  POS Update  

NLA has been looking to revamp this process since March. A report was built on the back 
end to track what is being approved by NLA supervisors. About 80% of the POS’ are being 
approved by supervisors, which has been a relief for the 3 Case Management Directors 
who were previously proving over 2000 POS requests. POS training for supervisors will 
be established virtually for reference.  
 

H.  Partnership Meetings with Vendors Update  
Evelyn commenced partnership meetings with vendors in October. She has visited the 
program to discuss collaboration and what is working well or not working. There have 
been only a few vendors so far, but NLA is hopeful that a restructuring will allow more 
time and bandwidth to continue these meetings successfully.  

 
VIII.  Meeting Action Item Review 

A. Revise the Committee Priorities for FY23-24 and email to the Committee for electronic vote 
(Evelyn McOmie). 

B. Revise the Committee Critical Calendar to remove the POS Semi-Annual Report and add the 
Disparity Committee Report on a quarterly basis. (Evelyn McOmie) 

C. Compile data related to the 240 Pilot Families in the Enhanced Coordination Unit for 
presentation at the next Committee Meeting. (Evelyn McOmie and Gabriela Eshrati) 

D. Gather information on the 659 individuals who have completed SDP Orientation and 
determine barriers to joining the SDP Program. (Gabriela Eshrati) 

E. Revise each report to reflect the revisions that were determined by the Committee (Evelyn 
McOmie) 
 

IX. Board Meeting Agenda Items 
 

224



NLACRC Consumer Services Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 7 
November 15, 2023 
 

 

A.   Minutes of the November 15th Meeting  
 

X. Announcements / Information Items / Public Input 
 

A. Committee Attendance Log 

B. Next Meeting:  Wednesday, February 21, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. 

C. Public Input  

George invited the Committee to an upcoming ARCA meeting and shared that there will 
also be a potluck to celebrate the Thanksgiving holiday.  

 
XI. Adjournment 
 

Evelyn McOmie adjourned the meeting at 8:03 p.m.  
 
 
Submitted by: 

Kimberly Visokey 
Executive Administrative Assistant 
 
 
(*) The majority of these minutes are taken from the Minutes Service submission and reviewed/edited as 
presented herein by NLACRC staff. 

 

225



North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 

csmin_july_21_2021_Draft.docx 
January 25, 2024 

 
 
Present: Ana Quiles, Brian Gatus, David Coe, Rocio Sigala, Leticia Garcia, Andrew Ramirez - 

Committee Members 
 

Ruth Janka, Evelyn McOmie, Vini Montague, Arezo Abedi, Kimberly Vokey, Cristina 
Preuss, Gabriela Eshrati, Malorie Lanthier, Michael Karpman – Staff Members 

  
David Lester- NLA Counsel,  Miriam Erberich,  Jasmine Barrios -Minutes Services - Guests 
 

Absent:             Lillian Martinez 
  

 
I. Call to Order 

Ana Quiles called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
 

 
II. Public Input  

None 
 

III. Consent Items 
A. Approval of Agenda  

   
  M/S/C (D. Coe/A. Ramirez) To approve the agenda as presented.  
 

B. Approval of Minutes of November 30th Meeting  
 
M/S/C (D. Coe/A. Ramirez) To approve the Minutes as presented. 
 
 

C. Approval of Minutes of December 14th Meeting  
M/S/C (D. Coe/A. Ramirez) To approve the Minutes as presented.  

 
IV.  Consumer Advisory Committee 

A. CAC Report – Cristina Preuss  
Cristina reviewed the information as presented in the packet. Due to technical difficulties, 
the DMH presentation will be rescheduled for April. The CAC is also pending approval for 
the CAC goals.   

 
V. Action Items 
 A.     Consumer Legislative Advocacy Trainings – David Coe 

David Lester was consulted regarding if the Executive Committee could approve the 

226

file:///C:/Users/bza8405/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/BVU9A5E4/csmin_july_21_2021_Draft.docx


NLACRC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 2 
January 25, 2024 

addition of Consumer Legislative Advocacy Trainings to the Critical Calendar for the 
Government and Community Relations Committee, on behalf of the Board. Per David 
Lester, unless directly delegated by the Board, the Executive Committee is not able to  
approve the request on behalf of the Board.  

 
VI. Committee Business 

A. Board of Trustees Bylaw Review – Ana Quiles & David Lester, Esq.  
 
David Lester, who serves as NLA’s legal counsel, thoroughly reviewed NLA’s 46-page Bylaws 
document and made recommendations on how they can be revised to reflect the most 
updated verbiage. He noted that he divided the sections for Board Powers and Board Duties. 
He recommended that the Committee address the important or urgent sections within the 
bylaws and then divide the remainder to be reviewed in small increments (10 pages per 
meeting), in order to complete the entire review of revisions.  
 
There was a concern raised by Leticia Garcia regarding this request from the Committee, in 
that the purpose of the request was to address an urgent issue from the Consumer Advisory 
Committee in which, they sought to revise the bylaws to be able to elect their own 
Chairperson, and a second urgent issue, regarding the Board Liaison role. She stated that 
since the Board did not approve a review of the entire Bylaws, the Executive Committee 
would not be able to review or vote to approve the revisions. She recommended this item 
be added to the next Board Meeting Agenda and that the item include a request for an 
AdHoc Committee to conduct the Bylaw review.  
 
Ana replied that the Executive Committee would be reviewing the revisions and making 
recommendations to the Board, not making approvals on behalf of the Board. After 
discussion, it was acknowledged that the Board should have approved the entire scope of 
work done by David Lester, in reviewing the entire bylaws, as opposed to the 2 sections 
noted in the Minutes.  
 
David Lester agreed that an AdHoc Committee would be beneficial in taking some of the 
weight off of the Executive Committee itself and Ruth Janka added that including other 
Board Members may be beneficial as there are members who have experience in these 
areas.  
 
The Committee determined to review the revisions on the topics of the Consumer Advisory 
Chair and Board Liaison. The revisions are noted on Section 10 Consumer Advisory 
Committee, Item b. Election of Committee Chair and Item d. Board Liaison.  
 
Under the Board Liaison Section, it was considered to add a provision that “in the event that 
an Individual-served is not secured to serve as Liaison, the role can be filled by an NLA Staff 
Member”.  David Lester recommended the revision to include that the “Board Liaison 
should be an individual served”, instead of “must”, in order to allow NLA flexibility in who 
can be appointed but keeping the goal for the role to be held by an Individual-served.  
Under Section 7 Election and Term of Office, Item h. regarding attendance. “In the event a 
Trustee shall be absent from either three consecutive regularly scheduled Board meetings 

227



NLACRC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 3 
January 25, 2024 

or from three consecutive committee meetings or shall be absent from five regularly-
scheduled Board meetings or from five committee meetings during any twelve-month 
period, then the Trustee shall, without any notice or further action required of the Board, 
be automatically deemed to have resigned from the Board effective immediately”.  
 
David Lester proposed a provision to this section that the Board is able to make an exception 
to this policy on a case-by-case basis. It was also decided that the Committee Chairs will 
review attendance of the members for their respective Committees.  
 
There was discussion regarding the time frame that a Member would need to be present in 
the meeting to constitute having attended the meeting and what calendar would be 
appropriate to track attendance. Brian Gatus recommended a 12-month rolling period 
beginning on the Fiscal Year. 
 
David will revise the sections regarding the CAC and Attendance and will submit the 
revisions to NLA within 24 hours.  
 
M/S/C (D. Coe/L. Garcia) To approve the recommendations to the Board for revisions 
regarding the CAC and Attendance sections in the Bylaws.  
 
In regards on how to move forward with the revisions, Ana proposed that when the 
Committee presents the Bylaw Revisions, to also solicit participation from the Board 
Members and that if 50% or more of the volunteers are part of the Executive Committee, 
to disband the AdHoc Committee request and add the Bylaw Revisions as a standing agenda 
item for the Executive Committee for the remainder of the review.  
 
Leticia proposed that the Board vote to determine if there is a need for the Bylaws to be 
revised and if approved by the Board, recommend that an AdHoc Meeting be created for 
the remainder of the review, to make recommendations to the Board.  
 
M/S/C (L. Garcia) To approve the recommendation to the Board to ask if revisions to the 
Bylaws are needed and if so, to recommend the creation of an AdHoc Committee to review 
the revisions to the Bylaws and make recommendations to the Board.  
The motion did not pass as there was no second to the motion.  
 
M/S/C (D. Coe/A. Ramirez) To make a recommendation to the Board to review the revisions 
for the entire Bylaws document and to appoint an AdHoc Committee to review the revisions 
made by David Lester and to make recommendations to the Board. In the event that the 
AdHoc participants are made up of more than half of the Executive Committee, for the 
Executive Committee to take on the task to review the revisions.  The motion passed. 
 
M/S/C (L. Garcia) To require a motion for all action items for the Committee that require 
legal counsel services.  
The motion did not pass as there was no second to the motion.  
 
Concerns were raised regarding this proposal as there have been urgent matters that David 

228



NLACRC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 4 
January 25, 2024 

Lester has had to address and this stipulation would impede his ability to be consulted in an 
emergent situation. After discussion, the motions was revised.   
 
M/S/C (L. Garcia/A. Ramirez) To require a motion for approval by the Board for any projects 
that will take more than 5 hours of work from NLA’s legal counsel. The motion did not pass 
with oppositions from David Coe, Rocio Sigala, Brian Gatus and Ana Quiles. 
 
M/S/C (R. Sigala/A. Ramirez) To require a motion for approval by the Executive Committee 
for any projects that will take more than 5 hours of work from NLA’s legal counsel. The 
motion passed.  

 
B. Parent as CSC Update – Evelyn McOmie  

Evelyn reported that she met with the leaders at the San Gabriel Pomona Regional Center 
for more information on their model for Parents as CSCs. She learned that this model was 
developed in 2001 and that there are a handful of parents who have been grandfathered in 
to the model. They have seen that the SDP program provides more freedom for Individuals 
to be more person-centered and provides autonomy. However, the Individuals of require a 
lot of support and assistance. The model provides families and individuals the freedom to 
determine their IPP plan. This still goes through Traditional Services and need to be 
approved by the Regional Center and does not allow for an increase in services because 
services still need to go through the traditional approval process.  
 
As a response, Parent as CSC Training will be available on Parent University, it is currently in 
draft form and the goal is to pilot with 20 families by the end of the Spring.  Evelyn explained 
that 20 families will go through the Parent as CSC Training as a module under Parent 
University and provide feedback on ease of access. Revisions of the training will be made 
based on the feedback. Report-outs on updates for this item will be added to the Consumer 
Services Committee Meetings once the pilot is concluded.  

 
C. NLACRC Policies and Procedures – Request for Board Access - Ruth Janka  

Ruth reported that NLA Attorney, Michael Klein has identified that the Board is able to 
access NLA Policies and Procedures on the SharePoint site. The policies are currently being 
gathered and reviewed. They will be available for the Committee to access on the 
SharePoint site by the March Committee Meeting. The Committee requested a status on 
this item be included in the next few Committee agendas, until completion in March.  
 
Ruth expressed caution regarding a previous proposal from the Committee, that NLA’s 
Policies and Procedures be available on the NLA website. Ruth shared that certain policies 
being made publicly available, would create security risks for NLA. The more internal 
information is available to the public, the more information that someone has to 
impersonate staff to attempt to gain access to confidential systems information. She 
proposed that NLA create a document with FAQ’s that will provide transparency with the 
community, without compromising NLA.  
 
It was clarified that if services would be needed on this item from David Lester, NLA Board 
Counsel and /or Michael Klein, NLA Security Counsel, that the Committee would be notified 

229



NLACRC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 5 
January 25, 2024 

and approval would be sought before services are provided.  
 
D. ARCA Liaison Report  
     1. January ARCA Report – Lety Garcia  

            Leticia reviewed the information as presented in the packet. Highlights include:  

• Ruth Janka received accolades and farewells from the room since this was her last 
meeting at ARCA. Nancey Bergman Dir. Of DDS, recognized Ruth for her leadership 
in the RC system and that her collaboration will be missed.  Ruth received a standing 
ovation from the entire room! 

• The governor has requested the creation of a “Master Plan” for people with 
disabilities identifying barriers, challenges, and solutions presented to DDS as part 
of the recommendations of the Little Hoover Commission. It will follow the 
trajectory of the “Master Plan on Ageing” that was recently done.   

 
E. Proposed Change in Packet Review Day and Time - deferred 
 
F. Board/Staff Interaction Policy Revision – Ruth Janka  

Evelyn McOmie proposed that any contact coming to NLA Staff from Board Members, go 
through Board Support. The reason for this request is to ensure a single-point of entry for 
additions to a Tracking Log that is used by Board Support to triage action items. NLA staff is 
inundated with hundreds of emails daily and it can be easy for a Board Member’s email to 
get lost in the pile. In regards to issues as a Consumer, Board Members can also reach out to 
their Parent Support Specialist for guidance on their issue. Cristina and Evelyn will consider 
this recommendation for the Standard Operating procedure.  
 
M/S/C (L. Garcia) To accept the Board/Staff Interaction Policy Revision as presented.  This 
motion did not pass as there was no second to the motion.  
 
This item will be added to the February Meeting agenda for further discussion and 
determination.  

 
G. Board Budget Expenditure Policy Draft – Ruth Janka  

This item will be added to the Committee agenda for review once the audit results have been 
received.  

 
H. Board Member Responsibilities Policy–Proposed Legislative Visit Requirement – Ruth Janka  

Ana stated that the Board approved the recommendation to include the legislative visit via 
phone or email requirement to the Board Member Responsibilities Policy. Board Support will 
review the Minutes to confirm and this item will be added to the next Committee agenda.  

 
I. Board Dinner/Retreat Update – Kimberly Visokey  

Kimberly shared that the Board Dinner Workgroup met and that the draft budget was 
reviewed and the invitations for selected Legislators will be going out soon. Ruth reported 
that NLA is entering into a budget deficit year. This means that there will be travel bans for 
state employees, hiring freezes and limitations to entering into new contracts. In light of that 
information, she recommended that NLA seek sponsorships and fundraising to reduce the 

230



NLACRC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 6 
January 25, 2024 

cost of this event as much as possible. In addition, she recommended that any sponsorships 
that are highly advertised, are disclosed. Leticia  
 

J. NLACRC Hybrid Meeting Capability – Status Update - Malorie Lanthier  
Malorie shared that the Santa Clarita Office is available for hybrid meetings at this time. 
Antelope Valley Office is available for hybrid meetings with limited camera capabilities in that 
it does not show individuals, but is able to show the entire room. San Fernando Office has no 
hybrid capability at this time. There are major modifications that will be needed and the 
timeline for completion is estimated to be August 15th for Antelope Valley Office and August 
31st for San Fernando Office.  
 
Malorie introduced Michael Cartman, who will deliver the updates on this item in future 
meetings as Malorie will be retiring from NLA and her last day will be March 8, 2024.  
 
In regards to the future in-person meetings, it was determined to make the remaining 
meetings for the FY virtual only.  
 
M/S/C (R. Sigala/D. Coe) To recommend to the Board that future Board and Committee 
Meetings remain virtual for the remainder of the FY.   

 
 
K. Board SharePoint Site – Ruth Janka  

1. General  
• Board Policies  
• Committee Attendance and Time Logs  

       Ana requested that Committee action logs also be included on the SharePoint site.  
        

2. By Committee • Recommendation - pilot one committee per month  
David Coe noted that he was advised he would have access to his Committee SharePoint 
site on January 24 and as of January 25, does not have access. Evelyn will follow up with 
her team on ensuring that the documents are uploaded to the Committee SharePoint 
sites and that all Committee Chairs have access to their SharePoint sites before their 
meeting deadlines.  

 
L. BoardSource Subscription – Ana Quiles 

The Nominating Committee is working on creating a process for evaluations for all Board 
Members who are renewing their Membership, to assess and develop an individualized Board 
Member Plan for each member. Board Source is able to provide those resources and is more 
cost effective to pay per assessment, as opposed to purchasing a subscription.  The Board 
Support Assessment is $749.00 for all Board Members and the Executive Director Assessment 
can be added for an additional $699.00. For access to the Board Support Program 
Subscription, it would be $33,205 per year and would include programs related to Board roles 
and responsibilities, the ability to receive guidance from Board Source via an email service 
and are all items that are not included with the ARCA membership.  
 
Ana noted that the Executive Director System was already purchased and the most cost-

231



NLACRC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 7 
January 25, 2024 

effective next step would be to recommend approval for the Board to purchase the Board 
Self-Assessment for $749. It was clarified that this is not an approval to purchase, but an 
approval to recommend the purchase to the Board.  
 
M/S/C (A. Quiles/A. Ramirez) To approve the recommendation to the Board to purchase the 
Board Self-Assessment as discussed with the inclusion of the budget to the reference 
material.  
 

 
M. Workforce Development Solutions Contract Amendment and Scope of Work –Ana Quiles  

Ruth shared the information as presented in the packet. New contracts would be created if 
there is a different scope of work, a completely different set of provisions and always in the 
case of an expired contract.  
 
Leticia noted that the Board adopted a policy that gathers several bids when filling a 
contract. She raised a concern regarding on the contract with AWS for recruitment training 
without vetting a formal proposal. There was an additional contract approved with AWS for 
Chairperson Training and Moderating of the Board Retreat. She made the following 
recommendation:  
 

M/S/C (L. Garcia) To open the process for vetting proposals for the Board Chairperson 
Training and the Retreat Moderating.  
The motion did not pass as there was not a second to the motion.  
 
Ana Quiles responded that Board Approval was already obtained for the contract 
amendments with AWS and that soliciting for more vendors would not be possible as a 
contract is already in place. She did mention that it would be appropriate to revise the 
amendment regarding items in the contract that have not yet been executed. After 
discussion, it was determined that Vini will review the termination clause of the AWS contract 
to determine if new proposals can or will be considered or Chair Development and Board 
Retreat Moderation.  

 
N. Board Support Expectations – Ana Quiles 

Ana requested that expectations be created for Invoice Review and Generation turnaround 
times so that Board Members are aware of their status. She also requested information be 
shared with the Committee Chairs regarding their submission deadlines.  
 
David Coe asked for turnaround times for Meeting Minutes. Kimberly stated that the 
quickest that action logs are available would be 5 days and 2 weeks for the Minutes 
themselves. Kimberly stated that she had to ask for January Committee Meeting Minutes 
and that she would try to get the final draft in 1 week.  

      
David Coe asked for confirmation on the dates for the Legislative Advocacy Training and 
Virtual Town Hall. Evelyn will confirm the dates to determine if these events will occur before 
the next Board Meeting. If they do, a special Board Meeting will need to be called or if the 
items can be held for the February 14th Board Meeting. It was noted that the Board President 

232



NLACRC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 8 
January 25, 2024 

is able to call a special Board Meeting if necessary, with a 7-day notice.   
 
VII.       Review of Meeting Action Items  

A. Revise the Bylaws with the discussed revisions regarding the Consumer Advisory Committee 
Chair and Board Member Meeting attendance. (David Lester) 

B. To have the NLA Policies and Procedures available on the SharePoint site by the March 
Committee Meeting. (Arezo Abedin) 

C. To provide an update on the progress of this item at the next Committee Meetings until 
completed in March. (Cristina Preuss) 

D. ACTION: Add the Board/Staff Interaction Policy to the February Committee Agenda. (Board 
Support) 

E. To review the Board Meeting Minutes to confirm the approval of the Legislative Visit 
Requirement to the Board Member Responsibilities policy. (Cristina Preuss) 

F. To add the Board Member Responsibilities Policy to the February Committee Agenda. 
(Board Support) 

G. To include Board/Committee Action logs to the respective Committee SharePoint sites. 
(Board Support) 

H. To follow up with the team on uploading documents to the Committee SharePoint sites. 
(Evelyn McOmie) 

I. To ensure that all documents are uploaded and to get Rocio Sigala access to Sharepoint by 
February 9th. (Board Support) 

J. To add the BoardSource Subscription recommendation to the next Board Meeting agenda. 
(Board Support).  

K. Review the termination clause of the AWS contract to determine if new proposals can or 
will be considered or Chair Development and Board Retreat Moderation. (Vini Montague)  

L. Create expectations for Invoice Review turnaround times and in addition, to share 
information with Committee Chairs regarding submission deadlines. (Board Support) 

M. To confirm the dates for the Legislative Advocacy Training and Virtual Town Hall to 
determine if a special Board Meeting will need to be called. (Evelyn McOmie) 

 
VIII. Board Meeting Agenda Items 

The following items were identified for the committee’s section of the next Board Meeting 
agenda: 
A.    Minutes of the November 30th Meeting 
B.    Minutes of the December 14th Meeting 
 

IX. Announcements / Information Items / Public Input 
A.  Next meeting Thursday, February 29, 2024  
B.  Committee Attendance (Page 101)  
C.  SDP Independent Facilitator Workshop, Wed., January 31, 2024 at 1:00 pm  
D.  Vendor Advisory Committee Meeting: Thurs., February 1, 2024, 9:30am  
E.  Self-Determination Orientation: Mon., February 5, 2024, 9:00am  
F.  Strategic Planning Committee Meeting: Mon., February 5, 2024, 6:00pm  
G.  Consumer Advisory Committee Meeting: Wed., February 7, 2024, 3:00pm  
H.  New Consumer Orientation – English, Wed., February 7, 2024, 6:30pm  
I.  Orientación para Nuevos Consumidores – Español, Wed., February 7, 2024, 6:30pm  

233



NLACRC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 9 
January 25, 2024 

J.  SDP Independent Facilitator Round Table, Thurs., February 8, 2024 at 2:00 pm  
K.  NLACRC Board of Trustees Meeting, Wed., February 14, 2024 at 6:00pm  
L.  Self Determination Local Advisory Committee Meeting, Thurs., February 15, 2024 at 

6:30pm  
M.  SDP Independent Facilitator Workshop, Wed., February 21, 2024 at 1:00 pm  
N.  Consumer Services Committee Meeting, Wed., February 21, 2024 at 6:00pm 
 

X. Adjournment 
 

Ana Quiles, Committee Chair, adjourned the meeting at 9:34 p.m.  
 
 
Submitted by: 

Kimberly Visokey 
Executive Administrative Assistant 
 
 
(*) The majority of these minutes are taken from the Minutes Service submission and reviewed/edited as 
presented herein by NLACRC staff. 

 

234



North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Recruiting Committee Meeting Minutes 

csmin_july_21_2021_Draft.docx 
January 29, 2023 

 
 
Present: Ana Quiles, Brian Gatus, Lillian Martinez, Leticia Garcia, David Coe, Suad Bisogno, Alma 

Rodriguez - Committee Members 
 

Kimberly Visokey, Vini Montague, Parita Burmee – Staff Members 
  

Lyapa Nakazwe-Masiya – Egon Zehnder, Sara Trevino – Egon Zehnder, Angela Gardner 
– WDS, Emily Nichols, Jasmine Barrios -Minutes Services - Guests 
 

Absent:             Anna Hurst 
  

 
I. Call to Order 

Ana Quiles called the meeting to order at 5:31 pm. 
 
II. Public Input 

None 
 
III. Consent Items 

A. Approval of Agenda    
M/S/C (B. Gatus/D. Coe) To approve the agenda as presented. 

 
B. Approval of Minutes of the January 3rd Meeting 

M/S/C (B. Gatus/D. Coe) To approve the Minutes as presented. 
 

C. Approval of Minutes of the January 22nd Meeting 
M/S/C (D. Coe/B. Gatus) To approve the Minutes as presented. 

 
 
IV. Committee Business 

A. Recruitment Intake- Lyapa Nakazwe-Masiya  
 

Lyapa assisted the Committee in facilitating discussion on the required and preferred 
qualifications of the ideal ED candidate. 
 
M/S/C (B. Gatus/A. Rodriguez) To revise the preferred qualifications list to include “Previous 
Executive Director Experience” as a preferred qualification as opposed to a required 
qualification. The motion passed with one abstention from L. Garcia. 
 
M/S/C (D. Coe/B. Gatus) To revise the required qualifications list to include “Advanced 
Degree” as a required qualification as opposed to a preferred qualification. The motion 
passed with two oppositions from B. Gatus and D. Coe. 
 
 

235

file:///C:/Users/bza8405/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/BVU9A5E4/csmin_july_21_2021_Draft.docx


NLACRC Recruitment Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 2 
January 29, 2024 

 
 
The Committee also discussed the importance of a candidate who has knowledge and 
experience in the developmental disability system. The ideal candidate will bring their 
skillset to bring leadership development to NLA.  

 
B. Interview guides and Assessments – Lyapa Nakazwe-Masiya 

 
Lyapa explained that the interview guide will ensure that similar conversations are 
happening within the separate interviews that will assist in the comparison of the 
candidates. She reviewed the interview guide as presented in the packet and asked the 
Committee to identify key focus points on which candidates will be assessed.  
The five core competencies that the candidate must possess include: 
- Strategic Orientation 
- Servant Leadership 
- Cultural Agility 
- Influencing Collaboratively 
- Leading Innovation 
 
Ana requested that experience working with Boards be considered as a key focus point for 
the candidates. She also requested to meet with Lyapa to consult regarding influencing 
collaboratively and cultural agility. Board Support will set up a meeting with Lyapa, Ana 
and Parita.  
 
The Committee was asked why a candidate would choose to take on the ED Role at NLA. 
The response was the ability to meaningfully change people’s lives and the ability to 
influence change. It was noted that as the 3rd largest regional center in California, NLA has 
a staff of 660 total employees, five of whom report directly to the ED. 16 PF and Hogan are 
the assessment levels that Lyapa recommends using as a data point.  
 
After discussion, it was determined that the Committee will review the Interview Guides 
and will further discuss them at the next Committee meeting.  
 
Next steps include a job description being drafted and presented to the Committee for 
approval. In addition, Lyapa will be creating an email account specifically for NLA as a 
single point of contact for interested parties. Board Support will send the calendar invite 
for the Recruiting Committee meeting to Lyapa, and she will attend when available.  
 

C. Outgoing ED Transition  
Ana reviewed the information as presented in the packet. Ruth Janka created this as a 
transition plan for Cristina Preuss. Parita shared that she is not sure where in the process 
they are at this time. Ana requested that Parita send this to DDS as part of the Onboarding 
Schedule once all of the needed components are obtained: the ED Transition Plan and the 
Community Outreach Town Hall information.  

 
 
 
 

236



NLACRC Recruitment Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 3 
January 29, 2024 

 
 

V. Review of Committee Action Items 
A. Review the Interview Guide and Assessments in the packet for discussion at the next 

meeting (Board Support) 
B. Schedule a call with Lyapa, Parita and Ana (Board Support) 
C. Send the Recruiting Committee Meeting series to Lyapa (Board Support) 

 
VI. Agenda Prep 

A. Review Critical Calendar  
B. Review Timelines  
C. Update DDS Timeline 

 
VI. Announcements 

A. Next Meeting, Tuesday, February 6, 2024 at 5:00 pm  
B. Recruitment Timeline  
C. Attendance Sheet  

 
VII. Adjournment 
 

Ana Quiles, Committee Chair, adjourned the meeting at 5:59 p.m.  
 
 
Submitted by: 

Kimberly Visokey 
Executive Administrative Assistant 
 
 
(*) The majority of these minutes are taken from the Minutes Service submission and reviewed/edited as 
presented herein by NLACRC staff. 

 

237



North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Recruiting Committee Meeting Minutes 

csmin_july_21_2021_Draft.docx 
February 12, 2024 

 
 
Present: Ana Quiles, David Coe, Alma Rodriguez, Vini Montague, Parita Burmee, Leticia Garcia, 

Brian Gatus, Lillian Martinez- Committee Members 
 

Kimberly Visokey – Staff Members 
  

Lyapa Nakazwe-Masiya – Egon Zehnder, Sara Trevino – Egon Zehnder, Angela Gardner 
– WDS, Emily Nichols, Jasmine Barrios -Minutes Services - Guests 
 

Absent:             Suad Bisogno  
 
I. Call to Order 
 

Ana Quiles called the meeting to order at 5:02 pm. 
 
II. Public Input 
  

None 
 
III. Consent Items 
 

A. Approval of Agenda    
M/S/C (D. Coe/ A. Rodriguez) To approve the agenda as presented. 

 
B. Approval of Minutes of the January 29th Meeting 

M/S/C (D. Coe/ L. Martinez) To approve the Minutes as presented. 
 
 
IV. Committee Business 

A. Interview Guide and Assessment Update 
 

This document was reviewed as presented in the packet. The Assessment aims to answer 
questions related to experience/performance, readiness, potential and appoint 
ability/development.  
 
The Committee noted that the document should include updated photos and the most 
recently available data. In addition, revisions will be made to correct Leticia Garcia’s name 

238

file:///C:/Users/bza8405/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/BVU9A5E4/csmin_july_21_2021_Draft.docx


NLACRC Recruitment Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 2 
February 12, 2024 

on the list of Board Members and to note that Andrew Ramirez is the ARCA Alternate.  
 
On page 16, under Board Functions, Leticia made the recommendation to add “provide 
guidance on Board Governance” to the first bullet point. On the Candidate Profile Page 
(page 18), the following revisions were made: 
- A column will be added to the Candidate Profile under Leadership Experience to include 

“Board Governance experience” as a preferred qualification  
- Under Personal Characteristics, remove the word “Deep” and revise the column to say 

“Passion for NLA Mission, Vision and Values” as a preferred qualification. 
- Add “Passion for support of the developmental disability community and their families” 

as a required qualification. 
 

Under the Leadership Competencies section, the Committee requested an addition to 
include verbiage related to the important team collaboration between NLA staff and the 
Board. 

 
Ana proposed that the forthcoming Committee Meetings be extended by 30 minutes in 
order to accommodate all of the components of the meeting. It was determined that any 
Committee Action items that require a vote will be moved to the beginning of the agenda 
in order to accommodate best those who are unable to stay the entire time.  

 
B. Review of the ED Job Description 

This item was reviewed as presented. Egon Zehnder is pending the salary range. Vini 
Montague will send the salary range to Lyapa as soon as it is approved. Lyapa mentioned 
that potential salary increases are not included in the information presented to the 
candidate. It was also mentioned that NLA will be the ones to post on LinkedIn if so 
desired.  
 

C. Review with Egon Zehnder 
The Committee reviewed the discussed revisions with Lyapa. It was determined that the 
photo on page 13 needs to be updated at a minimum. Parita will follow up with Chris 
Whitlock to retrieve the most recent photos to share with Lyapa to include. Leticia noted 
that as of December 2023, there are 35,430 consumers served by NLA, which is different 
than what is currently noted.  
In regards to the posting, the Committee determined that the posting will remain open or 
30 days with the ability to extend if needed, depending on the response.  
The Committee reviewed the Committee Critical Calendar with Lyapa to determine any 
potential changes that need to be submitted to DDS. It was noted that February should 
not include “Candidates have been engaged and screened,” and that item should be 
revised to state that “Candidates have been engaged and the screening process begins.” 
The goal “Candidates have been engaged and screened” will be moved to March.  

 

239



NLACRC Recruitment Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 3 
February 12, 2024 

V. Review of Committee Action Items 
A. To update the Interview guide with the discussed revisions (Egon Zehnder) 
B. Adjust Committee Meeting times to be extended by 30 minutes and to include action 

items at the beginning of the agenda. (Board Support) 
C. Send the ED salary range to Lyapa as soon as approved by the Board. (Vini Montague) 
D. Contact Chris Whitlock to get updated NLA photos and send them to Lyapa. In addition, 

to confirm all data shown in the Interview Guide is the most updated information.  
(Parita Burmee) 

E. Update the Critical Calendar to include the discussed revisions on candidate screening 
(Board Support) 

 
VI. Agenda Prep 

A. Review Critical Calendar  
B. Review Timelines  
C. Update DDS Timeline 

 
VI. Announcements 

A. Next Meeting, Monday, February 20th at 5:00 pm  
B. Recruitment Timeline  
C. Attendance Sheet  

 
VII. Adjournment 
 

Ana Quiles, Committee Chair, adjourned the meeting at 6:05 p.m.  
 
 
Submitted by: 

Kimberly Visokey 
Executive Administrative Assistant 
 
 
(*) The majority of these minutes are taken from the Minutes Service submission and reviewed/edited as 
presented herein by NLACRC staff. 

 

240



North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Recruiting Committee Meeting Minutes 

csmin_july_21_2021_Draft.docx 
February 20, 2024 

 
 
Present: Ana Quiles, David Coe, Vini Montague, Leticia Garcia, Brian Gatus, Lillian Martinez- 

Committee Members 
 

Arezo Abedi, Parita Burmee – Staff Members 
  

Lyapa Nakazwe-Masiya – Egon Zehnder, Angela Gardner – Workforce Development 
Solutions, Maritanita Mendez- DDS,  Shadi (No last name given), Amber (No last name 
given) Jasmine Barrios -Minutes Services - Guests 
 

Absent:             Alma Rodriguez  
  
 
I. Call to Order 
 

Ana Quiles called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 
 
II. Public Input 
  

None 
 
III. Consent Items 
 

A. Approval of Agenda    
M/S/C (B. Gatus/D. Coe) To approve the agenda as presented. 

 
B. Approval of Minutes of the February 12th Meeting 

 
It was noted that Anna Hurst is not on the Recruiting Committee and needs to be 
removed from further attendance lists. Anna was listed as “absent” at the Meeting, and 
a revision was requested to remove her name from the attendance list.  
 
M/S/C (D. Coe/ B. Gatus) To approve the Minutes as revised. 

 
IV. Committee Business 

A. Input Session Presentation – Angela Gardner 
 

Angela Gardner, from Workforce Development Solutions, presented information regarding 
the recent Input Sessions hosted by NLA. Highlights from the presentation include: 
 

241

file:///C:/Users/bza8405/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/BVU9A5E4/csmin_july_21_2021_Draft.docx


NLACRC Recruitment Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 2 
February 20, 2024 

• Purpose of Stakeholder Input Sessions: to hear from stakeholders and to learn what 
comes to mind when stakeholders think about the NLA Executive Director role.  

• Conducted via Zoom on January 25, January 20 and February 1st 

• Twenty-one internal and external stakeholders participated and were facilitated by 
Angela Gardner.  

• Discussion prompts guided participants: 
o What are the most important characteristics that the new ED should possess? 

▪ Results indicated include empathy, great communication, ability to 
connect, person-centered approach, engagement with families and 
consumers, and leadership ability.  

o What one question would you ask the new ED? 
▪ Results indicated include: “How would you improve NLA’s relationship 

with families?” “What is the plan to have a system that is equitable and 
fair for all?” “What is their 6-month plan for the direction of NLA?” “How 
would you leverage technology to enhance service delivery?” 

o What would be the top priority on your wish list for the new ED’s first 100 days? 
▪ Results indicated include Conversation Sessions, Town Halls, in-person 

site visits, rapport with the community, transparency, building 
relationships, speaking with the community about how to influence 
legislation, increasing vendors, meeting with each department and 
learning challenges, recruitment, and stabilizing the workforce. 

o What wisdom can you share with the new ED?  
▪ Results indicated include Open communication, fighting for equality, 

collaborating and engaging, not being afraid to share bad news, 
appreciating the knowledge of staff, being open to constructive advice, 
instill vision in managers.  

• Results fell under the following themes: 
o Communication 
o Knowledge of the Regional Center Consumers and Services 
o Strategic Thinking and problem-solving skills 

• Other Comments:  
o Create opportunities for consumers to engage with the ED 
o Staff should be appreciated and feel trusted 
o Many families feel that they have not always been in partnership with NLA 
o Get updates directly from the Recruitment Committee 
o Consider promoting from within 
o Reduce paperwork,  
o Share POS report on a quarterly basis 

 
Angela made the following recommendations to the Committee: 

• Consider incorporating a few of the questions during interviews 

• Ensure a detailed, 12-month onboarding plan and ongoing support for ED 

• Schedule Town Hall Meetings with internal and external stakeholders to introduce 
the new ED 

• Consider adding a brief update to recruitment status during Board Meetings 

242



NLACRC Recruitment Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 3 
February 20, 2024 

 
The Committee was tasked to review the Input Session information to determine what, if 
anything, should be incorporated into the Onboarding plan that is to be submitted to DDS. 
It was confirmed that the New ED Onboarding Plan needs to be submitted to DDS. Ana 
requested that NLA provide the entire list of onboarding responsibilities and Transition be 
sent to the Committee via email. The Committee needs to decide if they would like to 
choose Option A, Keep the bullet points from DDS in regards to an Onboarding Plan or 
Option B to create an Onboarding plan based on the feedback from the organization.  
 
It was proposed to fill out the DDS template and inform DDS that additional steps would be 
taken to create a Strategic Onboarding Plan.  
 
M/S/C (D. Coe/ L. Martinez) To accept the recommendation to send the DDS Bullet point 
Onboarding Template and to create a Strategic Onboarding Plan to be sent at a future date 
based on the Input Session feedback.    
 

B. Present and Finalize Role Specification – Lyapa Nakazwe-Masiya 
The revised document was reviewed as presented in the packet.  
Suggestions were made to include: 

• Leveraging technology to implement solutions – this item will be added as a Preferred 
Characteristic on the Candidate Profile.  

• Fiscal Oversight and Audit – this item will be added under the Management Functions 
section of the Key Accountabilities page.  

• Familiarity with the ideals and values of the Lanterman Act – this item will be added under 
Key Accountabilities and the Knowledge/Skills page.  

 
Lyapa will make the discussed revisions and confirm the request from the Committee 
regarding collaboration with the Board under the Leadership Competencies. Ana confirmed 
that the verbiage was satisfactory to the Committee.  
 

C. Finalize and Agree on Search Strategy 
Lyapa confirmed that the email has been set up that will be monitored by Egon Zehnder 
and any incoming emails will also be sent to Parita Burmee. Anyone who applies to the 
advertisement sends the application through the email address. Per Parita, the job 
description and email address have been posted on NLA’s website and LinkedIn. The 
Committee asked if there was a way to track where candidates heard about the job 
posting. Lyapa and the team are not tracking that information now but should be able to 
collect the data if the Committee requests. Ana noted that tracking the data is not needed 
at this time as all of the applications will be going through the email address. It was also 
noted that the reason that the job notice is only posted on the NLA website and LinkedIn 
is due to the recruitment efforts that Egon Zehnder is making.  
 
The Committee requested that Parita send out a flyer with the job posting information to 
be sent out to the Vendor Advisory Committee, and other community and staff members 
can share it to engage interested candidates. Parita requested an offline meeting with Ana 
to discuss the flyer further.  

243



NLACRC Recruitment Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 4 
February 20, 2024 

 
In reviewing the Recruitment Budget, Parita Burmee will confirm if the updated budget 
was sent to DDS. In addition, she noted that per NLA Legal Counsel, the full salary range 
must be included in the job posting.  
 

V. Review of Committee Action Items 
A. Revise the Committee Members list to remove Anna Hurst from the Recruiting 

Committee. (Board Support) 
B. Create a flyer to send out to the VAC and Board Members in order to create awareness 

about the ED job posting. (Parita Burmee) 
C. Meet with Ana Quiles to further discuss the requested flyer. (Parita Burmee) 
D. Confirm that the updated Recruitment Budget was submitted to DDS and report back to 

the Committee.  (Parita Burmee) 
E. Email the Job Responsibilities and Transition plan made by Ruth for Cristina to the 

Committee for review. (Parita Burmee) 
F. Add the discussed items to the next Board Meeting Agenda. (Board Support) 
G. Send the Input Session Presentation from WDS to the Committee and Cristina Preuss 

(Board Support)  
 
VI. Agenda Prep 

A. Review Critical Calendar  
B. Review Timelines  
C. Update DDS Timeline 
D. Job Posting is Live 
E. Feedback from Input Sessions 
F. Recommendations on Input Session Feedback  
 
Board Support will add the additional items to the next Board Meeting agenda.  

 
VI. Announcements 

A. Next Meeting, Monday, February 27th at 5:00 pm  
B. Recruitment Timeline  
C. Attendance Sheet  

 
VII. Adjournment 

Ana Quiles, Committee Chair, adjourned the meeting at 6:29 p.m.  
 
 
Submitted by: 

Kimberly Visokey 
Executive Administrative Assistant 
 
 
(*) The majority of these minutes are taken from the Minutes Service submission and reviewed/edited as 
presented herein by NLACRC staff. 

244



North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Recruiting Committee Meeting Minutes 

csmin_july_21_2021_Draft.docx 
February 26, 2024 

 
 
Present: Ana Quiles, Brian Gatus, David Coe, Lillian Martinez, Suad Bisogno, Leticia Garcia- 

Committee Members 
 

Arezo Abedi, Parita Burmee, – Staff Members 
  

Lyapa Nakazwe-Masiya – Egon Zehnder, Angela Gardner – Workforce Development 
Solutions, Uvence Martinez- DDS, Richard Dier- SDLAC, Jasmine Barrios -Minutes 
Services - Guests 
 

Absent:             Alma Rodriguez  
  
 
I. Call to Order 
 

Ana Quiles called the meeting to order at 5:02 pm. 
 
II. Public Input 
  

None 
 
III. Consent Items 
 

A. Approval of Agenda    
 
M/S/C (L. Martinez/ S. Bisogno) To approve the agenda as presented. 

 
B. Approval of Minutes of the February 20th Meeting 

 
M/S/C (L.Martinez /D. Coe ) To approve the Minutes as presented 

 
IV. Committee Business 

A. DDS Onboarding Plan 
1. DDS Onboarding Plan 

Ana reviewed the Information as presented in the packet. The Committee reviewed 2 
Onboarding Plan templates and discussed how to move forward with the foundation 
for the Onboarding Plan. It was determined to utilize Attachment #1, the 30/60/90 Day 
Transition template.  
The priorities to be addressed for the plan, based on the State of the Organization, 
include: 

• Staffing 

• Service Delivery 

• Communities Structure/Needs 

• Institutional Knowledge 
245

file:///C:/Users/bza8405/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/BVU9A5E4/csmin_july_21_2021_Draft.docx


NLACRC Recruitment Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 2 
February 26, 2024 

• System Structure 
o Lanterman Act – encouraging innovation 

• Relationship Building 

• NLA Operational Critical Calendar 
 

It was proposed that the ED be presented with the listed areas to understand the 
needs of NLA. They would then be tasked to create a plan for their approach to 
addressing each issue. The metric would be the progress on that plan in each section. 
 
Brian recommended the Committee keep in mind that there should be a way to assist 
the ED in assimilating behavior leadership styles, and getting to know the staff.  
 
Board Support will input the discussed items into a draft for the Committee to review 
at the next Committee meeting.  

 
2. ED Onboarding Articles  

Ana requested that the Committee review the articles as presented.  
 

B. Long List of Candidates, Sources Contacted – Lyapa Nakazwe-Masiya 
This item was deferred.  
Parita Burmee will confirm that Egon Zehnder will be at the following Committee Meeting 
to review the list of candidates.  
Ana noted that Egon Zehnder has made recommendations in regards to the rollout of the 
interview process. Parita will follow up with Lyapa to have the information sent to the 
Committee to review before determining dates for Candidate Interviews. Board Support will 
add this item to the next Committee agenda.  
 
 

V. Review of Committee Action Items 
A. Create a draft of the framework for the Onboarding Plan (Board Support) 
B. Confirm that Egon Zehnder will be present at the next Committee Meeting to present 

the long list of candidates and to discuss the interview process.  (Parita Burmee) 
C. Confirm if the Egon Zehnder Candidate Profile presentation from the February 20th 

meeting needs to be sent to DDS. (Parita Burmee) 
D. Add the Candidate Interview Process to the next Committee meeting agenda. (Board 

Support) 
E. Update the Committee Attendance Log to reflect that Suad Bisogno was present. (Board 

Support) 
 
VI. Agenda Prep 
 

A. Review Critical Calendar  
B. Review Timelines  
C. Update DDS Timeline 

 
 

VII. Board Meeting Agenda Items 
A. Minutes of the February 26th Meeting 

246



NLACRC Recruitment Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 3 
February 26, 2024 
 
 
VIII. Announcements 

B. Next Meeting, Monday, March 4th at 5:00 pm  
C. Recruitment Timeline  
D. Attendance Sheet  

Suad Bisogno noted that she was present at the February 20th Meeting. Board Support 
will make the appropriate adjustments to the Attendance Log. Considerations were 
also made for the number of meetings that the Committee attends in regards to the 
number of allowed missed meetings.  
 

IX. Adjournment 
 

Ana Quiles, Committee Chair, adjourned the meeting at 6:03 p.m.  
 
 
Submitted by: 

Kimberly Visokey 
Executive Administrative Assistant 
 
 
(*) The majority of these minutes are taken from the Minutes Service submission and reviewed/edited as 
presented herein by NLACRC staff. 

 

247



North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Government & Community Relations Committee 

 
Board Recognition 

 
 
Policy 
 
The purpose of this policy is to guide the board in its efforts to recognize individuals who have 
made a distinguishable contribution in the lives of people with developmental disabilities.  The 
board should consider, but is not limited to, the factors listed below in determining whom to 
recognize.  The individual’s contribution should be over a sustained period of time, made 
within the center’s catchment area, and have positively impacted the lives of many consumers.  
In addition, the individual must be held in high esteem by his/her peers.  The board may 
choose to recognize individuals as follows: 
 
 Award a plaque 
 Pass a resolution 
 Send a letter 
 
The highest award is a plaque, followed by a resolution, then a letter. 
 
Procedure 
 
The Government & Community Relations Committee will determine those individuals that  
the board may consider to recognize. 
 
Step 1: The committee may consider an individual’s application for recognition that is 

submitted by a person knowledgeable about the individual’s contributions.  The 
application must be complete and be accompanied by a letter(s) of 
recommendation. 

   
Step 2: The committee, at its discretion, may vote to recommend to the full board that 

the individual be recognized for his/her contributions.  The committee’s 
recommendation will include the type of recognition as mentioned above.  

 
Step 3: The board, by a majority vote of members present at a regularly scheduled 

meeting, may pass a motion for the center to recognize the individual for his/her 
contributions. 

 
 
 
 
 
[policy.gcr.recog]  Approved October 11, 2005 

248



North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Nominating Committee Meeting Minutes 

csmin_july_21_2021_Draft.docx 
February 7, 2024 

 
 
Present: Ana Quiles, Lillian Martinez, David Coe, Suad Bisogno – Committee Members  
 

Kimberly Visokey, Evelyn McOmie, Parita Burmee– Staff Members 
  

Jasmine Barrios - Minutes Services – Guests 
*Andrew McElhinney, Sharmila Brunjes, Ryan Coe 

 
Absent:    

  
 
I.  Call to Order  
     Lillian Martinez called the meeting to order at 5:31 pm. 
 
II.  Public Input 
 None 
 
III.  Consent Items  

A.  Approval of Agenda  
   M/S/C (A. Quiles/D. Coe) To approve the agenda as presented. 

 
B.  Approval of Minutes of the January 30th Meeting  

M/S/C (A. Quiles/D. Coe) To approve the minutes as presented. 
 

        
 
IV.  Committee Business 

A. Review of Destruction of Confidential Information Form  
Evelyn presented the form, which will be used to ensure committee members have 
completed the proper destruction of confidential information. Ana Quiles suggested a 
timeframe of completion for the form. Evelyn clarified this form will be required by the end 
of a member’s work and relationship with NLACRC.  

 
B. Slate of Officers for FY 24-25 

Ana Quiles confirmed the current roster of names with interest for positions. Sharmila asked 
if reaching out to people seen as a good fit for positions would be wanted. Ana reminded 
everyone that anyone may submit their name or be nominated if they are seen as a good 
fit. David Coe suggested the importance of adding an announcement to the packet 
regarding the upcoming decision for Slate of Officers to ensure public awareness. The board 
agreed this should be added. Ana suggested if anyone knows a candidate that they believe 
would be adequate for the role, they should reach out to them.  
 
 
 

249

file:///C:/Users/bza8405/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/BVU9A5E4/csmin_july_21_2021_Draft.docx


NLACRC Nominating Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 2 
February 7, 2024 
 

 

 
 
 

C. Committee Chair Alternate Policy Draft 
Evelyn noted that the board has been seeking a policy since 2023 for an alternate should 
one be needed. She presented the draft of the policy, outlining the duties and expectations 
for the role and asked for public feedback on the draft. There was agreement in modifying 
#2 to state “able to clearly articulate the goals of the committee” instead of the stated 
“position on events.” Sharmila spoke on #5, articulating participation in board activities and 
asked if the candidate would be expected to attend all or just one event when needed. Suad 
commented the board agreed the alternate would hold responsibility for attending any of 
the Chair’s missed meetings. Suad asked when voting for an alternate will take place. The 
board is not yet aware of the date, but voting will not take place soon within the fiscal year.  
 
Evelyn took notes on the requested revisions; however, due to the timeline the document 
remains a draft and is not yet finalized.  
 

D. Board Source Evaluation Info  
In her absence, Parita provided an update, noting after a recent conversation with a board 
source she discovered there is no evaluation for board members to evaluate themselves. 
Martinez asked for suggestions considering this new information and opened for questions.  
 

E. Review of VAC Applicants  
M/S/C (D. Coe/A. Quiles) To enter the Closed Session at 6:27 pm 
 
M/S/C (D. Coe/A. Quiles) To exit the Closed Session at 6:26 pm 
 
During the Closed Session, the Committee made the below recommendation:  
 
M/S/C (A. Quiles /D. Coe) To conduct interviews with the final two applicants. The 

motion passed unanimously.  
F. SharePoint- Committee Access  

Evelyn noted two members have yet to sign up for SharePoint and asked Kimberly to share 
the screen and provide a walkthrough once everyone has access.  
 
Kimberly provided a presentation and explained access to folders.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

250



NLACRC Nominating Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 3 
February 7, 2024 
 

 

 
 
 

VI.  Review of Committee Action Log Items  
A. Certificate of Destruction- make recommended changes to the form. The form will be sent 

to the board for approval at the next meeting.  
B. Create a folder with SharePoint to have for returned Certificate of Destruction forms. Will 

create them in SharePoint and begin uploading forms as they come in. (Evelyn Visokey) 
C. Add consent items for the board agenda for the Nominating Committee to the approval of 

the Certificate of Destruction.  
D. Add an announcement to the nominating portion of the board meeting regarding the slate 

of officers.  
E. Committee chair alt- make updates to doc, add to next nom committee agenda to send to 

the board.  
F. Locate the roster for race and ethnicity.  

 
VII.  Board Meeting Agenda Items  

A. Minutes of the January 3rd meeting  
B. Minutes of January 30th Meeting 

 
VIII.  Announcements / Information  

A. Next Meeting: March 6, 2024 at 5:30 p.m. 
 

IX.  Adjournment 
 
 Lillian Martinez adjourned the meeting at 7:00 pm. 
 
 
Submitted by: 

Kimberly Visokey 
Executive Administrative Assistant 
 
 
(*) The majority of these minutes are taken from the Minutes Service submission and reviewed/edited as 
presented herein by NLACRC staff. 

 

251



 
 

www.KineticFlowCorp.org 
866.239.7620 

1 

 

Memorandum 
 
Date:  January 1st,  2024 
 
To:  Strategic Planning Committee 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
 
From:  Ami Sullivan, Kinetic Flow 
 
Topic:  2023 Individual (Consumer) and Family Satisfaction Survey  

Strategic Plan Follow-up: Project Update  
 
 
Dear Strategic Plan Committee Members, 
 
In preparation for the launch of the 2023 Individual (Consumer) and Family 
Satisfaction Survey, and in alignment with the agreed up on project timeline, 
please find attached, as well as the following Project Update Summary: 

• Timeline Update – the timeline update is being provided for the SPC’s 
information; no action is required for this item. 

 
 
 
 
 
As always, any questions or concerns can be sent to Ami Sullivan.  
 
 
Thank you! 

 
 
Ami Sullivan 
Ami.Sullivan@KineticFlowCorp.com 
866.239.7620  

252



 
 

www.KineticFlowCorp.org 
866.239.7620 

2 

 
North Los Angeles County Regional Center 

2023-24 Individual and Family Satisfaction Survey: Timeline*  
Updated to Reflect Activities to Date: January 1, 2024  

 
Timeframe 

(2023) 
Activity / Status 

May – June Questionnaire development and design - Done 
May Kinetic Flow will provide data specifications and layout - Done 

June 1st Timeline provided to SPC – done (05/29) – Done 
June 14th Present Timeline to the Board of Directors – Done 
June 19th  Question/Outcome Metric Crosswalk - Done 

June NLACRC provides population data to Kinetic Flow – Done 
July 7th  Contract Executed - Done 

July Kinetic Flow draws a targeted sample based on NLACRC’s information 
goals - Done 

July Kinetic Flow provides mailing lists to NLACRC - Done 
July 24th Kinetic Flow send final proposed questionnaire, draft survey invite to 

NLACRC SPC for review (two weeks prior to SPC meeting) - Done 
August 7th  SPC Meeting: Materials Presented: - Done 

• Timeline Update (prepped) 
• Questionnaire Draft (prepped) 
• Question/Outcome Metric Crosswalk Matrix (prepped) 
• Draft Survey Invitation/Email 

August 7th 

August 15th  
Questionnaire is reviewed/revised/approved by SPC - Done 

August 14th  
August 16th  

Kinetic Flow translates the approved questionnaire (and letter, and 
email) - Done 

August 14th  
August 16th  

NLACRC to finalize edit, translate and mail to potential respondents  

August 18th  
August 22nd  

Kinetic Flow programs and tests online and telephone surveys; bit.ly 
and QR Code to NLACRC for inclusion in letters/emails - Done 

August 24th  
Email: August 

29 
Mail: Sept 1 

NLACRC mails outs notification letters / emails notification if emails 
are available - Done 

August 24th  
August 29th  

Online data collection begins (open for 2 weeks) – Done 

  

253



 
 

www.KineticFlowCorp.org 
866.239.7620 

3 

Timeframe 
(2023) 

Activity 

August 29th, 
September 6th 

September 
6th,  14th  

NLACRC send two email reminders (if emails are available) - Done 

September 
12th 

September 
17th  

Online data collection closes and SMS and telephone interviewing 
begins (4 weeks) - Done 

September 
13th  

September 
18th  

SMS data collection starts; live telephone interviewing begins - Done 

September During data collection, Kinetic Flow will work with NLACRC to outline 
the report design and deliverables 

September 
22nd  

SMS data collection closes - Done 

October Kinetic Flow programs reports - Done 
October 23rd  
October 19th   

Telephone data collection closes, data is cleaned, merged - Done 

November Kinetic Flow conducts data analysis, creates written reports and 
deliverables – Done 

December 
18th  

Reports delivered to NLACRC – Done 

 
 
 

Timeframe 
(2024) 

Activity 

January 8th Presentation to NLACRC SPC 
January Debriefing, support and strategizing with NLACRC 

*Please note, the above Draft Timeline Timeframes/Dates are initial proposed dates and are 
subject to change as needed; linear compound dates may fluctuate if proceeding activity dates 
are changed. Kinetic Flow will work with NLACRC to best achieve the organization’s desired 
milestones. 

  

254



 
 

www.KineticFlowCorp.org 
866.239.7620 

4 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
2023-24 Individual and Family Satisfaction Survey: 

Project Update Summary 
 

Sample Design 
At the time of contracting, data provided indicated NLACRC served 30,261 
people primarily across two service types: Early Start and Lanterman Services.   
 
The original sample designed, and contract, for the 2023 Individual and Family 
Satisfaction Survey called for 1,901 completed responses: 

 
 
Between contracting and project start, NLACRC’s population increased to 32,511 
people served and substantial populations existed across three service types: 
Early Start, Provisional, Lanterman Services. 

 
 
In response to this growth in population, Kinetic Flow increased the total number 
of completes necessary from 1,901 to 2,491 in order to meet research best 
practices of statistical significance of 95% confidence interval, 5% margin of error, 
50% response distribution. Please note, Kinetic Flow did not increase the contract 
budget with this change as all efforts are made to build in cost savings.   
 
  

NLACRC SFO AVO SCO
Early Start 829 340 266 228
Lanterman 1072 376 365 343

NLACRC 95, 5 (#)

NLACRC SFO AVO SCO
Early Start 4335 2924 856 555
Provisional 573 573
Lanterman 27603 17305 7143 3155

NLACRC Population (#)

255



 
 

www.KineticFlowCorp.org 
866.239.7620 

5 

Across Service Types and offices, the required data collection goals were updated 
as below with the total of 2,491 completes as noted above:  

 
 
 
In total, given the project parameters final samples for the 2023 Individual and 
Family Satisfaction Survey included 12,842 people/families served. For which 
data collection included mailout of letters to 12,842 people served and emails 
to 12,471 people/families served.  
 
Please note: All 12,842 people in the sample were eligible for an email invitation. 
Kinetic Flow, with support from NLACRC, pulled three email fields from the Client 
Master File: Person Served, MEmail, DEmail. From the 12,842 records in the 
sample, and the provided email fields, people with one or more valid emails 
addresses were included in the email sample file. Please note, some records had 
0 emails, some had 3. The total number of records with at least one email address 
present was 10,675. Cleaning these 10,675 records to account for potentially 
multiple email addresses while eliminating duplicate emails associated with a 
single UCI resulted in 12,471 email records. 
 

  

NLACRC
Early Start 834

SFO 340
AVO 266
SCO 228

Provisional 231
Lanterman 1084

SFO 376
AVO 365
SCO 343

256



 
 

www.KineticFlowCorp.org 
866.239.7620 

6 

Data Collection 
Following review at the August 7th SPC Meeting, the proposed questionnaire and 
survey notification letters were revised and approved by the SPC on August 15th. 
With approval of key deliverables, Kinetic Flow translated all documents, provided 
copies to NLACRC’s Public Information Department who coordinated email and 
mail of the materials. In addition, programming was finalized and preparation for 
data collection was completed. 
 
Data Collection opened for the 2023 Individual and Family Satisfaction Survey 
with the mailing/emailing of the survey invitation/ notification, which reached 
people served/families on August 29th, 2023. As outlined on the contract for this 
project, Kinetic Flow utilized three (3) different data collection methodologies. 
 
On October 19th, 2023, Kinetic Flow closed data collection for the 2023 
Individual and Family Satisfaction Survey with 3,295 voices being represented. 
These methodologies, the dates of fielding and the number of people who 
responded (Total Respondents – Cleaned) are below: 
 
Data Collection 
Methodology 

Field Dates Total 
Respondents 

(Cleaned) 
Online (Email/Letter link or 
QR code) 

August 29th – October 18th, 2023 208 

SMS/Text September 20th – October 2nd, 
2023 

2,425 

Live Telephone 
Interview 

September 20th – October 19th, 

2023 
662 

 
In total, 3,295 people/families served responded to this effort, which exceeded 
the contractually required responses of 1,901 in order to hit the target of a 
statistically significant response (95% confidence interval, 5% margin of error, 50% 
response distribution) across offices and service types.  
 
Overall, the data collection effort for the 2023 Individual and Family Satisfaction 
Survey exceeded contractually required completes by 1,391 people/families 
served meaning data represents more voices and the effort was able to garner 
additional perspectives and lived experiences.  

257



 
 

www.KineticFlowCorp.org 
866.239.7620 

7 

The below table summarizes the total desired number of completes 
(revised/updated sample), the actual number of completed interviews and the 
difference between these.  As noted, Antelope Valley Early Start, Santa Clarita 
Early Start and Provisional Services were under-represented, though the sample 
was expanded to include all individuals in these three sample categories. Simply 
put, we reached out to everyone who was in each of these three groups but were 
only able to attain the noted completes given the relatively low 
population/sample sizes. 
 

 
 
Where the total completes from Online and SMS/Text achieved the total number 
of completes, telephone interviews were conducted at a set minimum level to 
ensure cross representation of different sub-demographic groups.  
 
On average, live telephone interviews lasted 11 minutes, 28 seconds and ranged 
from 4:00 minutes to 12:36 minutes. 
 
SMS/Text sessions, on average, lasted 12 minutes, 18 seconds and ranged from 
less than a minute to 3.35 hours! (Typically, this means a respondent left a window 
opened, paused in responding and returned to the session later.) 
 
  

Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey Methodology (#)

NLACRC
Desired 

Completes Completes Difference
Early Start 834 1025 191

SFO 340 713 373
AVO 266 218 -48
SCO 228 94 -134

Provisional 231 116 -115
Lanterman 1084 2154 1070

SFO 376 995 619
AVO 365 757 392
SCO 343 402 59

TOTAL 2149 3295 1146

258



 
 

www.KineticFlowCorp.org 
866.239.7620 

8 

Comments:   In general, NLACRC’s community responded relatively poorly to the 
email outreach; which given conversations with NLACRC’s Public Information 
department is relatively on par for the NLACRC community. Kinetic Flow was not 
able to achieve desired cost savings in this area.  
 
However, NLACRC’s population did respond well to the SMS/Text campaign and 
some cost savings was realized in this area.  
 
 
 

  

259



 
 

www.KineticFlowCorp.org 
866.239.7620 

9 

Data Cleaning, Management and Reporting 
Kinetic Flow has completed data cleaning, merging, secondary data cleaning and 
continues with active data management.  
 
Additionally, Kinetic Flow is in the process of final data analysis and reporting.  
Given sample data provided by NLACRC, Kinetic Flow will be able to provide 
NLACRC topline results for a number of different sub-demographic categories to 
more fully understand and utilize the quantified voices and lived experiences of 
people served by NLACRC. Reported sub-demographic categories being 
provided include (with the population size represented/completes): 
  
Regional Center Total: NLACRC (n=3295) 
  
Service Type: 

• Early Start (1025) 
• Provisional (116) 
• Lanterman (2154) 

 
Service Area:  

• Antelope Valley (975) 
• San Fernando Valley (1824) 
• Santa Clarita Valley (496) 

 
Early Start by Service Area:  

• (ES) Antelope Valley  (218) 
• (ES) San Fernando Valley (713) 
• (ES) Santa Clarita Valley (94) 

 
Lanterman Services by Service Area  

• (L) Antelope Valley  (757) 
• (L) San Fernando Valley (995) 
• (L) Santa Clarita Valley (402) 

 
Primary Language:   

• Armenian (10) 
• English  (2446) 
• Spanish (819) 
• Other  (19) 

260



 
 

www.KineticFlowCorp.org 
866.239.7620 

10 

Primary Ethnicity: 
• Black/African-American (327) 
• Asian Indian   (36) 
• Filipino   (93) 
• Hispanic/Latino  (1660) 
• White    (741) 
• Other Asian   (47) 
• Other    (392) 

 
Age Band of Person Served: 

• 0-3 years of age (1202) 
• 4 – 12 years of age (912) 
• 13-22 years of age (575) 
• 23-49 years of age (506) 
• 50+ years of age (100) 

 
Self-Determination Waiver Participant? 

• No (3274) 
• Yes (21) 

  
POS Expenditure Band: 

• $0    (674) 
• $1 - $1000  (432) 
• $1,001 - $5,000 (595) 
• $5,001-$10,000 (535) 
• $10,001-$20,000 (471) 
• $20,001-$50,000 (356) 
• $50,001-$100,000 (137) 
• $100,001+  (95) 

 
 

  

261



 
 

www.KineticFlowCorp.org 
866.239.7620 

11 

Data Analysis, Reporting 
Kinetic Flow has completed data analysis and reporting.  The complete report, as 
well as individual reporting files have been submitted to NLACRC. Reporting files 
include: 

 
 
In addition, Kinetic Flow has provided in this packet an Executive Summary, 
Strategic Plan Metric Grid, and PowerPoint Presentation of the results for the 
Strategic Planning Committee. 
 
 

262



 
 

www.KineticFlowCorp.org 
866.239.7620 

12 

Comments:   North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s 2023 Individual and 
Family Satisfaction Survey is on target and all contractually required deliverables 
have been provided, as well as a greater number of individuals and families 
represented than was initially contracted for. 
 
 
 
 
 

263



 
 
 
 
 

                                                              Page 1    
 

2023 INDIVIDUAL AND FAMILY SURVEY 

Introduction 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Methodology 

 
 

 
In total, as part of 
the 2023 
Individual and 
Family 
Satisfaction 
Survey NLACRC 
reached out to a 
total of 12,842 
individuals and 
families served or 
37% of the total 
population 
served. 
 

 
 
 

In 2022, the North Los Angeles County Regional Center (NLACRC) Board of 
Trustees approved the 2022-2026 NLACRC Strategic Plan (Strategic Plan). Of note, 
the 2022-26 Strategic Plan included Outcome Measures that assess the progress of 
the regional center in areas of central focus as determined by the extensive work of 
the Board of Trustee’s Strategic Planning Committee (SPC). The Strategic Plan is 
noteworthy for NLACRC, and it’s community, as the plan and assessed plan 
progress is grounded in the expert voices and lived experiences of those served 
and supported by the regional center – the people and families receiving services, 
and those charged with coordinating the provision of those services and supports – 
NLACRC’s staff.   
 
The Individual and Family Satisfaction Survey, per the approved 2022-26 Strategic 
Plan is the scheduled to represent the voices of individuals and families every two 
years. The 2023 Individual and Family Satisfaction Survey is the first comprehensive  
review of NLACRC’s services and supports, inclusive of the Strategic Plan Outcome 
Measures for NLACRC. Kinetic Flow is honored to present the voices of more than 
3,000 people served by NLACRC and is honored to support NLACRC, the Board of 
Trustees, the Strategic Planning Committee, staff and it’s many diverse 
communities. 
 
Sample:  Targeted random sample of NLACRC’s active population, inclusive of 
Early Start, Provisional and Lanterman Services across the three service areas – 
32,511 people/families.  
 
Questionnaire:  34 questions, mixed Quantitative/Qualitative 
 
The 2023 Individual and Family Satisfaction Survey primarily uses a five-point 
unbalanced response scale. This response scale has been validated by field-testing 
to provide accurate and actionable measures, while being respondent-friendly.   

1 = Poor    
2 = Just OK   
3 = Good 
4 = Excellent 
5 = Truly Outstanding 

 

264



 
 
 
 
 

                                                              Page 2    
 

2023 INDIVIDUAL AND FAMILY SURVEY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Findings 

Data Collection:   
o As outlined on the contract for this project, Kinetic Flow utilized three (3) 

different data collection methodologies.  
o On October 19th, 2023, Kinetic Flow closed data collection for the 2023 

Individual and Family Satisfaction Survey with 3,295 voices being 
represented; achieving a statistically significant response (99% confidence 
interval, 2.14% margin of error, 50% response distribution across the 
agency). These methodologies, the dates of fielding and the number of 
people who responded (Total Respondents) are below: 

 
Data Collection 
Methodology 

Field Dates Total 
Respondents  

Online (Email/Letter link 
or QR code) 

August 29th – October 18th, 2023 208 

SMS/Text September 20th – October 2nd, 
2023 

2,425 

Live Telephone Interview September 20th – October 19th, 

2023 
662 

 
 

o When asked, “Do you know who your service coordinator is?” participants 
responded: 

 
 

o Overall, scores for the 2023 Individual and Family Satisfaction Survey metric 
scores were rated at least between “Good” (3.00) or “Excellent” (4.00).   

 
 

72% 23% 5%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Yes No Know, but never met them

265



 
 
 
 
 

                                                              Page 3    
 

2023 INDIVIDUAL AND FAMILY SURVEY 

Findings 
continued…. 

Overall Regional Center Support 
o Overall, how would you rate the services and supports the regional center 

provides and purchases for you / your family?  (3.58) 
o Overall, during the last year, how helpful do you feel NLACRC has been in 

supporting you?  (3.47) 
o Overall, how would you rate the impact or effect the regional center has had 

on your life? (3.64) 

 
NLACRC received the highest scores for: 

o Treating you with dignity and respect (4.08) 
o Service coordinator in listening to you (3.99) 
o Service coordinator explaining things to you in a way you can understand 

(3.95) 
o Service coordinator understanding your needs (3.94) 

 
NLACRC received the lowest scores for: 

o Providing information on community services? – 3.22 
o Providing information on regional center funded services? – 3.27  
o Overall providing you with information? – 3.39 
o Providing information you need to make your own decisions? – 3.41 
o Overall, during the last year, how helpful do you feel NLACRC has been in 

supporting you? – 3.47 
 

 

3.64 3.58 3.47

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

Overall Impact Overall Services and Supports NLACRC Helpfulness in
Supporting You

Overall Metrics

Truly Outstanding

Excellent

Good

Just Ok

Poor

266



 
 
 
 
 

                                                              Page 4    
 

2023 INDIVIDUAL AND FAMILY SURVEY 

Findings 
continued…. 

 
 
 

 

A summary of all Likert-scale rated metrics can be found below, as well as the 
attached summary of the three (3) overall metrics by demographic groups and the 
Strategic Plan Outcome Measures derived from this survey.  
 
The report for the 2023 Individual and Family Satisfaction Survey includes results for 
each questions, a breakout of all metrics by Service Type, Service Area, Primary 
Language, Primary Ethnicity, Age Band, Participation in Self-Determination and POS 
Expenditure Band, which denote statistical variance.   Additionally, the full report 
includes verbatim comments for all responses to open-ended or qualitative 
questions.  
 

 

Q# Metric* NLACRC
n 3295

Q5 Treating you with dignity and respect? 4.08
Q6 Listening to you? 3.99
Q7 Understanding your needs 3.94
Q8 Returning your phone calls, replying to your emails or texts in a timely manner? 3.75
Q9 In encouraging you to reach for future hopes and expectations? 3.79
Q10 Being helpful when you have a question or concern? 3.89
Q11 Explaining things to you in a way you can understand? 3.95
Q12 Communicating with you? 3.80
Q13 Overall, how would you rate your relationship with your service coordinator? 3.80
Q14 Overall, how would you rate your service coordinator? 3.89
Q16 Your comfort level at the IPP/IFSP meeting? 3.68

Q17 Your service coordinator taking into account your (your family’s) language, culture, traditions, 
and background when helping you design your plan? 

3.80

Q18 The planning meeting and plan being focused on you, what is important to you and your 
choices?

3.73

Q19 Your service coordinator in supporting you to meet your goals? 3.66
Q20 Overall, how would you rate your IPP/IFSP in addressing your (your family’s) needs? 3.64
Q26 Providing information you need to make your own decisions? 3.41
Q27 Providing information on regional center funded services? 3.27
Q28 Providing information on community services? 3.22
Q29 Providing written communications in your preferred language? 3.76
Q30 Overall providing you with information? 3.39

Q31 Overall, how would you rate the services and supports the regional center provides and 
purchases for you / your family? 

3.58

Q32 Overall, during the last year, how helpful do you feel NLACRC has been in supporting you? 3.47
Q33 Overall, how would you rate the impact or effect the regional center has had on your life? 3.64

267



 2023 Individual and Family Satisfaction Survey
Overall Regional Center Metrics by Demographic Descriptors

NLACRC; November 2023
Kinetic Flow

Overall, how would you 
rate the services and 
supports the regional 
center provides and 

purchases for you / your 
family? 

Overall, during the last 
year, how helpful do you 
feel NLACRC has been in 

supporting you? 

Overall, how would you 
rate the impact or effect 
the regional center has 

had on your life?
NLACRC 3.58 3.47 3.64

Early Start 3.89 3.85 4.00
Provisional 3.33 3.15 3.37
Lanterman 3.27 3.14 3.34

Antelope Valley 3.26 3.12 3.32
San Fernando Valley 3.60 3.52 3.69
Santa Clarita Valley 3.47 3.40 3.55

(ES) Antelope Valley 3.75 3.65 3.84
(ES) San Fernando Valley 3.89 3.86 4.01
(ES) Santa Clarita Valley 4.22 4.17 4.28

(L) Antelope Valley 3.12 2.97 3.17
(L) San Fernando Valley 3.38 3.25 3.45
(L) Santa Clarita Valley 3.30 3.22 3.38

English 3.47 3.40 3.57
Spanish 3.51 3.34 3.54
Armenian 2.70 3.10 3.00
Other Primary Language 3.63 3.53 3.53

Black/African-American 3.26 3.22 3.33
Asian Indian 4.00 4.08 4.11
Filipino 3.65 3.62 3.70
Hispanic/Latino 3.51 3.37 3.58
White 3.41 3.31 3.48
Other Asian 3.74 3.72 3.88
Other Primary Ethnicity 3.57 3.54 3.71

0-3 years of age 3.83 3.78 3.92
 4 - 12 years of age 3.36 3.22 3.41
13-22 years of age 3.15 3.03 3.21
23-49 years of age 3.34 3.16 3.41
50+ years of age 3.04 3.23 3.33

Participation in Self-Determination - No 3.49 3.39 3.56
Participation in Self-Determination - Yes 2.48 2.67 3.05

$0 3.00 2.82 3.03
$1 - $1000 3.49 3.31 3.43
$1,001 - $5,000 3.68 3.62 3.80
$5,001-$10,000 3.61 3.57 3.72
$10,001-$20,000 3.58 3.52 3.73
$20,001-$50,000 3.67 3.61 3.76
$50,001-$100,000 3.53 3.52 3.77
$100,001+ 3.53 3.38 3.61

268



 2023 Individual and Family Satisfaction Survey: Results
 - Outcome Metrics x Question Matrix

NLACRC,  2023
Kinetic Flow

DEIB (Individuals Served/Families, Staff, Provider, Community Focus) 

Outcome Measure
2022 

(Baseline) 2023 Difference Individual / Family Satisfaction Survey Question Support Questions *
Training: Communication 
(Strategy 1.2.4) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey)

3.53/5 3.80/5 0.27 13. Overall, how would you rate your relationship 
with your service coordinator? Q3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12

Training: Overall Services & Supports Rating 
(Strategy 1.2.4) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey) 

3.33/5 3.58/5 0.25

31. Overall, how would you rate the services and 
supports the regional center provides and purchases 
for you / your family? Q2-30, 32-33

Training: Goals Met 
(Strategy 1.2.3, 1.2.4) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey) 

TBD 3.66/5 n/a 19. Your service coordinator in supporting you to 
meet your goals? 

Q2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10,11, 12, 15, 16-18, 20-24, 
26-30

Training: Person-Centered 
(Strategy 1.2.3, 1.2.4) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey) 

TBD 3.73/5 n/a 18. Focusing the meeting and plan on you, what is 
important to you and your choices?  Q5, 6, 7, 18, 20

Access: Speak Primary Language 
(Strategy 1.3.1, 1.3.2, 1.3.3) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey) 

TBD 97% n/a
3. Does your service coordinator talk with you (your 
child) in your preferred language? 
(% Yes, Always + %Yes, Most of the Time) Q2, Q4

Access: Culturally-Appropriate and Integrative 
(Strategy 1.3.1, 1.3.2, 1.3.3, 1.3.4) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey) 

TBD 3.80/5 n/a
17. Your service coordinator taking into account your 
(your family’s) language, culture, traditions, and 
background when helping you design your plan? Q3, 4, 6, 7

Development & Growth of an Engaged Workforce.          (Staff Focus) 

Outcome Measure
2022 

(Baseline) 2023 Difference Individual / Family Satisfaction Survey Question Support Questions
Training: Overall CSC Relationship 
(Strategy 2.1.1, 2.1.4) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey)

3.43/5 3.89/5 0.46 14.Overall, how would you rate your service 
coordinator? Q3 - 13

Employment and Day Programs.      (Individual Served Focus) 

Outcome Measure
2022 

(Baseline) 2023 Difference Individual / Family Satisfaction Survey Question Support Questions
Training: IPP in addressing your needs 
(Strategy 3.1.1, 3.1.3) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey, age 14+)

3.35/5 3.64/5 0.29 20.Overall, how would you rate your IPP/IFSP in 
addressing your (your family’s) needs? Q6, 7, 9, 16-19

Training: IPP in addressing your needs 
(Strategy 3.1.1, 3.1.3) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey, Adults only)

Baseline 70%% n/a

22. During your planning meeting, were you 
provided information on employment (job, work) 
options?
(%Yes, rebased to disclude thos who did not want to discuss 

Training: IPP in addressing your needs 
(Strategy 3.1.1, 3.1.3) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey, Adults only)

Baseline 66% n/a

23. During your planning meeting, were you 
provided referrals to service providers that can help 
you gain employment (get a job)?
(%Yes, rebased to disclude thos who did not need a 
referral.)

Housing    (Individuals Served Focus)

Outcome Measure
2022 

(Baseline) 2023 Difference Individual / Family Satisfaction Survey Question Support Questions

Training: IPP Discussed Housing Options  
(Strategy 5.1.1, 5.1.2, 5.1.3) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey, ages 22+)

TBD 58%   n/a

21. During your planning meeting, did you service 
coordinator discuss future housing options with 
you/your family? (Such as Individual Living Services, 
Supported Living Services, Group Homes, or Foster Home 

Agencies)  
(%Yes, rebased to disclude thos who did not want to 
discuss this.)

Individual/Family Satisfaction Question - The question number and question wording that corresponds to the Outcome Metric.
*Support Questions -- These metric help us understand why a respondent provided the answer they did; they support NLACRC being able to take action to maintain promising practices or 
improve in the area.

Outcome Measures - The Outcome Measures noted in this document are items from NLACRC's Strategic Plan that utilize the Individual/Family Survey as their source.

2022 (Baseline) - if a baseline metric was present in the Strategic Plan, that measurement is reflected here. "TBD" was noted as To Be Developed in the Strategic Plan.

269



2023 Individual and Family 
Satisfaction Survey

 

Improving Services and Supports for 
the People we Serve

North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Strategic Planning Committee Meeting

January 2024

Presented by:  Ami Sullivan, Kinetic Flow

270



PAGE 2

INTRODUCTION

Development 
& Growth of 
an Engaged 
Workforce

To quantify the voice of people 

served by North Los Angeles County Regional Center 

and measure their satisfaction in relation to the 2022-26 Strategic Plan 

Outcome Measures and related Performance Contract Incentive Measures

Diversity, 
Equity, 

Inclusion and 
Belonging

Employment 
and Day 
Services

Health and 
Wellness

Safe, 
Affordable 

and 
Accessible 

Housing

271



PAGE 3

• COVID Residual Fatigue/Stress/Emotion/Grief/Discontent

• Social disconnection; Increased Impatience / “quick fuse”

• Remote connections, lack of unintentional communications, 
connections, support and empathy

• Increased digital divide

• Increased barriers or challenges

• Staff/Provider/Generic Program staff shortages

• Social/Developmental regressions

• NLACRC Staff Changes - Relative high number of new regional 
center, underfilled and new hires

• Provider positions underfilled and new hires

• Hybrid work/Hybrid Teams

• DDS Directives, Programs and Mandates (Opportunities and 
Responsibilities

2022 – 2023 IN CONTEXT

272



PAGE 4

Sample 
- 12,842 Individuals/Families selected
• Targeted random sampling North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s 

Individual and Family Satisfaction Survey is 

designed to:

1. drive change from the those who are the 

experts in the impact of services and 

supports – the people and families served. 

2. assess progress on the 2022-26 Strategic 

Plan utilizing Outcome Measures.

3.  provide statistically sound, actionable 

insights for data-driven decision making at a 

number of levels within the agency.

HOW?
(The Methodology)

Questionnaire 
- 35 questions:
•  Qualitative/quantitative

Data Collection 
- 3,295 voices represented

273



PAGE 5

HOW PEOPLE PARTICIPATE

• 208 people participated 
via an online, internet-
based survey in response 
to an email or letter 
mailed by NLACRC.2,452 people 

participated 
via an SMS 
or text link 

provided by 
a text-

message

662 people 
participated 
via a live in-

bound 
telephone 
interview

On average:
• live telephone interviews 

lasted 11 minutes, 28 seconds

• SMS/Text sessions, lasted 12 
minutes, 18 seconds 

274



PAGE 6

In  total ,  as  part  of  the 2023 Individual  

and Family Satisfaction Survey ,  North 

Los Angeles County Regional  Center 

reached out to 12 ,894 individuals  and 

famil ies  served or  37% of  the total  

populat ion served and heard from 

3,295 people and famil ies  served.

275



PAGE 7

PARTICIPANTS INCLUDED:
Service Type:
• Early Start (1025)
• Provisional (116)
• Lanterman (2154)

Service Area: 
• Antelope Valley (975)
• San Fernando Valley (1824)
• Santa Clarita Valley (496)

Primary Language: 
• Armenian  (10)
• English  (2446)
• Spanish  (819)
• Other  (19)

Primary Ethnicity:
• Black/African-American (327)
• Asian Indian (36)
• Filipino  (93)
• Hispanic/Latino (1660)
• White  (741)
• Other Asian (47)
• Other  (392)

Age Band of Person Served:
• 0-3 years of age (1202)
• 4 – 12 years of age (912)
• 13-22 years of age (575)
• 23-49 years of age (506)
• 50+ years of age (100)

Self-Determination Waiver Participant?
• No (3274)
• Yes (21)
 

POS Expenditure Band:
• $0  (674)
• $1 - $1000 (432)
• $1,001 - $5,000 (595)
• $5,001-$10,000 (535)
• $10,001-$20,000 (471)
• $20,001-$50,000 (356)
• $50,001-$100,000 (137)
• $100,001+ (95)

276



 2023 Individual and Family Satisfaction Survey

Report Representation vs Population

North Los Angeles County Regional Center
December 2023
Kinetic Flow

Sample or 
DDS Stats

n % %

NLACRC 3295

Early Start 1025 31% 13%

Provisional 116 4% 2%

Lanterman 2154 65% 85%

Antelope Valley 975 30% 25%

San Fernando Valley 1824 55% 64%

Santa Clarita Valley 496 15% 11%

(ES) Antelope Valley 218 7%

(ES) San Fernando Valley 713 22%

(ES) Santa Clarita Valley 94 3%

(L) Antelope Valley 757 23%

(L) San Fernando Valley 995 30%

(L) Santa Clarita Valley 402 12%

Englsih 2446 74% 76%

Spanish 819 25% 22%

Armenian 10 0.30% 1%

Other 19 1% n/a

Black/African-American 327 10% 9%

Asian Indian 36 1% 5.98*

Filipino 93 3% 5.98*

Hispanic/Latino 1660 50% 47%

White 741 22% 27%

Other Asian 47 1% 5.98*

Other 392 12% 10%

0-3 years of age 1202 36% 18%

 4 - 12 years of age 912 28% 29%

13-22 years of age 575 17% 22%

23-49 years of age 506 15% 24%

50+ years of age 100 3% 6%

No 3274 99% 99%

Yes 21 1% 1%

$0 674 20% 28%

$1 - $1000 432 13% 10%

$1,001 - $5,000 595 18% 13%

$5,001-$10,000 535 16% 12%

$10,001-$20,000 471 14% 13%

$20,001-$50,000 356 11% 12%

$50,001-$100,000 137 4% 6%

$100,001+ 95 3% 5%

 - % for Lanauge, Ethnicity are DDS Dashboard Statistics

REPORT

*DDS lists "Asian" as one category; Kinetic Flow has these 
broken out by Filipino, Other Asian, Asian Indian (5% vs. 5.98%)

277



PAGE 8

The Unbalanced Scale

Satisfaction = 

Expectation - Performance

UNDERSTANDING 
THE RESULTS

278



“You have supported me a lot in everything, (Persons served) have had two 
coordinators in all these years and have been very respectful and I 
appreciate very much that there are centers like you thank you and 
continue to support us as a family. They are the best in taking care of the 
well -being of our children.”

“In order for the supports to be better, it is necessary for 
parents to have information about what services are 
available to us and explain to us, that there are not so many 
barriers to obtain them. We need collaboration and empathy 
from the service coordinators.” 

“They found a Hebrew speaking therapist which I thought was 
not easy, especially for speech therapy and that was great, I 
never thought it would happen.”

“Have a day officer who speaks Spanish since when one calls to 
request information and asks to speak with the Day Officer they 

say he can not help us because I can't speak English.”

279



PAGE 10

U
nders

ta
ndin

g  

Your  
N

eeds

NLACRC EXCELLED…

Expla
in

in
g  t

h in
gs  

in
 a

 w
ay  y

ou  c
an  

unders
ta

nd

L i s
te

n in
g

D
ig

ni t
y  &

 

Respect

3.94

3.99

3.95

4.08

280



PAGE 11

BUT HAS ROOM TO 
IMPROVE…

Information on 
Community 
Resources

3.22

Overal l  
Information

3.39
Lowest Scores…

Information on 
Regional  Center 

Services
3.27

Information to 
Make Your Own 

Decis ions
3.41

NLACRC Helpful  in  
Support ing You

3.47

281



PAGE 12

BUT HAS ROOM TO IMPROVE…

% of People who their Know Service Coordinator

The percent of people who know their Service 
Coordinator ranges from 72% - 92% by sub-

demographic group.  

72% 23% 5%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Yes No Know, but never met them

Know 
your SC Sub-demographic Groups

92% Asian Indian

90% Ethnicities: Filipino, Other Asian Primary Languages: 
Armenian, Other

87% POS Expenditures: $50,001-$100,000, (ES) San Fernando 
Valley, (L) Santa Clarita Valley

86% Santa Clarita Valley

85% POS Expenditures: $10,001-$20,000, $100,001+, Early Start, 
0-3 Years of Age

84% POS Expenditures: $1-$1,000, Provisional, San Fernando 
Valley

83% POS Expenditures: $1,001-$5,000, 4-12 Years of Age

82% Primary Language: Spanish, Other Primary Ethnicity, POS 
Expenditures: $5,001-$10,000, $20,001-$50,000

81%
Participation in SDP-No, (L) San Fernando Valley, SDP-Yes, 
Primary Ethincity: Hispanic/Latino, White, (ES) Santa Clarita 
Valley, English

79% Lanterman

78% 13-22 Years of Age, (ES) Antelope Valley, Black/African-
American

76% 50+ Years of Age
75% 23-49 Years of Age
74% Antelope Valley
73% (L) Antelope Valley
72% POS Expenditures: $0

*% ”Know your SC” = “Yes” + “Know, them but never met them”

282



PAGE 13

OVERALL REGIONAL CENTER SUPPORT

“Service coordinators need to be more actively engaged and proactive with clients.  I realize 
this is a pipe dream given current case loads. But........... I can dream!!.” 

3.64 3.58 3.47

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

Overall Impact Overall Services and Supports NLACRC Helpfulness in
Supporting You

Overall Metrics

Truly Outstanding

Excellent

Good

Just Ok

Poor

283



PAGE 14

IFSP/IPP AS THE CORNERSTONE OF SERVICES

Thinking back to your most 
recent IPP/IFSP, were the goals 
that are most important to you 
included in your plan?” 

 Response Option Percent 
Yes 79% 
No 6% 
Have Not Had an IPP/IFSP 15% 

Were you able to get the 
services, supports, 
information or referrals you 
needed from the regional 
center during the last year?” 

Response Option Percent 
Yes, I was able to get what I needed from the Regional Center  71% 
No, I was not able to get what I needed.  21% 
I didn’t need anything or anything different from the regional center  8% 

 

284



PAGE 15

DURING YOUR 
PLANNING 

MEETING, DID 
YOUR SERVICE 
COORDINATOR

…

Discuss future housing 
options with you/your 
family? 

Response Option Percent 
Yes, we discussed this in-depth 23% 
Yes, we discussed this some 23% 
No, the service coordinator did not mention housing 34% 
No, I did not want to talk about housing options 20% 

 

Provide 
information on 
employment (job, 
work) options? 

Response Option Percent 
Yes, we discussed this in-depth 27% 
Yes, we discussed this some 28% 
No, the service coordinator did not mention employment (job, work) 
options 

24% 

No, I did not want to talk about employment (job, work) options or I 
am pursuing a different goal (school, volunteering, etc.) 

22% 

 

Provide referrals to 
service providers that 
can help you gain 
employment (get a 
job)?

Response Option Percent 
Yes, I was given a referral 48% 

No, I was not given a referral. 25% 

I didn’t need a referral  27% 
 

285



PAGE 16

Q# Metric* NLACRC
n 3295

Q5 Treating you with dignity and respect? 4.08
Q6 Listening to you? 3.99
Q7 Understanding your needs 3.94
Q8 Returning your phone calls, replying to your emails or texts in a timely manner? 3.75
Q9 In encouraging you to reach for future hopes and expectations? 3.79
Q10 Being helpful when you have a question or concern? 3.89
Q11 Explaining things to you in a way you can understand? 3.95
Q12 Communicating with you? 3.80
Q13 Overall, how would you rate your relationship with your service coordinator? 3.80
Q14 Overall, how would you rate your service coordinator? 3.89
Q16 Your comfort level at the IPP/IFSP meeting? 3.68

Q17 Your service coordinator taking into account your (your family’s) language, culture, traditions, 
and background when helping you design your plan? 

3.80

Q18 The planning meeting and plan being focused on you, what is important to you and your 
choices?

3.73

Q19 Your service coordinator in supporting you to meet your goals? 3.66
Q20 Overall, how would you rate your IPP/IFSP in addressing your (your family’s) needs? 3.64
Q26 Providing information you need to make your own decisions? 3.41
Q27 Providing information on regional center funded services? 3.27
Q28 Providing information on community services? 3.22
Q29 Providing written communications in your preferred language? 3.76
Q30 Overall providing you with information? 3.39

Q31 Overall, how would you rate the services and supports the regional center provides and 
purchases for you / your family? 

3.58

Q32 Overall, during the last year, how helpful do you feel NLACRC has been in supporting you? 3.47
Q33 Overall, how would you rate the impact or effect the regional center has had on your life? 3.64

286



PAGE 17

• DEIB

• DEVELOPMENT & GROWTH OF AN 

ENGAGED WORKFORCE

• EMPLOYMENT AND DAY PROGRAMS

• HOUSING

• (MENTAL HEALTH)

Of the four metrics assessed against the initial 
baseline metrics, on average, scores rose 0.32. 

2022-26 STRATEGIC PLAN:
OUTCOME MEASURES:

287



PAGE 18

STRATEGIC PLAN OUTCOME MEASURES:
 - DEIB

DEIB (Individuals Served/Families, Staff, Provider, Community Focus) 

Outcome Measure
2022 

(Baseline)
2023 Difference

Individual / Family Satisfaction Survey Question Support Questions *
Training: Communication 
(Strategy 1.2.4) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey)

3.53/5 3.80/5 0.27 13. Overall, how would you rate your relationship 
with your service coordinator? Q3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12

Training: Overall Services & Supports Rating 
(Strategy 1.2.4) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey) 

3.33/5 3.58/5 0.25
31. Overall, how would you rate the services and 
supports the regional center provides and purchases 
for you / your family? Q2-30, 32-33

Training: Goals Met 
(Strategy 1.2.3, 1.2.4) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey) 

TBD 3.66/5 n/a 19. Your service coordinator in supporting you to 
meet your goals? 

Q2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10,11, 12, 15, 16-18, 20-24, 
26-30

Training: Person-Centered 
(Strategy 1.2.3, 1.2.4) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey) 

TBD 3.73/5 n/a 18. Focusing the meeting and plan on you, what is 
important to you and your choices?  Q5, 6, 7, 18, 20

Access: Speak Primary Language 
(Strategy 1.3.1, 1.3.2, 1.3.3) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey) 

TBD 97% n/a
3. Does your service coordinator talk with you (your 
child) in your preferred language? 
(% Yes, Always + %Yes, Most of the Time) Q2, Q4

Access: Culturally-Appropriate and Integrative 
(Strategy 1.3.1, 1.3.2, 1.3.3, 1.3.4) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey) 

TBD 3.80/5 n/a
17. Your service coordinator taking into account your 
(your family’s) language, culture, traditions, and 
background when helping you design your plan? Q3, 4, 6, 7

288



PAGE 19

STRATEGIC PLAN OUTCOME MEASURES:
 - DEVELOPMENT & GROWTH OF AN 
ENGAGED WORKFORCE

Development & Growth of an Engaged Workforce.          (Staff Focus) 

Outcome Measure
2022 

(Baseline)
2023 Difference

Individual / Family Satisfaction Survey Question Support Questions
Training: Overall CSC Relationship 
(Strategy 2.1.1, 2.1.4) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey)

3.43/5 3.89/5 0.46 14.Overall, how would you rate your service 
coordinator? Q3 - 13

289



PAGE 20

STRATEGIC PLAN OUTCOME MEASURES:
 - EMPLOYMENT & DAY PROGRAMS

Employment and Day Programs.      (Individual Served Focus) 

Outcome Measure
2022 

(Baseline)
2023 Difference

Individual / Family Satisfaction Survey Question Support Questions
Training: IPP in addressing your needs 
(Strategy 3.1.1, 3.1.3) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey, age 14+)

3.35/5 3.64/5 0.29 20.Overall, how would you rate your IPP/IFSP in 
addressing your (your family’s) needs? Q6, 7, 9, 16-19

Training: IPP in addressing your needs 
(Strategy 3.1.1, 3.1.3) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey, Adults only)

Baseline 70% n/a

22. During your planning meeting, were you provided 
information on employment (job, work) options?
(%Yes, rebased to disclude thos who did not want to discuss 
this.)

Training: IPP in addressing your needs 
(Strategy 3.1.1, 3.1.3) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey, Adults only)

Baseline 66% n/a

23. During your planning meeting, were you provided 
referrals to service providers that can help you gain 
employment (get a job)?
(%Yes, rebased to disclude thos who did not need a 
referral.)

290



PAGE 21

STRATEGIC PLAN OUTCOME MEASURES:
 - HOUSING

Housing    (Individuals Served Focus)

Outcome Measure
2022 

(Baseline)
2023 Difference

Individual / Family Satisfaction Survey Question Support Questions

Training: IPP Discussed Housing Options  
(Strategy 5.1.1, 5.1.2, 5.1.3) 
(Individual/Family Satisfaction Survey, ages 22+)

TBD 58%   n/a

21. During your planning meeting, did you service 
coordinator discuss future housing options with 
you/your family? (Such as Individual Living Services, 
Supported Living Services, Group Homes, or Foster Home 

Agencies)  
(%Yes, rebased to disclude thos who did not want to 
discuss this.)

291



Great…. Data… Now what?

292



PAGE 23

G o a l s  a n d  
P r o g r e s s

T e a m 
E n v i r o n m e n t  
&  D y n a m i c s

S u p p o r t i n g  
S t a f f  G r o w t h

B r a i n s t o r m 
a n d  P l a n …  

A c t i o n !

Striving for Organizational Excellence!

S c o r e s ,  
C h a n g e s  i n  

S c o r e s

It’s People, not just Numbers

293



Thoughts?

Questions?

Thank you!

294



 

 

North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
Vendor Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 

February 2, 2023 
 

 
Present: Suad Bisogno, Alex Kopilevich, Andrea Devers, Dana Kalek, Cal Enriquez, Jaklen 

Keshishyan, Masood B., Octavia Askew, Sharon Weinberg, Erica Beall, Jodie Agnew-
Navarro, Vahe Mkrtchian, Kimberly Visokey, Catherine Carpenter, Cristina Preuss, Daniel 
Ortiz, Donna Rentsch, Emmanuel Gutierrez, Geri Sue Cox, Masood Babaeian, Mayra 
Alvarado– Committee Members  

 
Vini Montague, Evelyn McOmie, Gabby Esharti, Arshalous Garlanian  – Staff Members 

  
Michelle Heid - Legucator, Chris Gardner -Minutes Services – Guest 

 
Absent:    

  
 
I. Call to Order & Introductions  

Suad Bisogno, Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:31 a.m. The board announces the annual 
board dinner on May 3rd, encouraging vendors to submit success stories by February 15th for 
recognition. They seek applications for the VAC committee due to upcoming term expirations, 
emphasizing the need for active representation. The application deadline for committee 
positions is February 15th, and interested individuals are urged to apply. 
 

II. Public Input 
Public Input was given. 

 
III. Consent Items 

A. Approval of Agenda 
Saud Bisogno acknowledges the commendable work of CCLN and praises Mark. The 
meeting proceeds to consent items, starting with the approval of the agenda. A 
correction is made to Evelyn's title, Which is changed to deputy director. 
 
M/S/C (C. Enriquez/A. Kopilevich) To approve the agenda as amended. 
 

B. Approval of Minutes from the October 5, 2023, Meeting  
Sharon Weinberg raises questions and suggestions for corrections. She notes a 
discrepancy on page three regarding "DDC" instead of "DDS" and points out the 
correction. Additionally, on page two, she suggests changing "check in" to "check run" 
under the financial officer report. Sharon also draws attention to an action item on page 
five related to Ruth Jenka's follow-up on subcodes for remote services. 

 
Saud Bisogno acknowledges and incorporates the corrections, clarifying the changes 
with Sharon. Regarding the action item, Sharon proposes adding it to the agenda under 
committee business. Saud agrees, and they decide not to make it a formal action item 
but to include it in the discussion during committee business. 
 
M/S/C (A. Kopilevich/E. Beall) To approve the Minutes presented with corrections. 

295



NLACRC Vendor Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 2 
February 1, 2024 
 

 

 

 
IV. Executive Director's Report – Cristina Preuss  

NLACRC Human Resources New Hires Report 

Cristina Preuss presented the Human Resources Report as presented in the packet. 
 
Saud Bisogno expresses gratitude to Christina for her comprehensive report and then raises a 
specific question regarding the budget, focusing on the coordinated family support services. 
Saud notes a $36 million reduction in funding due to the expiration of one-time funding for 
the preschool phase. She mentions that North L.A.'s website still indicates open requests for 
providers to offer coordinated family support services. Saud seeks clarification on whether 
this reduction implies a complete cessation of funding for this service in the upcoming fiscal 
year. 
 
Christina Preuss responds, indicating that the information provided is part of the budget 
proposal. She emphasizes that the department is exploring various options for regional 
centers to continue with the program, considering its positive impact on communities and 
individuals who rely on it for better access to generic resources. Christina assures Saud that 
more details will be forthcoming, expressing the department's intent not to eliminate the 
program but to explore alternative options. 
 
Saud shares her concern, highlighting the efforts vendors have invested in the vendorization 
process for coordinated family support services, only to see it phased out within a year 
potentially. Christina acknowledges the significance of community services' input in this 
matter, implying that stakeholders will likely play a role in shaping the final decision. 
 
 

V. Chief Financial Officer's Report – Vini Montague 
Vini Montague presented the Chief Financial Officer's Report as presented in the packet. 
 
Vini stated that the monthly expenditures for the month total 70.2 million, with year-to-date 
expenditures reaching 261.4 million. The projected annual expenditures for the year are 921.1 
million. Vini mentions completing the first purchase of services expenditures projection for the 
fiscal year 2024 for DDS, projecting a deficit of 73.9 million. Vendors are reminded to submit 
their 1099 and C forms by February 6. Vini informs vendors impacted by the state minimum 
wage increase that the state minimum wage worksheet is available on their website. 
 
Vini also announced the hiring of Jonathan Estrada as a senior accounting specialist dedicated 
to escalated payment issues. He encourages vendors with outstanding authorization or 
payment issues to email Jonathan and copy the accounts payable supervisor, Robert Scan, to 
expedite issue resolution. 
 
Saud Bisogno raises questions about the fiscal year closing process and suggests a streamlined 
approach where providers can drop outstanding contract details into an Excel spreadsheet. Vini 
suggests sending any concerns or issues directly to Jonathan Estrada via email. Saud agrees and 
plans to share a spreadsheet from another regional center to explore the possibility of 
implementing a similar process at North LA. 

296



NLACRC Vendor Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 3 
February 1, 2024 
 

 

 

 
Alex Kopilevich asks about a potential delay in the processing of POS (Purchase of Service) dated 
December 28, as they were only mailed out on January 23. Vini expresses unawareness of any 
delays and promises to look into the matter, assuring Alex that she will send an email with 
updates once she investigates the situation.  

 
VI. Chief Consumer & Community Services Officer Report – Evelyn McOmie 

Evelyn McOmie expresses gratitude to day programs that volunteered to host Community 
Service Coordinators (CSC) tours, a practice reinstated as part of new staff orientation. Evelyn 
invites those interested in being added to the rotation for the CSC tours to email her directly at 
nlacrc.org by the upcoming Tuesday, February 6. This opportunity is time-sensitive, and Evelyn 
emphasizes the importance of this practice in staff training, allowing them to familiarize 
themselves with various programs in the community. 
 
In addition, Evelyn mentions a new initiative where North LA CRC is sending surveys with every 
Individual Program Plan (IPP) report to families and individuals served. The goal is to gather 
feedback on the IPP process, helping to identify areas for improvement and make informed 
decisions on adjustments to enhance systems and processes. This initiative covers the initial IPP 
and Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP) processes, as well as the social recreation 
reimbursement process. 
 
Furthermore, Evelyn announces her plan to continue meeting with individual service providers 
in 2024. She acknowledges those who have already participated in partnership check-ins, 
appreciating their time and feedback. Evelyn mentions that these meetings provide an 
opportunity to address challenges and discuss pending action items. Invitations for meetings 
will be sent out in the coming months, and she looks forward to meeting with more service 
providers throughout the year. The presentation ends without questions. 
 

VII. Community Services Director's Report – Arshalous Garlanian 
Arshalous Garlanian provides updates during the meeting, starting with gratitude for the 
feedback received. She announces that DDS is preparing to launch the Service Provider 
Directory in February, aiming to make service provider information more manageable for 
providers and accessible for consumers. The directory's capabilities will be released in phases, 
with the initial phase allowing service providers to view and validate their information in the 
portal. Arshalous mentions that on-demand training materials will be available, and future 
phases may include improvements to vendorization and deployment of a customer-facing 
portal. 

 
She discusses the monitoring and corrective actions related to the HCBS final rule, emphasizing 
that North LA is conducting on-site reviews of all HCBS settings. The deadline to complete all 
reviews and ensure provider compliance is set for August 31, 2024. Office hours for service 
providers are offered every Thursday at 2 pm, along with various resources and training 
opportunities. 

 
Arshalous provides information about upcoming training programs, including the Person-
Centered Thinking certificate program, which is sold out for February and March but has 

297



NLACRC Vendor Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 4 
February 1, 2024 
 

 

 

available dates in April and May. Transition from Consumers to Producers training is scheduled 
for March 25-27. There's also a self-guided learning module for providers, and Arshalous 
encourages those interested to contact David Ramos for registration details. 

 
She informs about the California state minimum wage increase effective January 1 and includes 
links for rate adjustment requests. Arshalous emphasizes the importance of following local 
minimum wage ordinances, which may be higher than the state's. 

 
Arshalous highlights DSA 1891, urging vendors to update information on the portal. The vendor 
support forum is scheduled for Thursday, February 15, and Arshalous encourages emailing 
contracts and compliance for topic suggestions. There's also an announcement for a Cal Able 
workshop on February 21. 

 
Other updates include reminders for PIP and CIE requests, an open proposal period deadline on 
February 2, ongoing vendorizations for coordinated family supports, social rec, and self-directed 
support services. A new request for money management services will be published next week. 

 
The Residential Service Orientation (RSO) registration is open until March 1, and Arshalous 
mentions completed vendorizations for coordinated family support and upcoming information 
sessions for case management. Vendorizations for social rec and self-directed support services 
continue, with a new request for money management services on the horizon. Arshalous 
concludes with information about Electronic Visit Verification (EVV), with DDS hosting office 
hours, and she encourages checking the packet for more details. 
 
Saud Bisogno expresses gratitude for the feedback received, particularly regarding money 
management services. He emphasizes the challenges faced in finding enough providers for this 
service and suggests incorporating benefit and wage reporting support within the money 
management services to prevent overpayments. 
 
Arshalous Garlanian appreciates the feedback received, stating that it has helped in assessing 
and improving processes. Octavia Askew asks questions regarding the Person-Centered 
Thinking training's $500 incentive, seeking clarification on how the incentive is paid out. 
Arshalous explains that the incentive is for service providers, and North LA will directly pay the 
service providers. The $500 can be used by the agencies to offset staff wages for attending the 
training. 
 
Octavia asks if agencies can pay the incentive directly to staff, and Saud Bisogno explains that it 
is more of an operational incentive to help agencies cover the cost of staff attending the 
training. Octavia seeks confirmation on how the $500 is distributed, and Saud Bisogno explains 
that agencies can decide how to use the incentive, such as paying staff wages or providing a 
bonus for attending the training. 
 
Jacqueline Keshishyan raises questions about Coordinated Family Support (CFS) services, asking 
if the regional center will support in identifying who at DDS receives the required documents. 
Arshalous Garlanian takes note of the question and offers to look into it, mentioning she will 
contact Jacqueline later. Jacqueline also inquires about CSCs (service coordinators) receiving 

298



NLACRC Vendor Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 5 
February 1, 2024 
 

 

 

training for CFS services, and Arshalous mentions that training has been ongoing, and 
information sessions will be organized for service coordinators to learn more about the 
programs. 

 
VIII. Legislative Report – Michelle Heid 

 
Michelle proceeds with her report. She discusses the ongoing two-year legislative cycle in 
California, highlighting that bills from the previous year can continue moving while new 
legislation will be introduced by the February 16 deadline. Michelle anticipates potential 
leadership changes in the Senate, and she covers the upcoming March 5 primary election, 
detailing various seats up for election, including assembly seats and the U.S. Senate seat held 
by Diane Feinstein. 
 
She provides insights into the governor's January budget proposal, which initiates the advocacy 
and negotiation phase. Michelle underlines the significance of the Lanterman coalition's efforts 
to prevent the delay of the rate implementation, urging providers to engage in advocacy for the 
rate implementation to proceed as scheduled. 
 
Michelle touches on the legislative calendar, noting the upcoming deadline for bill introductions 
on February 16. She provides updates on bills from the previous year, mentioning that AB 222 
and AB 649 are dead for the year, while AB 1147 may continue moving through the process. 
 
She informs the committee about a recently introduced bill related to BA services and addresses 
the implications of delays in reevaluation or rediagnosis for individuals receiving such services. 
Michelle shares links to Lanterman coalition public policy priorities and discusses directives 
issued by the Department of Developmental Services (DDS). 
 
The report delves into the DS task force, stakeholder events, DSP training stipends, State Council 
updates, self-advocacy chats, and disability voting initiatives. Michelle encourages sharing 
information about free digital behavioral health platforms and highlights upcoming events, 
including the CalTash conference and a disability policy seminar. 
 
She also provides details about the early start of interagency coordinating council meetings, 
opportunities for public input, and free classes for caregivers from Caring Futures. Michelle 
addresses minimum wage hikes and their potential impact on hiring challenges in the disability 
services sector. She informs the committee about the federal government's call for public 
comments on autism and co-occurring conditions. 
 
Local legislative events, including Assemblywoman Polar Shiva's pizza party, are highlighted, 
and Michelle concludes her report by addressing concerns about entry-level DSP rates 
potentially falling below minimum wage in certain regions. 
 

IX. Committee Business 
A. System/Industry Issues update– 2024  

The committee acknowledges that there might be a need for follow-up regarding 
remote services, specifically addressing Sharon's question. The issue raised is related to 

299



NLACRC Vendor Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 6 
February 1, 2024 
 

 

 

the difficulty in transitioning individuals who are eligible for remote services, to this 
mode on a short-term basis. The challenge becomes more prominent during peak times 
when individuals are sick and a quick transition to remote services is required. 

 
The committee is seeking ways to streamline the usage of remote services, especially in 
instances where a person needs temporary access due to illness. The question is 
directed towards North L.A., asking if there is a way to make the process more efficient 
and user-friendly, particularly for service codes eligible for remote services. This is 
treated as an action item, and feedback is expected at the next meeting. 

 
The discussion highlights the difficulties faced by service providers when a short-term 
request for remote services is made. The delays in authorization updates result in 
providers being unable to bill for services during that month. This creates barriers for 
service providers, and it is suggested that, at times, it may seem more convenient for 
them not to provide any service at all than to offer just a week of remote service. 
 

B. Legislative Grassroots Sub-Committee Sign-ups 
Jodie Agnew-Navarro provides information on the government and community 
relations committee's annual grassroots legislative visits. These visits are planned to be 
in person, and AC members are encouraged to sign up to be advocates in the teams that 
will meet with legislators. 

 
The teams typically consist of individuals served by regional centers, parents, vendors, 
and North LA staff. The goal is to have a constituent of the legislator on the team. 
Members interested in participating are requested to respond to the board support 
email expressing their interest. Trainings will be provided to familiarize participants with 
key points. 

 
Saud Bisogno clarifies that there are two grassroots events: one in Sacramento on April 
1 and 2, and the other involves local visits where teams consisting of providers, board 
members, consumer representatives, family members, and North LA staff meet with 
legislators. Saud emphasizes the importance of in-person visits but acknowledges that 
virtual visits may be considered if necessary. 

 
The committee also seeks vendors with larger facilities to host community training 
events in April or May. Members interested in hosting such events are encouraged to 
reach out to board support. 

 
There's a discussion about how participants will be assigned to teams. The suggestion is 
to have all committee members auto-assigned to teams, and if there are scheduling 
conflicts or preferences, they can communicate that. Jodie Agnew-Navarro raises 
concerns about auto-adding people due to different schedules. The decision is to assign 
committee members to teams manually, and coordination will be done to ensure 
everyone is assigned to a suitable team. 

 
M/S/C (E. Beall/O. Askew) To approve that all AC members will be part of the legislative 

300



NLACRC Vendor Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 7 
February 1, 2024 
 

 

 

grassroots subcommittee signups. 
 

C. Annual Jynny Retzinger Community Service Award Recommendations 
Jenny Rett singer Community Service Award, an honor bestowed by North LA to 
recognize outstanding service providers or individuals in the service provider 
community. Saud Bisogno provides information about the award and mentions that last 
year, Erica was celebrated, and the year before, Harry from Path Point received the 
recognition. 

 
The committee is requested to submit any recommendations for this year's award. No 
specific deadline is mentioned during the discussion, but it is suggested that committee 
members send their recommendations to board support. The emphasis is on recognizing 
individuals who contribute to legislative efforts and work behind the scenes to stabilize 
the system, and it doesn't necessarily have to be the leader of an organization. Erica 
mentions the importance of acknowledging those who handle logistics and contribute 
to legislative efforts. 

 
Saud encourages committee members to email their recommendations as soon as 
possible, mentioning "Jenny Retsinger Community Service Award" in the title of the 
email.  
 
Action Item: Recommendations for the Jenny Retsinger Community Service Award 
should be submitted to board support and tracked. 
 

D. Open Issues for Discussion 
The first item for discussion is regarding the review of the Vendor Advisory Committee 
(VAC) schedule. There is a consideration of whether the next meeting, scheduled for 
March, will be in person, particularly in Santa Clarita. However, Kimberly Visokey 
informs that the decision was made at the last executive committee meeting not to have 
any more in-person meetings for the remainder of the fiscal year due to unresolved tech 
issues. 

 
Saud expresses disappointment and curiosity about the decision, and Kimberly 
mentions that the tech issues are the primary reason for sticking to virtual meetings. 
Saud agrees to table the discussion and potentially seek clarity from the executive team 
in the future. 

 
Additionally, Saud highlights the upcoming turnover in committee members, including 
himself and Erica, who will be turning out. There is a need for new committee members 
and a committee chair. Saud inquires whether someone outside the VAC but interested 
in chairing the committee could be considered during the interview cycle, and Cristina 
Preuss suggests discussing this with the executive board to navigate any potential bylaw 
restrictions. Saud emphasizes the importance of bringing in new committee members 
and mentions the ongoing process of updating bylaws to allow for a substitute chair. He 
encourages those interested in contributing to the committee to express their interest. 

 
301



NLACRC Vendor Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 8 
February 1, 2024 
 

 

 

Octavia Askew shares information about a certified social skills teleconference for 
providers, hosted by UCLA peers for an adults training seminar, catering to various 
professionals working with young adults with social challenges. Octavia offers to share 
the details in the chat for interested parties. 
 

X. Committee Work Group Reports 
A. Early Start Services - Dana Kalek  

Dana shares both positive and negative developments. On a positive note, intakes for 
the early start program have been increasing monthly, with nearly 5,000 Infant 
Development Program (IDP) clients referred to North LA in 2023. This indicates positive 
outreach to vulnerable children in the community who need services. 

 
However, Dana also mentions an upcoming audit by the Department of Developmental 
Services (DDS) for North LA, focusing on issues related to the natural environment and 
the locations where services are being provided. Compliance with these standards is 
crucial for all vendors. 

 
One significant ongoing issue discussed is the challenge of billing insurance versus billing 
the regional center. To address this, a new group of early start vendors called "Early 
Start Equal Access" has been formed. The group aims to discuss and propose solutions 
to this billing issue. Dana highlights the group's intention to meet with Christina, Evelyn, 
and Arshu to present their proposals after further discussions. 

 
The group is also focusing on improving natural environment metrics, and Dana 
expresses concerns about the proposed budget by the governor. The rate increase for 
early start vendors, which has been put on hold, could significantly impact those who 
have already made staffing decisions based on the expected increase. Dana assures that 
the committee is actively addressing these issues from various angles. 

 
Dana concludes by inviting early-start vendors to the next meeting scheduled for 
February 15, encouraging their participation in these important discussions. 
 

B. School Age Services - Cal Enriquez 
During the meeting, Cal Enriquez shared updates and feedback from the stakeholder 
feedback meeting for the executive director at North LA that he attended. The meeting 
took place on January 2nd, and Cal mentions that the next meeting is scheduled for 
February 6th. 

 
Cal expresses that the stakeholder feedback meeting went well, with many participants, 
including Dana, providing valuable input. He notes that the moderator, a woman from 
an agency, was fair and facilitated the discussion effectively. Cal emphasizes the 
importance of supporting the new executive director and mentions that despite the 
challenging times, the community is optimistic. 

 
Dana agrees with Cal's assessment, stating that the feedback provided in the meeting 
was valuable in outlining what the community hopes to see in the new executive 

302



NLACRC Vendor Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes                                                             Page 9 
February 1, 2024 
 

 

 

director. 
 

Saud Bisogno appreciates the positive feedback and notes that it was essential for the 
vendor community to provide input during the recruitment process for the new 
executive director. 

 
C. Adult Services - Suad Bisogno & Erica Beall 

The Adult Services workgroup did not meet during the reported period, but the next 
meeting is scheduled for the 1st Monday in March. 

 
XI. Board Committee Reports 

A. Administrative Affairs – Andrea Devers 
The Administrative Affairs committee did not have a representative from North LA 
present at the meeting, and Saud suggested tabling the discussion on their updates. 
 

B. Consumer Services - Erica Beall 
There was no meeting this month, as they meet every other month 
 

C. Government & Community Relations – Jodie Agnew-Navarro 
Jodie Agnew-Navarro mentions that they covered the host request and volunteer sign-
ups for legislative grassroots in Sacramento. The committee is also working on a virtual 
town hall scheduled for February 22nd from 6 to 7:30 PM. Michelle is working on 
securing legislators or their staff for the event, and two confirmations have already been 
received. 
 
Jodie highlights that the community legislative advocacy training is in progress, and they 
are seeking vendors to host the training. Additionally, a candidates' forum is planned for 
the fall. She concludes her report, and Saud Bisogno adds that the registration link for 
the virtual town hall will be shared in the chat. 
 
Action Item: Committee members are requested to sign up for the legislative grassroots 
subcommittee. 
 

D. Nominating - Suad Bisogno 
Saud Bisogno reports that they met this week. They are working on finalizing the 
alternative chair position, which will be discussed further at the next meeting. The 
committee has also addressed the late notifications for the AC committee applications, 
ensuring that reminders were sent out earlier this week. They plan to have the alternate 
chair draft approved and submitted to the board at the next meeting. Additionally, 
potential interviews for the Vendor Advisory Committee (VAC) are scheduled for the 
next meeting. Strategic planning is mentioned as another item on the committee's 
agenda. 

 
E. Strategic Planning - Daniel Ortiz 

Daniel Ortiz reports on the Family Voice Committee's meeting held last month. The 
meeting primarily focused on reviewing the Kinetic Flow survey results conducted for 

303



NLACRC Vendor Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes  Page 10 
February 1, 2024 

parents and families. The survey received responses through various channels, including 
online, SMS, text messages, and live telephone interviews, totaling 208, 2425, and 662, 
respectively. The committee aims to compile and share the key insights from the survey, 
and they plan to meet again in February to continue their discussions. 

XII. Review of Meeting Action Items
A. Vendor Advisory Committee Action Log

XIII. Agenda Items for the Next Board Meeting
A. Minutes of the November 2nd Meeting

XIV. Announcements/Public Input
A. Next Meeting: Thursday, February 1st 2024
B. Committee Attendance (Page 41)

XV. Committee Work Group Information:
A. Early Start Services (Dana Kalek)

For meeting schedule and information 
Contact: Dana Kalek - dkalek@cdikids.org 
Next workgroup meeting: TBD 

B. School Age Services (Cal Enriquez)
For meeting schedule and information 
Contact: Cal Enriquez – cenriquez@accreditednursing.com 
Next workgroup meeting: TBD 

C. Adult Services (Suad Bisogno & Erica Beall)
For meeting schedule and information 
Contact: Suad Bisogno - Suad@irioc.org 
Next workgroup meeting: TBD 

XVI. Adjournment
Suad adjourned the meeting at 11:18 a.m.

304



Rolling 12-Month Attendance Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Total
Board Members Board Board Board Board Board Board Board Board Board Dark Board Board Absences

Ana Laura Quiles, President P P P P P P P P P P 0
Alma Rodriguez P P P P P P P Ab P Ab 2
Andrew Ramirez Ab P P P P P P Ab P P 2
Anna Hurst *P P P P P AB Ab 2
Brian Gatus P P P Ab P P P P P P 1
Cathy Blin P P P P P P P P AB P 1
Curtis Wang *P P P P P P P 0
David Coe P P P P P P P P P P 0
George Alvarado P P P P P P P P P P 0
James Henry *Ab 1
Juan Hernandez *P P P P 0
Jennifer Koster *P P P P 0
Kelsi Levingston - Intern *Ab 1
Leticia Garcia P P P P P P P P P P 0
Lillian Martinez Ab P P P P P P P P P 1
Michael Costa *P P P P P P P 0
Nicholas Abrahms P P P P P P P P P P 0
Rocio Sigala P P P P P P P P P P 0
Sharmila Brunjes P P P P P P P P P P 0
Suad Bisogno  (VAC Rep) P P P Ab P P Ab P P P 2
Vivian Seda  *P P P P P P P 0

P = Present          Ab = Absent
Attendance Policy:  In the event a Trustee shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from three (3) consecutive meetings of any one or more committees on which 

305



12-Month Attendance Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Total
Administrative Affairs Dark Dark Dark Dark Dark Canceled Dark Absences

Brian Gatus, Chair *P P P P 0
Andrew Ramirez *P P P AB 1
Lety Garcia P P P P P 0
Ana Quiles P P P P P 0
Andrea Devers (VAC Rep) *Ab P Ab P 2

P = Present          Ab = Absent
Attendance Policy:  In the event a Trustee shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from three (3) consecutive meetings of any one or more 
committees on which he or she may be serving, or shall be absent from five (5) regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from five (5) meetings of any one or more Committees on which he 
or she may be serving during any twelve (12) month period, then the Trustee shall, without any notice or further action required of the Board, be automatically deemed to have resigned 
from the Board effective immediately.  The secretary of the Board shall mail notice of each Trustee’s absences during the preceding twelve (12) month period to each Board member 
following each regularly-scheduled Board meeting.    (policy adopted  2-10-99)                                                          

306



Apr May June July August Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar TOTALS TOTALS
2023 2023 2023 2023

DARK
2023 2023 2023 2023 2024

DARK
2024 2024 2025 Absences Attended      

(Non-CM )

*George Alvarado, Chair P P AB P P Ab Ab 2
*Bill Abramson Ab P P P P P P P P 1
*Pam Aiona P P P P P P AB AB P 2
*Juan Hernandez P P P P P P P P 0
*Destry Walker P P P P P P P 0
Jennifer Koster P P P AB 0 1
Cynthia Samano - Feb 2023 P Ab 1
Susan Good Ab 1
Melinda Tannan Ab 0
Lesly Forbes P P P 2
Elena Tiffany P 1
Desiree Boykin    *not NLA Ab P P 2
Miguel Lugo Ab 0
Jason Gerard P Ab 1
Jessica Gould P P 2
Kristine Mosteiro Ab P 0
Alex Phuong  *not NLA P P P P P P 4
Santos Rodriguez P 1
Pamela Aiona P 1
Suzanne Paggi     resigned 11/23 P P P 1

Membership:  Consumers who attend 5 meetings in a 12-month period can become a CAC Member.

Consumer Attendee
*Committee Members

North Los Angeles County Regional Center
Consumer Advisory Committee

FY22-23 Meeting Attendance

307



12-Month Attendance Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Total
Consumer Services Committee Dark Dark Dark Dark Dark Dark Dark Absences

Rocio Sigala P P P P P 0
Alma Rodriguez P P P P 0
Anna Hurst P P P Ab 1
Cathy Blin P P P P Ab 1
Curtis Wang P P P P 0
George Alvarado P P Ab P P 1
James Henry *AB 1
Jennifer Koster P P P 0
Juan Hernandez P P P 0
Kelsi Levingston *P 0
Sharmila Brunjes P P P P P 0
Nicholas Abrahms P P P P P 0
Michael Costa P Ab P P 1
Vivian Seda P P P Ab 1
Erica Beall (VAC Rep) P P Ab P P 1
P = Present          Ab = Absent
Attendance Policy:  In the event a Trustee shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regularly-scheduled Board meetings or 
from three (3) consecutive meetings of any one or more committees on which he or she may be serving, or shall be absent 
from five (5) regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from five (5) meetings of any one or more Committees on which he or 
she may be serving during any twelve (12) month period, then the Trustee shall, without any notice or further action required 
of the Board, be automatically deemed to have resigned from the Board effective immediately.  The secretary of the Board 
shall mail notice of each Trustee’s absences during the preceding twelve (12) month period to each Board member following 

308



12-Month Attendance Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Total
Executive Committee Dark Sp.S Sp.S Dark Absences

Leticia Garcia P P P P P P P P P P P 0
Lillian Martinez P P P P P P P P P A P 1
Ana Quiles, Chair P P P P P P P P P P P 0
Brian Gatus *P P P P P P P P 0
Andrew Ramirez *P P P P P P P  P 0
David Coe P P P P Ab P P P P P P 1
Rocio Sigala P P P Ab P P P P P P P 1
P = Present          Ab = Absent

Attendance Policy:  In the event a Trustee shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from three (3) consecutive meetings of any one or more committees on 
which he or she may be serving, or shall be absent from five (5) regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from five (5) meetings of any one or more Committees on which he or she may be serving 
during any twelve (12) month period, then the Trustee shall, without any notice or further action required of the Board, be automatically deemed to have resigned from the Board effective 
immediately.  The secretary of the Board shall mail notice of each Trustee’s absences during the preceding twelve (12) month period to each Board member following each regularly-scheduled 
Board meeting.    (policy adopted  2-10-99)                                                          

309



12-Month Attendance Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Total
Government & Community 

Relations Committee  Dark Dark Dark Dark Dark Dark Absences

David Coe, Chair P P P P 0
Anna Hurst P P Ab Ab 2
Cathy Blin P P P P P P 0
Curtis Wang Ab P P P 1
Juan Hernandez P AB P 1
Jodie Agnew-Navarro, VAC Rep P Ab P P P Ab 2
Michael Costa Ab Ab Ab Ab 4
Nicholas Abrahms P P P P Ab P 1
Sharmila Brunjes P P Ab P Ab P 2
Vivian Seda P P P P 0
P = Present          Ab = Absent

Attendance Policy:  In the event a Trustee shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from three (3) consecutive meetings of any one or more committees 
on which he or she may be serving, or shall be absent from five (5) regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from five (5) meetings of any one or more Committees on which he or she may be 
serving during any twelve (12) month period, then the Trustee shall, without any notice or further action required of the Board, be automatically deemed to have resigned from the Board 
effective immediately.  The secretary of the Board shall mail notice of each Trustee’s absences during the preceding twelve (12) month period to each Board member following each regularly-
scheduled Board meeting.    (policy adopted  2-10-99)                                                          

310



12-Month Attendance Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Total
Nominating Committee Dark Dark Dark Dark Dark Absences

David Coe P P P P P P P P P 0
Lillian Martinez, Chair P P P P P P P P P 0
Ana Quiles P P P P P P P P P 0
Sharmila Brunjes P P P P AB P P 1
Suad Bisogno P P P P AB AB P P P 2
P = Present          Ab = Absent

Attendance Policy:  In the event a Trustee shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from three (3) consecutive meetings of any one or more committees on which he or she may 
be serving, or shall be absent from five (5) regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from five (5) meetings of any one or more Committees on which he or she may be serving during any twelve (12) month period, then 
the Trustee shall, without any notice or further action required of the Board, be automatically deemed to have resigned from the Board effective immediately.  The secretary of the Board shall mail notice of each 
Trustee’s absences during the preceding twelve (12) month period to each Board member following each regularly-scheduled Board meeting.    (policy adopted  2-10-99)                                                          

Aug-23 Jan-24

311



12-Month Attendance Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Total
Post-Retirement Medical Trust Dark Dark Dark Dark Dark Dark Dark Dark Absences

Ana Quiles, Chair P Ab P P P 1
Brian Gatus *P 0
David Coe *P P P P P 0
P = Present          Ab = Absent * = Joined Committee

Attendance Policy:  In the event a Trustee shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from three (3) consecutive meetings of any one or more committees 
on which he or she may be serving, or shall be absent from five (5) regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from five (5) meetings of any one or more Committees on which he or she may be 
serving during any twelve (12) month period, then the Trustee shall, without any notice or further action required of the Board, be automatically deemed to have resigned from the Board 
effective immediately.  The secretary of the Board shall mail notice of each Trustee’s absences during the preceding twelve (12) month period to each Board member following each regularly-
scheduled Board meeting.    (policy adopted  2-10-99)                                                          

312



 Attendance 12/7/2023 12/14/2023 12/18/2023 12/26/2023 1/2/2024 1/9/2024 1/16/2024 1/22/2024 1/29/2024 2/12/2024 2/20/2024 2/26/2024 3/4/2024 Total
Recruitment Committee Meeting DARK Absences

Ana Quiles P P P P P P P P P P P P 0

David Coe P P P P P P P P P P P P 0

Lilian Martinez P P P P P P P P P P P P 0

Brian Gatus P P P AB P P P P P P P P 1

Lety Garcia P P P P P P P P P P P P 0

Suad Bisogno P P AB AB P P P P AB P P AB 4

Alma Rodriguez P P P AB P AB P P P AB AB P 4
P = Present          Ab = Absent          L = Left Early * = Joined Committee

Attendance Policy:  In the event a Trustee shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from three (3) consecutive meetings of any one or more committees on which he or she may be serving, or shall be absent from five (5) 
regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from five (5) meetings of any one or more Committees on which he or she may be serving during any twelve (12) month period, then the Trustee shall, without any notice or further action required of the Board, be 
automatically deemed to have resigned from the Board effective immediately.  The secretary of the Board shall mail notice of each Trustee’s absences during the preceding twelve (12) month period to each Board member following each regularly-scheduled 
Board meeting.    (policy adopted  2-10-99)                                                          

313



12-Month Attendance Mar-23 Apr-22 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Total
Strategic Planning Dark Dark Dark Dark Dark Dark Absences

Lety Garcia P P P P P P 0
Brian Gatus P P P P AB P 1
Lillian Martinez P P P P AB P 1
Ana Quiles P P P P P P 0
Curtis Wang *P AB 1
Daniel Ortiz - VAC Rep Ab P P P P P 1
Vivian Seda Ab P 1
P = Present          Ab = Absent

Attendance Policy:  In the event a Trustee shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from three (3) consecutive meetings of any one or more 
committees on which he or she may be serving, or shall be absent from five (5) regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from five (5) meetings of any one or more Committees on 
which he or she may be serving during any twelve (12) month period, then the Trustee shall, without any notice or further action required of the Board, be automatically deemed to 
have resigned from the Board effective immediately.  The secretary of the Board shall mail notice of each Trustee’s absences during the preceding twelve (12) month period to each 
Board member following each regularly-scheduled Board meeting.    (policy adopted  2-10-99)                                                          

314



12-Month Attendance Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-22 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Total
Vendor Advisory Committee Dark Absences

Suad Bisogno, Chair P P P P Ab P P P P P 1
Alex Kopilevich P P P P P P P P P P 0
Andrea Devers P P P P P Ab P P P P 1
Cal Enriquez P P P Ab P P P Ab P P 2
Catherine Carpenter Ab P P P P P Ab Ab P P 3
Dana Kalek P P P P P P P P P P 0
Daniel Ortiz Ab P P P Ab P Ab P P P 3
Erica Beall P P P P P Ab P P P P 1
Jaklen Keshishyan *P P P P P P P 0
Jodie Agnew Navarro P P P P P Ab P P P P 1
Lisa Williamsen Ab P P P P Ab P P Ab P 3
Masood Babaeian *P P Ab P P P P 1
Octavia Askew *P P P P P P P 0
Sharon Weinberg *P P P P P P P 0
Vahe Mkrtchian *P P P P P P P 0

P = Present          Ab = Absent
Attendance Policy:  In the event a Trustee shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from three (3) consecutive meetings of any one or more 
committees on which he or she may be serving, or shall be absent from five (5) regularly-scheduled Board meetings or from five (5) meetings of any one or more Committees on 
which he or she may be serving during any twelve (12) month period, then the Trustee shall, without any notice or further action required of the Board, be automatically deemed to 
have resigned from the Board effective immediately.  The secretary of the Board shall mail notice of each Trustee’s absences during the preceding twelve (12) month period to each 
Board member following each regularly-scheduled Board meeting.    (policy adopted  2-10-99)                                                          

315



Fiscal Year 2023-2024 (Rounded to the nearest quarter of an hour.) (Rounded to the nearest quarter of an hour.) (Rounded to the nearest quarter of an hour.)

Committee Start End Total Time Rounded Start End Total Time Rounded Start End Total Time Rounded Start End Total Time Rounded Start End Total Time Rounded Start End Total Time Rounded Start End Total Time Rounded
New Board Member Orientation (7/12/23) 6:00 PM 9:00 PM 3:00 3:00
Board Member Retreat (7/29/23) 8:00 AM 5:05 PM 9:05 9:00
Administrative Affairs 6:39 PM 9:25 PM 2:46 2:45 6:00 PM 8:44 PM 2:44 2:45 6:01 PM 7:23 PM 01:22 1:15
Board Meeting 6:30 PM 8:59 PM 02:29 2:30 6:30 PM 8:16 PM 1:46 1:45 6:30 PM 8:36 PM 02:06 2:00 6:30 PM 8:42 PM 02:12 2:15 6:06 PM 8:04pm 01:58 2:00
Consumer Advisory 3:05 PM 4:21 PM 01:16 1:15 0:00 0:00 3:11 PM 4:17 PM 01:06 1:00 3:15 PM 4:20 PM 01:05 1:00
Consumer Services 6:01 PM 10:09 PM 4:08 4:15 6:03 PM 8:40 PM 2:37 2:30 6:00 PM 8:03 PM 02:03 2:00
Executive 9:25 PM 10:47 PM 1:22 1:15 6:03 PM 9:53 PM 03:50 3:45 8:45 PM 10:57 PM 2:12 2:15 6:01 PM 10:01 PM 04:00 4:00 6:00 PM 9:37 PM 03:37 3:30 6:44 PM 7:45 PM 01:01 1:00 6:00 PM 9:34 PM 03:34 3:30
Executive (special session)
Government and Community Relations 6:05 PM 8:50 PM 02:45 2:45 6:01 PM 9:05 PM 3:04 3:00 6:02 PM 7:36 PM 1:34 1:30 6:00 PM 8:32 PM 02:32 2:30
Nominating 6:05 PM 7:18 PM 01:13 1:15 5:32 PM 7:10 PM 1:37 1:30 5:31 PM 6:56 PM 01:25 1:30
Nominating 6:06 PM 8:19 PM 02:13 2:15 5:31 PM 7:06 PM 01:35 1:30
Strategic Planning 6:01 PM 8:16 PM 02:15 2:15 6:01 PM 8:02 PM 2:01 2:00 6:01 PM 7:19 PM 01:18 1:15
Post Retirement Medical Trust 5:31 PM 6:39 PM 1:08 1:15
Vendor Advisory 9:31 AM 12:10 PM 02:39 2:45 9:32 AM 11:39 AM 2:07 2:00 9:35 AM 11:29 AM 01:54 2:00 9:30 AM 11:32 AM 02:02 2:00 9:30 AM 11:19 AM 01:49 1:15
Total Hours/Month 21:29 21:30 18:40 18:45 11:26 11:30 11:04 11:00 16.12 16:15 1:01 1:00 15:49 15:45

Fiscal Year 2023-2024 (Rounded to the nearest quarter of an hour.) (Rounded to the nearest quarter of an hour.) (Rounded to the nearest quarter of an hour.)

Committee Start End Total Time Rounded Start End Total Time Rounded Start End Total Time Rounded Start End Total Time Rounded Start End Total Time Rounded Start End Total Time Rounded Start End Total Time Rounded
New Board Member Orientation (7/12/23) 4:03 PM 5:58 PM 1:55 2:00
Board Member Retreat (7/29/23)
Administrative Affairs 6:01 PM 7:23 PM 01:22 1:15 6:01 PM 7:23 PM 1:22 1:30
Board Meeting 6:06 PM 8:04pm 01:58 2:00 6:00 PM 8:34 PM 2:34 2:30
Consumer Advisory 3:15 PM 4:20 PM 01:05 1:00 3:11 PM 5:11 PM 2:00 2:00 3:04 PM 3:46 PM :42 :45
Consumer Services 6:01 PM 8:14 PM 2:13 2:15
Executive 6:44 PM 7:45 PM 01:01 1:00 6:00 PM 9:34 PM 03:34 3:30 6:01 PM 7:23 PM 1:22 1:30
Executive (special session)
Government and Community Relations 6:00 PM 8:32 PM 02:32 2:30
Nominating 5:31 PM 6:56 PM 01:25 1:30 5:31 PM 7:00 PM 1:31 1:00
Nominating 5:31 PM 7:06 PM 01:35 1:30
Negotiating 6:00 PM 7:54 PM 1:54 2:00
Strategic Planning 6:01 PM 7:19 PM 01:18 1:15
Post Retirement Medical Trust
Recruitment 6:01 PM 7:10 PM 1:09 1:15 6:00 PM 7:02 PM 1:02 1:00 5:02 PM 6:05 PM 1:03 1:00 5:01 PM 6:18 PM 1:17 1:15
Recruitment 6:02 PM 6:42 PM :40 :45 6:00 PM 7:00 PM 1:00 1:00 5:00 PM 6:29 PM 1:29 1:30
Recruitment 6:02 PM 7:13 PM 1:11 1:15 5:00 PM 5:54 PM :54 1:00 5:00 PM 6:08 PM 1:08 1:15
Recruitment 6:01 PM 6:42 PM :41 :45 5:00 PM 5:59 PM :59 1:00
Vendor Advisory 9:30 AM 11:19 AM 1:49 1:15 9:31 AM 11:18 AM 1:47 1:45 9:30 AM 11:26 AM 1:56 2:00
Total Hours/Month 6:36 6:30 20:33 20:30 17:29 17:45 5:50 5:45

May-24 Jun-24Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24

Nov-23Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Dec-23 Jan-24

316



 
North Los Angeles County Regional Center 

 
ALPHABET SOUP 

 
 

AAIDD  - American Association on Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities 
AAP   - Adoption Assistance Program 
AB   - Assembly Bill (State) 
ABLE Act  - The “Achieving a Better Life Experience” (ABLE) Act of 2014  
ACRC  - Alta California Regional Center  
ADA   - Americans with Disabilities Act 
ADC   - Adult Development Center 
AFPF   - Annual Family Program Fee 
AIS   - ARCA Information Systems  
ARCA  - Association of Regional Center Agencies 
ARFPSHN   - Adult Residential Facility for Persons with Specialized Healthcare Needs  
 
BCBA   - Board-Certified Behavior Analyst 
 
CAC   - Consumer Advisory Committee 
CAL-ARF  - California Association of Rehabilitation Facilities 
CAL-TASH  - The Association for Persons with Severe Handicaps 
CARF   - Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities 
CASA   - Community Advocacy Services Association 
CASHPCR  - California Association of State Hospitals-Parent Councils for   
          the Retarded 
CCF   - Community Care Facility 
CCL   - Community Care Licensing 
CCR   - California Code of Regulations 
CCS   - California Children’s Services (State and County) 
CDCAN  - California Disability Community Action Network 
CDE   - Comprehensive Diagnostic Evaluation 
CDER  - Client Development Evaluation Report 
CIE   - Competitive Integrated Employment 
CMS   - Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (formerly HCFA) 
CMIS   - Client Management Information System 
COEC  - Community Outreach and Education Committee (ARCA) 
COLA  - Cost of Living Adjustment 
CP   - Cerebral Palsy 
CPES   - Community Provider of Enrichment Services 
CPP    - Community Placement Plan 
CRDP  - Community Resource Development Plan 
CSC   - Consumer Service Coordinator 

317



NLACRC Alphabet Soup         Page 2 
 
 
CSLA    - Community Supported Living Arrangement 
CVRC  - Central Valley Regional Center 
 
DAC   - Day Activity Center  
DCFS   - Department of Children and Family Services (County) 
DD   - Developmental Disabilities 
DD Council  - State Council on Developmental Disabilities 
DDS   - Department of Developmental Services (State) 
DHCS  - Department of Health Care Services 
DHS   - Department of Health Services (State) 
DOE   - Department of Education (State and Federal) 
DOF   - Department of Finance 
DOH   - Department of Health 
DOR/DR  - Department of Rehabilitation 
DPSS   - Department of Public Social Services (County) 
DRC   - Disability Rights California (formerly Protection & Advocacy, Inc.) 
DSM   - Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders  
DSP   - Direct Support Professional 
DSS   - Department of Social Services (State) 
DOR   - Department of Rehabilitation (State) 
DRC   - Disability Rights California (formerly Protection & Advocacy) 
DTT   - Discrete Trial Training 
DVU   - Disability Voices United 
 
EBSH   - Enhanced Behavioral Support Home 
ECF   - Exceptional Children’s Foundation 
EDD   - Employment Development Department (State) 
EDMS  - Electronic Document Management System 
ELARC  - Eastern Los Angeles Regional Center 
EPSDT  - Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment   
 
FACT   - Foundation for Advocacy, Conservatorship, and Trust of CA 
FCPP   - Family Cost Participation Program 
FDC   - Fairview Developmental Center 
FEMA  - Federal Emergency Management Assistance 
FETA   - Family Empowerment Team in Action 
FHA   - Family Home Agency 
FMS   - Financial Management Service 
FNRC  - Far Northern Regional Center 
FSA   - Flexible Spending Account 

318



NLACRC Alphabet Soup         Page 3 
 
 
 
GGRC  - Golden Gate Regional Center 
 
HCBS   - Home and Community Based Services (Waiver) 
HCFA  - Health Care Financing Administration (now called CMMS) 
HIPAA  - Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 
HOPE  - Home Ownership for Personal Empowerment 
HRC   - Harbor Regional Center 
HUD   - Housing and Urban Development (Federal) 
 
ICB Model  - Individualized Choice Budget Model 
ICC   - Inter-agency Coordinating Council 
ICC   - Integrated Community Collaborative/Intregadoras 
ICF   - Intermediate Care Facility 
ICF/DD  - Intermediate Care Facility/Developmentally Disabled 
ICF/DD-H  - Intermediate Care Facility/Developmentally Disabled-Habilitative 
ICF/DD-N  - Intermediate Care Facility/Developmentally Disabled-Nursing 
ICF/SPA  - Intermediate Care Facility/State Plan Amendment 
IDEA   - Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
IDEIA  - Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act  
IDP   - Individual Development Plan 
IDT   - Inter-disciplinary Team 
IEP   - Individual Educational Plan 
IFSP   - Individual Family Service Plan 
IHP   - Individual Habilitation Plan 
IHSS   - In-Home Supportive Services 
ILC   - Independent Living Center 
ILS   - Independent Living Services  
IMD   - Institutes of Mental Disease 
IPP   - Individual Program Plan 
IRC   - Inland Regional Center 
ISP   - Individual Service Plan 
 
KRC   - Kern Regional Center 
 
LACHD  - Los Angeles County Health Department 
LACDMH  - Los Angeles County Department of Mental Health 
LACTC  - Los Angeles County Transportation Commission 
LADOT  - Los Angeles Department of Transportation (City) 
LAUSD  - Los Angeles Unified School District 

319



NLACRC Alphabet Soup         Page 4 
 
 
LCSW  - Licensed Clinical Social Worker 
LDC   - Lanterman Developmental Center 
LEA   - Local Education Agency 
LICA   - Local Interagency Coordination Area 
LRC   - Lanterman Regional Center 
 
MCH   - Maternal and Child Health 
MFCC  - Marriage, Family and Child Counselor 
MHRC  - Mental Health Rehabilitation Center 
MMIS   - Medicaid Management Information System 
MSW   - Masters in Social Work 
 
NADD  - National Association for the Dually Diagnosed 
NASDDDS  - National Association of State Directors of Developmental Disabilities   

  Services  
NBRC  - North Bay Regional Center 
NLACRC  - North Los Angeles County Regional Center 
 
OAH   - Office of Administrative Hearings 
OCRA  - Office of Client Rights Advocacy 
OPS   - Operations funds (for Regional Centers) 
OSEP   - Office of Special Education Programs 
OSERS  - Office of Special Education and Rehabilitative Services    
OSHA  - Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
OT   - Occupational Therapy 
 
PAI   - Protection and Advocacy, Inc. (now called Disability Rights CA) 
PDD   - Pervasive Developmental Disorder 
PDC   - Porterville Developmental Center 
PDF   - Program Development Fund 
PEP   - Purchase of Service Expenditure Projection (formerly SOAR) 
PEPRA  - Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act 
PERS   - Public Employees’ Retirement System 
PET   - Psychiatric Emergency Team 
PIP   - Paid Internship Program 
PL 94-142  - Public Law 94-142 (Right to Education Bill) 
PMRT   - Psychiatric Mobile Response Team 
POLST  - Physician Orders for Life-Sustaining Treatment  
POS   - Purchase of Services funds (for Regional Centers) 
PRMT  - Post-Retirement Medical Trust 

320



NLACRC Alphabet Soup         Page 5 
 
 
PRRS   - Prevention Resources and Referral Services 
PRUCOL  - Permanently Residing in the U.S. Under Color of the Law 
PT   - Physical Therapy 
 
QMRP  - Qualified Mental Retardation Professional 
 
RC   - Regional Center 
RCEB   - Regional Center of the East Bay 
RCFE   - Residential Care Facility for the Elderly 
RCOC  - Regional Center of Orange County 
RCRC   - Redwood Coast Regional Center 
RDP   - Resource Development Plan 
RFP   - Request for Proposals 
RRDP  - Regional Resource Development Project 
RSST   - Residential Service Specialist Training 
 
SARC   - San Andreas Regional Center 
SB   - Senate Bill (State) 
SCDD  - State Council on Developmental Disabilities 
SCIHLP  - Southern CA Integrated Health and Living Project 
SCLARC  - South Central Los Angeles Regional Center 
SDRC   - San Diego Regional Center 
SDC   - Sonoma Developmental Center 
SDP   - Self-Determination Program 
SDS   - Self-Directed Services 
SEIU   - Service Employees’ International Union 
SELPA  - Special Education Local Plan Area  
SG/PRC  - San Gabriel/Pomona Regional Center 
SLS   - Supported Living Services 
SMA   - Schedule of Maximum Allowances (Medi-Cal) 
SNF   - Skilled Nursing Facility 
SOAR  - Sufficiency of Allocation Report (see PEP) 
SOCCO  - Society of Community Care Home Operators 
SPA   - State Plan Amendment 
SRF   - Specialized Residential Facility 
SSA   - Social Security Administration 
SSDI   - Social Security Disability Insurance 
SSI   - Supplemental Security Income 
SSP   - State Supplementary Program 
 

321



NLACRC Alphabet Soup         Page 6 
 
 
TASH   - The Association for the Severely Handicapped 
TCRC   - Tri-Counties Regional Center 
 
UAP   - University Affiliated Program 
UCI   - Unique Client Identifier 
UCP   - United Cerebral Palsy 
UFS   - Uniform Fiscal System 
 
VAC   - Vendor Advisory Committee 
VIA   - Valley Industry Association (Santa Clarita Valley) 
VICA   - Valley Industry & Commerce Association (San Fernando Valley) 
VMRC  - Valley Mountain Regional Center 
 
WAP   - Work Activity Program 
WIOA  - Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 
 
 
 
 
[alphabetsoup]  January 7, 2021 

322



North Los Angeles County Regional Center 

Board of Trustees 

FY 2023-2024 Action Log 

 

Meeting 
Date 

 

Subject Action Text 

08/09/23 Item 6B: Consent Item 
Approval of Minutes of 6/14/23 
Meeting 

M/S/C (Cathy/Andrew)  To approve the Minutes of the June 14th meeting. 
Approved. 

8.  Committee Action Items 
A.  Approval of Draft FY23-24 
Critical Calendars for Vendor 
Advisory Committee, Admin Affairs 
& Executive Committee (revised), and 
Board of Trustees Ana Quiles (Pg.18) 

M/S/C (George/Brian) Motion approved for changes to Critical Calendars 

8. B. Committee Action Items 
Consumer Services Committee – 
Rosie Sigala 
1. Approval of Amendment to 
NLACRC Service Standards - Case 
Finding and Public Information 
Service Standard (Page 32) 

M/S/C (Rosie/George) Motion approved.  

8C. Administrative Affairs 
Committee - 1. Approval of 
Contracts 
a. PathPoint PL2205-076 – New 

Vendorization (Attachment #1) 

M/S/C (L Martinez/B. Gatus) All contracts Items 8A – G. Motion to 
approve all seven contracts (7). Contracts approved. 

 

 C 1. g. Softchoice Microsoft Licensing 
Agreement (Attachment #2) 
 
 

M/S/C (A. Ramirez/C. Blin) Operation motion to approved. Approved. 

323



 8E. Executive Committee – Ana 
Quiles 
1. AB 1147 Letter of Support 

M/S/C (L. Garcia/G. Alvarado) Motion to approve the Letter of Support 

 8E 2. Proposed Primary Activities for 
FY23-24 – Board 
 

M/S/C (A. Garcia/L. Garcia) Motion to approve the document of primary 
activities. Approved. 

 8E 3. FY 2022-23 Board vs 
Expenditures (Attachment #3 pg.1) 

M/S/C (N. Abrahms/G. Alvarado)  Motion to approve expenditures.  
Approved. 

 8E 4. FY 2023-24 Board vs 
Expenditures - (Attachment #3 pg.2) 

M/S/C (N. Abrahms/G.Alvarado) 

 8E 5. FY23-24 Board Goals M/S/C (Lety/Andrew) Executive Committee to present to the board at the 
next meeting 
ACTION 1:  Committee will be presenting a concise “Goals” at the next 
Board Meeting. 

• Primary Goals 

• Public relations 

• Educating families 

• Employment & retention 
 

 9. Executive Director’s Report – 
Ruth Janka (Attachment #4) 

M/S/C (    /    )  
Ruth Janka shared (attachment #4) Many services were shared, implementing 
services 
ACTION 2: Board Support to add this discussion to the Admin agenda for 
the next meeting 

 10. Self-Determination Program 
(SDP) Report – Gabriela Eshrati 
(Page 67) A. SDLVAC Liaison June 
Report (Page 72) 

M/S/C (    /    ) In search of the Board Member liaison. FMS provider list 
needs to be updated, columns to add for clarity. Updated. 
ACTION 3:  Gabby to update the Provider List with updated information to 
be included as next month’s meeting. 

 20. Vendor Advisory Committee – 
Suad Bisogno 
C.  Committee Priorities & Goals 

ACTION 4:  VAC Committee to finalize their goals for presentation to the 
board at board next meeting. 

324



 21. Public Input There was public information regarding Respite. 
 
Consumer commented ILS services regarding time recording & summaries. 
Not sure how they’re reporting/utilizing her hours? Without signing, you can’t 
know what’s happening. Attends the CAC (bylaws). Monitoring hours is an 
issue. 
 
AB1147 – thank you for supporting this. 
 
Liaison with New Horizons once had paperwork, now it’s electronic sign-in 
with IL staff, they can log in on their phones. 
 

09/13/23 6.  Consent Item 
A. Approval of Agenda (Page 4)  

There were 3 revisions to the agenda: 
 
Item B. - Personnel, was added under Item 7. Executive Session 
 
Item E 1. -Approval of Committee Priorities Issues, under Vendor 
Advisory Committee was deferred.  
 
Item 8. Presentation of DDS Contract for FY23-24 was deferred. 
 
M/S/C (A. Ramirez/C. Wang) To approve the meeting agenda as 
revised. 
 

6.  Consent Item 
B. Approval of Minutes from the 
August 9, 2023 Meeting  
 

This item was deferred  

7. Executive Session  M/S/C (G. Alvarado/C. Wang) To enter the Executive Session at 6:51 
pm 
 
M/S/C (A. Ramirez/C. Wang) To exit the Executive Session at 6:51 pm 

325



9. Committee Action Item 

A. Executive Committee 

1. Approval of Changes of Board 

Master Calendar (Page 8)  

 

2. Approval of FY 2023-24 

Annual Board Training Plan - 

(Page 20) 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Approval of FY 2023-24 Board 

Goals (Page 21)  

 

 

 

4. Approval to Suspend SDP 

Board Liaison Position for FY23-

24  

 

 

B. Consumer Services  

Committee 

1. Approval of Amendment to 

NLACRC Service Standards: 

Early Start IDEA Part C in the 

Case Finding & Public 

Information section of the Service 

Standards. (Page 29)  

 

 

M/S/C (B. Gatus/G. Alvarado) To approve the Board Master Calendar 
as presented. 
 
 
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/R. Sigala) To approve the Board Training Plan as 
presented. 
 
ACTION: Follow up with NLA Staff to discuss resources for First 
Air/CPR/AED Hands on training and follow up with George Alvarado 
and Nicholas Mendoza. (Ruth Janka) 

 
 
M/S/C (R. Sigala/G. Alvarado) To approve the Board Goals as 
presented. 
 
 
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/R. Sigala) To approve the recommendation to 
suspend the Board Liaison Position for FY23-24.  
 
 
 
M/S/C (B. Gatus/G. Alvarado) To approve the Service Standards as 
revised 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

326



2.Approval of Committee 

Priorities for FY 2023-24 (Page 

41) 

 

 

 

D. Government & Community 

Relations Committee 

1. Approval of the Legislative 

Priorities for FY 2023-24 (Page 

42)  

 

 

 

F. Nominating Committee 

1. Nomination of New Board 

Members 

 

 

G. Strategic Planning Committee 

1. Approval of Revised Critical 

Calendar for FY 2023-24 

M/S/C (G. Alvarado/R. Sigala) To approve the Consumers Services 
Committee Priorities as presented. 
 
 

 

ACTION: Revise the Legislative Priorities to include changes to 
verbiage “Engage the community to support legislation for mental health 
and competitive integrated employment” (Lilliana Windover) 

 
M/S/C (B. Gatus/G. Alvarado) To approve the Legislative Priorities as 
revised.  
 
 
 
M/S/C (B. Gatus/G. Alvarado) To approve all of the proposed Board 
Members as presented.  
 
 
 
ACTION: Revise the Strategic Planning Committee Critical Calendar to 
include: 

- Addition of a Survey Review to the January Meeting to review data 
from Kinetic Flow.  

- Add an RFP for Employee Satisfaction Survey to November 
meeting 

 
M/S/C (B. Gatus/G. Alvarado) To approve the revised Strategic 
Planning Committee Calendar as revised 
 

 10. Executive Director’s Report ACTION: Include a monthly HR report that shows vacancies vs. 
positions filled (Ruth Janka) 

327



 
 

 

 23. Public Input ACTION: Follow up with Curtis Wang and George Alvarado regarding 
transportation to the in-person Board Meeting, Curtis and George to 
email Board Support (Board Support) 

 

Meeting 
Date 

 

Subject Action Text 

11/8/23 7.  Consent Items 
 
 
A. Approval of Agenda  
 
 
B. Approval of Minutes from the 
August 9, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
 
 
 
B. Approval of Minutes from the 
October 11, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
 

 
 
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/C. Wang) To approve the agenda as revised. 
 
 
This item was deferred  
ACTION: Confirm the attendance for the October 11th meeting and 
revise meeting attendance as appropriate. (Ruth Janka/Board Support) 

 
M/S/C (D. Coe/B. Gatus) To approve the meeting minutes as 
presented. 
 

 
8. Presentation of Exec. Dir. 
Evaluation Process  

 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/B. Gatus) To approve the Executive Director 
Timeline as presented. 

328



9. Committee Action Items 

 

 

 

A. Executive Committee 

1. Proposed Amendment to Bylaws 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. ARCA Membership Agreement 

Form  

 

 

 

B. Administrative Affairs 

Committee 

 

1. Board Resolution for Workers' 

Comp Insurance  

 

 

F. Strategic Planning Committee 

1. SPC Critical Calendar 

 

 

 

2. Employee Satisfaction RFP 

 
 
 

ACTION: To clarify with NLA legal counsel and to revise the 
information in each committee section to include the same verbiage 
regarding how elections are conducted, to be presented and voted on at 
January Board Meeting. (Ruth Janka/Board Support) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION: Follow up with NLA legal counsel to review Section 11 of 
the agreement and clarify the statement regarding class action lawsiuts.  
(Ruth Janka) 

 
 
 
 
 
M/S/C (L. Martinez/D. Coe) To approve the Board Resolution 
as presented.  
 
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/C. Blin) To approve the Critical Calendar 
as presented.  
 
 
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/C. Wang) To approve the RFP as 

329



 

 presented.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 10. Executive Session M/S/C (L. Martinez/B. Gatus) To enter the Executive Session at 
7:36 pm.  

 

M/S/C (G. Alvarado/J. Koster) To exit the Executive Session at 
7:57 pm.   

 

 Meeting adjourned at 8:42 pm  

Meeting 
Date 

 

Subject Action Text 

1/10/24 3. Closed Session 
A. Personnel  

 

M/S/C (R. Sigala/G. Alvarado) To exit the Closed Session at 6:33 pm.   

 

M/S/C (R. Sigala/G. Alvarado) To exit the Closed Session at 6:33 pm.   

 

330



 7.  Consent Items 
 
 
A. Approval of Agenda  
 
 
B. Approval of Minutes from the 
November 8th Meeting 
 
 
 

 
 
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/B. Gatus) To approve the meeting agenda as 
presented. 
 
M/S/C (D. Coe/B. Gatus) To approve the meeting minutes as 
presented. 
 

 
9. Account Authorized Signer 
Changes 

 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/B. Gatus) To approve the resolutions as 
presented.  
 

10. Approval of Contracts 

 

 

11. Government and Community 

Relations Committee 

 

A. Board Advocacy One-Page 

Sheet 

 

M/S/C (G. Alvarado/L. Martinez) To approve the contracts as 
presented.  
 
 
 
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/R. Sigala) To approve the Board Advocacy One-
Sheet as presented.  
 
M/S/C (D. Coe/A. Ramirez) To approve a revision of the Board 
Member Responsibilities Policy to include a requirement or Board 
Members to include contacting their Assemblyperson and Senator at 
least once a year.  
 
ACTION ITEM: Draft a revision of the Board Member 
Responsibilities Policy to include the legislative advocacy requirement. 
(Board Support) 

331



 

 12. Committee Action Items 

 

A.Executive Committee 

 

2. Proposed Update to Board 

Meeting Schedule  

 

 

 

B.Nominating Committee 

 

1.Nomination of New Board 

Members 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.Updated Board Roster and 

Committee List 

 
 
 
 
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/A. Rodriguez) To approve the Board Meeting 
Schedule as Presented and to include the allowance of extra time for 
Closed Sessions on an as needed basis.  
 
 

M/S/C (G. Alvarado/A. Ramirez) To approve the Board Nominees as 

presented.  

 

M/S/C (G. Alvarado/L. Martinez) To approve Cristina Preuss as a 

member of the Strategic Planning Committee. 

 

 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/A. Ramirez) To approve the Board Roster and 
Committee List with the noted revisions.  
 
ACTION ITEM: Revise Committee List to reflect 2 open positions for 
Board Membership and to remove Ruth Janka from the PRMT 
Committee List. (Board Support) 
 

 13. Executive Director’s Report 

 

Organizational Chart 

 
 
ACTION ITEM: Draft an updated Organizational Chart for review at 

332



the next Administrative Affairs Meeting, (Board Support) 
 
 
ACTION ITEM: Connect Kimberly Visokey with Amy Westerling at 
ARCA to discuss ARCA Meeting Link and agenda (Ruth Janka) 

 16. Administrative Affairs 

Committee 

 

C.Special Meeting Request 

 
 
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/B. Gatus) To add a meeting for the 
Administrative Affairs Committee on Tuesday, January 23rd. 
 
 
ACTION ITEM: To finalize the agenda for the January 23 Admin 
Affairs meeting for posting on January 16, 2024. (Board Support) 
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/B. Gatus) To add an agenda item to the January 
23rd Meeting regarding Meeting Date and Frequency. 
 

 18. Consumer Services Committee 

 

M/S/C (G. Alvarado/B. Gatus) To add an agenda item to the next 
Consumer Services Meeting regarding Social Rec Reimbursement 
Delays 
 

 19. Executive Committee 

 

E.Next Meeting 

 
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/L. Martinez) To change the time of the 
Executive Committee Meeting to 6:00 pm on January 25th. 

  

 

23. Post Retirement Medical Trust 

Committee 

 
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/L. Martinez) To cancel the January 25th meeting 
due to the need for more information to review the agenda items. 
 

 27. Public Input ACTION: Connect with Curtis Wang regarding Volunteering or the 
Workshop being held on February 24. (Kimberly Visokey) 
 

333



ACTION: Update the Upcoming Meeting List to include the 
Recruitment and Negotiating Committees (Board Support) 
 
ACTION: Update the Board Attendance Martrix to reflect the rolling 
of the year. (Board Support) 

 Meeting adjourned at 8:04 pm  

Meeting 
Date 

 

Subject Action Text 

2/14/2024 3. Closed Session 
A. Personnel  

 

M/S/C (C. Wang/N. Abrahms) To enter the Closed Session at 6:04 
pm.  

 

M/S/C (G. Alvarado/B. Gatus) To exit the Closed Session at 6:38 pm.   

 7.  Consent Items 
 
 
A. Approval of Agenda  
 
 
B. Approval of Minutes from the 
November 8th Meeting 
 
 
 

 
 
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/A. Ramirez) To approve the meeting agenda as 
revised. 
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/D. Coe) To approve the Minutes as presented. 

 8. Committee Action Items 

 

 
 

334



A.Government and Community 

Relations  

 

B.Bylaws 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D. Nominating Committee 

 

 

 

M/S/C (A. Ramirez/L. Martinez) To approve the events as presented. 
 
 
M/S/C (L. Martinez/G. Alvarado) To approve the 2 requested 
revisions to CAC    Committee and Board Member Meeting attendance 
to the bylaws and to create an Ad Hoc Committee of Board Members 
to review the remaining Bylaw revisions. Motion amended.  
 
M/S/C (L. Martinez/B. Gatus) To approve the 2 requested revisions 
to CAC Committee and Board Member Meeting attendance sections of 
the Bylaws.  
   
M/S/C (L. Martinez/G. Alvarado) To approve the creation of an Ad 
Hoc Committee of Board Members to review the remaining Bylaw 
revisions. The motion did not pass with oppositions from L. Martinez, 
A. Ramirez, B. Gatus, J. Hernandez, C. Blin, N. Abrahms, G. Alvarado, 
A. Rodriguez, V. Seda, D. Coe, R. Sigala, A. Quiles and 2 abstentions 
from S. Bisogno and J. Koster 
 
M/S/C (B. Gatus/G. Alvarado) To approve the delegation of the 
review of remaining Bylaw revisions to the Executive Committee and 
to add a standing agenda item to the Board Meeting agenda on updates 
to the Bylaw review. The motion passed with 2 oppositions from S. 
Brunjes and L. Garcia  
 
M/S/C (D. Coe/G. Alvarado) To add the review of Board President 
Term Limits to the Bylaw Board review.  The motion passed with 1 
opposition from L. Garcia.  
 

 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/ C. Wang) To approve the Certificate of Return 
or Destruction of Confidential Information Form as presented.    
 

335



 

 

E. Strategic Planning Committee 

 
 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/ L. Martinez) To approve the Critical Calendar as 
presented 

 12. Administrative Affairs 

Committee 

 
M/S/C (G. Alvarado/ A. Ramirez) To approve the new date for this 
meeting to be February 27, 2024.  
 
ACTION ITEM: Update the Committee Meeting Information (Board 
Support) 

 Meeting adjourned at 8:34 pm  

336


	24.B_Board_Committee_MtgTimes.pdf
	FY2023-24

	24.A.2_attend.mtgs.current.pdf
	Administrative Affairs
	Consumer Advisory Committee
	Consumer Services
	Executive 
	Government & Community Relation
	Nominating
	PRMT
	Recruitment
	Strategic Planning
	Vendor Advisory

	24.A.1_attend.board.current.pdf
	Board Attendance FY2023-24

	19.B_board recognition policy.pdf
	Government & Community Relations Committee
	Board Recognition


	14.I.2_LIST OF ALL SOCIAL REC_RELATED AUTHS_December 2023.pdf
	Board Report

	14.I.1_LIST OF ALL SOCIAL REC_RELATED AUTHS_November 2023.pdf
	Board Report

	10.E_Service Standards - Current Draft - Social Rec 02.2024.pdf
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	INTRODUCTION
	I. FAMILY SUPPORTS AND LIVING ARRANGEMENTS
	PHILOSOPHY
	FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES & RESPITE
	DEFINITIONS:

	RESPITE SERVICES
	CHILDREN
	ADULTS

	DAY CARE SERVICES
	DEFINITION:
	CHILDREN
	ADULTS

	PERSONAL ASSISTANTS
	CHILDREN
	ADULTS
	POLICY

	CAMPING, SOCIAL RECREATION AND NONMEDICAL THERAPIES
	OTHER FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES
	DEFINITION
	POLICY

	LICENSED RESIDENTIAL SERVICES
	DEFINITION
	POLICY

	INDEPENDENT LIVING SERVICES
	DEFINITION
	POLICY

	SUPPORTED LIVING SERVICES
	DEFINITION
	POLICY

	STANDARDIZED ASSESSMENT QUESTIONNAIRE
	RENT, MORTGAGE, AND LEASE PAYMENTS
	IN-HOME SUPPORT SERVICES
	SEX OFFENDERS

	EXCEPTION PROCEDURE
	II. SOCIAL RECREATION, CAMP, AND NON-MEDICAL THERAPIES
	Service and Procedural Standards
	PHILOSOPHY

	CAMP AS A FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICE
	DEFINITION
	POLICY

	CAMP AS A FORM OF DAYCARE
	DEFINITION
	POLICY
	SOCIALIZATION, LEISURE, AND RECREATION SKILLS
	DEFINITIONS:
	POLICY
	SOCIAL RECREATION SERVICES AS A FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICE
	DEFINTION
	POLICY
	NON-MEDICAL THERAPIES
	DEFINITIONS:
	POLICY
	NON-MEDICAL THERAPIES AS A FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICE
	DEFINTION
	POLICY
	NON-MEDICAL THERAPIES AS A SOCIALIZATION SERVICE
	PHILOSOPHY
	Non-Medical Therapies such as equestrian therapy, music therapy, art therapy, and dance therapy, may provide individuals with opportunities to enhance social skill development through the development of relationships with community members and opportu...
	POLICY
	NON-MEDICAL THERAPIES AS HABILITATION, THERAPY, OR TREATMENT

	EXCEPTION PROCEDURE

	10.D.2_BSA Product Overview.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	BSA Types Available
	Slide Number 3
	DEI Questions in the BSA	
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Pricing
	Use your Results to…�	
	Testimonials

	10.A.3.E2_ PL2230-616 DV Therapy Board Resolution.pdf
	Per 17 CCR, Section 57332(12), rate of payment for service code 616 is calculated as no more than 75 percent of the regional center's median hourly rate for Behavior Management Assistant--Service Code 615, or the statewide median rate for Behavior Management Assistant--Service Code 615, whichever is lower. The service  code 615 statewide median  rate is currently $64.48 per hour and the NLACRC median rate is $65.76. Therefore, the service code 616 statewide median rate is $48.36 and the NLACRC median rate is $49.32.
	The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Board of Trustees reviewed and discussed the Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement (“Agreement”, or “Contract”) for DV Therapy Inc. and passed the following resolution:

	10.A.3.D2_ PL2229-615 DV Therapy Board Resolution.pdf
	The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Board of Trustees reviewed and discussed the Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement (“Agreement”, or “Contract”) for DV Therapy Inc. and passed the following resolution:

	10.A.3.C1_ PL2228-612 DV Therapy Board Resolution.pdf
	The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Board of Trustees reviewed and discussed the Nonresidential Negotiated Rate Agreement (“Agreement”, or “Contract”) for DV Therapy Inc. and passed the following resolution:

	10.A.3.B2_ PL2181-062 Rockin Oldies II Board Resolution.pdf
	Contractor will provide Personal Assistance services pursuant to Title 17, Section 54356 and the DDS published guidelines regarding Miscellaneous Services revised 05/10/2010. The service provider will provide personal assistance and support.

	10.A.2_aa.ccal.2023-24_bimonthly_rev draft 02.29.2024.pdf
	NLACRC 
	Administrative Affairs Committee
	  CRITICAL CALENDAR 
	FY 2023-24

	10.A.1_AA.mtgsched.2023-24_monthly_rev draft 02.2024.pdf
	Administrative Affairs Committee
	Meetings Schedule




